Board:

q Mark R. Elam, Chairman Seema Shrivastava-Patel
e< : Jim P. Creel, Jr., Vice-Chairman Richard V. Lee, Jr.
Charles M. Joye, Il, P.E., Secretary Alex A. Singleton

Healthy People. J.B. (Sonny) Kinney

South Carolina Board of Health and Environmental Control
Agenda
January 6, 2020
Call to Order - 10:00 a.m., Board Room (#3420)
South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control,
2600 Bull Street, Columbia, S.C.
1.  Minutes of December 12, 2019 meeting
2. Administrative and Consent Orders issued by Health Regulation
3. Administrative and Consent Orders issued by Environmental Affairs
4. Public Hearing and Request for Notice of Final Regulation Approval,
Regulation 61-93, Standards for Licensing Facilities That Treat Individuals for
Psychoactive Substance Abuse or Dependence, Proposed Amendment, Document
No. 4954
5. Public Hearing and Request for Notice of Final Regulation Approval,
Regulation 61-97, Standards for Licensing Renal Dialysis Facilities, Proposed
Amendment, Document No. 4953
6. Agency Affairs
Executive Session (if needed)

Adjournment

Note: The next scheduled meeting is February 13, 2020.

S.C. Department of Health and Environmental Control



SUMMARY SHEET
SOUTH CAROLINA BOARD OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL

January 6,2020

( ) ACTION/DECISION
(X) INFORMATION
L TITLE: Health Regulation Administrative and Consent Orders,

II. SUBJECT: Health Regulation Administrative and Consent Orders for the period of November 1,
2019, through November 30, 2019.

Il FACTS: For the period of November 1, 2019, through November 30, 2019, Health Regulation
reports one (1) Consent Order with no assessed monetary penalties. There were no Administrative
Orders or Emergency Suspension Orders issued during the reporting pericd.

Rg‘::ll;ttlilon Facility, Service, Provider, or | Administrative | Consent g“n;ez;ggil:ﬁ Assessed
B%!reau Equipment Type Orders Orders | © OI:_ S Penalties
Lk Paramedic 0 1 0 $0
Trauma

TOTAL 0 1 0 $0
Submitted By:
LaTony Williams
Director of Quality Management Division
Health Facilities Licensing

On behalf of Gwen C. Thompson,
Interim Director of Health Regulation



HEALTH REGULATION ENFORCEMENT REPORT
SOUTH CAROLINA BOARD OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL

January 6,2020

Bureau of Emergency Medical Services and Trauma

Provider Type Total# of Certified Paramedics

Paramedic 3,873

1, Stacey A. Winstead — Paramedic

Inspections and Investigations: In July 2019, the Department was notified of allegations concerning conduct
by Ms. Winstead while working for a licensed advanced life support ambulance service. The Department
Initiated an investigation.

Violations: The Department found that while Ms. Winstead and her EMT partner were on duty and after
initiating care of a patient at the scene of an illness, Ms. Winstead and her EMT partner discontinued such
care without the patient’s consent. The Department determined that Ms. Winstead committed misconduct
by discontinuing care ofa patient atthe scene ofanillness without the patient’sconsent or withoutproviding
for the further administration of care by an equal or higher medical authority .

Enforcement Action: The parties agreed to resolve the matter with a consent order. The parties executed a
consent order imposing a six-month suspension, which will be held in abeyance for twelve months, on M,
Winstead’s paramedic certificate. Ms. Winstead also agreed to successfully complete both a Pre-Hospital

Trauma Life Support Class and a Professional Ethics and Personal Leadership (PEPL) Class within twelve
months of the execution of this Consent Order.

Prior Actions: None.



SUMMARY SHEET
BOARD OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL
January 6, 2020

ACTION/DECISION

X INFORMATION

1. TITLE: Administrative and Consent Orders issued by the Office of Environmental Affairs.

2. SUBJECT: Administrative and Consent Orders issued by the Office of Environmental Affairs during the period
November 1, 2019, through November 30, 2019.

3. FACTS: For the reporting period of November 1, 2019, through November 30, 2019, the Office of
Environmental Affairs issued one hundred twenty (120) Consent Orders with total assessed civil penalties in
the amount of one hundred seventy-two thousand, eight hundred seventy ($172,870.00) dollars. Also, nine
(9) Administrative Orders were reported during this period with total assessed civil penalties in the amount
of eleven thousand, four hundred fifty (11,450.00) dollars.

Bureau and Program Administrative Assessed Consent Assessed Penalties
Area Orders Penalties Orders
Land and Waste
Management
UST Program 3 $11,450.00 3 $1,900.00
Aboveground Tanks 0 0 0 0
Solid Waste 0 0 3 $7,300.00
Hazardous Waste 0 0 1 $8,600.00
Infectious Waste 0 0 0 0
Mining 0 0 1 $1,000.00
SUBTOTAL 3 $11,450.00 8 $18,800.00
Water
Recreational Water 0 0 37 $57,820.00
Drinking Water 0 0 2 0
Water Pollution 0 0 6 $17,200.00
Dam Safety 1 0 0 0
SUBTOTAL 1 0 45 $75,020.00
Air Quality
SUBTOTAL 0 0 1 $9,600.00
Environmental Health
Services
Food Safety 0 0 66 $69,450.00
Onsite Wastewater 5 0 0 0
SUBTOTAL 5 0 66 $69,450.00
OCRM
SUBTOTAL 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 9 $11,450.00 120 $172,870.00

Submitted by:

Olgoe . Ruer

Myra C. Reece
Director of Environmental Affairs




ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS ENFORCEMENT REPORT
BOARD OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL
January 6, 2020

BUREAU OF LAND AND WASTE MANAGEMENT

Underground Storage Tank Enforcement

1) Order Type and Number: Administrative Order 19-0064-UST
Order Date: October 31, 2019
Individual/Entity: Tien Van Nguyen
Facility: Michael's Express
Location: 644 Rock Hill Highway

Lancaster, SC 29720
Mailing Address: Same
County: Lancaster
Previous Orders: none
Permit/ID Number: 05522
Violations Cited: The State Underground Petroleum

Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act), S.C. code Ann., § 44-2-10 et
seq. (2018); and South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation, 7 S.C.
Code Ann., Regs. 61-92.280.93(a) and 280.110(c) (2012 & Supp. 2018).

Summary: Tien Van Nguyen (Individual/Entity) owns underground storage tanks
(USTs) located in Lancaster, South Carolina. On January 17, 2019, the Department issued a
Notice of Alleged Violation because there was no current financial responsibility assurance on
file with the Department. The Individual/Entity has violated the SUPERB Act and the South
Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation as follows: failed to demonstrate
financial responsibility for an underground storage tank (UST) system and failed to submit
financial assurance to the Department.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: submit a completed Certificate of Financial
Responsibility form; submit evidence of financial assurance; and, pay a civil penalty in the
amount of two thousand, six hundred fifty dollars ($2,650.00).

2) Order Type and Number: Administrative Order 19-0182-UST
Order Date: November 7, 2019
Individual/Entity: Jaisy & Sahil Vi, LLC
Facility: Food Fare 2
Location: 7426 Hunt Club Road

Columbia, SC 29223
Mailing Address: Same

County: Richland



Previous Orders: None

Permit/ID Number: 07885

Violations Cited: The State Underground Petroleum
Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988, S.C. Code Ann. 8 44-2-10 et seq. (2018)
(SUPERB Act); and South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation, 7
S.C. Code Ann., Regs. 61-92, 280.20(c)(1)(ii)(2012 & Supp. 2018)

Summary: Jaisy & Sahil VI, LLC (Individual/Entity) owns and operates underground
storage tanks in Columbia, South Carolina. OnJune 19, 2019, the Department issued a Notice
of Alleged Violation because petroleum or petroleum products had been introduced into an
unregistered UST. The Individual/Entity has violated the SUPERB Act and the South Carolina
Underground Storage Tank Regulation, as follows: introduction of petroleum or petroleum
products into an unregistered or unpermitted UST.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to pay a civil penalty in the amount of three
thousand dollars ($3,000.00).

3) Order Type and Number: Administrative Order 19-0062-UST
Order Date: November 18, 2019
Individual/Entity: Surajhira LLC
Facility: Surajhira
Location: 3522 South Okatie Highway

Hardeeville, SC 29927
Mailing Address: Same
County: Jasper
Previous Orders: none
Permit/ID Number: 17979
Violations Cited: The State Underground Petroleum

Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act), S.C. code Ann., § 44-2-10 et
seq. (2018); and South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation, 7 S.C.
Code Ann., Regs. 61-92.280.34(c); 280.40(a); 280.43(d); and, 280.45(b)(1) (2012 &
Supp. 2018).

Summary: Surajhira LLC (Individual/Entity) owns underground storage tanks (USTs)
located in York, South Carolina. On January 23, 2019, the Department issued a Notice of
Alleged Violation because current automatic tank gauge (ATG) records or tank tightness test
results were not provided to the Department upon request. The Individual/Entity has violated
the SUPERB Act and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation as
follows: failed to provide records to the Department upon request; failed to provide an
adequate release detection method for an UST system; failed to conduct proper release
detection using an ATG; and, failed to maintain records for one year.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: submit tank tightness test results for all
USTs; submit current ATG records; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of five thousand,
eight hundred dollars ($5,800.00).



4) Order Type and Number:

Order Date:
Individual/Entity:

Facility:
Location:

Mailing Address:

County:
Previous Orders:

Permit/ID Number:
Violations Cited:

Consent Order 19-0363-UST
November 5, 2019

Carolina Convenience Corporation
S Mart 102

436 Blossom Street

Columbia, SC 29201

557 Whiteford Way

Lexington, SC 29072

Richland

16-0232-UST ($1,000.00)

07637

The State Underground Petroleum

Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act), S.C. code Ann. § 44-2-10 et
seq. (2018), and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations, 7
S.C. Code Ann., Regs. 61-92.280.44(a) (2012 & Supp. 2018).

Summary: Carolina Convenience Corporation (Individual/Entity), owns underground
storage tanks located in Columbia, South Carolina. The Department conducted an inspection
on August 30, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the SUPERB Act and the S.C.
Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation as follows: failure equip a pressurized line with

an automatic line leak detector.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to pay a civil penalty in the amount of one

thousand dollars ($1,000.00).

5) Order Type and Number:
Order Date:
Individual/Entity:

Facility:
Location:

Mailing Address:

County:
Previous Orders:

Permit/ID Number:
Violations Cited:

Consent Order 19-0391-UST
November 5, 2019

Rashmiben Patel

Quick Stop 5

103 East Home Avenue

Hartsville, SC 29550-3711

2237 East Bobo Newsom Highway
Hartsville, SC 29550

Darlington

None

02763

The State Underground Petroleum

Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act), S.C. code Ann. 8 44-2-10 et
seq. (2018), R.61-92, Sections 280.31(a), 280.70(c), 280.93(a), 280.110(c) (2012 & Supp.

2018).

Summary: Rashmiben Patel (Individual/Entity), owns and operates an underground
storage tank located in Hartsville, South Carolina. On May 21, 2019, July 17,2019, and August
6,2019, the Department issued Notices of Alleged Violations. The Individual/Entity has violated
the SUPERB Act as follows: failed to close a permanently out-of-service UST system, failed to



demonstrate financial responsibility for an underground storage tank system and submit
evidence of financial assurance to the Department upon request, and failed to pay annual
tank registration fees.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: submit either a passing metal integrity
test results for all USTs or a completed UST Tank and Sludge Disposal Form, to permanently
close the USTs and submit a UST Closure and Assessment Report; submit a completed
Certificate of Financial Responsibility form and evidence of financial assurance; pay
outstanding annual tank registration fees and associated late fees for fiscal year 2020 in the
amount of one hundred sixty-five dollars ($165.00); pay a civil penalty in the amount of nine
hundred dollars ($900.00); and pay a stipulated penalty in the amount of eight thousand
dollars ($8,000.00) should any requirement of the Order not be met.

0) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-0412-UST
Order Date: November 5, 2019
Individual/Entity: Kareem Harding
Facility: Yahuah People Unite
Location: 650 Center Street
Chester, SC 29706
Mailing Address: 656 Center Road
Chester, SC 29706
County: Chester
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: 18376
Violations Cited: The State Underground Petroleum
Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act), S.C. code Ann. § 44-2-60(A) et
seq. (2018).

Summary: Kareem Harding (Individual/Entity), owns underground storage tanks
located in Columbia, South Carolina. On August 23, 2019, the Department issued a letter to
for failing to pay annual tank registration fees for fiscal years 2013 through 2020. The
Individual/Entity has violated the SUPERB Act as follows: failed to pay annual tank registration
fees.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay annual tank registration fees and
associated late fees for fiscal years 2013 through 2020 in the amount of eight thousand, eight
dollars ($8,008.00) in accordance with a promissory note and pay a suspended penalty in the
amount of three thousand, two hundred dollars ($3,200.00) should any requirement of the
Order not be met.

Solid Waste Enforcement

7) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-15-SW
Order Date: November 26, 2019




Individual/Entity: New Century Construction Company, LLC -
Recycling Division

Facility: New Century Construction Recycling Division
Chipping Site

Location: 1437 Davis Mill Road
Seneca, SC 29678

Mailing Address: 100 War Woman Trail
Seneca, SC 29672

County: Oconee

Previous Orders: None

Permit/ID Number: COM-00183

Violations Cited: South Carolina Solid Waste Policy and

Management Act of 1991, S.C. Code Ann. 88 44-96-290(A) (Rev. 2002) (Act), the Solid
Waste Management: Compost and Mulch Production from Land-clearing Debris, Yard
Trimmings, and Organic Residuals, R.61-107.4, Part IIl.C.1.b., Part Ill.E.1.a., Part
[l.E.1.d., Part lll.LE.1.e, Part Ill.E.5.c., Part lll.E.13.a., and Part IIl.E.15 (Regulation) and
Permit # COM-00183.

Summary: New Century Construction Company, LLC - Recycling Division
(Individual/Entity), is responsible for operating a wood grinding facility in Seneca, South
Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on June 25, 2018, September 27, 2018,
October 30, 2018, March 4, 2019, and April 29, 2019, and observed the following: exceeded
the permitted limit of unprocessed material; the required buffers were not met; all required
equipment was not operational; piles were not managed to prevent fires; there were
inadequate fire lanes surrounding all piles; and monthly records of current material on site
were not maintained. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Solid Waste Policy,
Management Act and Solid Waste Management: Compost and Mulch Production from Land-
clearing Debris, Yard Trimmings, and Organic Residuals Regulation, and Permit # COM-00183
as follows: failed to meet a minimum 50-foot buffer from property lines; failed to control
receipt of all materials; exceeded maximum capacity of material allowed by permit; failed to
cease accepting deliveries of feedstock or other materials that would result in materials being
stored in excess of the maximum capacity allowed by permit; failed to have sufficient space
around piles of material to allow access of emergency fire-fighting equipment; failed to
measure and record the amounts, in cubic yards, of feedstocks, in-process material and waste
material on site at that time; and failed to operate in accordance with this regulation and an
operational plan developed specifically for the Facility and approved by the Department.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: reduce the amount of unprocessed material
to less than seven hundred and forty (740) cubic yards; remove all unprocessed material that is
outside of the permitted area to within the permitted area; separate processed and
unprocessed material in accordance with the permitted plans; establish a fifty foot fire lane
around the unprocessed material; separate incoming and outgoing loads by permitted site for
the daily and monthly records; and pay a civil penalty in the amount of six thousand, three
hundred dollars ($6,300.00).



8)

Order Type and Number:

Order Date:
Individual/Entity:
Facility:
Location:

Mailing Address:

County:
Previous Orders:

Consent Order 19-26-SW
November 26, 2019

378 Recycle Center, LLC
378 Recycle Center

5040 Sunset Boulevard
Lexington, SC 29072
5009 Sunset Boulevard
Lexington, SC 29072
Lexington

None

Permit/ID Number: 322456-1703

Violations Cited: South Carolina Solid Waste Policy and
Management Act of 1991 (Act), Solid Waste Management: Solid Waste Landfills and
Structural Fill Regulation (Regulation), R.61-107.19, Part Ill.D. and Permit # 322456-
1703 (Permit)

Summary: 378 Recycle Center, LLC (Individual/Entity), is responsible for operating a
Class One Landfill in Lexington, South Carolina. The Department conducted a file review on
October 8, 2019 and determined that the Individual/Entity had not submitted its 2019 annual
report. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Solid Waste Policy and
Management Act, Solid Waste Management: Solid Waste Landfills and Structural Fill
Regulation, and the Permit 322456-1703 as follows: Failed to submit an annual report for
fiscal year 2019.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: submit an annual report for fiscal year
2019; pay a civil penalty in the amount of five hundred dollars ($500.00); and pay a suspended
penalty in the amount of three hundred dollars ($300.00) should any requirement of the Order
not be met.

Additional Information: The annual report for Fiscal year 2019 was submitted
on November 14, 2019 and the civil penalty has been paid.

9) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-27-SW
Order Date: November 26, 2019
Individual/Entity: 378 Recycle Center, LLC
Facility: 378 Recycle Center
Location: 5040 Sunset Boulevard

Lexington, SC 29072
5009 Sunset Boulevard
Lexington, SC 29072

Mailing Address:

County: Lexington
Previous Orders: None

Permit/ID Number: 322456-3002
Violations Cited: South Carolina Solid Waste Policy and
Management Act of 1991 (Act), Solid Waste Management: Compost and Mulch




Production from Land-clearing Debris, Yard Trimmings, and Organic Residuals
(Regulation), R.61-107.4, Part Ill.E.13.b. and Permit # 322456-3002 (Permit)

Summary: 378 Recycle Center, LLC (Individual/Entity), is responsible for operating a
compost and mulch production facility in Lexington, South Carolina. The Department
conducted a file review on October 8, 2019 and determined that the Individual/Entity had not
submitted its 2019 annual report. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Solid
Waste Policy and Management Act, Solid Waste Management: Compost and Mulch Production
from Land-clearing Debris, Yard Trimmings, and Organic Residuals, and the Permit 322456-
3002 as follows: failed to submit an annual report for fiscal year 2019.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: submit an annual report for fiscal year
2019; pay a civil penalty in the amount of five hundred dollars ($500.00); and pay a suspended
penalty in the amount of three hundred dollars ($300.00) should any requirement of the Order
not be met.

Hazardous Waste Enforcement

10) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-27-HW
Order Date: November 7, 2019
Individual/Entity: Stueken, LLC
Facility: Stueken, LLC
Location: 137 Southchase Boulevard

Fountain Inn, SC 29644
Mailing Address: Same
County: Greenville
Previous Orders: 17-28-HW ($6,000.00)
Permit/ID Number: SCR 000 007 070
Violations Cited: The South Carolina Hazardous Waste

Management Act, S.C. Code Ann. 88 44-56-10 et seq. (2018), and the South Carolina
Hazardous Waste Management Regulation, 6 and 7 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-79 (2012
and Supp. 2018).

Summary: Stueken, LLC (Individual/Entity) provides deep draw and metal stamping of
components for the automotive, electronic, and consumer industries at its facility located at
137 Southchase Boulevard, Fountain Inn, South Carolina. The Department conducted an
inspection on May 21, 2019. The Individual/Entity violated the South Carolina Hazardous
Waste Management Act and the Hazardous Waste Management Regulations as follows: failed
to accurately determine if a waste was a hazardous waste; failed to ensure each container is
labeled or marked clearly with accumulation start dates; failed to clean up a hazardous waste
discharge that occurred during processing; failed to record hazardous waste inspections in an
inspection log or summary, and keep such records at the facility for at least three (3) years
from the date of inspection; failed to maintain lamps in a manner to prevent a release and to
keep such containers closed; failed to label or mark clearly each battery or container of



universal waste batteries; failed to accumulate universal waste for no longer than one year
from the date generated; failed to demonstrate the length of time universal waste had been
accumulated from the date it became a waste; failed to ensure containers of used oil were
closed to prevent spillage; and failed to label or mark containers used to store used oil with
the words “Used Oil.”

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight
thousand, six hundred dollars ($8,600.00).

Mining Enforcement

11) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-09-MSWM
Order Date: November 14, 2019
Individual/Entity: Wilson Sand Company, LLC
Facility: Frick Mine
Location: Intersection of I-20 and U.S. Highway 178,

bisected by Ben Franklin Road and bounded
by North Edisto Road, Gilbert, SC

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 945
Greenwood, SC 29648-0945
County: Lexington
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: [-000178
Violations Cited: South Carolina Mining Act S.C. Code Ann. § 48-

20-10 et seq. (Rev. 2008); South Carolina Mining Regulation (Supp. 2012), R.89-20, R.89-
80, and Permit I-000178, Part Ill and Part VII, Section 6.

Summary: Wilson Sand Company, LLC (Individual/Entity), operates a mine near Gilbert,
South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on June 26, 2018 and May 23, 2019.
The Individual/Entity violated the South Carolina Mining Act, and the South Carolina Mining
Regulation as follows: failed to complete reclamation of Phase | and Phase Il segments of the
mine within two (2) years of termination and engaged in mining outside the permitted area
without obtaining a permit issued by the Department to cover the affected land.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: cease all mining activity outside of the
original Individual Mining Permit and the approved 2.7 acres until a completed MR-1300
Application to Modify (MR-1300) the existing Permit and the MR-700 Land Entry Agreement
(MR-700) is submitted to the Department; submit the MR-1300 and the MR-700 to the
Department or begin reclamation of the Site; complete the reclamation of Phase II; upon
confirmation from the Department that Phase Il reclamation is complete, begin reclamation
of Phase I; pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00); and pay a
stipulated penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) should any requirement
of the Order not be met.



BUREAU OF WATER

Recreational Waters Enforcement

12) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-236-RW
Order Date: November 1, 2019
Individual/Entity: Willington Lakes, LLC
Facility: Willington Lakes Apartment Homes
Location: 100 Willington Road

Orangeburg, SC29116
Mailing Address: Same
County: Orangeburg
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: 38-1001B; 38-1002C
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Willington Lakes, LLC (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the
proper operation and maintenance of a pool and a kiddie pool. On June 25, 2019, and July 29,
2019, the pool and kiddie pool were inspected, and violations were issued for failure to
properly operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools
Regulation as follows: depth marker tiles were not secured in place during the first inspection
and were cracked during the second inspection; the pool walls were dirty; the drinking water
fountain was not operating properly; the gate did not self-close and latch; the cyanuric acid
level was above the water quality standards acceptable limit; the current pool operator of
record information was not posted to the public; the bound and numbered log book was not
maintained on a daily basis and was not maintained a minimum of three times per week by
the pool operator of record; the plaster on the pool floor was delaminated; the pool floor was
dirty; skimmers were missing weirs; a bathroom did not have paper towels or a hand dryer;
the emergency notification device was not operational; the facility address was not posted at
the emergency notification device; the recirculation & filtration system was leaking; and, the
chlorine and pH levels were not within the acceptable range of water quality standards.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of one
thousand, three hundred sixty dollars ($1,360.00). The civil penalty has been paid.

13) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-238-RW
Order Date: November 1, 2019
Individual/Entity: Riverwalk at Arrowhead Country Club
Property Owners’ Association, Inc.
Facility: Riverwalk at Arrowhead
Location: 678 Riverwalk Drive

Myrtle Beach, SC 29577
Mailing Address: 7400 North Kings Highway




Myrtle Beach, SC 29527

County: Horry

Previous Orders: None

Permit/ID Number: 26-M90-1

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51()) & 61-51.K.1(c)

Summary: Riverwalk at Arrowhead Country Club Property Owners' Association, Inc.
(Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a
pool. On May 28, 2019, and July 5, 2019, the pool was inspected, and a violation was issued for
failure to properly operate and maintain; and, on May 29, 2019, the pool was inspected, and
a violation was issued for failure to properly operate and maintain and for re-opening prior to
receiving Department approval. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools
Regulation as follows: a ladder was missing bumpers; a handrail was not tight and secure; the
gate did not self-close and latch; the chlorine level was not within the acceptable range of
water quality standards; the emergency notification device was not operating; the bound and
numbered log book was not maintained a minimum of three times per week by the pool
operator of record; the bound and numbered log book was not maintained on a daily basis;
and, the pool was operating prior to receiving Department approval.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of two
thousand, three hundred eighty dollars ($2,380.00). The civil penalty has been paid.

14) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-239-RW

Order Date: November 1, 2019

Individual/Entity: Holiday Sands at South Beach Front
Homeowners’ Association, Inc.

Facility: Holiday Sands Oceanfront Resort

Location: 2501 South Ocean Boulevard
Myrtle Beach, SC 29577

Mailing Address: Same

County: Horry

Previous Orders: 18-267-RW ($2,720.00)

Permit/ID Number: 26-1594C

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Holiday Sands at South Beach Front Homeowners' Association, Inc.
(Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a
kiddie pool. OnJuly 2, 2019, and August 7, 2019, the kiddie pool was inspected, and a violation
was issued for failure to properly operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the
Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: the chlorine and pH levels were not within the
acceptable range of water quality standards.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of one
thousand, three hundred sixty dollars ($1,360.00). The civil penalty has been paid.



15) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-240-RW

Order Date: November 1, 2019
Individual/Entity: Kings Grant Villas Homeowners’
Association, Inc.
Facility: Kings Grant Villas
Location: 311 2" Avenue North
North Myrtle Beach, SC 29582
Mailing Address: Same
County: Horry
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: 26-1367D
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Kings Grant Villas Homeowners’ Association, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns
and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a spa. On June 26, 2019, July
16, 2019, and August 1, 2019, the spa was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to
properly operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools
Regulation as follows: the spa temperature was not monitored and posted to the public; the
chlorine level was not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; and, the bound
and numbered log book was not maintained on a daily basis.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of two
thousand, forty dollars ($2,040.00). The civil penalty has been paid.

16) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-241-RW
Order Date: November 1, 2019
Individual/Entity: Umang Properties, LLC
Facility: Country Inn & Suites
Location: 220 Holiday Drive

Summerville, SC 29483
Mailing Address: P.O.Box 1127
Laramie, WY 82073
County: Berkeley
Previous Orders: 17-019-RW ($2,040.00);
18-226-RW ($4,080.00)
Permit/ID Number: 08-1016B
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Umang Properties, LLC (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the
proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On June 27, 2019, and July 23, 2019, the pool
was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly operate and maintain. The
Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: a handrail was
missing; the foot rinse shower was not operating properly; the pH level was not within the
acceptable range of water quality standards; the bound and numbered log book was not
maintained on a daily basis; a gate did not self-close and latch; and, the life ring did not have
a permanently attached rope.



Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of two
thousand, two hundred forty dollars ($2,240.00). The civil penalty has been paid.

17) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-242-RW
Order Date: November 1, 2019
Individual/Entity: The Arbor Homeowner's
Association, Inc.

Facility: The Arbor

Location: 312 69™ Avenue North
Myrtle Beach, SC 29577

Mailing Address: Same

County: Horry

Previous Orders: None

Permit/ID Number: 26-661-1

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: The Arbor Homeowner's Association, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns and is
responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On June 4, 2019, June 20,
2019, and August 9, 2019, the pool was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to
properly operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools
Regulation as follows: the chlorine and pH levels were not within the acceptable range of water
quality standards; and, the gate did not self-close and latch.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of two
thousand, forty dollars ($2,040.00). The civil penalty has been paid.

18) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-243-RW
Order Date: November 1, 2019
Individual/Entity: The Ashworth Homeowners Association
Facility: Ashworth at Ocean Drive
Location: 102 North Ocean Boulevard

North Myrtle Beach, SC 29582
Mailing Address: 1125 48" Avenue North
Myrtle Beach, SC 29577
County: Horry
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: 26-1492D
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: The Ashworth Homeowners Association (Individual/Entity) owns and is
responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a spa. On June 27, 2019, July 15,
2019, and July 29, 2019, the spa was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to
properly operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools
Regulation as follows: the chlorine and pH levels were not within the acceptable range of water



quality standards; and, the bound and numbered log book was not maintained on a daily
basis.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of two
thousand, forty dollars ($2,040.00). The civil penalty has been paid.

19) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-244-RW
Order Date: November 1, 2019
Individual/Entity: Tahitian Taj Property Owner’s Association,

Inc.
Facility: Tahitian Taj
Location: 1312 South Ocean Boulevard
North Myrtle Beach, SC 29582
Mailing Address: 5801 214t Street
Bayside, NY 11364
County: Horry
Previous Orders: 19-011-RW ($680.00)
Permit/ID Number: 26-1186B
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Tahitian Taj Property Owner’s Association, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns and
is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On June 4, 2019, July 22,
2019, and August 14, 2019, the pool was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to
properly operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools
Regulation as follows: the pool floor was not clean; the water level was too low; the drinking
water fountain was not operating; the foot rinse shower was not operating; the gate did not
self-close and latch; the chlorine level was not within the acceptable range of water quality
standards; the life ring was deteriorated and did not have a permanently attached rope; there
was no emergency notification device; the pool rules sign was not completely filled out; the
current pool operator of record information was not posted to the public; the bound and
numbered log book was not available for review on the first inspection; the bound and
numbered log book was not maintained on a daily basis on the second and third inspections;
and, the bound and numbered log book had chemical readings entered in advance on the
third inspection.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of four
hundred eighty dollars ($480.00); and, pay a suspended penalty in the amount of four
thousand, three hundred twenty dollars ($4,320.00) should any requirement of the Order not
be met. The civil penalty has been paid.

20) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-245-RW
Order Date: November 1, 2019
Individual/Entity: Azalea Hill Apts, LLC
Facility: Azalea Hill Suites

Location: 380 Verdae Boulevard



Greenville, SC 29607

Mailing Address: Same

County: Greenville

Previous Orders: None

Permit/ID Number: 23-484-1

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Azalea Hill Apts, LLC (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the
proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On June 26, 2019, and July 26, 2019, the pool
was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly operate and maintain. The
Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: the lifeline
floats were not properly spaced; ladders were missing bumpers and rungs; the drinking water
fountain was not operating properly; the chlorine and pH levels were not within the acceptable
range of water quality standards; the cyanuric acid level was above the above the water quality
standards acceptable limit; the life ring did not have a permanently attached rope; the pool
rules sign did not have all of the required rules; the current pool operator of record
information was not posted to the public; and, the bound and numbered log book was not
maintained on a daily basis and was not properly bound or numbered.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of six
hundred eighty dollars ($680.00).

21) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-246-RW
Order Date: November 1, 2019
Individual/Entity: Myrtle Trace Grande Home Owners

Association, Inc.
Facility: Myrtle Trace Grande
Location: 119 Myrtle Grande Drive
Conway, SC 29526
Mailing Address: 11923 Plaza Drive
Murrells Inlet, SC 29576
County: Horry
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: 26-1645D
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Myrtle Trace Grande Home Owners Association, Inc. (Individual/Entity)
owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a spa. On June 17, 2019,
and July 23, 2019, the spa was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly
operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools
Regulation as follows: a gate did not self-close and latch; a section of the perimeter fencing
was broken; a main drain grate was broken; the temperature of the spa was not monitored
and posted; the pool rules sign was not completely filled out on the first inspection, and was
not legible on the second inspection; and, the current pool operator of record information
was not posted to the public.



Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of six
hundred eighty dollars ($680.00). The civil penalty has been paid.

22) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-247-RW
Order Date: November 1, 2019
Individual/Entity: Windemere Homeowners
Association, Inc.

Facility: Windemere

Location: 523 South Ocean Boulevard
North Myrtle Beach, SC 29582

Mailing Address: 1125 48" Avenue North
Myrtle Beach, SC 29577

County: Horry

Previous Orders: None

Permit/ID Number: 26-G82-1

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Windemere Homeowners Association, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns and is
responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a spa. On June 18, 2019, July 22,
2019, and August 9, 2019, the spa was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to
properly operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools
Regulation as follows: a skimmer was missing a weir; a handrail was not tight and secure; a
light in the spa wall was out of its niche; the chlorine and pH levels were not within the
acceptable range of water quality standards; and, the bound and numbered log book was not
maintained on a daily basis.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of two
thousand, forty dollars ($2,040.00).

23) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-248-RW
Order Date: November 1, 2019
Individual/Entity: Island Dunes Homeowners Association,
Inc.

Facility: Island Dunes

Location: 1019 South Ocean Boulevard
North Myrtle Beach, SC 29582

Mailing Address: Same

County: Horry

Previous Orders: None

Permit/ID Number: 26-H59-1

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Island Dunes Homeowners Association, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns and is
responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On May 22, 2019, June 20,
2019, and August 13, 2019, the pool was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to



properly operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools
Regulation as follows: the drinking water fountain was not operating properly; the annual
operating fee had not been paid; the chlorine level was not within the acceptable range of
water quality standards; the bound and numbered log book was not maintained on a daily
basis; and, a bolt cover was missing.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of two
thousand, forty dollars ($2,040.00).

24) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-249-RW
Order Date: November 5, 2019
Individual/Entity: Pan Heritage of Conway, LLC
Facility: Econo Lodge
Location: 1101 Church Street

Conway, SC 29526
Mailing Address: Same
County: Horry
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: 26-002-1
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Pan Heritage of Conway, LLC (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for
the proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On June 18, 2019, and July 24, 2019, the pool
was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly operate and maintain. The
Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: the lifeline
floats were damaged and were not properly spaced; a handrail was not tight and secure; the
plaster on the pool floor was delaminated; a skimmer was missing a weir; the chlorine and pH
levels were not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; the life ring did not
have a permanently attached rope; the “Shallow Water - No Diving Allowed” signs were
missing on the first inspection; the “Shallow Water - Do Diving Allowed" signs did not have the
correct size letters on the second inspection; and, only one “No Life Guard On Duty - Swim At
Your Own Risk” sign was posted.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of six
hundred eighty dollars ($680.00).

25) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-250-RW
Order Date: November 5, 2019
Individual/Entity: Ceean Management Corporation
Facility: Sea Horn Motel
Location: 2805 South Ocean Boulevard

Myrtle Beach, SC 29577

Mailing Address: Same
County: Horry

Previous Orders: None




Permit/ID Number: 26-K53-1
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Ceean Management Corporation (Individual/Entity) owns and is
responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On July 5, 2019, and August
6, 2019, the pool was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly operate and
maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:
skimmers were missing weirs; the drinking water fountain and foot rinse shower were not
operating properly; the chlorine and pH levels were not within the acceptable range of water
quality standards; the shepherd's crook was not properly mounted in its designated location
and was not the approved length; and, the “Shallow Water - No Diving Allowed” signs were
damaged.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of six
hundred eighty dollars ($680.00). The civil penalty has been paid.

26) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-251-RW
Order Date: November 5, 2019
Individual/Entity: Shiv of Orangeburg, LLC
Facility: Quality Inn & Suites
Location: 3671 St. Matthews Road

Orangeburg, SC29118
Mailing Address: Same
County: Orangeburg
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: 38-064-1
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Shiv of Orangeburg, LLC (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the
proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On July 13, 2019, July 30, 2019, and August 9,
2019, the pool was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly operate and
maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:
a bolt cover was in disrepair; a ladder was missing bumpers; the pool floor was not clean and
there was dirt and oil on the waterline tiles; algae was present on the walls and the floor of
the pool; tiles were missing on the pool wall and floor; the pool furniture was not at least four
feet from the edge of the pool; skimmers were missing weirs; the drinking water fountain and
foot rinse shower were not operating properly; the chlorine and pH levels were not within the
acceptable range of water quality standards; the life ring did not have a permanently attached
rope; the facility address was not posted at the emergency notification device; the pool rules
sign did not have all of the required rules and was obstructed; the “Shallow Water - No Diving
Allowed” signs did not have the correct wording; the current pool operator of record
information was not posted to the public; the bound and numbered log book was not
maintained on a daily basis; and, the cyanuric acid levels were not recorded on a weekly basis.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of two
hundred dollars ($200.00); and, pay a suspended penalty in the amount of one thousand,



eight hundred forty dollars ($1,840.00) should any requirement of the Order not be met. The
civil penalty has been paid.

27) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-252-RW
Order Date: November 5, 2019
Individual/Entity: Carolina Dunes Condominium Association,

Inc.
Facility: Carolina Dunes Condos
Location: 6900 North Ocean Boulevard
Myrtle Beach, SC 29577
Mailing Address: Same
County: Horry
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: 26-K96-1
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Carolina Dunes Condominium Association, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns and
is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a kiddie pool. On June 4, 2019,
and August 12, 2019, the kiddie pool was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to
properly operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools
Regulation as follows: the chlorine and pH levels were not within the acceptable range of water
quality standards; the bound and numbered log book was not maintained on a daily basis;
and, the cyanuric acid level was above the water quality standards acceptable limit.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of six
hundred eighty dollars ($680.00).

28) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-253-RW
Order Date: November 5, 2019
Individual/Entity: Gower Estates Pool, Inc.
Facility: Gower Estates
Location: 126 Shallowford Road

Greenville, SC 29607
Mailing Address: Same
County: Greenville
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: 23-063-1
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Gower Estates Pool, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the
proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On June 25, 2019, and July 25, 2019, the pool
was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly operate and maintain. The
Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: a depth deck
marker tile was cracked; a ladder was missing non-slip tread inserts; the chlorine level was not



within the acceptable range of water quality standards; the pool rules sign was faded; and, the
bound and numbered log book was not maintained on a daily basis.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of six
hundred eighty dollars ($680.00).

29) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-254-RW
Order Date: November 5, 2019
Individual/Entity: Mystic Sea, Inc.

Facility: Mystic Sea Motel

Location: 2105 South Ocean Boulevard
Myrtle Beach, SC 29577

Mailing Address: Same

County: Horry

Previous Orders: None

Permit/ID Number: 26-363-1

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Mystic Sea, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the proper
operation and maintenance of a pool. On June 4, 2019, July 10, 2019, and August 5, 2019, the
pool was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly operate and maintain.
The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: the
drinking water fountain was not operating properly; the gate did not self-close and latch; and,
the chlorine and pH levels were not within the acceptable range of water quality standards.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of two
thousand, forty dollars ($2,040.00).

30) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-255-RW
Order Date: November 5, 2019
Individual/Entity: Lavenden, Inc.

Facility: Southern Breeze

Location: 1901 South Ocean Boulevard
Myrtle Beach, SC 29577

Mailing Address: Same

County: Horry

Previous Orders: 18-104-RW ($340.00)

Permit/ID Number: 26-624-1

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Lavenden, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the proper
operation and maintenance of a pool. OnJuly 10, 2019, July 24, 2019, and August 14, 2019, the
pool was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly operate and maintain.
The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: the
chlorine and pH levels were not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; a



ladder was not tight and secure; the bound and numbered log book was not maintained on a
daily basis; the lifeline floats were not properly spaced; and, a ladder was missing bumpers.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of four
thousand, eighty dollars ($4,080.00).

31) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-256-RW
Order Date: November 6, 2019
Individual/Entity: Cottages of Clemson (DE), LLC
Facility: The Cottages of Clemson
Location: 202 Smoke Rise Drive

Central, SC 29630
Mailing Address: Same
County: Pickens
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: 39-1055B
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Cottages of Clemson (DE), LLC (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible
for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On June 21, 2019, and September 20,
2019, the pool was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly operate and
maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:
there was debris in the skimmer baskets; the main drain grate was broken and was not in
place; the pool rules sign was not completely filled out; the bound and numbered log book
was not maintained on a daily basis; the cyanuric acid readings were not being recorded
weekly; and, the chlorine level was not within the acceptable range of water quality standards.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of six
hundred eighty dollars ($680.00).

32) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-257-RW
Order Date: November 12, 2019
Individual/Entity: The Gardens at Cypress Bay West
Home Owners’ Association, Inc.
Facility: The Gardens at Cypress Bay West
Location: 4142 Hibiscus Drive
Little River, SC 29566
Mailing Address: 1304 Holloway Circle
North Myrtle Beach, SC 29582
County: Horry
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: 26-1764B

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())



Summary: The Gardens at Cypress Bay West Home Owners’ Association, Inc.
(Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a
pool. On June 5, 2019, June 25, 2019, and July 23, 2019, the pool was inspected, and a violation
was issued for failure to properly operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the
Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: the chlorine and pH levels were not within the
acceptable range of water quality standards; and, the bound and numbered log book was not
maintained on a daily basis.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of two
thousand, forty dollars ($2,040.00). The civil penalty has been paid.

33) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-258-RW
Order Date: November 13, 2019
Individual/Entity: Indigo 110 Apartments SC, LLC
Facility: Indigo at 110
Location: 110 Chanticleer Village Drive

Myrtle Beach, SC 29579
Mailing Address: Same
County: Horry
Previous Orders: 19-029-RW ($1,360.00);
18-090-RW ($680.00)
Permit/ID Number: 26-1109B
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Indigo 110 Apartments SC, LLC (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible
for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On June 11, 2019, and July 18, 2019, the
pool was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly operate and maintain.
The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: a bolt
cover was in disrepair; the pool floor was not clean; algae was present on the walls and floor
of the pool; the chlorine and pH levels were not within the acceptable range of water quality
standards; the cyanuric acid level was above the water quality standards acceptable limit; only
one “No Lifeguard On Duty - Swim At Your Own Risk” sign was posted; and, the bound and
numbered log book was not maintained on a daily basis.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of two
thousand, two hundred forty dollars ($2,240.00).

34) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-259-RW
Order Date: November 13, 2019
Individual/Entity: OceanWalk Owners’ Association
Facility: OceanWalk Villas
Location: 10 Lemoyne Avenue
Hilton Head, SC 29928
Mailing Address: Same

County: Beaufort



Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: 07-176-1
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: OceanWalk Owners’ Association (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible
for the proper operation and maintenance of a spa. On January 17, 2019, July 23, 2019, and
October 7, 2019, the spa was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly
operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools
Regulation as follows: the chlorine and pH levels were not within the acceptable range of water
quality standards; the gate did not self-close and latch; the cyanuric acid level was above the
water quality standards acceptable limit; and, the spa temperature was above 104 degrees
Fahrenheit.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of two
thousand, forty dollars ($2,040.00).

35) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-260-RW
Order Date: November 13, 2019
Individual/Entity: Surfside Beach Club Property Owners

Association, Inc.
Facility: Surfside Beach Club
Location: 655 Tinkers Drive
Surfside Beach, SC 29575
Mailing Address: Same
County: York
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: 26-1416D
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Surfside Beach Club Property Owners Association, Inc. (Individual/Entity)
owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a spa. On July 8, 2019,
and August 9, 2019, the spa was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly
operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools
Regulation as follows: the chlorine and pH levels were not within the acceptable range of water
quality standards; and, there was no spa rules sign.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of six
hundred eighty dollars ($680.00).

36) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-261-RW
Order Date: November 13, 2019
Individual/Entity: Sunset Square Homeowners'

Association
Facility: Sunset Square

Location: 1001 North Waccamaw Drive



Garden City, SC 29576

Mailing Address: Same

County: Horry

Previous Orders: None

Permit/ID Number: 26-D37-1

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Sunset Square Homeowners' Association (Individual/Entity) owns and is
responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On July 15, 2019, and August
13, 2019, the pool was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly operate
and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as
follows: the chlorine and pH levels were not within the acceptable range of water quality
standards; and, the cyanuric acid level was above the water quality standards acceptable limit.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of six
hundred eighty dollars ($680.00). The civil penalty has been paid.

37) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-262-RW
Order Date: November 13, 2019
Individual/Entity: Palmwood Estates Homeowners
Association, Inc.

Facility: Palmwood Estates

Location: 329 9™ Avenue South, #75
North Myrtle Beach, SC 29582

Mailing Address: Same

County: Horry

Previous Orders: None

Permit/ID Number: 26-D05-1

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Palmwood Estates Homeowners Association, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns
and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On May 31, 2019, June
19, 2019, and August 13, 2019, the pool was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure
to properly operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming
Pools Regulation as follows: the lifeline floats were not properly spaced; ladders were missing
bumpers; the chlorine and pH levels were not within the acceptable range of water quality
standards; the facility address posted at the emergency notification device was not the same
address 911 had on file; and, the bound and numbered log book was not maintained on a
daily basis.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of one

thousand, six hundred eighty dollars ($1,680.00).

38) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-263-RW
Order Date: November 14, 2019




Individual/Entity: Bells Bay, L.P.

Facility: Bells Bay Landing

Location: 1801 Finney Avenue
Conway, SC 29527

Mailing Address: 500 Capital of Texas Highway North, Building 7
Austin, TX 78746

County: Horry

Previous Orders: None

Permit/ID Number: 26-1010B

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Bells Bay, L.P. (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the proper
operation and maintenance of a pool. On June 18, 2019, and July 23, 2019, the pool was
inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly operate and maintain. The
Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: a ladder was
missing bumpers; there was debris in the skimmer baskets; the gate did not self-close and
latch; the life ring was deteriorated and did not have a permanently attached rope; the facility
address was not posted at the emergency notification device; the “No lifeguard On Duty -
Swim At Your Own Risk” signs did not have the correct wording and the letters were not the
appropriate size; and, the bound and numbered log book was not available for review.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of six
hundred eighty dollars ($680.00). The civil penalty has been paid.

39) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-264-RW
Order Date: November 15, 2019
Individual/Entity: Sandstone Homeowner's Association, Inc.
Facility: Sandstone Subdivision
Location: 152 Travelers Lane

Aiken, SC 29803
Mailing Address: Same
County: Aiken
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: 02-092-1
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Sandstone Homeowner's Association, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns and is
responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On June 14, 2019, and July
23, 2019, the pool was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly operate
and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as
follows: ladders were missing bumpers; the pool wall was dirty; the fill spout was not stainless
steel or equivalent; the chlorine level was not within the acceptable range of water quality
standards; the pool rules sign was not legible; the bound and numbered log book was not
maintained on a daily basis; tiles were missing on the pool wall; one of the “No Lifeguard On
Duty - Swim At Your Own Risk” signs was in disrepair; and, the cyanuric acid level was not
checked weekly.



Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of six
hundred eighty dollars ($680.00).

40) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-265-RW
Order Date: November 19, 2019
Individual/Entity: Master Hospitality, LLC
Facility: Baymont Inn & Suites
Location: 3583 Saint Matthews Road

Mailing Address:

County:
Previous Orders:

Permit/ID Number:

Orangeburg, SC29118
Same

Orangeburg
17-101-RW ($340.00)
38-066-1

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Master Hospitality, LLC (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the
proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On June 24, 2019, July 30, 2019, and August 9,
2019, the pool was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly operate and
maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:
the deck depth marker tiles did not have a non-slip finish and were delaminated and faded; a
bolt cover was in disrepair; ladders were missing bumpers; the pool walls were not clean and
there was dirt and oil on the waterline tiles; tiles were missing on the pool wall; the plaster
was cracked on the pool walls and floor; the pool furniture was not at least four feet from the
edge of the pool; the deck was uneven with sharp edges; there was debris in the skimmer
baskets; the water level was too low; the pressure gauge was not in operable condition; the
chlorine level was not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; the main drain
grates were missing; the life ring was not hung in its designated location; the facility address
was not posted at the emergency notification device; the pool rules sign was not legible; the
“Shallow Water - No Diving Allowed" signs did not have the correct wording; and, the bound
and numbered log book was not maintained on a daily basis.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of four
thousand, eighty dollars ($4,080.00).

41) Order Type and Number:
Order Date:
Individual/Entity:

Consent Order 19-266-RW
November 19, 2019
Passco Carolina Forest, DST

Facility: The Lively at Carolina Forest
Location: 107 Village Center Boulevard

Myrtle Beach, SC 29579
2050 Main Street, Suite 650
Irvine, CA 92614

County: Horry
Previous Orders: None

Mailing Address:




Permit/ID Number: 26-1950B
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Passco Carolina Forest, DST (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for
the proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On June 6, 2019, and July 31, 2019, the pool
was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly operate and maintain. The
Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: the emergency
notification device was not operational; the pool rules sign was not completely filled out; the
facility could not produce current valid documentation of pool operator certification; the
bound and numbered log book was not available for review on the first inspection; the
drinking water fountain was not operating properly; the chlorine level was not within the
acceptable range of water quality standards; and, the bound and numbered log book was not
maintained on a daily basis on the second inspection.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of six
hundred eighty dollars ($680.00). The civil penalty has been paid.

42) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-267-RW
Order Date: November 19, 2019
Individual/Entity: Crown Reef Resort, LLC
Facility: Crown Reef Resort
Location: 2913 South Ocean Boulevard

Myrtle Beach, SC 29577
Mailing Address: 1144 Shine Avenue

Myrtle Beach, SC 29577
County: Horry
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: 26-K10-1
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Crown Reef Resort, LLC (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the
proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On June 11, 2019, June 26, 2019, and July 26,
2019, the pool was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly operate and
maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:
the chlorine and pH levels were not within the acceptable range of water quality standards.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of two
thousand, forty dollars ($2,040.00).

43) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-268-RW
Order Date: November 19, 2019
Individual/Entity: Hartford Inn HOA, Inc.
Facility: Hartford Motor Inn
Location: 5409 North Ocean Boulevard

North Myrtle Beach, SC 29582



Mailing Address: 1110 London Street, Suite 103
Myrtle Beach, SC 29577

County: Horry

Previous Orders: None

Permit/ID Number: 26-349-1

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Hartford Inn HOA, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the
proper operation and maintenance of a pool. OnJune 13, 2019, July 9, 2019, and July 24, 2019,
the pool was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly operate and
maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:
the lifeline floats were not properly spaced; the life ring was deteriorated; the plaster on the
pool floor was chipped; a skimmer was missing a weir; the drinking water fountain and foot
rinse shower were not operating properly; the drinking water fountain was not accessible; a
gate did not self-close and latch; a ladder was not tight and secure; and, the chlorine level was
not within the acceptable range of water quality standards.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of two
thousand, forty dollars ($2,040.00).

44) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-269-RW
Order Date: November 19, 2019
Individual/Entity: Grand Strand Resort IV Homeowners

Association, Inc.
Facility: Grand Strand Resort IV
Location: 5201 North Ocean Boulevard
Myrtle Beach, SC 29582
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 32722
Charlotte, NC 28232
County: Horry
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: 26-459-1
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Grand Strand Resort IV Homeowners Association, Inc. (Individual/Entity)
owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On June 14,
2019, July 10, 2019, and July 25, 2019, the pool was inspected, and a violation was issued for
failure to properly operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public
Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: the lifeline floats were not properly spaced; the
chlorine and pH levels were not within the acceptable range of water quality standards;
skimmer covers were broken; the bound and numbered log book was not maintained on a
daily basis; and, a gate did not self-close and latch.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of two
thousand, forty dollars ($2,040.00).



45) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-270-RW

Order Date: November 21, 2019

Individual/Entity: Lynwood Byrdic, Individually and d.b.a.
Brookgreen Estates

Facility: Brookgreen Estates

Location: 4122 Rein Court
Conway, SC 29526

Mailing Address: 4400 Shantee Drive
Conway, SC 29523

County: Horry

Previous Orders: None

Permit/ID Number: 26-)39-1

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Lynwood Byrdic, Individually and d.b.a. Brookgreen Estates
(Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a
pool. On June 18,2019, July 18, 2019, and July 23, 2019, the pool was inspected, and a violation
was issued for failure to properly operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the
Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: the plaster on the pool floor was delaminated;
the deck was uneven; a section of the perimeter fencing was broken; the current pool operator
of record information was not posted to the public; and, the bound and numbered log book
was not maintained on a daily basis.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of two
thousand, forty dollars ($2,040.00). The civil penalty has been paid.

46) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-271-RW
Order Date: November 21, 2019
Individual/Entity: Hotel Ventures of Manning, Inc.
Facility: Hampton Inn Manning
Location: 2822 Paxville Highway
Manning, SC 29102

Mailing Address: 3034 Washington Road
Augusta, GA 30907

County: Clarendon

Previous Orders: 16-206-RW ($680.00);
17-171-RW ($1,360.00)

Permit/ID Number: 14-1008B

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Hotel Ventures of Manning, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible
for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool. On August 7, 2019, and August 29, 2019,
the pool was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to properly operate and
maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:
a ladder was missing bumpers; a gate did not self-close and latch; the pH level was not within



the acceptable range of water quality standards; the shepherd'’s crook was missing a bolt; the
facility address was not posted at the emergency notification device; the pool rules sign was
not completely filled out; only one “Shallow Water - No Diving Allowed” sign was posted; the
current pool operator of record information was not posted to the public; the cyanuric acid
level was not recorded on a weekly basis in the bound and numbered log book; and, the bound
and numbered log book was not maintained a minimum of three times per week by the pool
operator of record.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of two
thousand, seven hundred twenty dollars ($2,720.00). The civil penalty has been paid.

47) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-272-RW
Order Date: November 22, 2019
Individual/Entity: Villamare Condominium

Association, Inc.
Facility: Villamare Health Club
Location: 1 Ocean Lane

Hilton Head, SC 29938
Mailing Address: P.O. Drawer 5

Hilton Head, SC 29938
County: Beaufort
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: 07-390-1
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Villamare Condominium Association, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns and is
responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a spa. On January 31, 2019, June 12,
2019, July 19, 2019, and October 8, 2019, the spa was inspected, and a violation was issued for
failure to properly operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public
Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: a skimmer lid was cracked; the chlorine and pH levels
were not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; and, the cyanuric acid level
was above the water quality standards acceptable limit.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of one
thousand, six hundred eighty dollars ($1,680.00).

48) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-273-RW
Order Date: November 26, 2019
Individual/Entity: Fox Trace Owners' Association, Inc.
Facility: Fox Trace
Location: Airdale Lane
Simpsonville, SC 29681
Mailing Address: 412 East Butler Road

Mauldin, SC 29662
County: Greenville



Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: 23-1097C
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51())

Summary: Fox Trace Owners' Association, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns and is
responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a kiddie pool. On July 5, 2019, and
August 22, 2019, the kiddie pool was inspected, and a violation was issued for failure to
properly operate and maintain. The Individual/Entity has violated the Public Swimming Pools
Regulation as follows: the drinking water fountain was not operating properly; the chlorine
level was not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; the cyanuric acid level
was above the water quality standards acceptable limit; the kiddie pool floor was delaminated;
the automatic controller was not operating; and, there were chlorine pucks in the skimmer
baskets.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: pay a civil penalty in the amount of six
hundred eighty dollars ($680.00).

Drinking Water Enforcement

49) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-023-DW

Order Date: November 4, 2019

Individual/Entity: Riverside Holding, LLC

Facility: Palmetto Mobile Home Park 2

Location: Darby Plantation and Brooklyn Drive
Hardeeville, SC 29927

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 588
Hardeeville, SC 29927

County: Jasper

Previous Orders: None

Permit/ID Number: 2760013

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-58.17.K(1)(a)

Summary: Riverside Holding, LLC (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the
proper operation and maintenance of a public water system (PWS). On September 23, 2019,
a violation was issued as a result of review of monitoring records. The Individual/Entity has
violated the State Primary Drinking Water Regulation as follows: the PWS tested present for
total coliform and E. coli, which resulted in a violation of the maximum contaminant level
(MCL) for E. coli.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: submit a corrective action plan to include

proposed steps to address the MCL violation; and, pay a stipulated penalty in the amount of
four thousand dollars ($4,000.00) should any requirement of the Order not be met.

50) Order Type and Number: Consent Agreement 19-024-DW




Order Date: November 25, 2019

Individual/Entity: Jenkinsville Water Company, Inc.
Facility: Jenkinsville Water Company
Location: 12924 Highway 213
Jenkinsville, SC 29065
Mailing Address: Same
County: Fairfield
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: 2020001
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-58.5.H(3)

Summary: Jenkinsville Water Company, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible
for the proper operation and maintenance of a public water system (PWS). On July 23, 2019,
and September 25, 2019, a violation was issued as a result of review of monitoring records.
The Individual/Entity has violated the State Primary Drinking Water Regulation as follows: the
PWS exceeded the maximum contaminant level (MCL) for gross alpha particle activity.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: submit a corrective action plan with a
schedule to include proposed steps to remove the gross alpha particle activity if sampling at
the PWS produces results that cause the running annual average to exceed the MCL for gross
alpha particle activity.

Water Pollution Enforcement

51) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-067-W
Order Date: November 12, 2019
Individual/Entity: City of Anderson
Facility: Rocky River WWTF
Location: 309 Kirkwood Drive

Anderson, SC 29624
Mailing Address: 401 South Main Street
Anderson, SC 29624
County: Anderson
Previous Orders: 19-031-W ($2,800.00)
Permit/ID Number: NPDES Permit SC0023744
Violations Cited: Pollution Control Act, S.C Code Ann § 48-1- 110

(d) (2008 & Supp. 2018); Water Pollution Control Permits, S.C. Code Ann Regs. 61-
9.122.41 (a) and (d) (2011).

Summary: City of Anderson (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the proper
operation and maintenance of a wastewater treatment facility (WWTF) located in Anderson
County, South Carolina. On April 18, 2019, a Notice of Violation was issued as a result of
violations of the permitted discharge limits for chronic toxicity (CTOX) as reported on
discharge monitoring reports submitted to the Department. The Individual/Entity has violated
the Pollution Control Act and Water Pollution Control Permit Regulations in that it failed to



comply with the effluent discharge limits of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System Permit for CTOX.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: submit to the Department a Corrective
Action Plan (CAP) addressing compliance with the permitted discharge limits for CTOX;
complete quarterly CTOX testing for a period of twelve (12) months; and pay a civil penalty in
the amount of two thousand eight hundred dollars ($2,800.00).

52) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-068-W
Order Date: November 12, 2019
Individual/Entity: Spirax Sarco Inc.

Facility: Spirax Sarco Inc.
Location: 1150 Northpoint Boulevard
Blythewood, SC 29834
Mailing Address: Same
County: Richland
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: NPDES Permit SCG250226
Violations Cited: Pollution Control Act, S.C Code Ann § 48-1- 110

(d) (2008 & Supp. 2018); Water Pollution Control Permits, S.C. Code Ann Regs. 61-
9.122.21(d) (2011).

Summary: Spirax Sarco Inc., (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the proper
operation and maintenance of a wastewater treatment facility (WWTF) located in Richland
County, South Carolina. On August 1, 2019, a Notice of Violation was issued as a result of
violation of failure to comply with the reporting requirements of the NPDES Permit. The
Individual/Entity has violated the Pollution Control Act and Water Pollution Control Permits
Regulations as follows: failed to submit a new NOI or permit application 180 days before the
existing permit expires. The NOI or application was due on or before July 4, 2019.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: submit an administratively complete
application for renewal of its NPDES Permit; continue operation of its WWTF in accordance
with its NPDES Permit; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars
($1,000.00).

53) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-069-W
Order Date: November 14, 2019
Individual/Entity: Town of Norway
Facility: Town of Norway WWTF
Location: 710 Winchester Avenue

Norway, SC 29113
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 127

Norway, SC 29113
County: Orangeburg

Previous Orders: 19-050-W ($1,000.00)




Permit/ID Number: NPDES Permit SC0045993

Violations Cited: Pollution Control Act, S.C Code Ann § 48-1- 110
(d) (2008 & Supp. 2018); Water Pollution Control Permits, S.C. Code Ann Regs. 61-
9.122.21(d) (2011).

Summary: The Town of Norway (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the
proper operation and maintenance of a wastewater treatment facility (WWTF) located in
Orangeburg County, South Carolina. On July 11, 2019, a Notice of Violation was issued as a
result of violation of failure to comply with the reporting requirements of the NPDES Permit.
The Individual/Entity has violated the Pollution Control Act and Water Pollution Control
Permits Regulations is that it failed to comply with the effluent discharge limits of the National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit for CTOX and pH.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: submit to the Department a Corrective
Action Plan (CAP) addressing compliance with the permitted discharge limits for CTOX and pH;
monitor for CTOX for one year after final implementation of the CAP; perform a Toxicity
Identification Evaluation/Toxicity Reduction Evaluation if there is a CTOX failure observed
during the one year monitoring period following the implementation of the CAP; and pay a
civil penalty in the amount of six thousand eight hundred dollars ($6,800.00).

54) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-070-W
Order Date: November 14, 2019
Individual/Entity: GVD Corporation
Facility: GVD Corporation
Location: 88 Osage Drive

Greenville, SC 29605
Mailing Address: 45 Spinelli Place
Cambridge, MA 02138
County: Greenville
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: NPDES Permit SCG250262
Violations Cited: Pollution Control Act, S.C Code Ann § 48-1- 110

(d) (2008 & Supp. 2018); Water Pollution Control Permits, S.C. Code Ann Regs. 61-
9.122.21(d) (2011).

Summary: GVD Corporation, (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the proper
operation and maintenance of a wastewater treatment facility (WWTF) located in Greenville
County, South Carolina. On August 1, 2019, a Notice of Violation was issued as a result of
violation of failure to comply with the reporting requirements of the NPDES Permit. The
Individual/Entity has violated the Pollution Control Act and Water Pollution Control Permits
Regulations as follows: failed to submit a new NOI or permit application 180 days before the
existing permit expires. The NOI or application was due on or before July 4, 2019.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: submit an administratively complete
application for renewal of its NPDES Permit; continue operation of its WWTF in accordance



with its NPDES Permit; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars
($1,000.00).

55) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-071-W
Order Date: November 14, 2019
Individual/Entity: Laurel Baye Healthcare of Blackville, LLC
Facility: Laurel Baye Healthcare of Blackville, LLC
Location: 1612 Jones Bridge Road
Blackville, SC 29817
Mailing Address: Same
County: Barnwell
Previous Orders: 17-012-W
Permit/ID Number: State Land Application Permit ND0067024
Violations Cited: Pollution Control Act, S.C Code Ann § 48-1- 110

(d) (2008 & Supp. 2018); Water Pollution Control Permits, S.C. Code Ann Regs. 61-
9.505.41 (a) (2011).

Summary: Laurel Baye Healthcare of Blackville, LLC (Individual/Entity) owns and is
responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a wastewater treatment facility
(WWTF) located in Barnwell County, South Carolina. On May 2, 2019, a Notice of Violation was
issued as a result of a violation of the permitted discharge limits for fecal coliform bacteria
(FC) as reported on the discharge monitoring report submitted to the Department for the
February 2019 monthly monitoring period. The Individual/Entity also reported violations of
the permitted discharge limits for FC for the April 2019 monthly monitoring period. The
Individual/Entity has violated the Pollution Control Act and Water Pollution Control Permit
Regulations in that it failed to comply with the effluent discharge limits of the National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit for FC.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to eliminate the discharge from the WWTF by
connection to the Town of Blackville's sewer system by December 31, 2019, close out the
lagoon by June 30, 2020, and pay a civil penalty in the amount of two thousand eight hundred
dollars ($2,800.00).

56) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-072-W
Order Date: November 21, 2019
Individual/Entity: Shree of Aiken, Inc.
Facility: Shree of Aiken Motel
Location: 110 Frontage Road

Aiken, SC 29801-9200
Mailing Address: Same
County: Aiken
Previous Orders: None

Permit/ID Number: State Land Application Permit ND0065871




Violations Cited: Pollution Control Act, S.C Code Ann § 48-1- 110
(d) (2008 & Supp. 2018); Water Pollution Control Permits, S.C. Code Ann Regs. 61-
9.122.41 (a) (2011).

Summary: Shree of Aiken, Inc. (Individual/Entity) owns and is responsible for the
proper operation and maintenance of a wastewater treatment facility (WWTF) located in Aiken
County, South Carolina. On July 10, 2019, a Notice of Violation was issued as a result of
violations of the permitted discharge limits for fecal coliform (FC) as reported on discharge
monitoring reports submitted to the Department. The Individual/Entity has violated the
Pollution Control Act and Water Pollution Control Permit Regulations in that it failed to comply
with the effluent discharge limits of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
Permit for FC.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: submit to the Department a Corrective

Action Plan (CAP) addressing compliance with the permitted discharge limits for FC and pay a
civil penalty in the amount of two thousand eight hundred dollars ($2,800.00).

Dams Enforcement

57) Order Type and Number: Administrative Order 19-065-W
Order Date: November 5, 2019
Individual/Entity: Davis Family Heritage LLC, Thomas Holland,
BSW Inc., and William Travis Craven
Facility: Upper Northlake Dam
Location: Approximately one (1) mile southwest of

Greenwood County Airport, and one-half (0.5)
mile east of Greenwood High School

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 681
Greenwood, SC 29648
County: Greenwood
Previous Orders: May 18, 2018 Emergency Order
Permit/ID Number: D 4361
Law Citations: S.C. Dams and Reservoirs Safety Act, S.C. Code

Ann. § 49-11-110, et seq., (2008) and Dams and Reservoirs Safety Act Regulation 72.1,
et seq. (2012)

Summary: Davis Family Heritage LLC, Thomas Holland, BSW Inc., and William Travis
Craven (Individual/Entity) own and are responsible for the proper operation and maintenance
of the Upper Northlake Dam in Greenwood County, South Carolina. On October 15, 2015, the
Department issued an Emergency Order to the Individual/Entity to address unsafe conditions
at the dam. This Administrative Order contains remedial actions necessary for addressing
deficiencies in the condition of the dam.



Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: maintain a safe water level as to not
present a hazard to surrounding residents and property; submit documentation that a
professional engineer has been retained to develop a repair or removal plan; submit a permit
application for repair or removal of the dam; submit documentation that all necessary local,
state, and federal permit applications have been submitted; and pay a stipulated expense
recovery to the Department in the amount of one hundred fifty-nine thousand six hundred
sixty-three dollars ($159,663.00) should it fail to comply with any requirement of the Order.

BUREAU OF AIR QUALITY

58) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-026-A
Order Date: November 22, 2019
Individual/Entity: Georgetown County Water and Sewer
District
Facility: Georgetown County Water and Sewer District
Location: 1441 Pond Road

Murrells Inlet, SC 29576 and
1975 Sandy Island Road
Pawleys Island, SC 29585

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2730
Pawleys Island, SC 29585
County: Georgetown
Previous Orders: None
Permit/ID Number: N/A
Violations Cited: U.S. EPA 40 CFR 68, and 5 S.C. Code Ann. Regs.

61-62.68, Section Il, Chemical Accident Prevention Provisions

Summary: Georgetown County Water and Sewer District (Individual/Entity), located in
Georgetown, South Carolina operates the Murrells Inlet waste water treatment plant and the
Waccamaw Neck water treatment plant. On July 17, 2018, the Department conducted Risk
Management Program inspections at both plants and observed multiple violations of their
Risk Management Programs. The Individual/Entity violated South Carolina Air Pollution
Control Regulations as follows: failed to implement and maintain its Risk Management Plan in
accordance with the requirements of the Regulations.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: Immediately and henceforth maintain its
risk management program in accordance with the requirements of the 112(r) Regulations and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of fifteen thousand dollars ($9,600.00).



BUREAU OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

Food Safety Enforcement

59) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-01-046
Order Date: November 4, 2019
Individual/Entity: Freddy’'s Frozen Custard
Facility: Freddy's Frozen Custard
Location: 1702 East Greenville Street

Anderson, SC 29621
Mailing Address: 621 Westport Boulevard
Salina, KS 67401
County: Anderson
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 04-206-04450
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Freddy's Frozen Custard (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in
Anderson, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on June 10, 2019, June 17,
2019, and June 28, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of
time/temperature control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).

60) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-01-069
Order Date: November 4, 2019
Individual/Entity: Vaqueros Mexican Restaurant
Facility: Vaqueros Mexican Restaurant
Location: 133 East Queen Street

Pendleton, SC 29670
Mailing Address: Same
County: Anderson
Previous Orders: 2018-206-01-028 ($800.00)
Permit Number: 04-206-03745
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Vaqueros Mexican Restaurant (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in
Pendleton, South Carolina. The Department conducted an inspection on August 21, 2019. The
Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as
follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for
safety foods.



Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00).

61) Order Type and Number:
Order Date:
Individual/Entity:

Facility:
Location:

Mailing Address:

County:
Previous Orders:

Permit Number:
Violations Cited:

Consent Order 2019-206-01-072
November 4, 2019
Stop-A-Minit #13
Stop-A-Minit #13

943 Highway 252

Belton, SC 29627

1015 Thornehill Drive
Anderson, SC 29621
Anderson

None

04-206-03286

S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Stop-A-Minit #13 (Individual/Entity) is a convenience store located in
Belton, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on February 8, 2018, February
16, 2018, February 4, 2019, September 18, 2019, and September 27, 2019. The
Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as
follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for

safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of two thousand, four hundred dollars ($2,400.00).

62) Order Type and Number:
Order Date:
Individual/Entity:

Facility:
Location:

Mailing Address:
County:

Previous Orders:
Permit Number:
Violations Cited:

Consent Order 2019-206-01-073
November 4, 2019

Thai Spice

Thai Spice

414 East Greenville Street
Anderson, SC 29621

Same

Anderson
2018-206-01-038 ($800.00)
04-206-03873

S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Thai Spice (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Anderson, South
Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on October 16, 2017, September 7, 2018,
September 5, 2019, and September 12, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South
Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding



temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods and failed to ensure that
refrigerated, ready-to-eat, time/temperature control for safety foods were discarded if the
temperature and time combination exceeded seven (7) days or if the package was not
properly date marked.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00).

63) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-03-086
Order Date: November 4, 2019
Individual/Entity: Schooners Bar & Grill
Facility: Schooners Bar & Grill
Location: 364 Long's Pond Road, Suite A

Lexington, SC 29073
Mailing Address: Same
County: Lexington
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 32-206-05967
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Schooners Bar & Grill (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in
Lexington, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on August 31, 2017, July
26,2018, July 27,2018, August 3, 2018, and July 24, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the
South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to clean the physical
facilities as often as necessary to keep them clean.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of six hundred dollars ($600.00).

64) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-03-099
Order Date: November 4, 2019
Individual/Entity: Korea Garden
Facility: Korea Garden
Location: 2318 Decker Boulevard

Columbia, SC 29206
Mailing Address: Same
County: Richland
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 40-206-08422
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Korea Garden (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Columbia, South
Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on August 9, 2019, August 19, 2019, August



29, 2019, and September 6, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail
Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of
time/temperature control for safety foods; failed to ensure that refrigerated, ready-to-eat,
time/temperature control for safety foods were discarded if the temperature and time
combination exceeded seven (7) days or if the package was not properly date marked; and
failed to maintain the premises free of insects, rodents, and other pests.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand, two hundred dollars ($1,200.00).

65) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-03-107
Order Date: November 4, 2019
Individual/Entity: AM PM Food Mart
Facility: AM PM Food Mart
Location: 7230 Parklane Road

Columbia, SC 29223
Mailing Address: Same
County: Richland
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 40-206-04954
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: AM PM Food Mart (Individual/Entity) is a convenience store located in
Columbia, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on September 9, 2019,
September 19, 2019, and September 27, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South
Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain the premises free
of insects, rodents, and other pests.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of four hundred dollars ($400.00).

66) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-04-035
Order Date: November 4, 2019
Individual/Entity: Del Sol Mexican Restaurant
Facility: Del Sol Mexican Restaurant
Location: 904 Highway 301 North

Dillon, SC 29536
Mailing Address: Same
County: Dillon
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 17-206-00752

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25



Summary: Del Sol Mexican Restaurant (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in
Dillon, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on October 29, 2018, May 20,
2019, and May 28, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of
time/temperature control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).

67) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-06-064
Order Date: November 4, 2019
Individual/Entity: Pizza Kitchen
Facility: Pizza Kitchen
Location: 7432 Highway 905

Longs, SC 29568
Mailing Address: Same
County: Horry
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 26-206-13811
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Pizza Kitchen (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Longs, South
Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on December 11, 2018, January 29, 2019,
and May 14, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of
time/temperature control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).

68) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-06-126
Order Date: November 4, 2019
Individual/Entity: Sakura Hibachi Buffet
Facility: Sakura Hibachi Buffet
Location: 523 Highway 17 North

North Myrtle Beach, SC 29582
Mailing Address: Same
County: Horry
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 26-206-13764

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25



Summary: Sakura Hibachi Buffet (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in North
Myrtle Beach, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on March 18, 2019, April
17,2019, and August 8, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to properly cool cooked time/temperature control
for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).

69) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-06-127
Order Date: November 4, 2019
Individual/Entity: Prosser's BBQ
Facility: Prosser's BBQ
Location: 3750 Highway 17 Business

Murrells Inlet, SC 29576
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 801
Murrells Inlet, SC 29576
County: Georgetown
Previous Orders: 2016-206-06-039 ($800.00);
2016-206-06-143 ($1,200.00)
Permit Number: 22-206-05675
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Prosser's BBQ (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Murrells Inlet,
South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on April 9, 2018, December 19, 2018,
July 23, 2019, and August 2, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail
Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of
time/temperature control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00).

70) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-07-101
Order Date: November 4, 2019
Individual/Entity: Sabatino’s Pizza
Facility: Sabatino’s Pizza
Location: 151 Calhoun Street
Charleston, SC 29401

Mailing Address: 507 Stinson Drive, Apartment E9
Charleston, SC 29407

County: Charleston

Previous Orders: None

Permit Number: 10-206-07433




Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Sabatino’s Pizza (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Charleston,
South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on October 24, 2017, August 16, 2018,
and August 6, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to ensure written procedures were in place and
made available to the Department when the facility uses time as a public health control.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).

71) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-07-105
Order Date: November 4, 2019
Individual/Entity: Philly’'s
Facility: Philly's
Location: 10040 Dorchester Road, Unit 109
Summerville, SC 29485
Mailing Address: Same
County: Dorchester
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 18-206-11003
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Philly's (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Summerville, South
Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on May 18, 2018, September 4, 2018, and
August 28, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of
time/temperature control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of five hundred fifty dollars ($550.00).

72) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-07-106
Order Date: November 4, 2019
Individual/Entity: China Town
Facility: China Town
Location: 1206 North Main Street

Summerville, SC 29483
Mailing Address: Same
County: Berkeley
Previous Orders: 2019-206-07-044 ($800.00)
Permit Number: 08-206-05854

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25



Summary: China Town (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Summerville, South
Carolina. The Department conducted an inspection on August 20, 2019. The Individual/Entity
has violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to
maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods; and
failed to ensure that refrigerated, ready-to-eat, time/temperature control for safety foods
were discarded if the temperature and time combination exceeded seven (7) days or if the
package was not properly date marked.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00).

73) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-07-109
Order Date: November 4, 2019
Individual/Entity: Baroni’s Pizza & Pasta
Facility: Baroni's Pizza & Pasta
Location: 1226 Ben Sawyer Boulevard, Suite H

Mount Pleasant, SC 29464
Mailing Address: 1773 Banbury Road
Charleston, SC 29414
County: Charleston
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 10-206-08061
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Baroni's Pizza & Pasta (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Mount
Pleasant, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on November 6, 2018,
August 12, 2019, and August 19, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina
Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to keep food contact surfaces of
cooking equipment and pans free of encrusted grease deposits and other soil accumulations
and non-food contact surfaces clean and free of accumulation of dust, dirt, food residue, and
other debris; failed to clean non-food contact surfaces at a frequency to preclude
accumulation of soil residues; and failed to clean the physical facilities as often as necessary
to keep them clean.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of four hundred dollars ($400.00).

74) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-07-111
Order Date: November 4, 2019
Individual/Entity: Zaxby's
Facility: Zaxby's

Location: 3476 Shelby Ray Court



Charleston, SC 29414

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 429
Bostwick, GA 30623
County: Charleston
Previous Orders: 2019-206-07-074 ($2,750.00)
Permit Number: 10-206-06752
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Zaxby's (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Charleston, South
Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on May 29, 2019, June 7, 2019, and August
29, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment
Regulation as follows: failed to provide individual disposable towels at each hand washing sink
or group of adjacent handwashing sinks and failed to maintain the premises free of insects,
rodents, and other pests.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of five hundred dollars ($500.00).

75) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-07-113
Order Date: November 4, 2019
Individual/Entity: Marina Variety Store Restaurant Inc.
Facility: Marina Variety Store Restaurant Inc.
Location: 17 Lockwood Drive
Charleston, SC 29401
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 22585
Charleston, SC 29402
County: Charleston
Previous Orders: 2015-206-07-096 ($800.00)
Permit Number: 10-206-00172
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Marina Variety Store Restaurant Inc. (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant
located in Charleston, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on November
16, 2017, November 7, 2018, and July 8, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South
Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to ensure that refrigerated,
ready-to-eat, time/temperature control for safety foods were discarded if the temperature
and time combination exceeded seven (7) days or if the package was not properly date
marked.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00).



76) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-07-116

Order Date: November 4, 2019
Individual/Entity: Hyatt Place
Facility: Hyatt Place
Location: 2455 Prospect Drive
North Charleston, SC 29406
Mailing Address: Same
County: Charleston
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 10-206-08794
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Hyatt Place (Individual/Entity) operates a restaurant located in North
Charleston, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on October 11, 2017,
October 3, 2018, and September 12, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South
Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to ensure that refrigerated,
ready-to-eat, time/temperature control for safety foods were discarded if the temperature
and time combination exceeded seven (7) days or if the package was not properly date
marked.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).

77) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-04-032
Order Date: November 5, 2019
Individual/Entity: Wal-Mart #642 Deli
Facility: Wal-Mart #642 Deli
Location: 1040 Chesterfield Highway

Cheraw, SC 29520
Mailing Address: Same
County: Chesterfield
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 13-206-01370
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Wal-Mart #642 Deli (Individual/Entity) is a deli located in Cheraw, South
Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on September 6, 2017, August 15, 2018, and
May 17, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment
Regulation as follows: failed to ensure that each handwashing sink or group of two (2) adjacent
handwashing sinks was provided with a supply of hand cleaning, liquid, powder or bar soap.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of four hundred dollars ($400.00).



78) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-04-051

Order Date: November 5, 2019

Individual/Entity: Flavors of India

Facility: Flavors of India

Location: 137 East Palmetto Street
Florence, SC 29506

Mailing Address: Same

County: Florence

Previous Orders: 2018-206-04-006 ($800.00)

Permit Number: 21-206-02678

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Flavors of India (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Florence, South
Carolina. The Department conducted an inspection on July 17, 2019. The Individual/Entity has
violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to ensure
that refrigerated, ready-to-eat, time/temperature control for safety foods were discarded if
the temperature and time combination exceeded seven (7) days or if the package was not
properly date marked.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00).

79) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-06-139
Order Date: November 5, 2019
Individual/Entity: Nakato Steak House
Facility: Nakato Steak House
Location: 9912 North Kings Highway

Myrtle Beach, SC 29572
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 7159

Myrtle Beach, SC 29572
County: Horry
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 26-206-00262
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Nakato Steak House (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Myrtle
Beach, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on January 2, 2019, August 22,
2019, and August 29, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of
time/temperature control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).



80) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-211-04-002

Order Date: November 5, 2019

Individual/Entity: Piggly Wiggly #90 Market

Facility: Piggly Wiggly #90 Market

Location: 1011 Broad Street
Sumter, SC 29150

Mailing Address: 415 North Salem Street
Sumter, SC 29150

County: Sumter

Previous Orders: None

Permit Number: 43-211-11009

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Piggly Wiggly #90 Market (Individual/Entity) operates a market located in
Sumter, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on August 26, 2019,
September 3, 2019, and September 12, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South
Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding
temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).

81) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-01-054
Order Date: November 7, 2019
Individual/Entity: Doolittle’s
Facility: Doolittle’s
Location: 112 North Main Street

Anderson, SC 29621
Mailing Address: Same
County: Anderson
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 04-206-04048
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Doolittle’s (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Anderson, South
Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on August 25, 2017, July 31, 2018, and July
29, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment
Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature
control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).



82) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-02-082

Order Date: November 7, 2019

Individual/Entity: Nose Dive

Facility: Nose Dive

Location: 116 South Main Street
Greenville, SC 29601

Mailing Address: 207 South Main Street
Greenville, SC 29601

County: Greenville

Previous Orders: 2018-206-02-044 ($800.00)

Permit Number: 23-206-10176

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Nose Dive (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Greenville, South
Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on June 19, 2018, March 4, 2019, and
September 5, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to ensure that refrigerated, ready-to-eat,
time/temperature control for safety foods were discarded if the temperature and time
combination exceeded seven (7) days or if the package was not properly date marked.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00).

83) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-03-106
Order Date: November 7, 2019
Individual/Entity: Eastover Express
Facility: Eastover Express
Location: 625 Spears Creek Church Road

Elgin, SC 29045
Mailing Address: Same
County: Richland
Previous Orders: 2019-206-03-040 ($2,500.00)
Permit Number: 40-206-07433
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Eastover Express (Individual/Entity) is a convenience store located in Elgin,
South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on October 25, 2018, September 19,
2019, and September 27, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail
Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of
time/temperature control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00).



84) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-06-131

Order Date: November 7, 2019
Individual/Entity: Cliff's Cash & Carry
Facility: Cliff's Cash & Carry
Location: 593 New Zion Road
Lake City, SC 29560
Mailing Address: 589 Cooktown Road
Lake City, SC 29560
County: Williamsburg
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 45-206-00465
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Cliff's Cash & Carry (Individual/Entity) is a convenience store located in Lake
City, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on August 1, 2018, July 22, 2019,
and August 1, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of
time/temperature control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).

85) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-02-079
Order Date: November 8, 2019
Individual/Entity: Pixie & Bills
Facility: Pixie & Bills
Location: 1058 Tiger Boulevard

Clemson, SC 29631
Mailing Address: Same
County: Pickens
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 39-206-00743
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Pixie & Bills (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Clemson, South
Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on December 14,2017, October 3, 2018, and
October 3, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain the proper sanitization concentration
in a chemical sanitizer used in a manual or mechanical operation during contact times.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).



86) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-01-067

Order Date: November 13, 2019
Individual/Entity: El Titanic American & Mexican
Facility: El Titanic American & Mexican
Location: 605 South Main Street

Belton, SC 29627
Mailing Address: Same
County: Anderson
Previous Orders: 2017-206-01-003 ($800.00);

2018-206-01-001 ($2,000.00);
2018-206-01-056 ($1,000.00)
Permit Number: 04-206-02961
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: El Titanic American & Mexican (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in
Belton, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on December 5, 2018, August
21, 2019, August 30, 2019, and September 11, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the
South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper
holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods; and failed to maintain the
proper sanitization concentration in a chemical sanitizer used in a manual or mechanical
operation during contact times.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25;
obtain and provide documentation of its designated staff members completion of an
accredited Food Handler Certification program; pay a civil penalty in the amount of two
thousand, seven hundred fifty dollars ($2,750.00); and pay a suspended penalty in the
amount of three thousand dollars ($3,000.00) should any requirement of the Order not be
met.

87) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-03-098
Order Date: November 13, 2019
Individual/Entity: Crossings Deli
Facility: Crossings Deli
Location: 8604-F Farrow Road

Columbia, SC 29203
Mailing Address: Same
County: Richland
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 40-206-04488
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Crossings Deli (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Columbia, South
Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on January 18, 2018, October 4, 2018, and
September 3, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food



Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of
time/temperature control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).

88) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-03-100
Order Date: November 13, 2019
Individual/Entity: Circle K/Subway #3272
Facility: Circle K/Subway #3272
Location: 4048 Charleston Highway

West Columbia, SC 29172
Mailing Address: 2440 Whitehall Park Drive, #800
Charlotte, NC 28273
County: Lexington
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 32-206-06439
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Circle K/Subway #3272 (Individual/Entity) is a convenience store located in
West Columbia, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on August 20, 2019,
August 29, 2019, and September 6, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina
Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding
temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).

89) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-04-053
Order Date: November 13, 2019
Individual/Entity: Firehouse Subs
Facility: Firehouse Subs
Location: 3007-B West Radio Drive

Florence, SC 29501
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 50645
Columbia, SC 29250
County: Florence
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 21-206-02296
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Firehouse Subs (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Florence, South
Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on December 20, 2017, September 28, 2018,



and August 6, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to store poisonous or toxic materials so that they
cannot contaminate food equipment, utensils, linens, and single-service and single-use
articles.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of four hundred dollars ($400.00).

90) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-04-060
Order Date: November 13, 2019
Individual/Entity: Cruizers XllI
Facility: Cruizers Xl
Location: 701 North Cashua Drive

Florence, SC 29501
Mailing Address: Same
County: Florence
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 21-206-02680
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Cruizers XlIl (Individual/Entity) is a convenience store located in Florence,
South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on September 24, 2018, August 5,
2019, and August 14, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of
time/temperature control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).

91) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-06-129
Order Date: November 13, 2019
Individual/Entity: Little Caesars Georgetown
Facility: Little Caesars Georgetown
Location: 1177 North Fraser Street

Georgetown, SC 29440
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 39
Elizabethtown, NC 28337
County: Georgetown
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 22-206-06366

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25



Summary: Little Caesars Georgetown (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in
Georgetown, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on October 12, 2017,
October 12,2018, and July 25, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail
Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to ensure written procedures were in place
and made available to the Department when the facility uses time as a public health control.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).

92) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-06-141
Order Date: November 13, 2019
Individual/Entity: Bob Evans Restaurant
Facility: Bob Evans Restaurant
Location: 175 Brookton Circle

Myrtle Beach, SC 29588
Mailing Address: 8111 Smith's Mill Road
New Albany, OH 43054
County: Horry
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 26-206-08621
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Bob Evans Restaurant (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Myrtle
Beach, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on January 16, 2019, May 1,
2019, and September 19, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail
Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to ensure that refrigerated, ready-to-eat,
time/temperature control for safety foods were discarded if the temperature and time
combination exceeded seven (7) days or if the package was not properly date marked.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).

93) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-07-103
Order Date: November 13, 2019
Individual/Entity: Shoney's #1136
Facility: Shoney's #1136
Location: 1307 North Main Street

Summerville, SC 29483
Mailing Address: 1717 Elm Hill Pike
Nashville, TN 37210
County: Berkeley
Previous Orders: 2015-206-07-043 ($800.00)

Permit Number: 08-206-07464




Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Shoney's #1136 (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Summerville,
South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on August 15, 2017, February 7, 2018,
December 18, 2018, December 20, 2018, July 31, 2019, and August 9, 2019. The
Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as
follows: failed to ensure that after cleaning and sanitizing, equipment and utensils were
properly air-dried before contact with food; and may not be cloth dried and failed to ensure
that physical facilities were maintained in good repair.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00).

94) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-01-040
Order Date: November 14, 2019
Individual/Entity: Barnwood Grill
Facility: Barnwood Grill
Location: 2606 Whitehall Road

Anderson, SC 29626
Mailing Address: Same
County: Anderson
Previous Orders: 2018-206-01-040 ($2,600.00)
Permit Number: 04-206-03784
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Barnwood Grill (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Anderson,
South Carolina. The Department conducted an inspection on May 29, 2019. The
Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as
follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for
safety foods; and failed to provide equipment sufficient in number and capacity to maintain
food temperatures for cooling and heating food and holding cold and hot food.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of seven hundred fifty dollars ($750.00).

95) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-03-105
Order Date: November 14, 2019
Individual/Entity: Shoney'’s
Facility: Shoney's
Location: 2208-B Airport Boulevard

West Columbia, SC 29170
Mailing Address: 205 East Liberty Street

Sumter, SC 29150



County: Lexington

Previous Orders: 2015-206-03-054 ($800.00)
Permit Number: 32-206-05070
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Shoney's (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in West Columbia, South
Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on June 6, 2018, May 24, 2019, September
16,2019, and September 26, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail
Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of
time/temperature control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand, seven hundred fifty dollars ($1,750.00).

96) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-05-020
Order Date: November 14, 2019
Individual/Entity: Rose Hill in Aiken
Facility: Rose Hill in Aiken
Location: 221 Greenville Street NW
Aiken, SC 29801

Mailing Address: 755 Silver Bluff Road
Aiken, SC 29803

County: Aiken

Previous Orders: None

Permit Number: 02-206-03252

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Rose Hill in Aiken (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Aiken, South
Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on March 7, 2019, March 14, 2019, August
1, 2019, August 8, 2019, and August 15, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South
Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to ensure food is safe,
unadulterated and honestly presented; failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of
time/temperature control for safety foods; and failed to ensure that all equipment installed in
a retail food establishment after the effective date of this regulation shall be certified or
classified and listed to National Sanitation Foundation (NSF)/American National Standards
Institute (ANSI) Commercial Food Equipment Standards, or Baking Industry Sanitation
Standards Committee (BISSC) or other accredited ANSI food equipment sanitation certification
recognized by the Department.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in

accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of two thousand, six hundred dollars ($2,600.00).

97) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-06-140




Order Date: November 14, 2019

Individual/Entity: Pizza Hut #012865
Facility: Pizza Hut #012865
Location: 1610 North Kings Highway
Surfside Beach, SC 29577
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 3647
Myrtle Beach, SC 29578
County: Horry
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 26-206-07970
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Pizza Hut #012865 (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Surfside
Beach, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on August 8, 2019, September
9, 2019, and September 19, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail
Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain the proper sanitization
concentration in a chemical sanitizer used in a manual or mechanical operation during contact
times.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).

98) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-08-009
Order Date: November 14, 2019
Individual/Entity: Montage Palmetto Bluff
Facility: Montage Palmetto Bluff
Location: 477 Mount Pelia Road

Bluffton, SC 29910
Mailing Address: Same
County: Beaufort
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 07-206-10244
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Montage Palmetto Bluff (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in
Bluffton, South Carolina. The Department conducted an inspection on October 2, 2019. The
Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as
follows: obscured, covered, defaced, relocated, or removed the grade decal that was posted
by the Department.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of five hundred dollars ($500.00).



99) Order Type and Number:

Order Date:
Individual/Entity:
Facility:
Location:

Mailing Address:
County:

Previous Orders:
Permit Number:
Violations Cited:

Consent Order 2019-211-04-001
November 14, 2019

IGA Foodliner #68

IGA Foodliner #68

310 East Smith Street
Timmonsville, SC 29161
Same

Florence

None

21-211-00135

S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: IGA Foodliner #68 (Individual/Entity) operates a market located in

Timmonsville, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on September 27, 2018,
July 31, 2019, and August 9, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail
Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of
time/temperature control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).

100) Order Type and Number:
Order Date:
Individual/Entity:

Facility:
Location:

Mailing Address:
County:

Previous Orders:
Permit Number:
Violations Cited:

Consent Order 2019-206-01-076
November 15, 2019
Sportsman One Stop
Sportsman One Stop

9807 Highway 81 South
Iva, SC 29655

Same

Anderson

None

04-206-02555

S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Sportsman One Stop (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Iva, South
Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on March 9, 2017, February 15, 2018,
January 16, 2019, and October 24, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina
Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding
temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand, six hundred dollars ($1,600.00).

101)  Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-02-054




Order Date: November 15, 2019

Individual/Entity: Charleston Sports Pub

Facility: Charleston Sports Pub

Location: 359 College Avenue
Clemson, SC 29631

Mailing Address: 1227 Yeamans Hall Road
Hanahan, SC 29410

County: Pickens

Previous Orders: None

Permit Number: 39-206-02077

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Charleston Sports Pub (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in
Clemson, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on January 15, 2019, January
25,2019, July 11, 2019, and July 19, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina
Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain the premises free of
insects, rodents, and other pests; and failed to clean the physical facilities as often as
necessary to keep them clean.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of six hundred dollars ($600.00).

102) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-02-069
Order Date: November 15, 2019
Individual/Entity: Charleston Sports Pub
Facility: Charleston Sports Pub
Location: 359 College Avenue

Clemson, SC 29631
Mailing Address: 1227 Yeamans Hall Road
Hanahan, SC 29410
County: Pickens
Previous Orders: 2019-206-02-054 ($600.00)
Permit Number: 39-206-02077
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Charleston Sports Pub (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in
Clemson, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on January 15, 2019, July 11,
2019, and August 28, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to clean the physical facilities as often as necessary
to keep them clean; and failed to keep equipment food contact surfaces and utensils clean to
sight and touch.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of five hundred dollars ($500.00).



103) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-03-104

Order Date: November 15, 2019

Individual/Entity: Ray's Diner

Facility: Ray's Diner

Location: 3110 Two Notch Road
Columbia, SC 29204

Mailing Address: Same

County: Richland

Previous Orders: 2019-206-03-057 ($1,000.00)

Permit Number: 40-206-07293

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Ray's Diner (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Columbia, South
Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on September 11, 2019, and September 18,
2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment
Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature
control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand, seven hundred fifty dollars ($1,750.00).

104)  Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-05-026
Order Date: November 15, 2019
Individual/Entity: Subway
Facility: Subway
Location: 1675 Richland Avenue West
Aiken, SC 29803

Mailing Address: 1242 Willow Wood Drive
Aiken, SC 29803

County: Aiken

Previous Orders: None

Permit Number: 02-206-02045

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Subway (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Aiken, South Carolina.
The Department conducted inspections on September 3, 2019, September 12, 2019,
September 19, 2019, and September 26, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South
Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding
temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand, six hundred dollars ($1,600.00).



105) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-05-027

Order Date: November 15, 2019
Individual/Entity: Deshawns Seafood
Facility: Deshawns Seafood
Location: 10316 Atomic Road

North Augusta, SC 29841
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 652

Clearwater, SC 29822
County: Aiken
Previous Orders: 2016-206-05-010 ($800.00);

2018-206-05-012 ($1,000.00)
Permit Number: 02-206-02935
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Deshawns Seafood (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in North
Augusta, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on February 15, 2019,
September 5, 2019, and September 12, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South
Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding
temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of three thousand dollars ($3,000.00).

106) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-01-065
Order Date: November 19, 2019
Individual/Entity: Santa Fe Mexican Restaurant
Facility: Santa Fe Mexican Restaurant
Location: 248 Birchtree Drive

Greenwood, SC 29649
Mailing Address: Same
County: Greenwood
Previous Orders: 2019-206-01-003 ($1,600.00)
Permit Number: 24-206-01407
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Santa Fe Mexican Restaurant (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in
Greenwood, South Carolina. The Department conducted an inspection on September 4, 2019.
The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as
follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for
safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00).



107)  Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-01-074

Order Date: November 19, 2019

Individual/Entity: Wendy's #30

Facility: Wendy's #30

Location: 12424 Highway 56 North
Clinton, SC 29325

Mailing Address: 166 Southgate Drive #10
Boone, NC 28607

County: Laurens

Previous Orders: 2019-206-01-028 ($800.00)

Permit Number: 30-206-00829

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Wendy's #30 (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Clinton, South
Carolina. The Department conducted an inspection on October 2, 2019. The Individual/Entity
has violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to
maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00).

108) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-02-078
Order Date: November 19, 2019
Individual/Entity: KFC/LJS Clemson
Facility: KFC/LJS Clemson
Location: 118 Pinnacle Street
Clemson, SC 29631

Mailing Address: 880 South Pleasantburg Drive, Suite 4C
Greenville, SC 29607

County: Pickens

Previous Orders: None

Permit Number: 39-206-01886

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: KFC/LJS Clemson (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Clemson,
South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on November 8, 2017, August 13,
2018, August 21, 2018, August 31, 2018, February 4, 2019, August 22, 2019, August 23, 2019,
and August 30, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to keep food contact surfaces of cooking
equipment and pans free of encrusted grease deposits and other soil accumulations and non-
food contact surfaces clean and free of accumulation of dust, dirt, food residue, and other
debris; and failed to clean the physical facilities as often as necessary to keep them clean.



Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand, two hundred dollars ($1,200.00).

109) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-02-081
Order Date: November 19, 2019
Individual/Entity: Poinsett Club
Facility: Poinsett Club
Location: 807 East Washington Street

Greenville, SC 29601
Mailing Address: Same
County: Greenville
Previous Orders: 2019-206-02-008 ($800.00)
Permit Number: 23-206-02142
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Poinsett Club (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Greenville, South
Carolina. The Department conducted an inspection on September 18, 2019. The
Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as
follows: failed to ensure that refrigerated, ready-to-eat, time/temperature control for safety
foods were discarded if the temperature and time combination exceeded seven (7) days or if
the package was not properly date marked.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00).

110) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-02-087
Order Date: November 19, 2019
Individual/Entity: La Choza
Facility: La Choza
Location: 6425 White Horse Road

Greenville, SC 29611
Mailing Address: Same
County: Greenville
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 23-206-04619
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: La Choza (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Greenville, South
Carolina. The Department conducted an inspection on July 15, 2019, July 18, 2019, and July 22,
2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment
Regulation as follows: failed to properly cool cooked time/temperature control for safety
foods; failed to use effective methods to cool cooked time/temperature control for safety



foods; and obscured, covered, defaced, relocated, or removed the grade decal that was posted
by the Department.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand, three hundred dollars ($1,300.00).

111)  Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-04-054
Order Date: November 19, 2019
Individual/Entity: Little Caesar's #2
Facility: Little Caesar's #2
Location: 313 Second Loop Road

Florence, SC 29505
Mailing Address: 2300 Second Loop Road
Florence, SC 29501
County: Florence
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 21-206-02202
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Little Caesar's #2 (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Florence,
South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on August 20, 2018, October 17, 2018,
and August 19, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to ensure written procedures were in place and
made available to the Department when the facility uses time as a public health control.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).

112)  Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-05-025
Order Date: November 19, 2019
Individual/Entity: Quick Pantry #37
Facility: Quick Pantry #37
Location: 1093 Five Chop Road

Orangeburg, SC 29115
Mailing Address: Same
County: Orangeburg
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 38-206-02253
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Quick Pantry #37 (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Orangeburg,
South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on April 2, 2019, August 2, 2019,
August 8, 2019, August 14, 2019, and August 19, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the



South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to ensure wall and
ceiling covering materials shall be attached so that they are easily cleanable, except in areas
used only for dry storage, concrete, porous blocks, or bricks used for indoor wall construction
shall be finished and sealed to provide a smooth, nonabsorbent, easily cleanable surface and
failed to maintain the premises free of insects, rodents, and other pests.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).

113)  Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-06-123
Order Date: November 19, 2019
Individual/Entity: Fire and Smoke Gastropub
Facility: Fire and Smoke Gastropub
Location: 411 79 Avenue North

Myrtle Beach, SC 29572
Mailing Address: Same
County: Horry
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 26-206-12544
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Fire and Smoke Gastropub (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in
Myrtle Beach, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on September 27, 2018,
July 31, 2019, and August 9, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail
Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of
time/temperature control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).

114)  Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-07-053
Order Date: November 19, 2019
Individual/Entity: Mellow Mushroom Charleston
Facility: Mellow Mushroom Charleston
Location: 309 King Street
Charleston, SC 29401

Mailing Address: 700 Daniel Island Drive, #7302
Charleston, SC 29412

County: Charleston

Previous Orders: 2015-206-07-099 ($800.00);

2016-206-07-068 ($800.00);
2017-206-07-013 ($1,200.00);
2018-206-07-015 ($1,000.00)



Permit Number: 10-206-03701
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Mellow Mushroom Charleston (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in
Charleston, South Carolina. The Department conducted an inspection on April 30, 2019. The
Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as
follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for
safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00).

115)  Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-07-058
Order Date: November 19, 2019
Individual/Entity: Restoration on King
Facility: Restoration on King
Location: 75 Wentworth Street

Charleston, SC 29401
Mailing Address: Same
County: Charleston
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 10-206-09807
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Restoration on King (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Charleston,
South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on August 16, 2016, July 12,2017, May
29, 2018, and May 21, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of
time/temperature control for safety foods; failed to keep shellstock tags or labels attached to
the container in which the shellstock are received, until the container is empty; and failed to
maintain the proper sanitization concentration in a chemical sanitizer used in a manual or
mechanical operation during contact times.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand, eight hundred dollars ($1,800.00).

116)  Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-07-102
Order Date: November 19, 2019
Individual/Entity: Circle K Store #5128
Facility: Circle K Store #5128
Location: 1330 North Main Street

Summerville, SC 29483
Mailing Address: 2440 Whitehall Park Drive #800




Charlotte, NC 28273

County: Berkeley

Previous Orders: 2018-206-07-054 ($400.00)
Permit Number: 08-206-09437

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Circle K Store #5128 (Individual/Entity) is a convenience store located in
Summerville, South Carolina. The Department conducted an inspection on July 31, 2019. The
Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as
follows: failed to ensure that the handwashing sinks were accessible at all times.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of five hundred dollars ($500.00).

117)  Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-08-006
Order Date: November 19, 2019
Individual/Entity: Subway #8702
Facility: Subway #8702
Location: 775 Bells Highway

Walterboro, SC 29488
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 728

Savannah, GA 31402
County: Colleton
Previous Orders: 2018-206-08-013 ($1,600.00)
Permit Number: 15-206-00727
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Subway #8702 (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Walterboro,
South Carolina. The Department conducted an inspection on August 16, 2019. The
Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as
follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of time/temperature control for
safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00).

118) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-02-083
Order Date: November 21, 2019
Individual/Entity: Greenville Rescue Mission
Facility: Greenville Rescue Mission
Location: 575 West Washington Street

Greenville, SC 29601
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2546




Greenville, SC 29602

County: Greenville

Previous Orders: None

Permit Number: 23-206-02245

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Greenville Rescue Mission (Individual/Entity) operates a cafeteria in
Greenville, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on April 20, 2018, January
30, 2019, and September 23, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail
Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to ensure that refrigerated, ready-to-eat,
time/temperature control for safety foods were discarded if the temperature and time
combination exceeded seven (7) days or if the package was not properly date marked.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).

119)  Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-02-085
Order Date: November 21, 2019
Individual/Entity: Bon Secours Wellness Arena (Main Kitchen)
Facility: Bon Secours Wellness Arena (Main Kitchen)
Location: 650 North Academy Street
Greenville, SC 29607
Mailing Address: Same
County: Greenville
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 23-206-06753
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Bon Secours Wellness Arena (Main Kitchen) (Individual/Entity) is an event
center commissary located in Greenville, South Carolina. The Department conducted
inspections on March 22, 2017, February 6, 2018, January 4, 2019, and September 9, 2019. The
Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as
follows: failed to ensure that refrigerated, ready-to-eat, time/temperature control for safety
foods were discarded if the temperature and time combination exceeded seven (7) days or if
the package was not properly date marked.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand, six hundred dollars ($1,600.00).

120)  Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-04-055
Order Date: November 21, 2019
Individual/Entity: McDonald’s

Facility: McDonald’s



Location: 2014 South Irby Street
Florence, SC 29505

Mailing Address: 2135 B Hoffmeyer Road
Florence, SC 29501

County: Florence

Previous Orders: None

Permit Number: 21-206-02675

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: McDonald's (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Florence, South
Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on October 16, 2017, September 4, 2018,
and August 9, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to ensure written procedures were in place and
made available to the Department when the facility uses time as a public health control.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00).

121)  Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-04-056
Order Date: November 21, 2019
Individual/Entity: McDonald's
Facility: McDonald’s
Location: 310 Highway 301 North

Dillon, SC 29536
Mailing Address: 2135 B Hoffmeyer Road
Florence, SC 29501
County: Dillon
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: 17-206-00993
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: McDonald's (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Dillon, South
Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on August 2, 2018, March 1, 2019, and
August 21, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to ensure that the handwashing sinks were
accessible at all times.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of four hundred dollars ($400.00).

122)  Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-04-063
Order Date: November 21, 2019
Individual/Entity: Arafat Abuhammoud D/B/A One Stop




Country Store & Grill

Facility: One Stop Country Store & Grill

Location: 916 Highway 38 South
Bennettsville, SC 29512

Mailing Address: Same

County: Marlboro

Previous Orders: 2019-206-04-010 ($800.00)

Permit Number: 34-206-00644

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: One Stop Country Store & Grill (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in
Bennettsville, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on August 13, 2018,
August 23, 2018, February 5, 2019, February 15, 2019, February 25, 2019, and July 8, 2019. The
Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as
follows: failed to ensure that a person in charge is certified by a food protection manager
certification program that is recognized by the Conference for Food Protection.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25,
obtain and provide documentation of its designated employee’s completion of the certified
food protection manager certification program; and pay a civil penalty in the amount of seven
hundred fifty dollars ($750.00).

123)  Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-06-113
Order Date: November 21, 2019
Individual/Entity: Wahoo's Fish House
Facility: Wahoo's Fish House
Location: 3993 Highway 17 Business

Murrells Inlet, SC 29576
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 3393
Murrells Inlet, SC 29580
County: Georgetown
Previous Orders: 2015-206-01-002 ($800.00);
2018-206-06-130 ($800.00)
Permit Number: 22-206-06217
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Wahoo's Fish House (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in Murrells
Inlet, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on March 22, 2017, November
2, 2017, September 7, 2018, and July 18, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South
Carolina Retail Food Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding
temperatures of time/temperature control for safety foods; and failed to properly thaw
time/temperature control for safety foods.



Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand, two hundred fifty dollars ($1,250.00).

124)  Order Type and Number: Consent Order 2019-206-07-118
Order Date: November 21, 2019
Individual/Entity: Nick’'s Gyros & Philly’s #2
Facility: Nick's Gyros & Philly’s #2
Location: 6150 Rivers Avenue

North Charleston, SC 29406
Mailing Address: Same
County: Charleston
Previous Orders: 2018-206-07-006 ($1,000.00);
2019-206-07-085 ($2,500.00)
Permit Number: 10-206-09454
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-25

Summary: Nick's Gyros & Philly's #2 (Individual/Entity) is a restaurant located in North
Charleston, South Carolina. The Department conducted inspections on September 24, 2019,
and September 26, 2019. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Retail Food
Establishment Regulation as follows: failed to maintain proper holding temperatures of
time/temperature control for safety foods.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to: operate and maintain the facility in
accordance with the requirements of all applicable regulations, including S.C. Regs. 61-25, and
pay a civil penalty in the amount of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00).

Onsite Wastewater Enforcement

125)  Order Type and Number: Administrative Order 19-49-OSWW
Order Date: November 7, 2019
Individual/Entity: John C. Purvis

Debra C. Purvis
Facility: John C. Purvis
Debra C. Purvis
Location: 245 Skylight Drive
West Columbia, SC 29170
Mailing Address: Same
County: Lexington
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: None

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-56



Summary: John C. Purvis and Debra C. Purvis (Individual/Entity) own property located
in Lexington, South Carolina. The Department conducted an investigation on September 12,
2019, and observed domestic wastewater discharging onto the surface of the ground. The
Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Onsite Wastewater (OSWW) Systems
Regulation as follows: failed to ensure that no septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, or
sewage was discharged to the surface of the ground without an appropriate permit from the
Department.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to repair the OSWW system within five (5)
days to effectively stop the discharging of septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, or
sewage to the surface of the ground; or immediately vacate the residence to eliminate the
flow of domestic wastewater to the OSWW system; and pay a suspended penalty in the
amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) should any requirement of the Order not be met.

126)  Order Type and Number: Administrative Order 19-50-OSWW
Order Date: November 7, 2019
Individual/Entity: Demond Witherspoon
Facility: Demond Witherspoon
Location: 1118 Simmons Hill Road

Jamestown, SC
Mailing Address: Same
County: Berkeley
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: None
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-56

Summary: Demond Witherspoon (Individual/Entity) owns property located in
Berkeley, South Carolina. The Department conducted an investigation on August 26, 2019, and
observed domestic wastewater discharging onto the surface of the ground. The
Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Onsite Wastewater (OSWW) Systems
Regulation as follows: failed to ensure that no septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, or
sewage was discharged to the surface of the ground without an appropriate permit from the
Department.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to repair the OSWW system within five (5)
days to effectively stop the discharging of septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, or
sewage to the surface of the ground; or immediately vacate the residence to eliminate the
flow of domestic wastewater to the OSWW system; and pay a suspended penalty in the
amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) should any requirement of the Order not be met.

127)  Order Type and Number: Administrative Order 19-52-OSWW
Order Date: November 18, 2019
Individual/Entity: Stone Haven Mobile Home Park, LLC
Facility: Stone Have Mobile Home Park, LLC

Location: 531 Cricket Stone Drive



Spartanburg, SC 29302

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 1649
Oakdale, CA 95361
County: Spartanburg
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: None
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-56

Summary: Stone Haven Mobile Home Park, LLC (Individual/Entity) owns property
located in Spartanburg, South Carolina. The Department conducted an investigation on
October 4, 2019, and observed domestic wastewater discharging onto the surface of the
ground. The Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Onsite Wastewater (OSWW)
Systems Regulation as follows: failed to ensure that no septic tank effluent, domestic
wastewater, or sewage was discharged to the surface of the ground without an appropriate
permit from the Department.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to repair the OSWW system within five (5)
days to effectively stop the discharging of septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, or
sewage to the surface of the ground; or immediately vacate the residence to eliminate the
flow of domestic wastewater to the OSWW system; and pay a suspended penalty in the
amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) should any requirement of the Order not be met.

128)  Order Type and Number: Administrative Order 19-32-OSWW
Order Date: November 22, 2019
Individual/Entity: Jeremy Brian Smith
Facility: Jeremy Brian Smith
Location: 140 Kristina Drive

Cowpens, SC 29330
Mailing Address: Same
County: Cherokee
Previous Orders: None
Permit Number: None
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-56

Summary: Jeremy Brian Smith (Individual/Entity) owns property located in Cherokee,
South Carolina. The Department conducted an investigation on May 31, 2019, and observed
domestic wastewater discharging onto the surface of the ground. The Individual/Entity has
violated the South Carolina Onsite Wastewater (OSWW) Systems Regulation as follows: failed
to ensure that no septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, or sewage was discharged to the
surface of the ground without an appropriate permit from the Department.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to repair the OSWW system within five (5)
days to effectively stop the discharging of septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, or
sewage to the surface of the ground; or immediately vacate the residence to eliminate the
flow of domestic wastewater to the OSWW system; and pay a suspended penalty in the
amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) should any requirement of the Order not be met.



129) Order Type and Number: Administrative Order 19-54-OSWW

Order Date: November 22, 2019

Individual/Entity: Samuel L. Todd

Facility: Samuel L. Todd

Location: 212 Camellia Drive
Greenwood, SC 29646

Mailing Address: Same

County: Greenwood

Previous Orders: None

Permit Number: None

Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-56

Summary: Samuel L. Todd (Individual/Entity) owns property located in Greenwood,
South Carolina. The Department conducted an investigation on September 26, 2019, and
observed domestic wastewater discharging onto the surface of the ground. The
Individual/Entity has violated the South Carolina Onsite Wastewater (OSWW) Systems
Regulation as follows: failed to ensure that no septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, or
sewage was discharged to the surface of the ground without an appropriate permit from the
Department.

Action: The Individual/Entity is required to repair the OSWW system within five (5)
days to effectively stop the discharging of septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, or
sewage to the surface of the ground; or immediately vacate the residence to eliminate the
flow of domestic wastewater to the OSWW system; and pay a suspended penalty in the
amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) should any requirement of the Order not be met.

* Unless otherwise specified, “Previous Orders” as listed in this report include orders issued by
Environmental Affairs Programs within the last five (5) years.



Date: January 6, 2020
To:  S.C. Board of Health and Environmental Control
From: Bureau of Health Facilities Licensing

Re: Public Hearing for Notice of Final Regulation Amending R. 61-93, Standards for Licensing
Facilities that Treat Individuals for Psychoactive Substance Abuse or Dependence, Document No. 4954

1. Introduction

The Bureau of Health Facilities Licensing proposes the attached Notice of Final Regulation amending R.
61-93, Standards for Licensing Facilities that Treat Individuals Jor Psychoactive Substance Abuse or
Dependence. Legal authority resides in S.C. Code Section 44-7-260 et seq., which requires the Department
of Health and Environment Control (“Department”) to establish and enforce basic standards for the
licensure, maintenance, and operation of health facilities and services in order to ensure the safe and
adequate treatment of persons served in this state. The Administrative Procedures Act, S.C. Code Section
1-23-120(A), requires General Assembly review of these proposed amendments.

IL. Facts

1. The Bureau proposes amending R.61-93 to update provisions in accordance with current practices and
standards. The proposed amendments incorporate and revise provisions relating to statutory mandates,
update terminology to conform to the terminology widely used and understood within the provider
community, and revise requirements for incident reporting, staffing and training requirements, medication
management, patient care and services, infection control, meal service, emergency procedures, design and
construction, fire and life safety, and other miscellaneous requirements for licensure. Proposed revisions
also include changing the name of the regulation and facility type to “Facility for Chemically Dependent
or Addicted Persons.” The Bureau proposes this change to parallel the statutory term for this facility type.
The facility type may also be referred to as “Substance Use Disorder F acilities” based on current
terminology within the provider community. Additional proposed revisions include those for clarity and
readability, grammar, references, codification, and overall improvement to the text of the regulation. R.61-
93 was last amended in 2015.

2. The Department had a Notice of Drafting published in the March 22,2019, State Register.

3. Appropriate Department staff conducted an internal review of the proposed amendments on August 7,
2019.

4. There is no advisory council for this facility type.

5. The Bureau held stakeholder meetings on April 1, 2019, and August 6, 2019, The Bureau considered
stakeholder feedback in formulating the proposed amendments herein.

6. The Department had a Notice of Proposed Regulation published in the November 22, 2019, Stare
Register. The Department received no public comments by December 23, 2019, which was the closing date
of the public comment period.

7. The Bureau held a final stakeholder meeting on November 19, 2019. Amendments were presented and
stakeholders were informed on the process of submitting comments. Eight (8) stakeholders were in
attendance.



8. The addition of medication units will increase access to opioid treatment services in rural areas and
underserved communities.

III. Request for Approval

The Bureau of Health Facilities Licensing respectfully requests the Board to find need and reasonableness
of the attached proposed amendment R.61-93, Standards Jor Licensing Facilities that Treat Individuals Jfor
Psychoactive Substance Abuse or Dependence, for submission to the General Assembly.

{25 ](éﬂ%g{ Ju Miﬁ ﬂéulm. l"l/«(.%zw 1{:»,& e J/‘O‘ym’-—
Angie Sm LaTony4 Williams ”

Interim Chief of Health Facilities Licensing Director of Quality Management Division
Health Facilities Licensing
On behalf of Gwen C. Thompson,
Interim Director of Health Regulation

Attachments:
A. Notice of Final Regulation
B. Summary of Public Comments and Department Responses



ATTACHMENT A

STATE REGISTER NOTICE OF FINAL REGULATION
FORR. 61-93, Standards for Licensing Facilities That Treat Individuals Jor Psychoactive Substance
Abuse or Dependence.

January 6, 2020

Document No. 4954
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL
CHAPTER 61
Statutory Authority: 1976 Code Sections 44-7-260 et seq.

61--93. Standards for Licensing Facilitics that Treat Individuals for Psychoactive Substance Abuse or
Dependence.

Synopsis:

The Department of Health and Environmental Control (“Department”) amends R.61--93 to update
provisions in accordance with current practices and standards. The amendments incotporate and revise
provisions relating to statutory mandates, update terminology to conform to the terminology widely used
and understood within the provider community, and revise requirements for incident reporting, staffing and
training requirements, medication management, patient care and services, infection control, meal service,
emergency procedures, design and construction, fire and life safety, and other miscellaneous requirements
for licensure. Revisions also include changing the name of the regulation and facility type to “Facility for
Chemically Dependent or Addicted Persons.” The Department makes this change to parallel the statutory
term for this facility type. The facility type may also be referred to as “Substance Use Disorder Facilities”
based on current terminology within the provider community. Additional revisions include those for clarity
and readability, grammar, references, codification, and overall improvement to the text of the regulation.

A Notice of Drafting was published in the March 22, 2019, South Carolina State Register.

Instructions: Replace R.61-93, Standards for Licensing Facilities That Treat Individuals for Psychoactive
Substance Abuse or Dependence, in its entirety with this amendment.

Text:

Indi M Siriel

Indicates New Matter

61-93. Standards for Licensing Facilities
Bependenee-for Chemically Dependent or Addicted Persons.

Statutory Authority: (S.C. Code Sections 44-7-260 et seq.)

TABLE OF CONTENTS













SECTION 100 — DEFINITIONS AND LICENSURE
101. Definitions.
102. License Requirements.

SECTION 200 - ENFORCEMENT OF REGULATIONS
201. General.

202. Inspections and Investigations.

203. Consultations.

SECTION 300 — ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS
301. General.
302. Violation Classifications.

SECTION 400 — POLICIES AND PROCEDURES




SECTION 500 — STAFF AND TRAINING

501. General (II).

502. Administrator (I1).

503. Staffing for Residential Treatment Pro grams (I).
504. Staffing for Withdrawal Management Pro grams (I).
5035. Staffing for Opioid Treatment Programs (D).

506. In-service Training (II).

507. Health Status (I).

508. Counselors (11).

SECTION 600 — REPORTING

601. Accidents and Incidents (I1).

602. Fire and Disasters (11).

603. Communicable Diseases and Animal Bites (D.
604. Administrator Change.

605. Joint Annual Report.

606. Accounting of Controlled Substances (1),

607. Facility Closure.

608. Zero Census.

SECTION 700 — PATIENT RECORDS

701. Content (II).

702. Screening (1).

703. Assessments for Residential Treatment Pro grams (II).

704. Assessment for Withdrawal Management Pro grams (11).

705 . Bio-Psycho-Social Assessment Opioid Treatment Pro gram (I1).
706. Individual Plan of Care (II).

707. Individual Plan of Care for Opioid Treatment Program (II).
708. Record Maintenance.

SECTION 800 — ADMISSION (1)
801. General.

802. Residential Facilitics.

803. Opioid Treatment Program.

SECTION 900 — PATIENT CARE, TREATMENT, AND SERVICES
901. General.

902. Residential Facilities (11).

903. Facilities Providing an Opioid Treatment Pro gram.

904. Substance Use Testing for Opioid Treatment Pro grams (II).

905. Orientation for Patients Admitted to an Opioid Treatment Pro oram.

906. Transportation.

907. Safety Precautions and Restraints (I).
908. Services for Minors (I1).

909. Referral Services.

SECTION 1000 — PATIENT RIGHTS AND ASSURANCES
1001. Informed Consent (I1).

1002. Patient Rights (I1).

1003. Discharge and Transfer.




SECTION 1100 — PATIENT PHYSICAL EXAMINATION @

SECTION 1200 — MEDICATION MANA GEMENT
1201. General (I).

1202. Medication Orders (I).

1203. Administering Medication (1).

1204. Pharmacy Services (1).

1205. Medication Containers (I).

1206. Medication Storage (I).

1207. Disposition of Medications (I).

1208. Opioid Treatment Program Take-home Medication (IT).
1209. Opioid Treatment Program Guest-Dosing (II).
1210. Security of Medications (D).

SECTION 1300 —~ MEAL SERVICE ( II)

1301. General (II).

1302. Food and Food Storage (11).

1303. Meals and Services.

1304. Meal Service Personnel for Residential F acilities (II).
1305. Menus.

SECTION 1400 — EMERGENCY PROCEDURES AND DISASTER PREPAREDNESS
1401. Disaster Preparedness (II).

1402. Licensed Capacity During an Emergency (1I).

1403. Emergency Call Numbers (I1).

1404. Continuity of Essential Services ( II).

SECTION 1500 — FIRE PREVENTION

1501. Arrangements for Fire Department Response (1).
1502. Fire response Training (I).

1503. Fire Drills ().

SECTION 1600 - MAINTENANCE
1601. General (ID).
1602. Preventive Maintenance of Emergency Equipment and Supplies (I0).

SECTION 1700 — INFECTION CONTROL AND ENVIRONMENT
1701. Staff Practices.

1702. Tuberculosis Risk Assessment and Screenin g (D).

1703. Tuberculosis Screening for Patients ().

1704. Housekeeping (I1).

1705. Infectious Waste (I).

1706. Pets (II).
1707. Clean and Soiled Linen and Clothing (1I).

SECTION 1800 — QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM {mn

SECTION 1900 — DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION
1901. Codes and Standards.

1902. Local and State Codes and Standards (Ih).
1903. Submission of Plans and Specifications (11).




1904. Construction Inspections.

SECTION 2000 — FIRE PROTECTION, PREVENTION, AND LIFE SAFETY (I)

SECTION 2100 - [RESERVED)]

SECTION 2200 — [RESERVED]

SECTION 2300 — [RESERVED]

SECTION 2400 — ELECTRICAL
2401. Receptacles (II).

2402. Ground Fault Protection (D).
2403. Exit Signs (I).

2404. Emergency Electric Service (I).
2405. Emergency Generator Service.

SECTION 2500 — [RESERVED]

SECTION 2600 — PHYSICAL PLANT
2601. Facility Accommodations and Floor Area (II).
2602. Design (I).

2603. Furnishings and Equipment (D).

2604. Exits (I).

2605. Water Supply and Hygiene (1I).

2606. Temperature Control (1).

2607. Cross-connections (I).

2608. Wastewater Systems (I).

2609. Electric Wiring (I).

2610. Panelboards (I7).

2611. Lighting.

2612. Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning (11).
2613. Patient Rooms.

2614. Patient Room Floor Area.

2615. Bathrooms and Restrooms,

2616. Seclusion Room (II).

2617. Patient Care Unit and Station for Medical Withdrawal Management (IT).
2618. Doors (II).

2619. Elevators (II).

2620. Screens (11).

2621. Janitor’s Closet.

2622, Storage Arcas.

2623. Telephone Service.

2624. Location.

2625. Qutdoor Area.

SECTION 2700 — SEVERABILITY (1)

SECTION 2800 — GENERAL (I)




SECTION 100 — DEFINITIONS; REEERENCES. AND HCENSELICENSUREREQUIREMENTS,
101. Definitions.
For the purpose of this regulation, the following definitions shall apply:

A. Abuse. Physical abuse or psychological abuse.

1. Physical Abuse. The act of intentionally inflicting or allowing infliction of physical mijury on a
Patient by an act or failure to act. Physical abuse includes, but is not limited to, slapping, hitting, kicking,
biting, choking, pinching, burning, actual or attempted sexual battery, use of medication outside the
standards of reasonable medical practice for the purpose of controlling behavior, and unreasonable
confinement. Physical abuse also includes the use of a restrictive or physically intrusive procedure to
control behavior for the purpose of punishment except that of a therapeutic procedure prescribed by a
licensed physician or other legally authorized healthcare professional. Physical abuse does not include
altercations or acts of assault between Patients.

2. Psychological Abuse. The deliberate use of any oral, written, or gestured language or depiction that
includes disparaging or derogatory terms to a Patient or within the Patient’s hearing distance, regardless of
the Patient’s age, ability to comprehend, or disability, including threats or harassment or other forms of
intimidating behavior causing fear, humiliation, degradation, agitation, confusion, or other forms of serious
emotional distress.

AB. Administering Medication. The direct-applicationacts of preparing and giving of a single dosc of a
medication to the body of a elientPatient by injection, ingestion, or any other means in accordance with the
orders of a Physician or other Authorized Healthcare Provider.

BC. Administrator. The staff member designated by the kieenseeLicensee to have the authority and
responsibility to manage the faeilityFacility and who is in charge of all functions and activities of the

Facility.

€D. Adult. A person eighteen (18) years of age or older-erpersonunderthe-age-0£18 whohas been
. ¥ 1 " e

E. Aftercare/Continuing Care. Services provided to elientsPatients after discharge from a faetlityFacility
thatfacilitates the elient’sPatient’s integration or reintegration into society. Activitiesmay include self-help
groups, supportive work programs, and stafffollow-up contacts and interventions,

F. Annual. tod-A time period that requires an activity to be performed at least
every twelve (12) months.




HG. Assessment. A procedure for determining the nature and extent of the problems-forswhich-the

Hdiadualiccaaliing tran fnamt /o s e leareladieationtoine idarial assesemant diaonacic axralizatino o
ATV IOTOUr Iy OVVA\lLLE IVCOTITIVITIO T T YIVLTCArereaOaOToOtTIUOnT UINITCTOTaO U T RYIC WUDUDUILLVLAL, ulu&l;vuku, AR Ty raga A& WIS

huciceal —amantinn ol ok oasiioeal seetdl—eestional racrantional e al and pha o gl
ylj] ul\dul, \/lll\ll,l\l.l.lul, UULIuVlULMI’ J\vaul, VUV“LAUAA“I, xvvlvul«xv‘;ul, Lll\lllll—ll’ u.[;u, AARTA D U4 MIJHL\JIJALHLV’W

autritional andlegal status/needs and needs of a elientPatient or potential Patient to ascertain if the Facility

can adequately address those problems, meet those needs, and to secure information for use in the
development of the Individual Plan of Care. Ch i i rent

£l >

IH. Authorized Healthcare Provider. An individual authorized by law and currently licensed in SC South
Carolina as a Physician, advanced practice registered nurse, or physician assistant to provide specific
treatments, care, or services to elientsPatients. g ; i s,

1. Blood Assay for Mycobacterium tuberculosis (“BAMT”). A general term to refer to in vitro diagnostic

tests that assess for the presence of tuberculosis (“TB”) infection with Mycobacterium tuberculosis. This
term includes, but is not limited to, IFN-y release assays (“IGRA™).

J. Chemical Dependency. A disorder manifested by repeated use of alcohol or another substance to an
extent that it interferes with a person’s health. social, or economic functioning; some degree of habituation
and dependence may be implied. May also be referred to as Substance Use Disorder.

BEK. Clinical Services Supervisor. The designated individual with responsibility for clinical supervision
of treatment Staff and interpretation of program policy and standards.

ML. Consultation. A wisitte-meeting with a licensed faethityFacility byand individuals authorized by the
Department to provide information to Facilities in order to enable Facilities to better comply with the
regulations.

M. Contact Investigation. Procedures that occur when a case of infectious Tuberculosis is identified,
including finding persons (contacts) exposed to the case, testing and evaluation of contacts to identify
Latent Tuberculosis Infection or Tuberculosis disease, and treatment of these persons, as indicated.

N. Controlled Substance. A medication or other substance included in Schedule LILIIL IV, and V of
the Federal Controlled Substances Act or the South Carolina Controlled Substances Act.

NO. Counselor. An appropriately licensed/cestifiedindividual Whe-ﬂ'pp-l*e&a—Spee}ﬁebedy-e-ﬂmewedge

andsleilloaathin o ot ailos athinal contextir-ordertofacilitate habaiinr chanao ce fo foaelitata oo
UITOU SISTITIY YV ICITTIT L%3 }lul LIVHTUT VTITITOT CUTIIVATITITOTCOICOT TUTTOUTITCOULL UNITOOVYIOT Ullulls\a VIO oo TItote

caomfortwath an astino hahaviaral natiarn Thace caruvicac mav lha nravidedanandividiial oo an /o
CORIE YT - O R -0 € Ra VO Far POt es CStRCes e y-e€ provacammehyiatats sroup-ahtror

family-modalities-and providedina varety-of settings{See-Seetion 5043 licensed by the South Carolina
Department of Labor, Licensin g and Regulation or certified as such by South Carolina Association of
Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Counselors.

P. Department. The-S€ South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control,

10



tad tran

O Pelivaru af AMadicot:anc he-aetial conctmrating o Attoian sferof amadication ar dasben
\(- LWITY \JlJ I AVIVOTOOTIOTLY WP ® 9 - uv»uu;, UTOSTT MULAV\J’ A>FY “LLVALLIJLUU UAITIINVIOUT G LIIVOTOTOTIOIT O A A & \ v v
Fo—ehe—person—to—anoetherJIn—inctancac b ara thea foeslitsr 30 ot oo i gl Mm—tha ant ~f
ITOTIT O1IC l.l\ll SUOUTT jn g HITORIICT . TIT ATTITUTITOCTAY YWITLTO SLINS Lu\ullll] IWF DUUT lllé 111\/u1vubu.uj, A7 ¥ g avt Jr
Breseptno/mealane avnidable tha o inio e ofthismadication toa cliant s s baap-autharizad e
}JL\-/L‘IV‘.J.LA]A&I lllm\.llls WV AT o To— e COUTITaIIICI—OoT UITSTITOUOTICOTIOT U  OTICTITITVY 1IN OCTTT GWUTTIOTTIZITTT U’
P

tHon—A-vBrocessofuathdravzsing o elicnt froma cpecific nouchaa et cnhotonag i o o
ORTT T proeess-orwitharawing a-cHentrom-a TpPeICpSyeHodctHv-e-SubSstance

effectivemanner-

S PetoxificationFEacilite A
>0 o ety

OTOXTIICTOr =

there-are-two-types:

3 termResidential-facility conaratad Lo af-Hpatient traatmant focilits oz o
0 - TIVTTIT AN ITOUTINIOT A.u\/LLJLJ U\ltlul IV IO oOrr jllt}ut‘\lljl IVOUITICTIC T OCTIT I'J’ IJLU vn-mls

24 hovrfreastandinge Facilites providine-detoxification carzican of awihich.
T IroOr le\lulmlullle Ju\lll..lbj 1}1\! ¥ ANLATT, GTOATTIIOUTI I OOty IS O vy Incorr

: : A

a H d & 5
4 1 formedical camnlicatione of alesholismrand/ordiuc abhica o stryetradnroomng of
J.I.LA& LV INTIITVOTTOr vullly;xvub;unm VU TCOUITOTITIY T O I O L M& ayr UU\I, R Ut TotTarTreer IJA U&u-uxrwr

ervicantroviding cninaruicad 1 #thdravwalfromaleobolorothor dria m-urhich “a:fhm-jﬂ:le
VIVICCUPTOVTIOHE U POV UGy e ara v ar o8 C ORe+-6F IO o s s v e e er

xteatorpoarnhyvcical conditicon 1o o atr o enoushtosvarrant diract maadical Qi ric
HITTOTIITOT yl.l.] VIVHINCUTIOITTOIT Y DAY A D 4 v \tll\.’u&xl oW artToarirc ITvoe T roaroor UUP\/A v K’m

Bsto—assista—wathdraszal bt sirhick mantamemadical lhas
HertTTESL LTI v e wa - o b - WiHe R atntoms—nedical

PN
©

rosranrofeovnsalinoe it nnmronrinta edueational carvicac and e faprenl forfarthaes

IUATaTITOT OO LADUALIIE, 1x HIJ L\Jrlllulr\/, UL HUCTTTOTIOr oCTTYv J\JVL)’ Gl Tv T ITOTr IoOT 14071 LT -

e

FQ. Dietitian. An pessenindividual whe—is togistered-by-the Commission-on Dietetic Registration:
currently licensed as a Dietitian by the South Carolina Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation.

HYR. Direct Care Staff/\elunteers. Those individuals who provide care/reatment and services to the
elientPatient.

¥S. Discharge. The point at which *heeﬁeﬁ#&&etwmvelvemmtreatmem, care, and services in a

Facilityisare terminated and the faedlityFacility no longer maintains activeresponsibility for the care
of the elientPatient, except for Continuin g Care monitoring.

Dispensinae Medication The tramncfae ofnessessionof one ariiare docan ofa-droor deinica bz o

\AZD P I e v ot Catro A e-Ha R Ster o+ PYOSVeoToTTroOT oo o oS- 055041 a5 o altvIce oy«
Licensedinbarnanciot oe matc na ittedbo-das: ta tha 1 ltinaata coRsHmerar-hchar o aant 1311401 40 o
ITCVITOSUCTT ylluLlAM\JlDL VI y\.«;uuu IJ\JILI.LLLQVU L% LCFY F] WU OTIeTIIIITeet w3 > ITIT UT IR IICUT HAWTIT IJ T Lo or

T. Elopement. An instance when a Patient who is physically, mentally. or chemically impaired wanders,

walks, runs away, escapes, or otherwise leaves the Facility unsupervised or unnoticed.

f operatinetha facilits _raar 4+ 4]
opTThah e eracHitypor+to—+t

I:e.nmynh on
OV otrott

Fay
o

reolation_Tha 13
weortaons T

a AraSEovermneEnevw~facilittac annli if amed swhanan a
KlEnIa o s YT E T Cw—raCHIHe S oIy oGy oo

U. Exploitation. (1) Causing or requiring a Patient to engage in an activity or labor that is improper,
unlawful. or against the reasonable and rational wishes of a Patient. Exploitation does not include requiring
a Patient to participate in an activity orlabor that is a part of a written individual plan of care or prescribed
or authorized by the Patient’s attending physician; (2) an improper, unlawful, or unauthorized use of the
funds, assets, property, power of attorney, guardianship, or conservatorship of a Patient by an individual

11



for the profit or advantage of that individual or another individual; or (3) causing a Patient to purchase
goods or services for the profit or advantage of the seller or another individual through undue influence,
harassment, duress, force, coercion, or swindling by overreaching, cheating, or defrauding the Patient
through cunningarts ordevices that delude the Patientand causehim orherto lose money or other property.

¥V. Facility for Chemically Dependent or Addicted Persons (Facility or Substance Use Disorder

Facility).

a1y Q fa a h i@

-A faetlityFacility organized to provide Qutpatient or Residential

Services to Chemically Dependent or Addicted Persons and their families based on an Individual Plan of
Care including diagnostic treatment, individual and group counseling, family therapy, vocational and
educational development counseling, and referral services.

ZW. Follow-up. Intermittent contact with a elientPatient following discharge from the program, for
assessment of elientPatient status and needs.

AAX. Health Assessment. An evaluation of the health status of'a staff member/volunteer by a Physician,
other Authorized Healthcare Provider, or a registered nurse;. A registered nurse may complete the Health
Assessment pursuant to standing orders approved by a Physician as evidenced by the Physician’s signature.
The standing orders shall be reviewed annually by the Physician, with a copy of the review maintained at

the faeilityFacility.

Y. Individual Plan of Care. A written action plan based on assessment data that identifies the Patient’s
diagnosis and/or needs, the strategy for providing services to meet those needs, treatment goals and
objectives, and the criteria for terminating the specified interventions,

€EZ. In-process Counselor. A counsclor who-hasbeesn accepted by the SEAABACSouth Carolina
Association of Alcoholism and Drug Abuse Counselors as enrolled for certification.

DPBAA. Inspection. A visit by i
for the purpose of determining compliance with this re gulation.

the Department

EEBB. Intake. The administrative and assessment process for admission to a program.




CC. Interdisciplinary Team. A group designated by the Facility to provide or supervise care, treatment,
and services. The group normally includes but is not limited to the following persons: Counselors, social
workers, Physicians and other Authorized Healthcare Providers, pharmacists, peer support specialists, etc.

66DD. Investigation. A visit by autherized-individualsDepartment representatives to a licensed or
unlicensed entity for the purpose of determining the validity of allegations received by the Department

relating to thisregulation statutory and regulatory compliance.

EE. Legend Medications.

1. A Controlled Substance, when under federal law, is required, prior to being dispensed or delivered
to be labeled with any of the following statements:

a. “Caution: Federal law prohibits dispensing without prescription,”

b. “Rx only”; or

2. A Controlled Substance which is required by any applicable federal or state law to be dispensed
pursuant only to a prescription drug order or is restricted to use by practitioners only:

3. Any Controlled Substance considered to be a public health threat, after notice and public hearing as
designated by the South Carolina Board of Pharmac ;o1

4. Any prescribed compounded prescription Controlled Substance within the meaning of the South
Carolina Pharmacy Practice Act.

HFE. License. The authorization to operate a faeilitySubstance Use Disorder Facility as defined in this
regulation and as evidenced by a certificate issued by the Department to a faeilits:F acility.

HGG. Licensed Nurse. A person to whom the-SC South Carolina Board of Nursing has issued a license
as a registered nurse or licensed practical nurse-, or an individual licensed as a registered nurse or licensed
practical nurse who resides in another state that has been granted multi-state licensing privileges by the
South Carolina Board of Nursing and may practice nursing in any faeityFacility or activity licensed by the
Department subject to the provisions and conditions as indicated in the Nurse Licensure Compact Act.

ization, or public entity whe-has+eceived-alicenseto

KKHH. Licensee. The individual, co

rporation, organ

tenlicensed pursuant to this regulation to provide dependency
and Substance Use Disorder treatment services.

Il. Medical Withdrawal Management Program. A program in a Residential Facility providing for
medically-supervised Withdrawal Management, with the capacity to provide screening for medical
complications of Substance Use Disorder, a structured program of counseling, if appropriate, and refemal
for further rehabilitation.

JJ. Medication. A substance that has therapeutic effects, including, but not limited to, Legend,
Non-Legend, over-the counter, and nonprescription Medications, herbal products, vitamins, and nutritional

supplements.

13



KK. Medication Unit. A Satellite location established as part of, but geographically separate, from a
licensed Opioid Treatment Pro gram to only administer Medications and conduct substance use screening.

LL. Methadone. A synthetic opioid Medication usually administered on a daily basis.

MM. Minor. Any person whose age does not meet the criteria indicated in Section 101.C.

NN Mothereauith Childean Eactlittas A Racidantial reatmentiractar facilit: formant !
LAt oyt orrarehracitie S e Sstaenttat tr RO pTosra Attty 1o

Jarcotte—Treatmont Pragrans (NTDY A w outhatient-pasvehasctiva cuhotana

T OTI T T IO OaTITIUInTtTr l\lsl.ulll \AV Py l. 1I°XTT UMI«IJHLLULAN lJOJ WIIVUTIUTT VOOt oo

1 oL A AN ond affarine
=

medicationcuch o
methetion-SUeias v a-OHering

musiaomaathadama A 4l o
Tt g RetaaoRe-or-otne

P azontis te I Qs
IO rootrotrout i it

N

S
b o]
i
9
=
%

F
d

il

B T

afn a
O - = 2
ara dari Hve-orsmthetice dmicat that crmire ha NTPRic daciaaad o vrasrant tha oncatafalbctinam
T IT HMVITVOaTTY VO Y AIVIITTOOT us LIIITOrT 61\.1 MIJ. LA IIWVTOT T Loy OaOvToT AW IJL\/ ¥ wiITTTUITC OISO T OT LUITIICTICU
mstoratleast24-hours: raducaorolinsinato dewx eravieand-blocktha affacte af athae epiates
UJ J.AAIJI.UJ.J.ALJ LUV aTICTToT T I.AUUAL), T UOCOUT W INTTTITIONCG \llus IV 1115’ QAIIVUTOCTICTTIIT wITVOTY OUT-OTIIvT UIJ

1 Clinte A il

T O ST e T

onatwhichNTRPmadicaticon andrak abilitativecarzicacta cliante o
e et arcatonanarenaoqrtatve seracesto-elients )

P

2_Petoxification-A medicalls; suberased—aradualradiction o fomorina ofdaoseovertinme ta nchious

- VT AATOICT IO Y AALUUIU“L‘.J uu}n.u vxuuu, 61\4“\4“1 IO OOTTIOITOT lwl.l\.«l AAAb WV IGOV OV LT I et o QUTIIVVW
thaaliraie 410 ofteleranceandnhucical denandancato MNTRmedicatione_andantdatosificn ;nn%em_eﬁlel;
T nororteHoraiceahapysicardepenaenceto-NIE rotrcaaonsahaRotaetoxdibeation

rithdeavzal cxmmantanas rodica crAvHEEandpermitaaritans] frmetinmie oo
Y ATy ar JJ LlAIJlUlALJ’ LV CTCTOY ALL& OTICr IJ\/AALLIL LAVITTIAr T ITOTIOTTIT Y

&
¢
o
2.
3
[«
b

Mamntananca ( optimne Care A nlanna
TR OO R - C Ot S oare— Promnd

[
[

o
VO Ottt

e-oftreatmentfor N TR raintananea clianic d :mnwd
O HRdintehanee-clHents-ar
O

NN. Neglect. The failure or omission of a direct care staff member to provide the care, goods, or services
necessary to maintain the health orsafety ofa Patient including, butnot limitedto, food, clothing, medicine,
shelter, supervision, and medical services. Failure to provide adequate supervision resulting in ham to
Patients. including altercations or acts of assault between Patients, may constitute neglect. Neglect may be
repeated conduct or a single incident that has produced or could result in physical or psychological hamm or
substantial risk of death. Noncompliance with regulatory standards alone does not constitute neglect.

&

arthe nravi~ye lis
1 V10 16

14



00. Non-Legend Medications. A substance which may be sold without a prescription and which is
labeled for use by the consumer in accordance with state and federal law.

PP. Opioid Treatment Program. A program within an Outpatient Facility providing services using
Methadone or other opioid treatment Medication, and offering a range of treatment procedures and services
for the rehabilitation of persons dependent on opium, morphine, heroin, or any derivative or synthetic
Controlled Substance of that group.

QQ. Outpatient Facility. A faedlityFacility providing Sﬁeeﬂh%ed-ﬂeﬂ*esﬂefmﬂ—semees_whﬂmy

3
L 30 o} -. ----- aan - 4.- I O . - aVa¥aYiliel 3.0 "
= oY PSY o3 v Bo-5ta aBeHo
=

theirfamiliesOutpatient Services. m%sepa%weeﬁaeﬂ*%

RR. Outpatient Services. Servicesto-individuals dependentuponorabusingpsy

(]

choactiva el otancalc)
WIITOOTTI Yy Ooer Uulull\/\d )

and-their-familiec bacad am an mdipviidualized traatrnant »lon JTPY 113 1nane
cERTTrT T T oyt e hai-haPAadaliZzeatreatinent pPianri—)3h-a- 1o+

1 " hat-mav—encomnace sndividiml familv—and oroun counceling
) E] AT LITTT LAAMJ UAL\/UAAAFWW Axxuxvxuuul, LMAAALLJ, LI él\luy \/U“Llu\/mls

ices- Non-Residential services for persons with

Substance Use Disorder and/or their families.

SS. Patient. Any individual who receives Outpatient or Residential Services from a licensed Facility.

tepts-awralke nuntil acning ta had

vz fraomtha firmesulh
IVITTS TV OUISC—OITITI Y &Ulllé LA UUU_,'

1 A
oy romrare o re—vv e

M-

[}

3

yat 31

FFPharmmacist Anaindisridial cr1reeantl: lecencadac
T RRe It e G- COrre ity Heense d-as

harna
THETRECY:

BUTT. Physical Examination. ;ﬂ-ﬁﬂeﬂ*ﬁes-eﬂaeFthaﬂM}l(See-Seeneﬂ_g%gg*aﬂ An examination of a
ehientPatient by a Physician or other Authorized Healthcare Provider which addresses thoseissues identified
n Section 1100 of this regulation.

VAL _Phvgiotan Ap do A3 4000 i Leensedto-practice madicina by the-SC Boasrd aof Madinal
A\ Yo I 11] CAINVIUIT I XIT IO vy IartiTr A=y VJLLIJ IICWTITIOVCO T t}l aviivrvIoreoomoInt UJ VTR OOTT OO IvivrIoar
A Phyucioinn e Aociotnnt A radual-cugrantly licancad ac ok bytha SC. Baqed of adical
LA AT AIJ IV IO T IO T TO It X1 LITOTY 1TO0OT UulA\dllle IIVVITOOVT OO Ot o (2B SN W A N o AVECR By un v g Iy ivarToar

BEeaminers-

%XUU. Primary Counselor. An individual who is assigned by a faeilityFacility to develop, implement,
and periodically review the eliest’sIFPPatient’s Individual Plan of Care and to monitor a elient’sPatient’s
progress in treatment.

ation—denandanca e
blrl.LUAl, UVHUIIUUAAVV T

5 . - d
S
tettop-manboadnanlicd Doarcanc whonradanan 1
T YOV O P o O e SORS W O-Ake acpe
]
T

neelsarethecawhoce cananalo s neaaf
Aoyt vy oy e OIS Ty OO ot-OT

r%
b

"
q
-
go
ol

&

o
CITOTOC TV E— o Othyt

anandanca Trantnrant L e A Fooilins tboag
Tponaehce reathient—+ A3 t
B

1
Ty 1o TUy —orer

15



AAAVV. Quality Improvement Program. The process used by a faeilityFacility to examine its methods
and practices of providing care services, identify the ways to improve its performance, and take actions that

result in higherimproved quality of care for the feetlity’s-Facility’s elientsPatients.

BBPWW. Repeat Violation. The recurrence of a violation cited under the same section of the regulation
within a 36-menthtwenty-four (24) month period. i i i elad i

XX. Residential Facility. A twenty-four (24) hour Facility offering Residential Treatment Pro gram,
Medical Withdrawal Management, and Social Withdrawal Management services in a Residential setting
including services for parents with children.

EEEYY. Residential Treatment Program Facili:, A Z4-heurfaeility-servieeprogram in a Residential
Facility efferingan-organized-service whiehthat is designed to improve the elient’sPatient’s ability to
structure and organize the tasks of daily living and foster recovery through planned clinical activities,
counseling, and clinical monitoring in order to promote successful involvement or re-involvement in
regular, productive daily activity, and, as indicated, successful reintegration into family living,

HEEZZ. Revocation of License. An action by the Department to cancel or annul a faeilityFacility License
by recalling, withdrawing, or rescinding its authority to operate.

GGGAAA. Satellite Facility. An approved outpatientfaeilityOutpatient Facility at a location other than
the main eutpatientfaeility Outpatient Facility that is owned or operated by the same licensee. Satelite

leecationsare authorized anlsz inth o caman couhtasthe-mamfacilibrorinconticiiaie forimatioo tytha ~ogaadyg
IVVUHIIUITY O OOt I OTrI2°5Cr UALLJ I AU CTOTTITIV \J\)mlt] O LI TITOITLT AIAUAALLJ A4 SR Ve V\Jl.l.bl&u\luu WAIUITUINAT OO VLT \.r\JulIv’

N i Cagilitni .

BBB. Self-Administration. A procedure by which any Medication is taken orally, injected, inserted, or
topically or otherwise administered by a Patient to himself or herself without prompting. The procedure is
performed without assistance and includes removing an individual dose from a previously dispensed and
labeled container (including a unit dose container), verifying it with the directions on the label, taking it
orally, injecting, inserting, or applying topically or otherwise administering the Medication.

CCC. Social Withdrawal Management Program. A program in a Residential Facility providing
supervised Withdrawal Management in which neither the Patient’s level of intoxication nor physical
condition is severe enough to warrant direct medical supetvision or the use of Medications to assist in
withdrawal, but which maintains medical backup and provides a structured program of counseling (if
appropriate). educational services, and referral for further rehabilitation.

HHHDDD. Staff. Those individuals who are employees (full and part-time) of the faeilityFacility, to
include those individuals contracted to provide treatment/earelservicescare and services for the
elientPatients.

EEE. Substance Use Disorder. A recurrent use of alcohol or other substance causing clinically and
functionally significant impairment, such as health problems, disability, and failure to meet major
responsibilities at work, school, or home.

16



HHFEF. SuspendSuspension of License. An action by the Department requiring a faetlityFacility to cease
operations for a period of time or to require a £aeili Facility to cease admitting elientsPatients, until such
time as the Department rescinds that restriction.

onaoctie avaliya
varaotois

tion—eounseline —medical mouckiatria pavehaloosieal
L2 \JUMLAUVL]Al&, J.J.A\a\.llwul’ IJIJJ \Jlllul«l‘.\d’ IIQJ VALULU&A\JCCI,_

a
S
elients which 1maxv dnclnda dig
Tt —yvnei—inay—eitee—atagnoste

£
ont—educational orcacial cormica cora which-masvrheevtanded ta olionta fa mfhionao
] \,lUAJuL’ wuuvul«lvllvl&, VTTOoOUTTaOI U T vV IOU-TT T \J, Yy IITUTY llluJ U VTTCITOUCT IO WITWTTO O IITT AUWTIUVG

GGG. Tuberculosis Risk Assessment. An initial and ongoing evaluation of the risk for transmission of
Mycobacterium Tuberculosis in a particular healthcare setting. To perform a risk assessment, the following
factors shall be considered: the community rate of Tuberculosis, number of Tuberculosis Patients
encountered in the setting, and the speed with which Patients with Tuberculosis disease are suspected,
isolated, and evaluated. The Tuberculosis Risk Assessment determines the types of administrative and
environmental controls and respiratory protection needed for a setting.

ttaahich affarc ovarnicht o cnmama odaticnat
LJ.I,J YWIITCIT UTIVT OO VVA‘.u&lLL UV ToTIOITOOU IO U

KKK _Twant Eonr
AT ITvY \JILLJ P vy

1 ang
Ity 7 1adT

EEEHHH. Volunteer. An individual who performs tasks that are associated with the operation of the
faeilityFacility without pay and at the direction of the administraterAdministrator or his or her designee.

111. Withdrawal Management. A process of withdrawinga Patient froma specific psychoactive substance
in a safe and effective manner.

1
p
B

Horand Contralof Antihintia 1 tant Ovn—r\ﬂ

= 1 AQIC
~ VIO oI T ot r o O T et oo H e e 515

=

17



[

esearch-Couneil National A cadars ofSciancac:
AW OWHTNVIT OO MIIUAA, ANUTTOTIOT Lvuulej] Ur UVIUIIUVU?

: 1 tina. tha Terancimicaing of Myco Bactariiim Tuberenlocicin I aclthcara
5 e C— o HHS 510+ s yyvrraTitioir oo CetHe-SIS—=eattheare

1032. License Requirements.
A.License. No person, private or public organization, political subdivision, or govermnmental agency shall

establish, operate, maintain, errepresent, advertise, or market itself as a—faedity Facility in-S€ South
arolina without first obtaining a License from the Department. No Facility shall admit Patients prior to

the effective date of the License. When it has been determined by the Department that-care/reatment
services forpsycheactive-substanee-abuse-or-depen cence-to-two-ormere-individ nrelated-to-the-owne

is-for Substance Use Disorder are being provided at a location, and the owner has not been issued a License

fromthe Department-te-pfeﬂde-sueh-ea-re#t-pe&t-meﬁ;, the owner shall cease addesistoperation immediately

and ensure the safety, health, and well-being of the eceupants-within-thescope-ofthetawPaticnts.

nHssion-ofeliente nriorio tha affactiua date-oflhcencuraiaasialation of Sectiondd-T7 2E0(ANM 1Y of tha
LRI TOTT O T T IIeoTIry YAAUA U TITw VT ¥ v URTUoOT IiIovrnrar & LTV IO CIOTIOT LEASA A7 LV 0 ey g 7 LtUU\l lj\l / A ey -

; 5 ~Current and/or previous violations of the-SC South Carolina Code
and/or Department regulations may jeopardize the issuance of a License for the faeilityFacility or the
licensing of any other;facility F acility or addition to an existing faeilityFacility that is owned/operated by
the licensee. The faeilityFacility shall provide only the treatment, services, and care it is licensed to provide
pursuant to the definition in Section 101 V. of this regulation. (I)

B. Compliance. An initial License shall not be issued to a proposed faeilityFacility thathasbeennot
BreVion and—contingou icensed-unde : atresHats until the kLeenseeLicensce has
demonstrated to the Department that the proposed faedlityFacility is in substantial compliance with the
licensingregulations standards. In the event a current-heensee Licensee-ofa-currently-icensed who already

has a—faeility Facility/ or . activity makes application for another-faeility Facility, the currently licensed
faedlity Facility /activity shall-demenstrate be in substantial compliance with the applicable standards prior

to the Department issuing a License to the proposed-faedlity Facility or amended License to the existing
Facility. A paper or electronic copy of-thisregulation the licensing standards shall be maintained at the
faeility Facility and accessible to all Staff members and Volunteers. Facilities shall comply with applicable
local, state, and federal laws, codes, and regulations.

C. Licensed CapaeityServices. No-faeility Facility-that-has-been-authorized-to shall provide-certain
i i services outside the limits of the type-aetlity Facility identified

on the face of the License and/or which-it the F acility has been authorized to provide. (D

D. Satellite Facilities.

1. Qutpatient Satellite locations, other than Medication Units, are authorized only in the same county
as the main Facility or in contiguous counties to the county in which the main F acility is located.

2. Medication Units. A Licensed Outpatient Facility providing an Opioid Treatment Program may
establish a Medication Unit. A Medication Unit shall only administer Medications and conduct substance
use screening, Other required services shall be provided at the licensed Facility’s primary location. The

18



Medication Unit shall meet the re gulatory requirements for Medication administration, staffing, substance
use screening, and construction.

a. Medication Units shall be opened no closer than forty-five (45) miles and no further than ninety
(90) miles from the primary Opioid Treatment Pro oram.

b. The Facility shall obtain a registration from the Department’s Bureau of Drug Control and a
Controlled Substances registration from the federal Dru g Enforcement Administration for each Medication
Unit.

c. The Facility shall not establish, operate, or maintain a Medication Unit without submitting an
application to and receiving approval from the Department. The Facility ’s application for the Medication
Unit shall include documentation from the Department evidencing that the applicant received either a
Certificate of Need or a determination by the Department that Certificate of Need review is not required.

BE. Licensed Bed Capacity. No24-hous faeility Residential Facility that has been authorized to provide
asetnumberoflicensedbeds, as identified on the face ofthe License, shall exceedthe licensedbed capacity.

No-faedlity Facility shall establish new treatmenticare/ ot services or occupy additional beds or renovated
space without first obtaining authorization from the Department. 45 Licensed beds shall not be utilized by

any individuals other than Facility Patients. (I)

EF. Persons Received in Excess of Licensed Bed Capacity. No24-heurfaeility Residential F. acility shall
receive for treatmentt, care/, or services persons in excess of the licensed bed capacity, except in cases of

justified emergencies (See Section 1400). D

ention_Itn thaoavant th ot tha Faeilitu tamaa oot Ter e ey lac “‘}elter—felz
Al A TCWTLIYCAT uuyu\dl.] J_/Ilv\aytlvll. LIV Yy UITr oot Tt lu\/llll] L\JIILFVLMALLJ FAUVLU\JU I

EXCEPTION: Licanced Canaciti: Tue

T T T I

L
¢ 3P
D
N
-

avora A
v -
heensed-canacitrfartha facilitiin ardar fo aecommadatathoaca 3n dixrid
nevinTatapatity 1o e 4V I oratrtoottommeo-Gar et e Se 111G

e-SecHsn

EG. Living Quarters for Staff in-24-heur Residential Facilities. In addition to-elients Patients, only Staff
members, Volunteers, or owners of the—faeility Facility and members of-theis the owner’s immediate
familiesfamily may reside in faeilitiesFacilities licensed under this regulation.-Client Patient rooms shall
not be utilized by-steff/familyivolunteers -any individuals other than Facility Patients, nor shall bedrooms
of Staff membersivohunteers_ or family members of the owner or the Licensee-bedroems be utilized b
elients Patients. Heowever-children Hay-oceupy-clientroomsthathave been licensed by-the Departmentin
programs-specifieally licensed-to-provide-care/treatment formothers whe are-chemically dependent(hH
Staff members or family members of the owner or Licensee, or Volunteers shall not use Patient living
rooms, recreational areas, or dining rooms unless they are on duty.

GH. Issuance and Terms of License.

1. AThe-lieense License is—issued by the Department and-shall be posted by the Licensee in a
conspicuous place in a public area within the-faeility Facility.

2. The issuance of a License does not guarantee adequacy of individual care, treatment services,
personal safety, fire safety, or the well-being of any-ehent Patient or occupant of afaeility Facility,

3. A License is not assignable sor transferable and is subject to revocation at any time by the
Department for thelicensee2s Licensee’s failure to comply with the laws and regulations of this-State state.

19



4. A License shall be effective fora specified-faeility Facility, at a specific location¢s), for a specified
period following the date of issue as determined by the Department. A License shall remain in effect until
the-f&emﬁhﬁ-eﬁeﬂ&seﬁeﬁﬁe@%e-pepm Department notifies the Licensee of a change in the
status.

5. Exeeptforoutpatientsatellite facilities—facilities Facilities owned by the same entity but which are
notlocated on the same adjoining or contiguous property shall be separatelylicensed. Roads orlocal streets,
except limited access,e-g—intesstate-highways shall not be considered as dividing otherwise adjoining or
contiguousproperty. For Facilities owned by the same entity, separate Licenses are not required for separate
buildings on the same or adjoining grounds where a single type of service is provided.

76. Multiple-types-of facilities Facilities providing Outpatient and Residential Services on the same

premises shall be licensed separately even though owned by the same entity.

HI. Facility Name. No proposed-faeility Facility shall be named norsnay shall any existing-faeility
Facility have its name changed to the same or similar name as any other-faeility Facility licensed in-S€

South Carolina, The Department shall determine if names are similar. If+ the Facility is part of a “chain
operation” it shall then have the geographic area in which it is located as part of its name. The-Department

on a form prescribed, prepared, and furnished by the Department prior to initial licensing-andperiodieally

i i . Applicants for a—ieense License shall file _an
application with the Department; that includesbeth an oath assurin g thatthe contents of the application are
accurate/and true and in compliance with this regulation.

1. Application. Applicants for a-license License shall submit to the Department a completed application

—Thetnitial andannnal Lcanc
T eHhRaT e

fae challlho €75
e DD~

T T

a
OO T ITT Ty e

o
-8

®

5

vatientfactlities and NTR e Tha Lirenciion
P 1E5

TICITC TS |22 2 0= gr o ar o S e v g TITTIISITS

2 Eorallothar fa~ilitiac licamcad wrderthicraocilation +ha anmiial Lecancafaa 1ha 1000 1nar ha
U oTr U At S H OO RS G HRGeEHHS v stHToTE I T aua r ICORS 000 Sra e 1o U0 Perocts
2 _Feasforadditianalhade chall ha nrorated-basedponthaeraniaining mannthe oftha lcancura vyanse
ST OO OT oo Uit ok -0 eas-Saa-oe pProraeaoastaHpon-iie T s oSO aHe-Hee Rsure pA- -

onp
th
=
P

%n reraipmneunnaid 230 dave o ftar bhillin
0 CoTCTHI T e Pt o- G a Y Sar ter D

fthafeachallh
T o

TT T O T

refunded basadunontheramiainins ninnih
TwWT o Ml.lull LITTT V‘.lelllll& ALIUITTOTY

aranawnl
CHoRE W

TITOCT oot

@
o
=
o

20



ana sl ol aroo
Yoo y— ot F=3d

K. Required Documentation. The application for initial licensure shall include:

1. Completed application:

2. Proof of ownership of real property on which the Facility is located or a rental or lease agreement
allowing the Licensee to occupy the real property on which the Facility is located:

3. Verification of emergency evacuation plan (see Section 1401 ): and

4. Verification of Administrator’s qualifications.

L. Licensing Fees. Each applicant shall paya License fee prior to the issuance of a License.

1. The initial and annual License fee shall be seventy-five dollars ($75.00) for Qutpatient Facilities.
The initial and annual License fee for Outpatient Facility satellite locations shall be fifty dollars ($50.00)
per Satellite Facility.,

2. For Residential Facilities, the annual License fee shall be ten dollars ($10.00) per bed or seventy-five
dollars ($75.00), whichever is greater.

M. Licensing Late Fees. Failure to submit a renewal application and fee to the Department by the License
expiration date shall result in a late fee of seventy-five dollars ($75.00) or twenty -five percent (25%) of the
licensing fee amount, whichever is greater, in addition to the licensing fee. Failure to submit the licensing
fee and licensing late fee to the Department within thirty (30) days of the licensure expiration date shall
render the Facility unlicensed. (II)

kN. License Renewal. For aticense License to be renewed, applicants shall file an application with the
Department, pay atieense License fee, and shallnotbe underconsideration for, or undergoing, enforcement
actions by the Department. H-the licenseren : atasd el

: 3 mpletedwhickey apphieable: Annual licensing fees shall als’o include any
outstanding Inspection fees. All fees are non-refundable, shall be made payable by check or credit card to
the Department or online, and shall be submitted with the application.

£EQO. Change-ofLicense:Amended License. No facility shall establish new care or services or occupy
additional beds or renovated space without first obtaining authorization from the Department. A Facility
shallrequestissuance of anamended License by application to the Department priorto any ofthe following

circumstances:

#1. Change of-esvnership licensed bed capacity;

b2. Change-in-autherized-eapaeity of Facility location from one geographic site to another:;

€3. -Changes in Facility name

or address (as notified by the post office); or




a4 Changeﬂﬁfﬂemeea&eﬂ-fremeﬂegeegpaphm in Facility service type.

s ohonaa) ooy faa
Tonang O Hiay—oe

..
[+
o
w
4.
o]
i
&
§

q
[«
q

4
r
3
q

3
[}
%
¢

T

Eyneﬂf;nﬂn tothe Standarde ~ 4l P oo

3 on—ThaDanartimant hao
t} IUTIO LU T onr Y OUTOITTY L\vsu \w ) > 1IN UVIJML LITICTIVTTITNOLY

s

t

=
[

andarde o o 24 "S dafm—vn.'“m-l th

a3 woall nathba
ALLUATOY W ITOCTT 10 T ~UWTITITITICOUITTT nLv4s =2

el
SR a s yvan

alth- cafati and wall kb
T3

S e7-Y
G ooty At we

aca.g
TOtIICott
o BEOIA
> paw

P. Change of Licensee. A Facility shall request issuance of a_new License by application to the
Department prior to any of the following circumstances:

1. A change in the controlling interest even if, in the case of a corporation or partnership, the legal
entity retains its identity and name; or

2. A change in the type of the legal entity, for example, sole proprietorship to or from a corporation,
partnership to or from a corporation, even if the controlling interest does not change,

Q. Variance. A variance is an alternative method that ensures the equivalent level of compliance with the
standards in this regulation. The Facility may request a variance to this regulation in a format as determined
by the Department. Variances shall be considered on a case by case basis by the Department. The
Department may revoke issued variances as determined to be appropriate by the Department.

SECTION260
ENFORCINGREGULATIONS-

SECTION 200 — ENFORCEMENT OF REGULATIONS

201. General.

The Department shall utilizc—inspeetions Inspections,—investigations_Investigations ~consultations
Consultations, and other pertinent documentation regarding a proposed or licensed-aeility F acility in order

to enforce this regulation.
202. Inspections and Investigations.

A. Inspections by the Department shall be conducted prior to initial licensing of a-faeility Facility and
subsequentiaspeetions Inspections conducted as deemed appropriate by the Department.

B. All-faeilities Facilities are subject to-inspeetionsinvestigation Inspection and/or Investigation at any
time without prior notice by individuals authorizedby the-Bepartment South CarolinaCodeof Laws. When
staff Staff members and /or elientsPatients are absent, the-faeility Facility shall-provide  post information at
the entrance of the Facility to those secking legitimate access to the Facility, including visitors-as
to-the-expectedreturn-of stafflelients. The posted information shall include contact information and the
expected time of retum of the Staff members and Patients. The contact information shall include the name
of a designated contact and his or her telephone number. The telephone number for the designated contact

shall not be the Facility’s telephone number. (D

22



C. Individuals authorized by the-Department-South Carolina law shall be allowed to enter the Facility for
the purpose of Inspection and/or Investigation and granted access to all properties and areas, objects, and
requested records, and documentation at the time of the Inspection or Investigation. The Department shall
have the authority to require the-faeitity Facility to make photocopies of those documents required in the
course of-inspeetions Inspections or-#vestigations Investigations. Photocopies shall be used only for
purposes of enforcement of regulations and confidentiality shall be maintained except to verify the identity
of individuals in enforcement action proceedings. The physical area of Department Inspections and
Investigations shall be determined by the Department based on the potential impact or effect upon patients,

&H(D)

D. When there is noncompliance with the licensing standards-ef thisregulation, thefaeitity Facility shall
submit an acceptable-wsitten plan of correctionte in a format determined by the Department.-that The plan

of correction shall be signed by the-administrator Administrator and retumed by the date specified on the
report of+nspectiontinvestigation Inspection and/or Investigation. The-wsitten plan of correction shall
describe: (II)

1. The actions taken to correct each cited deficiency;
2. The actions taken to prevent recurrences (actual and similar); and

3. The actual or expected completion dates of those actions.

Dea
e

(]

E. Reporis-ofinspectionsconducted b th
- *eports-ornspectionsconducted byth

avadableunonreairact vuith the redactinn of th
He-freaacts +

rimentincludinethe faciliturasnonca chall ha thade
o TTE O a e rathity-re spohse-shai ve

a o
svahdorepontTequest-with oo e-Ray

eindiddualsin-the renortac meavidad Iysz
CreytTre RIS R e Tepertas providea

—In accordance with South Carolina Code

Section 44-7-270, the Department may charge a fee for Inspections.

1. Residential Facilities. The fee for initial, relocation, and routine Inspections shall be three hundred
fifty dollars ($350.00), plus twenty-five dollars ($25.00) per licensed bed. The Inspection fee for a bed
increase and/or servicemodification is two hundred dollars ($200.00), plus twenty-fivedollars ($25.00)per
licensed bed. The fee for all follow-up Inspections shall be two hundred dollars ($200.00), plus twenty -five
dollars ($25.00) per licensed bed.

2. Outpatient Facilities. The fee for initial, relocation, and routine Inspections shall be four hundred
fifty dollars ($450.00). The Inspection fee for service modification, including the establishment of a
Satellite Facility, and follow-up Inspections is two hundred fifty dollars ($250.00).

F. The Licensee shall pay the following Inspection fees during the construction phase of the project. The
plan Inspection fee is based on the total estimated cost ofthe project whether new construction, an addition,
or a renovation. The fees are detailed in the table below.

Construction Inspection Fees
Plan Inspection

Total Project Cost Fee
<$10,001 $750
$10,001 - $100,000 $1.500
$100,001 - $500,000 $2.,000
$2,500 plus $100 for each
> $500.000 additional $100.000 in project cost

23



Site Inspection

50% Inspection $500
80% Inspection $500
100% Inspection $500

203. Consultations.

Consultations shall be provided by the Department as requested by the-faeility Facility or as deemed
appropriate by the Department.

SECHON300
ENEORCEMENTACTIONS.

SECTION 300 — ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS

301. General.

When the Department determines that a-faeility Facility is in violation of any statutory provision or
regulation relating to the operation or maintenance of such-faedlity Facility, the Department, upon proper
notice to the Licensee, may-initiate-an-enforcement-actioni-e deny, suspend, or revoke-adicense Licenses,

or-inpese assess a monetary penalty, orboth.
302. Violation Classifications.

A. Violations of standards in this regulation are classified as follows:

41, Class I violations are those thatthe-Department detemminesto present an imminent danger to the

health, safety, or well-being of the persons in the-faeility Facility or a substantial probability that death or
serious physical harm could result therefrom. A physical condition or one or more practices, means,
methods, or operations in use in afaeility F acility may constitute sucha violation. The conditionor practice
constituting a Class I violation shall be abated or eliminated immediately unless a fixed period of time, as
stipulated by the Department, is required for correction. Each day such violation exists after expiration of
the time established by the Department shall be considered a subsequent violation.

B2. Class II violations are those, other than Class T violations, that-the Department-determinesto have

a negative impact on the health, safety, or well-being of persons in thefaeility Facility. The citation of a
Class II violation shall specify the time within which the violation is required to be corrected. Each day
such violation exists after expiration of this time shall be considered a subsequent violation.

€3. Class 11l violations are those that are not classified as Class I or I in thesethis regulations or those

thatare againstthe bestpracﬁces-aﬁ-iﬂteﬁfeted-byuéhegepaﬁmem. The citation of a Class III violation shall

specify the time within which the violation is required to be corrected. Each day such violation exists after
expiration of this time shall be considered a subsequent violation.

BB. The notations, “(I)” or “(IT),” placed within sections of this regulation, indicate those standards are
considered Class I or Il violations if they are not met, respectively. Failure to meet standards not so
annotated are considered Class III violations.

EC. In arrivingata-decisionto-takedetermining an enforcementactions action, the Department-will shall

consider the following factors: i

A a¥a = = a
OO », w - 0 -




“orattens-behavoro

tar cuanh oo illcnnl/ﬂl;nif aetprtios—ovarall ann diticac: T

fReasativalic aniba 1 P
T wIVTTOUTTI oY &LIJJ TIIINTIT u\tllVllj\/L’, VI ONIT \/UIAUJ.IJ.UL‘.AJ’ oy

Gty a
s A ALV VT VI TG
& J

ja g

1. Specific conditions and their impact or potential impact on health, safety, or well -being of the
Patients including, but not limited to:

a. Deficiencies in Medicationmanagement: critical waste water problems; housekeeping, or fire and
life safety-related problems that pose a health threat to the Patients;

b. Power, water, gas, or other utility and/or service outages:

¢. Patients exposed to air temperature extremes that jeopardize their health;

d. Unsafe condition of the building or structure;

e. Indictment of an Administrator for malfeasance or a felony, which by its nature indicates a threat
to the Patients;

f. Direct evidence of Abuse, Neglect, or Exploitation:

g. Lack of food or evidence that the Patients are not being fed properly:

h. No Staff available at the Facility with Patients present;

1. Unsafe procedures and/or treatment being practiced by Staff: (1)

2. Repeated failure of the Licensee or Facility to pay assessed charges for utilities and/or services
resulting in repeated or ongoing threats to terminate the contracted utilities and/or services: (I1)

3. Efforts by the Facility to correct cited violations:

4. Overall conditions of the Facility;

5. History of compliance: and

6. Any other pertinent conditions that may be applicable to current statutes and regulations.

ED. When a-deei-S-i-eﬂ-i-S-lmd-e-te-iﬂa-peseimposing monetary penalties, thefollowingsehedulewillbe used

the Department may invoke South Carolina Code Section
44-7-320(C) to determine the dollar amount or may utilize the following schedule:

E fviolati
: Jard-withi

MONETARY PENALTY RANGES

FREQUENCY CLASS1 CLASSII CLASS I
Ist $ 500-1,500 $300-800 $100-300
2nd 1,000-3,000 500-1,500 300-800

25



FREQUENCY CLASS1 CLASSII CLASSIII
3rd 2,000-5,000 1,000-3,000 500-1,500
4th 5,000 2,000-5,000 1,000-3,000
5th +56865,000 5,000 2,000-5,000
6th 16:6685.000 #:56835,000 5,000

t aetHontalen-by the Penartmaont ma ha appealedin-amranner murcarant fa tha
O ITOCITTUIT TTIsSTIT UJ LIINS UVI}UL VITTOTTLC 1lluJ L~ utltlvuxv\.l IO IIIraITITe T Pujuumll— AR AN ¥ L =g

mistrativeProcedurac Act Saction 1 92 31 0—-etsea—ofthe SC Codal avue 10745 o crmeﬁded-
TTTOCEabIoS At DEC = 5€: T S5 )

1na
YOI Lyt v IO T TOSCT T TO T S OO T oYy Ty

SECHON400

SECTION 400 — POLICIES AND PROCEDURES dmn

actionafthic > ortraesardinecliant trantaiant a
L

eduresaddracsing 1 P
A~ VI SETUI S U T r ot ChHt <carcs

Fa¥ay @anch o
oT S a Ot eSS s CatiryCCoh- 61 tHS

tesshallestablich a fivra naxiad Far
v ondir ot oo oo e PYroaTor

casqible al 1
CO55161€ weet-remea-l-lya-t—eae-h

+

aceuratebrreflectactizal Farilit cmartiom Eacils
1V HVVHL“»ULJ rvIIvvTracrtoar ADI\JIIAI,J \.Il.l\olblll\}ll. L UACTIT

rhan
Foe-a

tetes-and-procedurac challl
TresaHa-proeeare S Ssharb

(]

=

tton—which +
tt

G aoraond £ et
o WiHeH+ 5 t

AECTO—ToO—1med

a
¢

g

A. The Facility shall maintain and adhere to written policies and procedures addressing the manner in
which the requirements of this regulation shall be met. The Facility shall be in full compliance with the
policies and procedures.

B. The written policies and procedures shall include the following:

1. Staffing and training:

2. Reporting incidents, accidents, reportable diseases, closure and ZEero census;

3. Patient records;

4. Admission and Discharge:

5. Patient care, treatment, and Services;

6. Medication management:

7. Maintenance including doors, windows, heating, ventilation, air conditioning, fire alamm, electrical,
mechanical, plumbing, and for all cquipment;

8. Infection control and housekeeping:

26



9. Quality Improvement Program: and

10. Fire Prevention:;

C. The Facility shall establish a time period for review, not to exceed two (2) years, of all policies and
procedures, and such reviews shall be documented and signed by the Administrator. All policies and
procedures shall be accessible to Facility staff, printed or electronically, at all times.

SECHON500

AR
SECTION 500 — STAFF AND TRAINING

501. General (IT).

A. Appropratestaff/volunteers The Facility shall develop and implement policies and procedures to

provide for appropriate Staff and/or Volunteers in numbers and trainin g shallbe-provided-to suit the needs
and condition of the elientsPatients and meet the demands of effective emergency on-site action that might
arise. Trainingrequirements/qualifications for the tasks each performs shall be in compliance with all local,

state, and federal laws, and current professional organizational standards. Direet-carestaff-members!

volunteers-ofthafaciliti chall ot hatm o priorcodetion-ortladnocontoct frnala ~nnbam 1
Yy UIRTMVUTI OT 1T lu\/llll,] o SHIRITTITOT IOV O T }ll T oIV ICTtIrorror l.ll\lu LITUCOTITNATT \.ll\ll\.l CUTITVIT

P s 2 3
thatmaitainresistriec chanld Leancad /oortifiad mdividuals be considerad ac arnlotasc of tha aels
CrET TR R T e e s OGO SRS S e CerHTe R arH U be-consideradas-e Hproyees-ertnetachity-

B There challba o aualifiad adimasteatarazailabla within o reaseonable-timennd dictaneca 1m cedar o

A7, TIIVTC I arrov-or \1““1141\/“ GUIITITITITOTOT o0 Y Aoy oo LWV ITUITTRUOIUTITIIC YT OTIWAIT O CUTIT IOV O
apprepratelmanace-tha davto dov onaratiom of ik o facilite Tha adminictratar chall avamica adoarnant
Mt}yluyllubvl] TITAITU S VLI uu-y 124 WJ \JIJ\IASAI.LJUAA, LITTITV Au\tll;t]. T IV OOITIHI TR O toT JITOTT A \\IL\/AUUJ Mu&\/lllm‘c
that reflacte that c/ha ic entathand-emetionalliccanabhlo of mantine tha restaonsibilittac  anvaluad a
HIQTrTVIT I OOy tITot LI ILWY lll\rllbull.] T UALJ\JLAUA).UI.I.J vut}uul\a I LIAUUNILLS LTS AUUIJVLLULULJJI/LVU IITVOTYCOT Iy

operateafacilitrto-ancurathat it ic t1a e omam linm oo with-thesaereoulationceaad chall dasmacnateata adeanata
valullll& o Lu\/AlJLJ W AVTIOUT U tIIarIvC LY 11T UULI]IJL].UU.A\/V VY IUITUITOCAOG LUEmHllULlJ, WIS TIOTTOCTIIOTIYTT L5215 uuv\iuuw

nad atthe miniranrm cta £f vamiiie
cethot e HHmR - statHreq
a a

EB. Fhere-The Facility shall-be maintain accurate informationsnaintained regarding all-sta#f Staff and/or
velunteers Volunteers of thefaeility Facility-te-nehude-. The documentation shall include at least cument

address, phone number, health and work/ and/or training background, as well as current information, Adl
The Facility shall ensure all employees-shallbe are assigned certain duties and responsibilities that shall be
in writing and in accordance with the individual s capability. (II)

GC. When ea
source other than

: a Facility engages a
rmally provided by the Facility, the Facility shall
es how and when the

. . . .
the Facility to provide services no

maintain documentation of the written agreement with the entity-source that describ

services are to be provided-s




3 olanteers-providinethe ey are-gualified-and-supervised perkr, the exact services to be
provided, andthatthese services are to be provided by qualified individuals . The entity-with-whema-faeility
baswritten-agreementsource shall comply with this regulation in regard to-ekient Patient care, treatiment

services, and rights.

D. The Facility shall maintain documentation to ensure the Facility meets staffing requirements in
Sections 503, 504, and 505.

502. Administrator (I1).

A. Each Facility shall have a full-time Administrator who is responsible for the overall management and
operation of the Facility and has at least a bachelor’s degreein a related field.

B. A Staff member shall be designated by name or position, in writing, to act in the absence of the
Administrator, for example, a listing of the lines of authority by position title, including the names of the
mdividuals filling these positions.

503. Staffing for Residential Facilities (D).

A All Sta.ff members and/or Volunteers on duty shall be present, awake. and dressed at all times when
Patients are presentin the Facility. All Staff members and/or Volunteers shall know how to respond to
Patient needs and emergencies.

B. Additional Staff shall be provided if it is determined that the minimum Staff requirements are
inadequate to provide appropriate services and supervision to the Patients of a Facility.

C. Staffing for Residential Treatment Pro orams.

1. The number of Staff members that shall be maintained in all Facilities:

a. In each building, there shall be at least one (1) Staff member and/or Volunteer on duty for each
ten (10) Patients or fraction thereof present from 7:00 am until 7:00p.m.

b. In each building, there shall be at least one (1) Staff member and/or Volunteer foreach twenty
(20) Patients or fraction thereof from 7:00 p.m. until 7:00 a.m.

2. The Facility shall have at least one (1) Physician available during Facility operatin g hours, either in
person or by telephone for consultation and for emergencies.

D. Staffing for Withdrawal Management Programs.

1. In each building, there shall be at least one (1) Direct Care or Counselor Staff member for each ten
(10) Patients or fraction thereof on duty at all times.

2. In Residential Facilities providinge Medical Withdrawal Management, Staff members and
Volunteers shall be under the general supervision of a Physician or registered nurse: a Physician, Licensed
Nurse, or other Authorized Healthcare Provider shall be present at all times.

505. Staffing for Opioid Treatment Programs (D).

28



A. The Opioid Treatment Program Physician shall have authority over all medical aspects of care and
make treatment decisions in consultation with treatment Staff consistent with the needs of the Patient,
clinical protocols, and research findings. The Facility shall have at least one (1) Physician available during
dosing and Facility operating hours, either in person or by telephone for consultation and for emergencies.

B. The Facility shall have a pharmacist or other person licensed to dispense Opioid Treatment Program
Medications pursuant to the South Carolina Code of Laws who is responsible for dispensing the amounts
of Opioid Treatment Program Medications administered and shall record and countersign all changes in
dosing schedules.

C. The Facility shall have one (1) Licensed Nursepresentatalltimes Medicationsare being administered
to Patients.

D. The Opioid Treatment Program shall have a least one (1) full-time counselor on staff for every fifty
(50) Patients or fraction thereof. Counselors shall be qualified as specified in Section 508.

5026. Inservice Training (I1).

A. All Facilities shall provide Staff and Volunteers the necessary training to perform the duties for which
they are responsible in an effective manner. The Facility shall require all Staff members and Volunteers to
complete the necessary training to perform their duties and responsibilities. The F acility shall document all
in-service training. Staff training shall be signed and dated by the individual providing the training and the
person receiving the training. The signature for the individual providing the training may be omitted for

online training,

AB. In—allfaeilities;All Facilities shall provide the following training shall-be—provided to all
statFvelunteers Staff and Volunteers—an e-chients-inResidential tre progrant-facilities whe

i#g prior to Patient contact and at a frequency as

determined by the Facility, but at least annually:

1. The nature of aleoheland otherdrugaddietion-Substance Use Disorder, complications of-addietions
Chemical Dependency, and withdrawal symptoms.

2. Confidentiality of-elieat Patient information and records; and the protection of-elient Patient rights.

BC.In+

B
ra-gtaffualimtaare meiae fo
AW IO TIT VOoOramrceonry tll AL O

actandatafre 24 hefs by asta ally- All Residential Facilities
shall provide the following trainin g to all Staff and Volunteers prior to Patient contact and at a frequency

=
<

poamo w71 o foae o
AOUAAUJ v IO tuyvu,

1. Cardio-pulmonary resuscitation to ensure that there is at least one (1) certified individual present

when-elients Patients are in the-faeility Faciliﬂ-(éeteaéﬁeaﬂeﬁ-ﬁaelh&es-eﬁ].y);

2. Basic first-aid to include emergency procedures as well as procedures to manage and/or care for
minor accidents or injuries;

3. Procedures for checking and recording vital signs (for-these-facilities-to-which applicable);

4. Management/care of persons with contagious and/or communicable disease—e-g—hepatitis;

b >

29



5. Medication management-tferthesefaeilities-to-which-applicable);
6. Use of restraints and seclusion (éeﬁe*kﬁe-&&eﬂ—ﬁaﬁhﬂes—efﬂyﬁ-ﬂapphﬁme},
7. Seizure-mﬂﬂﬂgemeﬂt-(ée%e*iﬁe&ﬁea-ﬁaeiﬁﬁes_eﬂgg response training; and

blood-andmiavlbe ot ricl thaca OSHA
29 UITUOTOTICr ALAMJ L"4A = * 2 n LILJA\’ LIV

8 Eor-thocse whace cara farclianto nany, mvolive caontact vt
- TOTITooCHY T OO TG 1T O -CHEe RS oy Iy orv-C-Cotdc W1t

standards regarding bloodborne pathogens,

D. All Opioid Treatment Programs shall provide opioid Medication treatment training to all Staff and
Volunteers prior to Patient contact and at a frequency as determined by the Facility, but at least annually.

CE.

. nan
B8 &
ofthe facilibr cnecific dutice and responsibilitiesof tha ata £fizaliintonre amnd clhiant neada H Smff
A S > ¢y =y LMDAAALJ’ uyuv;;xv MULINV I OTICT LUUIJV‘.LULUL]ILLVU VATV Ot Y VU&MAAI\/\/AU, WL UnvITT oot

members and Volunteers shall have documented orientation to the purpose and environment of the Facility
within twenty-four (24) hours of their first day on the job in the Facility.

5037. Health Status (I).

A. All-staff Staff and-velunteers Volunteers who have contact with-ehents Patients, including food service
staff Staff and /ArelunteersVolunteers, shall have a-health Health-assessment Assessment, as defined in
Section 101.X, within twelve (12) months prior to initial-elient Patient contact. The-health Health
assessment Assessment shall include tuberculin skin testing as described in Sections +462-and14031702.

B. H-a-staffmemberFor Staff members and/or vehsnteerVolunteers is-working at multiple-faeilities
Facilities operated by the sameJicensee Licensee,eopies the documented-efrecerds-for TB-tuberculosis
i Health-assessment Assessment shall be-aeeeptable accessible at
eachfaetlity Facility, providedthat the information is in compliance with this regulation. Forany-otherstaff

membeaervalimtenr a0 cnnv ot tha TB ceraaninoracard chall secantablanraindad tha coraanina had haoin
Tt v orontot e o P Y- o o156 UM A TOCOTO- 5T Be ToTeptaoriCproviae aHe-56+ T S Aot

5048. Counselors (IT).

A. Each-aeility Facility shall have at least one (1)staff Staff-eounselor Counselor who is fully-certified

— T IS Y e

or licensed. All non-certified and/or licensed-counseloss Counselors shall be under the direct supervision
ton-sitey of-a an on-site fully-certified/ or licensed Counselor. ' g

B. Staff and Volunteers providing clinical counseling services shall have one (1) of the following

qualifications:
1. Eerdireetelientservices Certification:

a. Ceﬂification‘aﬁ—ﬂ_eﬁﬁ%%guﬁﬁ%eﬁeh&deﬁeﬁem_emw under the system
administered by the-S€ South Carolina Association of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors SCAADACY
Certification Commission, or currently engaged, €as verified and documented in the individual’s personnel
file), in the SCAABAC South Carolina Association of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors certification
process that s to be completed within a three {3)-year period from date of hire as a-counselos Counselor;
or

30



b. Certification as an-addictions-counselor a Counselor by:
(1) The National Association of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors-NAABAC);
(2) An International Certification Reciprocity Consortium-approved certification board; or

(3) Any other-S€ South Carolina Department of Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Services
approved credentialing/ or certification association or commission ;or

e2. Licensedas-alicensure:
tha. Licensed as a Psychiatrist by the-S€ South Carolina Board of Medical Examiners;
£2b. Licensed as a Psychologist by the-S€ South Carolina Board of Examiners in Psychology;
63Jc. Licensed as a Social worker by the-S€ South Carolina Board of Social Work Examiners; or
¢hd. Licensed as a_Counselor or therapist by the
i He— i tsts South Carolina Board of Examiners for
Licensure of Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists, Addiction Counselors and

Psycho-Educational Specialists, pursuant to Section 40-75 -30, of the-S€ South Carolina Code of Laws,
19765-as-amended.; or

3. Licensure as a Licensed Addiction Counselor Associate by the South Carolina Board of Examiners
for Licensure of Professional Counselors, Marriage and Family Therapists, Addiction Counselors and
Psycho-Educational Specialists, pursuant to Section 40-75-3 0, of the South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976,
under appropriate supervision. Full licensure must be completed within a three (3)-year period from date
of hire as a Counselor.

2C. Foreounselors Counselors In-nareetic-treatmentprograms- INTP) Opioid Treatment Pro grams shall

have one (1) of the following qualifications:

#]. Any of'the certifications/ or licensures in-S04A-1 -508.B above; or

b2. The American Academy of Health Care Providers in the Addictive Disorders; or

3. The National Board for Certified Counselors; or

d4. Any other equivalent, nationally-recognized, and-@BAOBAS) South Carolina Department of

Alcohol and Other Drug Abuse Services-approved association or accrediting body that includes similar
competency-based testing, supervision, educational, and substantial experience.

3D. In faeilitiesFacilities providing prevention services, eounselorsCounselors shall have one (1) of

the following qualiﬁcations-Ferfe*‘eﬂﬁeﬂ—sewwes—whea-pfeHded.

al. Certification by the-S€ South Carolina Association of Prevention Professionals and Advocates
as a Prevention Professional or Senior Prevention Professional; or

b2. In-process of becoming certified as a Prevention Professional. This certification shall be
achieved within a thirty-six (336)-month period of time from the date of hire as a prevention Counselor.

31



BE. Any individual employed as a direct-elient Patient Counselor NFR Opioid Treatment Program
Counselor, or prevention services-eounselos professional, to include contracted Staff, who does not obtain
his{_or her certification/ or licensing within the above time-periods, shall cease providing counseling
services until that certification/ or_ licensing status is achieved.

E. The Facility shall verify and maintain documentation of each Counselor’s qualifications in the
individual’s Staff record.

SECHON-600

REPORTING-
SECTION 600 — REPORTING

601. Accidents and Incidents (II).

A. The heensee-Facility shallrepert maintain a record of each accident and/or incident, including usage
of mechanical and/or physical restraints. involvin ¢ Patients, Staff members or Volunteers, occurrin g atin

thefaeility Facility or on the Facility grounds Reperis

submittadto-thae DNanartniant chall contan-onlr facilibr v ama Leancanunibar timma afacetdentiineidant
SUUTITICIC O T CaAINS U\JIJML UITVIICOTIONTY WUTITOTIT UAAAJ . Luvllll] AL“LL]U, 1ICOTIIOC l‘.ulllu\ul, LJ t)\d VImaTOUTAOOTIvz; LllUl\Jm‘;

date-of-accidantlineidant oeeurred—umberof Paticntc/alicmic directhirdnrad-ar affactad Patiant/aliant
MV OUT OOoCTTITOU IV ITTOTCIVTTU uvvmxvu, IIWIITOUCTOT T ety SELINVTICLY ullthl] LAAJuAuu Ay MALUUU\J“, A TIvVITU O

cordidentification nimalbar Patientlclhantacanndcay sumberofotaffdiracthzininrad aratfan

3 a ca L1
oTUTOuITtTIeTTIion- o roer s I ATCTIT OTIONT oY ot U AT o oO1-5taH e ST T aTUaoT ull‘vvmd?

Al
¥

M o
mroaItto

rerpaldnvectication racilic if CARSe-HHchoWR—a—briaf-deccrintiam ~f tha aentdont/inag
e Iy S S o Fe SHHS—H—Ga S e-URIRo L EohioTaestHpHOn- o the—aceident A
locationwwhera aceiread nmd Heatimentofintures—Theranartratainad ki thefaeilite in addition o tha
T YUITOUTIT vWwIIOT O vvvulluu, “*irnrvaua o T TIcT o 11T HITWLY LTI lvl_l\.llt AWIETTITVCT UJ IS LuUllLbJ y T @OTTIroTro—o1e
: rtedto-the Denartniant chall ontain: S of Patiantio) /n]iomis G ff g d /e iaig )
POt Cepartient-saat 151

P namac A o)
OUTI I o i oy o AHR IR ST eI o S ot o h a6 A EaCy Y
o

' Patientlelient ctaff nmd/ar o itae Recordaafallaceidantc

ociatadwuith an
TINTIT \Jll\dlj.l,, uluLL, QIO v IO ANWCUTOS OUOT OIT UVCTUCTILY

acg
HTasSovTTatC Oy i CaCit

thity for-ten-(16) The Facility shall retain all do cumented incidents
reported pursuant to this section six (6) years after the patientPatient stops receiving services at the

faeilityFacility.

B. The-licensees Facility shall report each-accidentand/orincidentthe following types of incidents
o ousinfarto the next of kin efor parbyrresponsible foreach-affected
mdividualparty at the earliest practicable hour, not exceeding twenty-four (24) hours of the incident. The
heenseeFacility shall aetify report the following types of incidents to the Department immediately, not to
exceed twenty-four (24) hours, via telephone-email orfaesimilethe Department’s electronic reporting
system or as otherwise determined by the Department. :H*e-heeﬂ'see-s-haﬂ—subfmt—ﬁepeﬁ-eﬂmemﬂsee_s
Hrvestigation-of-the-aceident andlorincident to-the Bepartment-within-five-(5) days- Aceidents-andlor

incidents requiring reporting include, but are not limited to-

1. Confirmed or Suspected Abuse, Ne glect or Exploitation (Contismed) against a Patient by Facility
Staff;

52. Ceiminalevent-Crimes committed a gainst elient-Patients;

32



63. Death; For Residential Facilities, any Patient’s death in the Facility or on the Facility grounds: for
Opioid Treatment Programs, any Patient’s death re gardless of location

4. Overdose reversal (naloxone):

75. Elopement (Residential Facility only):

96. Bone Eracturefracture efbene-or joint fracture:
+87. Hospitalization as a result of accident and/or incident;

+H-8. Medication Error;

+59. Attempted Suicide; and

160. Use Severe injury involving use of-physieal restraints.

C. The Facility shall submit a separate written investigation report within five ( 5)days of every incident
required to be immediately reported to the Department pursuant to Section 601.B via the Department’s
electronic reporting system or as otherwise determined by the Department. Reports submitted to the
Department shall contain only: Facility name, License number, type of accident and/orincident, the date of
accident and/or incident occurred, number of Patients directly injured or affected, Patient medical record
identification number, Patient age and sex, number of Staff directly injured or affected, number of visitors
directly injured or affected, witness(es) name(s). identified cause of accident and/or incident, intemal
investigation results if cause unknown, a brief description of the accident and/or incident including location
where occurred, and treatment of mnjuries.

602. Fire/ and Disasters (II).

A. The BepastmentFacility’s Administrator or his or her designee shall-be-netified-immediately n tify
the Department immediately via telephone, e-mail, or faxregarding of any fire in thefaeility F acility;-and
The Facility shall submit follewed-by a complete written report to include fire reportsif-anys to-be
submitted within a time-period determined by the-faeility Facility, but not to exceed-22 forty-cight (48)

hours from the occurrence of the fire.

B. The Facility’s Administrator, or his or her designee, shall notify the Department immediately of -Any
any natural disaster or fire; that requires displacement of the-elients Patients, or jeopardizes or potentially
jeopardizes the safety of the-elients Patients; i
tmmediately;. The Facility shall submit followedby a complete written report-which  that includes the fire
report from the local fire department; e #ted within a time-period as determined by the
faeility Facility, but not to exceed-72 forty-eight (4 &) hours.

603. Communicable Diseases and Animal Bites ).

33



Ad The Facility shall report all cases of discases and animal bites that are required to be reported to the

appropriate county health department sheltbe-aecomplished-in accordance with R.61 -20, Communicable
Diseases.

604. Administrator Change,

The Licensee shall notify the Department via email, or a means as otherwise determined by the Department
within seventy-two (72) hours of any change in Administrator status. The-Department Licensee shall-be
notitied provide the Department in writing-by—the-ticensee within ten (10) days-efany—ehanse-in

HH : ¢ ' HiH the name of the newly-appointed individual-and
Administrator and the effective date of the appointment.

605. Joint Annual Report.

Residential Facilities;—e-s—medical - providing a Medical detexifieation-Withdrawal Management
Program and Outpatient Facilities providing an Opioid Treatment Program, i &

D s . ad Discician ta e “Taint A

“Joint Annual Report” to the South Carolina Revenue and

time-period specitfied by-thatDivisien the Department.

606. Accounting of Controlled Substances (D).

Any faeilityFacility registered with the Department’s Bureau of Drug Control and the LAated
Statesfederal Drug Enforcement Agency shall report any theft or loss of Controlled Substances to local law
enforcement and to the Department’s Bureau of Drug Control within-five-dass seventy-two (72) hours of
the discovery of the loss and/or theft. Any-faeility Facility permitted by the-SC South Carolina Board of
Pharmacy shall report the loss or theft of drugs or devices in accordance with Section 40-43-91 of the-S&
South Carolina Code of Laws.

o c v C - Hoy - - - - 3 -n v Ty
thanthe followrina vasl-dass ofthe cireumctancac racarding tha emersenevnlacemant and tha o oo,
tH cCHemtandtne ussre-ga{e

IO o oTro-vyv it vy o \~ 3 TV I oaTioto ety =iz a2 20y ISR Oy pract T

6087. Facility Closure.

A. Prior to the permanent closure of a-faeility Facility, the-Department Licensee shall-benetified notify
the Department in writing of the intent to close and the effective closure date. Within ten (10) days of the
closure, the-faeility Facility shall notify the Department of the provisions for the maintenance ofthe records,
and-the identification of: I : those Patients displaced, the relocated site, and
the dates. On the date of closure, thedicense License shall be returned to the Department.

B. In instances where a-faeility Facility temporarily closes, the-Bepartment Licensee shall-be-given

notify the Department in writing within fifteen
(15) calendar days prior to temporary closure. In the event of temporary closure dueto an emergency, the
Facility shall notify the Department within twenty-four (24) hours of the closure via telephone, email, or
fax. Ataminimum this notification shall include, butnotbe limited to: the reason for the temporary closure,
the location where the-clients Patients have been _and/or will be transferred-(24-hourfaeilit-only), the
manner in which the records are being stored, and the anticipated date forre -opening.-FheDepartmentshall

34



1dernnon-annroaneiot o ntin oy
rae-Hpeonapproprat PeCHRS+

orto4s re—onaning If da
ortohSTe-epemng—+

rexiiew—tha naraco:
eview e ecesst

[
q

T

i ch

-
s
[}
N
fa b}

F &

mante at tha f1oq o

of that
LTI T e IO IIaT

A
<

C. The Department shall consider, upon appropriate review, the necessity of mspecting and determining
the applicability of current construction standards of the Facility prior to its reopening. If the Facility is
closed for a period longer than one (1) year, and there is a desire to re-open, the Facility shall re-apply to
the Department for licensure andshall be subjectto all licensing requirements at the time of thatapplication,
including construction-related requirements for a new Facility.

609608. Zero Census.

In instances when there have been no-elients Patients in a-faeility Facility for any reason for a period of

—_—

ninety (90) days or moreforanyreason, the-faeility Facility shall notify the Department in writing that

there have beenno admissions, no later than the one hundredth (100™) calendar day following the date of
departureof the last active-elient Patient. Atthe time of thatnotification, the Department-will shall consider,
upon appropriate review of the situation, the necessity of inspecting the-faeility: Facility prior to any new
and/or readmissions to the-faeility F acility. In the event the-faeility: F acility is at zero census or temporarily
closed, the-licensee Licensee is still required to apply and pay the licensing fee to keep the License active.
If thefaeility Facility has no-elients Patients for a period longer than one (1) year; and there is a desire to
admita-elient Patient, the facility F acility shall re-apply to the Department for licensure and shall be subject
to all licensing requirements at the time of that application, including construction-related requirements for

a new faeility Facility.
SECTHON 700

CHENTRECORDS-
SECTION 700 - PATIENT RECORDS

701. Content (II).

A. The-faeility Facility shall initiate and maintain a<client Patient record for every individual screened
assessed and/or treated. The record shall contain sufficient information to identify the-elient Patient and the
agency and/or person responsible for each-elient Patient, support the diagnosis, Justify the treatment, and
describe the response and/or reaction to treatment. The record contents shall also include the provisions for
release of information,-elient Patient rights, consent for treatment (approval by parent and/or guardian of
ehient_Patient),—medieations Medications prescribed and administered, and diet (Z4-heurResidential
Facilities only), documentation of the course and results, and promote continuity of treatment among
treatment providers, consistent with acceptable standards of practice. In-faeilities Facilities providing
services for methersParents with children, the name and age of each child shall be maintained in the-faeility
Facility. All entries shall be written legibly in ink-e#, typed, or electronic media, and signed and dated or
documented in the electronic medical record.

B. If the Facility permits any portion of a Patient’s record to be generated by electronic or optical means,
there shall be policies and procedures to prohibit the use or authentication by unauthorized users.

BC. Specific entries and documentation shall include at a minimums-ifapplicable:;

1. Consultations by Physicians or other-suthorized-healtheare-providess Authorized Healthcare

Providers;

35



2. Signed and dated-Osdesrs orders and recommendations for all-medication Medication, care,

treatment-services, proeedures-and diet (Residential Facilities only) from Physicians or other-autherized
healtheareproviders Authorized Healthcare Providers, which shall be completed prior to, or at the time of

admission, and subsequently, as warranted; (1)

nupalaor £

calcare—to-inelidatha narmaand talon
e+ Ao

armersancimadi anl o
v svIT ymeaicar cares o e detie-nane-an o

o

3. Intake screening and initial physical assessment completed by the nurse or Counselor;

4. A signed and dated original consent for treatment; (1)

5. The report of the mental status examination and other mental health assessments as defined in
Section 101.G. as appropriate:

6. Notes of counseling sessions and any other changes in the Patient’s mental and physical condition;
and

7. Medication management and administration, and treatment records.

8. Discharge summary, completed within a time-period as determined by the Facility, but no later than
three (3) business days, and shall include at minimum:

a. Time and circumstances of Discharge or transfer, including condition at Discharge or transfer, or

death; and

b. The recommendations and arrangements for further treatments, includin g Aftercare.

C\\ath the excentiop-ofthoseecnrolled im nrimarilsy edueationalrelated srocrame aach eclhenttoinchide
L3 s ~ T Pr ) AEa~s—g

VWP TTTOIT O T OOy T O a1t

AT y oo cottorm—rerated Prysrumsoaor e, —t08-1hHeT

C . o
5 S = v
7 tphaseineludine adivnet cinnart o ariea reeds-and-otheranacialneade Tha mlom sl
LIT tllluuv Allvlu\&lll& I-l.\lJ IV uu}ll}\lll DLV TOVTTICUARY aOrnIcr ottt LJI.’ WV IATr TITVOOY T I yLHAL AARS: o
aoia a

1 et atedintha devaloanmant
T+ t are-h-e-aeverepment

eclientandinrinaary A
e aReprnary-co

36



Iseharca-ortirnnofar 23 Al diss fn
lﬂvllulé\g il ullOL\IL’ AINVTOXTTIT, OIT

¢
&£
=
q
[en
a
2
9
&
g
.
q
q
/)
P

D. Electronic signatures may be used in the Patient record if they are in accordance with applicable laws
and regulations, and require a signature. Electronic authorization shall be limited to a unique identifier
(confidential code) used only by the individual making the entry to preclude the improper or unauthorized
use of any electronic signature

702 Authentication oL Si 1o,

aca antria a-cliantracard tha
LR A1V VITOTOS T tIre I TITTVOUOTOTITe

b
H
@

wthenticationchall ba dafinad b the forilit, A sz antes
e HTOHO I I oC-GeHne e Dy e rachityAy-entry

&
q

mPHer—sceparated—ionatiira cndac clhall amcs

B __Eascilitiac aman Z1vy e o o ra
o ot gtiiratct et a e oG5S5 r—eRse

a 0
VTSI pro y i 2—¢

b

702. Screening (I).

A. The Facility shall have written protocols for screening individuals presenting for admission. The
Facility shall maintain documentation of the rationale for the denial of admission and referral of the
individual as applicable.

B. All screening shall be documented for each individual presenting to the Facility.

C. For Facilities providing a Medical Withdrawal Management Program, the Intake screening shall be
conducted by a Physician or other Authorized Healthcare Provider to determine the nced for medical
services or referral for serious medical complications.

D. For Facilities providing Social Withdrawal Management, the Intake screening shall be provided by
Staff or Volunteers trained to monitor the Patient’s physical condition.

E. For Facilities providing an Opioid Treatment Pro gram, screening shall include:

1. Evidence of tolerance to an opioid:

2. History of physiological dependence for at least one (1) year prior to_admission. The Opioid
Treatment Program Physician may waive the one (1)-year history of dependence when the Patient seeking
admission meets one (1) of the following criteria:

a. The Patient has been recently released from a penal or chronic care Facility with a high risk of
relapse;

b. The Patient has been previously treated and is at risk of relapse;

¢. The Patient is pregnant and does not exhibit objective signs of opioid withdrawal or physiological

dependence;

37



3. Evidence of multiple and daily self-administration of an opioid;

4. Reasonable attempts to confirm that the applicant is not enrolled in one (1) or more other Opioid
Treatments Programs:

5. Controlled Substance history to determine dependence on opium, morphine, heroin, or any
derivative or synthetic controlled substance of that group. The substance history shall include:

a. Controlled Substance(s) utilized:

b. Frequency of use:

¢. Amount utilized:

d. Duration of use:

¢. Age when first utilized:

f. Route of administration:

£ Previous treatment(s):

h. Unsuccessful efforts to control use; and

1. Inappropriate use of prescribed opioids.

703. Assessment for Residential Treatment Programs (II).

A written assessment of the Patient in accordance with Section 101.G shall be conducted by a designated
Counselor as evidenced by his or her signature and date within a time-period determined by the F acility,
but no later than five (5) business days after admission.

704. Assessment for Withdrawal Management Programs (II).

A written clinical Assessment of the Patient completed by a Licensed Nurse as evidenced by his or her
signature and date in accordance with Section 101.G shall be conducted prior to the delivery of treatment.
The clinical Assessment shall include a review of the Patient’s Controlled Substance misuse/usage and
treatment history.

705. Bio-Psycho-Social Assessment for Opioid Treatment Program (II).

A comprehensive Bio-Psycho-Social Assessment shall be completed by the Patient’s primary Counselor
once the Patient is stabilized but not later than thirty (30) calendar days following admission. The
Assessment shall include:

A. A description of the historical course of the Chemical Dependence to include substances of misuse
such as alcohol and tobacco, amount, frequency of use, duration, potency, and method of administration,
previous withdrawal from Opioid Treatment Program Medication and/or treatment attempts, and any
psychological or social complication.

38



B. A health history regarding chronic or acute medical conditions, such as HIV, STDs, hepatitis (B, C,
D). TB, diabetes, anemia, sickle cell trait pregnancy, chronic pulmonary diseases, and renal discases,

C. Information related to the family of the Patient.

706. Individual Plan of Care (1LI).

The Facility shall develop an Individual Plan of Care with participation by the Patient or responsible
party and Interdisciplinary Team as evidenced by their signatures and dates. The Individual Plan of Care
shall contain specific goal-related objectives based on the needs of the Patient as identified during the
Assessment phase, including adjunct support service needs and other special needs. The Individual Plan of
Care shall also include the methods and strategies for achieving these objectives and meeting these needs
in measurable terms with expected achievement dates. The type and frequency of counseling, as well as
Counselor assignment, shall be included. The criteria for terminating specified interventions shall be
included in the Individual Plan of Care. Individual Plan of Care shall be reviewed on a periodic basis as
determined by the Facility and/or revised as changes in Patient needs occur.

A. In Residential Treatment Programs, an Individual Plan of Care shall be completed no later than seven
(7) calendardays after admission.

B. For a Residential Facility offering a Withdrawal Management Program, an Individual Plan of Care
shall be completed for supervised withdrawal within a time-period determined by the F acility’s policies
and procedures, but no later than seven (7) business days after admission.

707. Individual Plan of Care for Opioid Treatment Program (11).

A. The Facility shall develop and document an Individual Plan of Care within thirty (30) calendar days
of admission with participation by the Patient and the primary Counselor.

B. The primary Counselor shall review the Patient progress in treatment and accomplishment of
Individual Plan of Care goals not less than cvery ninety (90) calendar days during the first year of treatment
and every six (6) months thereafter. The Counselor and Patient or responsible party shall sign and date any

changes.
7038. Record Maintenance,

A. The-heensee Licensee shall provide accommodations, space, supplies, and equipment-adeguate for
the protection,and storage, and maintenance of-eliesnt Patient records. Patient records shall be stored in an
organized manner.

B. The-elient Patientrecordis confidential and mayshall bemadeavailable only to individuals authorized
by the faeility-Facility and in accordance with local, state, and federal laws, codes, and regulations. The
. . - . . (I1)

rseoriasenevtowhich tha i fararatinm o inhad
TIonra st he yto-wichhre- ieornationdsto-be-d

rod-oftinaa

4-Astipulatignthat tha ~omc ot £o dioad Brets-onlbforacnacifiadaa By
1014 T SponoaoHme;

Fa¥al Q O 1
T rtpaTaT AT T oTH O T TOT Oy CoSttHe-1s CHI IO pe e

39



3 >

C. The Facility shall maintain Reeerdsrecords generated by organizations or individuals contracted by

the faeilibrFacility for care or sewicesﬁmmﬂme%%@hm

admitted-the client,

ED. Upon diseharge-Discharge of a-client Patient, the record shall be completed-and-filed-in—an

inaetivelclosedfile within'ﬂ-ﬁme-peﬂed-ée%emmed-by#re—faa%buﬁmqe.e*eeed thirty (30) calendar
days; and filed in an inactive or closed file shallbe-maintained by the-Heensee Licensee.

—_——

EE. Records of adult elients-Patients may be destroyed after six (6) years following disekarge-Discharge
of the-elient Patient. Records of miness-Minors shall be retained for six (6) years or until majority,
whichever period of time is greater. Other regulation-required documents, e.g., medieation-Medication
destruction, fire drills, etc., shall be retained for at least twelve (12) months or since the last the-Department

generalinspeetion routine Inspection, whichever is the longer period.

F. Records of current Patients are the property of the Facility and shall be maintained at the Facility and
shall not be removed without court order.

G. In the event of change of ownership, all active elient-Patient records or copies of active elientPatient
records shall be transferred to the new owner(s).

amevedaathentcant nrdar
wITIOV VO YW ITI T OO TotTtrT UTONT

H. Recordsofcliante aratha nronartuntilha facilit: and rany
- INCOUTOY OT IO TIT TOTre LT IJLUIJ\/L I,J T UITV ‘.u\dlllt] LALINT LLJuJ LIV

o]

EXCEPHON-When a elieat-Patient transfers from one licensed faetlity-Facility to another within the
provider network (samedicensee Licensee) the original record may follow the-elient Patient; the sending

faeility-Facility shall maintain documentation of the elientls-Patient’s transter/diseharge-transfer and/or
Discharge dates and identification information.

SECTION 800 — ADMISSION (T)

801. General.

Individuals seeking admission shall be identified as appropriate forthe level of care or services, treatment,
or procedures offered. The Facility shall establish admission criteria that are consistently applied and
comply with state and federal lawsand regulations. The Facility shall admit only those persons whose needs
can be met within the accommodations and services provided by the Facility.

802. Residential Facilities.

A. Residential Facilities shall not admit any person who, because of acute mental illness or Intoxication,
presents an immediate threat of harm to him orherself and/or others

B. Parental consent shall be obtained for all persons under eighteen (18) years of age priorto admission
to a Residential Facility. If any court of competent jurisdiction declares a person under eighteen (18) vears
of age an emancipated Minor, such person may be admitted to the Facility without parental consent.

40



C. Residential Treatment Programs shall not admit any person needing Withdrawal Management
services, hospitalization, or nursing home care.

D. Withdrawal Management Pro grams.

1. Appropriate admission to a F acility providing Withdrawal Management shall be determined by a
licensed or certified Counselor and subsequently shall be authorized by a Physician or other Authorized
Healthcare Provider in accordance with Section 1100,

2. Withdrawal Management Programs shall not admit any person needing hospitalization, Residential
Treatment Program, or nursing home care.

3. Parental consent shall be obtained forall personsunder eighteen (18) years of age prior to admission
to a Residential Treatment Program. If any court of competent jurisdiction declares a person under eighteen
(18) years of age an emancipated Minor, then such person may be admitted to the program without parental
consent.

803. Opioid Treatment Programs.

A. Persons shall not be admitted to the Opioid Treatment Program to receive opioids for pain
management only. Appropriate referrals by the Opioid Treatment Program Physician shall be made as
necessary, €.g., pain management specialist.

B. No person under cighteen (18) years of age shall be admitted to an Opioid Treatment Program unless
aparent, legal guardian, or responsible adult consents in writing to such treatment.

SECTION-806

SECTION 900 — PATIENT CARE, TREATMENT, AND SERVICES

801901. General-db.

A-~Indiaduals caelcina admiccinn chall ho identified as annranriate for tho
L3, ITICT Y IO TrarTyYy UUUA\.LLL& UUTITTI IO OTI O I oe TUGTIITIT IV TOY ul.lyxuyxxuu.« AUVTRITW

es-offered—Thefacilitrchall actahlich admission-critaria th
7] Y OUTTICTOUCO T I Lu\r‘llll] ClITIT W ITOUTILYIT HUTTDOoSTOIT CTITUTIT Tt

o

o

a

122

t nd-federallaweand racmilaticane Tha fonilii: chall A dinit o
o6 Tty O

Ot-Sariiioac
UToCT Y Ioty;

a1}
g
P
i

and ~o ofata
oo CoTt vt tateoirar IO

gl aritl
il okn

et T e uTa oy T e CH

BA. The Facility shall provide Patient Carecare and Areatment/services :
£ g -diet teations—to— ieatincluding routine and emergency medical care
situations, as identified in the elient—Patient record and as ordered by a Physician or other
appropriateAuthorized healthHealth careCare professionalsProvider;. Care and services shall be provided;
and coordinated among those responsible during the treatment process and modified as warranted based on
any changing needs of the-kient Patient-, and detailed in the Individual Plan of Care. (I)

eeded—apprepnratae accictanca i onbiitioc afdailzlining:
S06-S VeSS Gty RE;

a
O P PTOpTTR U soTstornC oot

41



2 Clhantc chall It Hate axmd S ool d—to-maintainthairmorcanal
S IIVTIO T O CTITY COITCl T LY U, O TITOTTIT OO I tIrreIr P\/xu\llm

S Onnortanitiec chall e 1 rticinationinrelictione ca
—o pportahiesshat-bep TaCipadeiin-rengous—Se

le-acgictanca i
rE-a55istancein-

e iy

BB. Care, treatment, and servicesshall be rendered effectively and safely in accordance with orders from
physieians Physicians, otherautherizedhealtheareproviders Authorized Healthcare Providers, and certified
and/or licensed-eeunselers Counselors, and precautions taken for elients-Patients with special conditions,
€.g., pacemakers, wheelchairs, etc. (I)

EC. Chents-The Facility shall document that Patients shalbbewere offered the opportunity to participate
in-aftercare/continuingcare Aftercare and/or Continuing Care programs offered by the faeility-Facility or
through referral. (IT)

n

ntionsshall batal an for tha mentact
LIVJTLY

tor-afthanarcanal o
T T O CTTaIC eI o ores ProtcoaaoITroT

Favel
e P Troriarpos

M

jantc anoladie s ot
A\JLLIAJJ u.lvxuu;xxs LIINIT

5
lfunfln Thefacitlitrmavcacuratha narcanal fimde ofthac innt

n 1wt Patiant onatlh orr oo
FELY IS ram B g = Luvlj.lt] Alluj DWWHTCTITV l}\.{l SUITIArraIiray or e CTIWTYT 1N

1a
TCIoT T aatnratinot
T

a
€
urds—inelsdine evidenca nf

Thefaeilitrchall mnaintaim o ancieata Fecannti a G
IV T OIS TIITOTOC 11!6 ¥V TOWTICATOT

O8O 0
O AT ATt y oo i ed i g e c Ui ate e o TR O
v

B

GD. Intheeventof closureof afaetlity Facility for anyreason, thefaetity Facility shall ensure continuity
of treatment and/or care by promptly notifying the-elient’s Patient’s attending-physieian Physician or other
i tder Authorized Healthcare Provider or-eeunseler Counselor and arranging for

referral to otherfaeilities Facilities atthe direction of the-physietan Physician or other
prowider Authorized Healthcare Provider or—eounselor Counselor. The facility shall document the
notification and referral in the Patient’s medical record.

ffovancac £o Aoy mean Aot o 1101 T cuith rooned n
T T IO OO I OTRY VYV IIT Lv4 ) VY ICIT L\t&ul\«l T

TGOy 0Ot

902. Residential Facilities. (IT)

A. Patients shall receive assistance in activities of daily living as documented in the Individual Plan of
Care.

B. Patients shall be provided necessary items and assistance to maintain their personal hygiene.

C. Opportunitiesshall be provided forparticipationin religious services. Assistance in obtaining pastoral
counseling shall be provided upon request by the Patient.

D. Precautions shall be taken for the protection ofthe personal possessions ofthe Patients, including their
personal funds. The Facility may secure the personal funds of the Patient provided the Patient authorizes
the Facility to do so. The Facility shall maintain an accurate accounting of the funds, including evidence of
purchases by Facility on behalf of the Patients, No personal monies shall be given to anyone, including

42



family members, without written consent of the Patient. If money is given to anyone by the Facility, a
receipt shall be obtained.

E. Residential Treatment Programs shall document in the Patient’s medical record that the Facility has
provided or made available the following:

1. Specialized professional consultation, supervision, and direct affiliation with other levels of
freatment;

2. Arrangements for appropriate lab oratory and toxicology tests as needed:

3. Counselors to_assess and treat Patients for Substance Use Disorders and obtain and interpret
information regarding the needs of the Patients:

4. Counselors to_provide a planned regimen of twenty-four (24) hour professionally-directed
evaluation, care, and treatment services for persons with Substance Use Disorders and their families to
include individual, group, and/or family counseling directed toward specific Patient goals indicated in his
or her Individual Plan of Care;

5. Educational guidance and educational program referral when indicated; and

6. Vocational counseling for any Patient when indicated. For those not employed, Staff and/or
Volunteers shall facilitate the Patient’s pursuit of employment search;

F. Withdrawal Management Pro orams.

1. Facilities Offering a Medical Withdrawal Management Program shall document in the Patient’s
medical record that the acility has provided the following:

a. Continuing observation and monitoring of each Patient’s condition to reco gnize and evaluate
significant signs and symptoms of medical distress and take appropriate action. Each Patient’s general
condition, including vital signs, shall be documented at a frequency as determined by the F acility, but not
less than three (3) times during the first seventy-two (72) hours of admission to the Facility;

b. A plan for supervised withdrawal, to be implemented upon admission;

¢. Counseling designed to motivate Patients to continue in the treatment process and referral to the
appropriate treatment modality.

2. Facilities offering a Social Withdrawal Management Program shall document in the Patient’s
medical record that the Facility has provided the following:

a. Development of an Individual Plan of Care for supervised withdrawal:

b. Continuing observation of each Patient’s condition to recognize and evaluate significant signs
and symptoms of medical distress and take appropriate action: and

¢. Counseling designed to motivate Patients to continue in the treatment process.

3. Facilities providing a Withdrawal Management Program shall provide room, dietary service, care,
and supervision necessary for the maintenance of the Patient.

43



903. Facilities Providing an Opioid Treatment Program.

A. Services (II).

1. Services shall be directed toward reducing or eliminating the use of illicit Controlled Substances,
criminal activity, or the spread of infectious disease while improving the quality of life and functioning of
the Patient. Opioid Treatment Programs shall follow rehabilitation stages in sufficient duration to meet the
needs of the Patient. These stages include initial treatment, early stabilization, long-term treatment, medical
maintenance, and immediate emergency treatment when n eeded.

2. The Opioid Treatment Program shall directly provide, contract, or make referrals, for services based
upon the needs of the Patient.

3. As part of Substance Use Disorder rehabilitative services provided by the Opioid Treatment
Program, each Patient shall be provided with individual, group, and family counseling as based on needs
identified during the assessment. The frequency and duration of counseling provided to Patients shall be
determined by the needs of the Patient and be consistent with the Individual Plan of Care. Counseling shall
address, as a minimum:

a. Treatment and recovery objectives included in the Individual Plan of Care, as well as education
regarding HIV, Hepatitis, and other infectious diseases. HIV testing shall be made available as approprmate,
while maintaining Patient confidentiality;

b. Concurrent substance misuse;

¢. Involvement of family and significant others with the infornmed consent of the Patient;

d. Providing treatment groups; and

. Guidance in seeking alternative therapies, if applicable.

B. Support Services.

1. The Opioid Treatment Program shall ensure that a_comprehensive range of support services,
including, but not limited to, vocational, educational, employment, legal, mental health and family
problems, medical, Substance Use Disorder, HIV or other communicable diseases, pregnancy and prenatal
care, and social services are made available to Patients who demonstrate a need for such services. Support
services may be provided either directly or by appropriate referral. Support services recommended and
utilized shall be documented in the Patient record.

2. When appropriate, the Opioid Treatment Pro gram shall link the Patient with an educational program,
and vocational employment services. Deviations from compliance with these outcomes shall be
documented in the Patient’s record.

3. The Opioid Treatment Program shall establish and utilize formal linkages with community-based
freatment services, through an established set of procedures for coordinating care with Physicians or other
health or behavioral care providers when appropriate.

4. The Opioid Treatment Program shall establish linkages with _the criminal justice system to
encourage continuous treatment of individuals incarcerated or on probation and parole.

44



C. Services to Pregnant Patients in an Opioid Treatment Program (II).

1. The Facility shall make reasonable effort to ensure that pregnant Patients receive prenatal care by a
Physician and that the Physician is notified of the Patient’s participation in the Opioid Treatment Program
when the Facility becomes aware of the pregnancy.

2. The Opioid Treatment Program shall provide, through in-house services or referral, and document
in the Individual Plan of Care, appropriate services and interventions for the pregnant Patient to include:

a. Physician consultation at least monthly:

b. Nutrition counseling: and

¢. Parenting training to include newbom care, health and safety, parent/infant interaction, and
bonding.

3. The Facility shall maintain signed documentation of a Patient’s acknowledgement of refusal of

prenatal care.

4. Opioid Treatment Program FDA-approved Medication for opioid treatment dosage levels shall be
maintained at an appropriate level for pregnant Patients as determined by the Opioid Treatment Program
Physician and documented in the Patient’s record. (I)

5. When a pregnant Patient chooses to discontinue participation in the Opioid Treatment Pro cram, the
program Physician, in coordination with the attendin g obstetrician, shall supervise the termination process.

904. Substance Use Testing for Opioid Treatment Programs (II).

A. Substance use testing shall be used as a clinical tool for the purposes of diagnosis and in the
development of Individual Plans of Care.

B. Substance use testing for the presence of Opioid Treatment Program Medication, benzodiazepines,
cocaine, opiates, marijuana, amphetamines, and barbiturates, as well as other substances, when clinically
indicated by the Opioid Treatment Pro gram Physician, shall be conducted at a frequency as determined by
the Opioid Treatment Program.

C. Results of substance use testing shall be addressed by the primary Counselor with the Patient. in order
to intervene in Controlled Substance use behavior.

D. The Opioid Treatment Program shall establish and implement written testing procedures, including
random collection of substance testing samples, to effectively minimize the possibility of falsification of
the sample, to include security measures for prevention of tampering.

E. Patients granted take-home dosages shall undergo random substance use testing on a monthly basis.
For_Patients whose substance use testing reports indicate positive results for any illicit substances,
non-prescription Medications, or a negative result of Opioid Treatment Program Medication, the frequency
for substance use testing shall be determined by the Opioid Treatment Program Physician or other
Authorized Healthcare Provider. Documentation of the rationale for the frequency shall be documented in
the Patient’s medical record.

45



F. Only those laboratories certified in accordance with the federal Clinical Laboratories Improvement
Amendments shall be utilized by the Opioid Treatment Program for urinalysis.

905. Orientation for Patients A dmitted to an Opioid Treatment Program.

Patient orientation shall be accomplished within seven (7) calendar days of admission and documented in
the Patient record. The orientation shall include:

A. Opioid Treatment Program guidelines, rules, and regulations:

B. Confidentiality;

C. Substance use testing procedure;

D. Administering Opioid Treatment Program Medication;

E. Signs and symptoms of an overdose and when to seek emergency assistance:

F. Discharge procedures:

G. Treatment phases;

H. HIV/AIDS information and education;

L. Patient rights (See Section 1000):

J. The nature of Substance Use Disorders and recovery including misunderstandings regarding
methadone or other opioid treatment Medication: and

K. For pregnant Patients, risk to the unborn child.

802906. Transportation.

Fwenty—feurhourResidential facilities-Facilities shall provide or assist in securing local transportation
for ehents-Patients for emergent or non-emergent health reasons to health care providers such as, but not
limited to,-physieians Physicians, dentists, physical therapists, or for treatment at renal dialysis clinics.

803907. Safety Precautions/ and Restraints @).

A. Nerestraint-neitherPeriodic or continuous mechanical-aer, physical 4neluding seclusion; or chemical
restraints during routine care of a Patient shall not be used-inthe—faeility-exeept, nor shall Patients be
restrained for Staff convenience or as a substitute for care or services. However, in cases of extreme
emergeney-emergencies when a elient-Patient is a danger to him/_or herself or others, and-then-only
mechanical and/or physical restraints may be used as ordered by a-physieian Physician or other-autherzed
healtheareprovider Authorized Healthcare Provider, and until appropriate medical care can be secured.

ordersshallincladetha ranscan far o af tha restramtiseclusion-thatunaof ractiraint that mmac haoncad
LTI oOTO T T ITIIonT IIITTOOU IO T OTIYOIT O OOV OoOT TITe I ITTATITY U\/Vluﬂlvll’ LTINS LJ l,l\/ IO oIrat llAuJ Ava ) UU\-‘\J?

me-tana tha rosfvu; oy 1‘3 1Innd orthe-clhantmairba nlacad i caelucian aand
BE-H5e

J

ot tian o £
U I8V VT TIT SO OTONY IO R ITToO Tt O aoThy 1or
)

thetmiasx 1 n a
sieThinin-tHRe-the-restratht-may Stne-chHentma

as restraints may be used.

46



minutac
TIIToTeyT

~ ¢
H=
b d

t avam: 148
t

Cliante cha
VVUAJ i A 3

than o vHesas offarad fliide oivan
ITVITO AJTIOT A2 vy

1 NIl
OO Py OC e Oy OTtroat IOy o rvorr

toRs—as—ovreseribed—oivan tha onmorbiismits o noueshmaent—if dacirad ot raciilarlss cehadulad
AVTTI OO HLUDVAAUVU’ 51"\111 L2 § w3 UHI}UL Lulut] XOT AIUUALuLuAJVAAI,’ IL uvuuvu, “ul lUsUlul‘.J WA ITWCOICTINACT

lres—and-ifthe cliant ic in o racteaint coyrmm SR-oRBermiE L formation.and o
TTIIC Y, Ao o - et s e Sty L e YO pPPor Ty O Totroh-a G X eFetse-

B. Emergency restraint orders shall specify the reason for the use of the restraint. the type of restraint to
be used, the maximum time the restraint may be used, and instructions for obs erving the Patient while
restrained, if different from the Facility’s written procedures. Patients certified by a Physician or other
Authorized Healthcare Provider as requiring restraint for more than twenty -four (24) hours shall be
transferred to an approprate Facility.

C. During emergency restraint, Patients shall be monitored at least every fifteen (15) minutes and
provided with an opportunity for motion and exercise at least every thirty (30) minutes. Prescribed
Medications and treatments shall be administered as ordered, and Patients shall be offered nourishment and
fluids and given bathroom privileges.

D. The use of mechanical restraints shall be documented in the Patient’s record, and shall include the
date and time implemented, the length of time restrained, observations while Patient is restrained.

804908. TreatimentServices offor Minors {In.

Lall

Qo 1O
ST oI Ir e

+ 1
L vy

ad
T

mittedte-Residentinlfrantimant 1mrooanie facilitias (il tha o
IAITTOURT OO AVITOUTITIAOT UNATTTIITOUTTITC yxu&xul;x L UAWITITUIVAY \VV A01IT I

CA. In 24-hour facilities-Residential Facilities, sainors-Minors shall be housed separately from adults

except in faeilities-Facilities providing services for methersParents with children.

BB. In those instances where minetsMinors are served, the faeility-Facility shall ensure that the special
needs of these elientsPatients are addressed, including, but not limited to, education-related considerations.

EXCEPTION-A facilitimas orlnn't

TOCIIITy Tt j o et

TSI TSI X

47



C. The Facility shall ensure treatment and counseling are conducted to meet the physical, mental, and
emotional developmental needs of the Minor.

D. The Facility shall refer Minors who require special medical needs to a Physician who has clinical
experience with Minors and dependency. The Facility shall monitor Minors for treatment reactions that
may be developmentally detrimental. A plan shall be in place in the event that special medical care is

required.

865909. Referral Services.

A. Referrals for care and/or services shall not be made to unlicensed faeitities-Facilities if such fasilities
Facilities are required to be licensed. (IT)

B. The faeility-Facility shall rovide information regarding appropriate self-help groups to
ehients-Patients and encourage their participation in such activities, and document the information was
provided in the Patient’s record.

C Referralcarmiicasahall ha mada availalala fo rdirdualeinalicible for admmicoinm fo tha fanilin s
- AT Ar s CTTvIToo s D O Trd e vVah e et eI als I e ToTCToT oty n1o—+tHe—tacidt

Haeihty’s-programs: The facility shall maintain documentation of the rationale for the denial of admission
and referral for services offered to the Patient as applicable.

D. A community resource file shall be developed, maintained, and used for proper elient-Patient referral
and placement. The file shall eentaininclude a listing of services, fees, hours of operation, and contact
person as well as material to be provided to the-client Patient. The Facility shall provide the Patient with
Information information and offer referral regarding-for community resources such as transportation,
hospital emergency services, and ambulance Servicess i i i

SECTHON900

SECTION 1000 — PATIENT RIGHTS AND ASSIfRAN CES

96+1001. Informed Consent (I1).

all dnotanag

n t tha ~liant 10t 32
—rH-ar-istaiee v

ot o
o atIonr G o O ot HHSt

p' =5 b
H
e vul

R O

A. Upon admission, there shall be a written, signed, and dated informed consent between the Patient and

the Facility. The informed consent shall include at least the following:

1. An explanation of the specific care, services, and/or equipment provided by the Facility, such as,
administration of Medication, provision of special diet as necessary, assistance with bathing, toileting,
feeding, dressing, and mobility:

2. Discharge and transfer provisions to include the conditions under which the Patient may be
Discharged. and the agreement terminated, and the disposition of personal belongings: and

48



3. Documentation of the explanation of the Patient’s rights (see Section 1002) and the grievance

procedure.

4. Each person enrolling in an Opioid Treatment Program shall be notified of the autopsy provision in
South Carolina Code Section 44-53-750 as a part of such person’s informed consent.

B. The provision of care and services to Patients shall be guided by the recognition of and respect for
cultural differences to ensure reasonable accommodations shall be made for Patients with regard to
differences, such as, but not limited to, religious practice and dietary preferences.

9021002. Client-Patient Rights (II).

A. ShentPatient rights shall be guaranteed and prominently displayed in a public area. Documentation
of the explanation of the Patient’s Bill of Rights shall be maintained in the Patient’s medical record. The

faetlity shallinform-the-clientin-writingofthese Patient rightsste shall includeras-a-minimum:

1. The opportunity to participate in the4FR Individual Plan of Care;

2. Informed consent for treatment;

3. Grievanceand/or complaint procedures, including the address and phone number ofthe Department,
and a provision prohibiting retaliation should the grievance right be exercised;

4. Confidentiality of elient-Patient records;

5. Respect for the elient’s-Patient’s property (Residential Facilities Only):

6. Freedom from Abuse, Neglect, and-expleitation Exploitation; (I)

7. Privacy in visits unless contraindicated in the recovery and treatment process or as ordered by a

physieianPhysician or other-authorized-healtheareprovider Authorized Healthcare Provider;

8. Privacy during treatment and while receiving personal care; and

9. Respect and dignity in receiving care, treatment, and services.

B. Ehents-For Facilities providing Residential Services, the Patients shall be assured freedom of
movement. Ghents-Patients shall not be locked in or out of their rooms or any common usage areas, e-£;

diningsittingactivity reems, in the-faeility Facility, or in or out of the faethity-Facility building. (I)

C. Care/reatment! and services and items provided by the-faeility F acility, the charge, and those services
that are the responsibility of the elientPatient shall be delineated in writing and the elient-Patient shall be
made aware of such charges and services as verified by his/ orher signature.

D. The faeility-Facility shall comply with all«elevant current federal, state, and local laws and regulations
related to discrimination, e.g., Title VII, Section 601 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, ADA, and ensure that
there is no discrimination with regard to source of payment in the recruitment, location of-elient Patient,
acceptance or provision of goods and services to elieats-Patients or potential-clients Patients, provided that
payment offered is not less than the cost of providing services.

49



E. In Residential Facilities, no care and/or treatment and/or services shall be provided to individuals who
are not Patients of the Facility, except those services provided to family members as part of the Patient’s

recovery plan.
9031003. Discharge/ and Transfer.

A. Unless a elientPatient is under court order or detained sub ject to a pending judicial process, a elient
Patient may be transferred or éischarged-Discharged only for medical reasons, the welfare of the-client
Patient, the welfare of other elientsPatients of the-faeility Facility, lack of progress or participation in
treatment, or successtul completion ofthe program.-Sthe He or sheshall be givenwritten notice of disehazze
Discharge except when the health, safety, or well-being of other elients-Patients of the faeility-Facility
would be endangered.

€B. When a elientPatient is transferred from one faeility-Facility to another,e-e-from a-detoxification

: o~a-hospital—a : ationfrom-h crentreeord a transfer summary, to include
copies of relevant documents, shall be forwarded to the receivin g faetity-Facility within a time-period as
determined by the faeili=Facility but not to exceed seventy-two (72) hours from transfer. The faeility
Facility shall ensure that-medication Medication, personal possessions fand funds of the-ehient Patient-and

other-appropriate-items are forwarded to the receiving-faeility/site Facility and/or site in a manner that

ensures continuity of care and/or treatment and/or services and maximum convenience to the-client Patient.

C. A Patient transferring from another Opioid Treatment Program shall have a Physical Examination
upon admission and have his orher dose determined by a Physician prior to receiving the first dosage.

SECHON-1006

SECTION 1100 — PATIENT PHYSICAL EXAMiNATION

1001-General ().
A. Residential Facilities. A physicalexaminationPhysical Examination and-histery-shall be completed

by a Physician or other Authorized Healthcare Provider for Patients within thirty (30) calendar days prior
to admission or netlaterthan-two (2) business days-after - of admission for elients-Patients

.AA. alWs' '. .
86D e+ac
N .

providerForNTR s see-Seetion3208-Physical Examinations conducted by Physicians or other Authorized
Healthcare Providers licensed in other states are permitted for new admissions under the condition that the
Patient undergoes a second Physical Examination by a South Carolina licensed Physician or other
Authorized Healthcare Provider within thirty (30) calendar days of admission to the Facility. The Physical
Examination shall address:

1o—adimittad aftar 5.0 DAN__on E
o tCF DA"A- s Srye s n

1
ottt CGr

P
E o
b
b
I,
D
P

b
1

rodedanvtos obhtain tha o diaiccs
O y—ro-0otaiHe 4GS S1oRn

e}
b
\:4
&
h
)
g
[¢]
5
g
=
o
H
§

[N

fioats edical-detoxification Racidantiol o
oo eaTcAr-aetexcationesidentia -t 0 0
ha an HHRERea 3ca



2. Identification of special conditions and/or carerequired;

23. In24-heurfaeilities-and NTPs_the physical-examinationshall retide-aA tuberculin skin test, as

described in Section 14041702, unless there is a previously documented positive reaction;

4. If a elient-Patient or potential elient-Patient has a communicable disease, the administrator-Facility
shall seek-advice-from-afollow the recommendations made by a physieianPhysician or other-authorized
healtheareprovider Authorized Healthcare Provider in order to:

a. Ensure that the faeility Facility has the capability of providing adequate care and preventing the
spread of that condition, and that-the staff volunteer Staff and Volunteers are adequately trained; or

b. Transfer the elientPatient to an appropriate-faeility Facility, if necessary; and

5. A substance use test. Following the test, the Physician or Authroized Healthcare Provider shall
determine the frequency of subsequent testing based on the Patient’s clinical presentation.

mar—whichineln
0 oty S WrHerHRety

as-ghharsieal asxanainatiom frn s acilin: challbha
WA TU IJLAJ vivarvaaoirrrroerorT Eg vy LHVLLALJ B GIITEIT UV
1 <

=2
amEation-BroLs marcimelada e enteof Sortinnmce
TaHHHatioH-Pro Ty oG8 U T e -0 e CHORS

4
e
®©
o
[«

i
d

lation—Provicieonc O lante itk contacionemnlmana
IQUIOUTT 1T 1O ¥ AJITCTILS . = TIWTIGY VY ItLl UUALLMBLUUQ tll-lllll\.lll

B S
tbha datarmiinad thaot tlha fonilie, campnotearefortheclienttathe dacraa that gecurachic/har baa
L UVTOUCTOTTIITITIONT I T OIG Lu\/LLlLJ wdImmoToaro-1or UICTICTIT TOTtII T \J\IE’LNU LLITTTOYIOI Oy 11 197N ITvaIaT

andsafetardthatafiha arhar o liantic i-thefacilite thaclicnt chall ko ralocat i
oy oo ar oo - ot e He RS- I IR y S e o rone St o€ e+

BB ies£o :

. S B s VSHE1
notearberthan 30 davc nriarta tha maoth ar’ o adimission-ornotlatarthon £49) hayes a tar adniccinn fior
mET RO aay v pherto-tRe-mother-Ss-adaHsston-ornotlater e CroodrE s atteraghission4or
cehildattectineta bhaalih ctafiie and speciatleate-neadethat panis 1mmmant onthe-child hic/ harmnthar
YRR ORI TS SO Roat- St S ana-speetar-care needsthat ey —aHpatroi-e-entas st nermother

aphvsieal-examination fortha ~hild
Py srcar-oxdiHhiat o+ orthe-ehitg

providing services for parents with children, there shall be a report of an examination for cachchild by a
Physician or other Authorized Healthcare Provider attesting to the health status and special care needs that
may impact the child, his/ or her parent, and/or others within the Facility. The examination shall be
conducted not earlier than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the parent’s admission or no later than
forty-eight (48) hours after admission.

chaonld tha 1 ath
VIO

It ot ot OTITIC Ottt PO

Tty

Qaxr be aditted-aftar Smmn on—Erdas- In Facilities

C. Opioid Treatment Program.

1. Physical Examination. A Physical Examination conducted by the Opioid Treatment Program
Physician or other Authorized Healthcare Provider shall be completed within seventy-two (72) hours prior
to the first dose of Opioid Treatment Program Medication and shall address the following at a minimum:

0

a. Evidence of communicable or Infectious disease:

51



b. Pulmonary, liver, renal, and cardiac abnormalities:

c. Neurological issues;

d. Vital signs;

e. Evidence of clinical signs of dependency: and

f. Examination of head, ears, eyes, nose, throat, thyroid, chest (including heart, lungs and breast),
abdomen, extremities, and skin.

2. Medical Laboratory Analysis. A medical laboratory analysis shall be conducted within seven (7)
calendar days of admission and shall include:

a. Serological test for Infectious disease:

b. Initial substance use testing for Controlled Substance profile:

c. Liver profile: and

d. If indicated, an electrocardiogram, chest X-ray, and/or a biological pregnancy test.

3.In the event the medical staff are unable to obtain an adequateblood draw for the medical laboratory
analysis on the first attempt, the Facility shall reattempt within the seven (7) days of admission. A fter three
(3) documented attempts within the seven (7) days of admission, the Opioid Treatment Pro gram Physician
or other Authorized Healthcare Provider may waive the blood testing requirements. The Physician’s
decision shall be documented in the Patient’s medical record. The Facility shall follow its policies and
procedures related to infection control if the Physician waives the blood testing requirement.

ED. In the event that a elientPatient transfers from one-24-heurfacility Residential Facility to another
e-g-medical detoxificationa Residential treatnents ogramy, an additional admission physiealPhysical
Examination and/or tuberculin skin test shall not be necessary, provided the physicalPhysical was
conducted not earlier than twelve (12) months prior to the admission of the—elient Patient, and the
physiealPhysical meets all other requirements specified in Section +664-A1100.A.1, unless the receiving
faeilityFacility has an indication that the health status of the ehient-Patient has changed significantly.

o-step-tuberetlinskintestsremain-a-requi of Residential-treatmentprostamfacilitios: In such
instances of transfer, issues of appropriateness of level of treatment placement shall be addressed in the
ehentPatient record.

a a o
- oto - < =

SECHON1100

SECTION 1200 —~ MEDICATION MANAGEMENT

43041201. General (I).

A. Medications, including Controlled Substances, medical supplies, and those items necessary for the
rendering of first aid shall be properly managed in accordance with local, state, and federal law and
regulations, which includes the securing, storing, and administering, dispensing, and delivering of
medications, medical supplies, and biologicals, their disposal when discontinued or outdated, and their

52



disposition at disehargeDischarge, death, or transfer of a-client Patient. All facilitiesFacilities that manage

medieation-Medication of elientsPatients shall comply with this section.

B. Applicable reference materials;e-g-Physicians DeskReference; published within the previous three
(3) years; shall be available at the faeilityFacility in order to provide staffvelunteers-Staff andior

Volunteers with adequate information concerning medieationsMedications.
11021202. Medication Orders (I).

A. Medication, including oxygen, shall be administered and delivered to elentsPatients only upon orders
ofrautherization-by a physieian-Physician or other autherized-healtheare-providerAuthorized Healthcare
Provider. Medications accompanying elientsPatients at admission; may be administered and/or delivered to
chientsPatients, provided the medieationMedication is in the original container and the order/authorization
1s subsequently obtained as a part of the admission physiealPhysical Examination. If there are concems
regarding whether or not such medieationsMedications should be administered Land/or delivered due to the
condition or state of the-medieationMedication, e, g., old, expired, makeshift labels, or the condition or state
of health of the newly-admitted individual, statfLvelunteersStaff and Volunteers shall consult with or make
arrangements to have the elientPatient examined by a physieianPhysician or other-suthorizedhealtheare
previder Authorized Healthcare Provider, or at the local hospital emergency room prior to administeringfor
delivering any sedicationsMedications.

B. All orders (including verbal orders) shall be signed and dated by a physietanPhysician or other

authorized healtheare providesAuthorized Healthcare Provider within a time-period as designated by the
faeilityFacility, but no later than seventy-two (72) hours after the order is given.

C. In an Opioid Treatment Program, all orders shall be documented, signed, and dated by the Opioid
Treatment Program Physician. The Opioid Treatment Pro gram Physician shall determine the initial and
subsequent dosage and schedule, and prescribe such dose and schedule to include changes by verbal or
written order to the phammacistand Licensed Nurse. However, theverbal order shall be documented, signed,
and dated by the Opioid Treatment Program Physician within seventy -two (72) hours.

€D. Orders for contreled-substancesControlled Substances shall be authenticated by the prescribing
physietanPhysician or designee.

BE. Medications and medical supplies ordered for a specific ekentPatient shall not be administered
and/or delivered to any other elientPatient.

H0831203. Administering Medication (1).

A o
- d v S35, y v A
an—tha clian teattonrecord-as-the medication i adiminictorad DPosas—of madicatinn chall lag
YT UUTV W LINAAT [ 2% LIPS ATAV I RN Wy v o pay vy g w3 HIVOTIOTOTIUIT 1Y UUEITITITTOO U T OO T 1T OnyY Ty VITTITGCOI IO T CIOTE OITa T LV 4
ictarad hyr ¢

ada X,
U TOToCO y—r

docac formaorat
Tt

o TUTTIIroretr

estaffsnemberiualintent wubo meamarad themfor adminictration Pranaratiom of
TWAITAT T I IO Urv VIGITUVCT YW IO l)lvflu.l\/\.l ITWTITIT LTOT HUILIITT T atrorT T A\.rllul GITOTT OT

ehediled-adrminictration chall mat
VIIIVUOUTVO O CaITITInY URITTUTIT JITOITITOUT

-

epermmitted—and-cuch nranaration alhall ocou-
v pertrra eyt O preparatoft-SstaaH-ocew-
P

©

Q
4 or

o rpr;l\v to-adanisteringe—The rac ardine innlﬂde~

¥ THF 5

TOTTO—TaT AT e IO TeCoOrtTi g
'

f mredication-admimistration chall

T
ana
T AT oI oIyt acr oy HoH

1ar than
Do ITmaT ot

53



A. Doses of Medication shall be administered by the same Licensed Nurse who prepared them for
administration. Preparation shall occurno earlier than one (1) hour prior to administering. Preparation of
doses for more than one (1) scheduled administration shall not be permitted. Each Medication dose
administered shall be recorded on the Patient’s Medication administration record (“MAR”) as it is
administered. Should an ordered dose of Medication not be administered, an explanation as to the reason
shall be recorded on the MAR. The recordin g of Medication administration shall include: the medication
name, dosage, mode of administration, date, time, and the signature of the individual administering or
supervising the taking of the Medication. Initials in lieu of signatures are acceptable provided such initials
can be readily identified on the MAR. If the ordered dosage is to be given on a varying schedule, for
example, “take two tablets the first day and one tablet every other day by mouth with noon meal,” the
number of tablets shall also be recorded.

B. When a Physicianor other Authorized Healthcare Provider changes the dosage of a Medication, a new
entry reflectingthe change shall be documented in the Medication administrationrecord (“MAR”). No dose
shall be administered until the Patient’s identity has been verified and the dosage compared with the
currently ordered and documented dosage level. Ingestion shall be observed and verified by the person
authorized to administer the Medication.

C. Opioid Treatment Program Only:

1. The Facility shall not administer a Patient’s initial dose of Opioid Treatment Program Medication
until the program Physician or other Authorized Healthcare Provider has determined that all admission
criteria have been met, to include a completed Physical Examination by the program Physician or other
Authorized Healthcare Provider and confirmation of current Medication regimen being taken by the

applicant.

2. The initial dose of methadone shall not exceed thirty (30) milligrams and the initial total daily dose
for the first day shall not exceed forty ( 40) milligrams unless the Opioid Treatment Pro gram Physician or
other Authorized Healthcare Provider justifies in the Patient record that forty (40) millierams did not
suppress the abstinence symptoms after three(3) hours of observation followingthe initial dose. There shall
be written justification in the Patient record, signed and dated by the Opioid Treatment Pro gram Physician
orother AuthorizedHealthcare Provider., for doses in excess of onehundred (100) milligrams of methadone
per day after the first day.

3. A Patient’s scheduled dose may be temporarily delayed if necessary. e.g.. to obtain a urine sample
or for Counselor consultation. The dose shall not be withheld, however, for failure to comply with the
Opioid Treatment Program rules or procedures unless the decision is made to terminate the Patient’s
participation in the Opioid Treatment Pro gram. A dose may be withheld only when the Opioid Treatment
Program Physician or other Authorized Healthcare Provider determines that such action is medically
indicated.

4. When the Opioid Treatment Program Physician prescribes Controlled Substances other than Opioid
Treatment Program Medications, such prescriptions shall not be administered to any Patient unless the
Opioid Treatment Program Physician or other Authorized Healthcare Provider first examines the Patient
and assesses his or her potential for misuse of such Medications.

€D. Self-administering-administration of medications-Medications is-permitied-shall be allowed only
when-indieated-by-the-on the specific written orders of a physietanPhysician or other autherized healtheare

roviider—verified hi diract cantact urith th clhieant h
FO-vIaer HHEEDBY—& CoRtaet—w

dh

Sl

Qo o 3o o memberivahmtear—and recardad an tha
E) ¥ & IOV AT TV OUTIVTIT UJ LY LTIANVTITOUOCTY VVIWILUVA, BIITGTTWOUOT A AN IS Y e 7 w4 v

BLO
Pro




3 SqHenEY-3 3 siven—Es ay Htselfadn 3 Authorized
Healthcare Provider. An appropriate Staff member delivering the Medication shall document the delivery.
Such documentation shall include the date, time, and the signature of the individual delivering the

Medication.

cumentation-ofmedicationtakan iy clionte ac dacarilhad a3 Qo ntr s
T IO OO R O G O e O O Y- e e RS a5-aeserbea e clior

nonlesepd—medication forthoca wha ara mhsoieall and
FYIR SEETRCH e O O ose—Whe—are—paysicay—and

aunthorized healthenrenroviderdacumaante im tha o
satyhazveTTair eeIeT porov 1ot oo cde it S8

4 _Tha ctatara
T TITVT T TOTIT

Hiealbraddrassad-dirinc b camiiant =iy
TOAITy— T vaTstHoeIrp

T
3 P

BE. When elieatsPatients who cannot self-administerSelf-Administer medicationsMedications leave the
faeilityFacility for an extended time, the proper amount of medicationsMedications, placed into a
prescription vial or bottle, along with dosage, mode, date,and time of administration, shall be givento a
responsible person who will be in charge of the elientPatient during his{_or her absence from the
faethtyFacility and properly documented in the medicationMedication administration record. If there is no
designated responsible party for the elientPaticnt, then the attending physieianPhysician or other

authorizedAuthorized healtheareHealthcare providerProvider shall be contacted for proper instructions.

F. The Medications prescribed for a Patient shall be protected from use by other Patients, visitors, and
Staff and Volunteers. For those Patients who have been authorized by a Physician or other Authorized
Healthcare Provider to Self-Administer Medications, such Medications (nitroglycerin, rescue inhalers,
epinephrine auto-injectors) may be kept on the Patient’s person, i.e., a pocketbook, pocket, or any other
method that would enable the Patient to control the items.

+-041204. Pharmacy Services (I).

A. Any pharmacy within the faeilityFacility shall be provided by or under the direction of a licensed
pharmacist in accordance with accepted professional principles and appropriate federal, state, and local
laws and regulations.

B. Facilities whichthat maintain stocks of legend-drugsMedications and biologicals for-dispensingte
ehients Patientuse within the Facility shall obtain and maintain from the South Carolina Board of Pharmacy
a valid, current, phasmaey-permitnon-dispensing drug outlet permit that is displayed in a conspicuous

location in the Facilityfromthe-SCBoard-of Pharmacy.

C. Labeling of sedicationsMedications dispensed to elientsPatients shall be in compliance with local,

state, and federal laws and regulations applicable to retail pharmacies.

H051205. Medication Containers (I).

55



Medications for Patients shall be obtained from a permitted pharmacy or Authorized Healthcare Provider
as allowed by law on an individual prescription basis. These Medications shall bear a label affixed to the
container that reflects at least the following: name of pharmacy, name of Patient, name of the prescribing
Physician or other Authorized Healthcare Provider, date and prescription number, directions for use, and
the name and dosage unit of the Medication. The label shall be brought into accord with the directions of
the Physician or other Authorized Healthcare Provider each time the prescription is refilled. Medication
containers having soiled, damaged, incomplete, illegible, or makeshift labels shall be returned to the
pharmacy for re-labeling or disposal.

B. Medications for each elientPatient shall be kept in the original container(s) including unit dose systems
orblisterpacksystems; there shall be no transferring between containers or openingblister packs to remove
medieations-Medications for destruction or adding new medicationsMedications for administration, except
under the direction of a pharmacist. In addition, for those faeilitiesFacilities that utilize the blisterpack
systes; unit dose system ormulti-dose system, an on-site review of the medisation-Medication program by
a pharmacist shall be required conducted on at least a quarterly basis to ensure the program has been
properly implemented and maintained. For changes in dosage, the new packaging shall be available in the
Facility no later than the next administration time subsequent to the order. This shall be documented and
signed by the pharmacist.

C. Medications for elientsPatients shall be obtained from a permitted pharmacy or prescriber on an
individual prescription basis. These medicationsMedications shall bear a label affixed to the container
wihreh-that reflects at least the following: name of pharmacy, name of elientPatient, name of the prescribing
phystetanPhysician or dentist, date and prescription number, directions for use, and the name and dosage
unit of the medicatienMedication. : : ok

: S

D. ¥When a physieianPhysician or other legally authorized-healtheare provider Authorized Healthcare
Provider changes the dosage of a medieationMedication, aJabel—whichsuch information shall be

documented in the Medication administration record and a label that does not obscure the original label
shall be attached to the container which-indicates-the-ne g : escrber’spameInli

procedure; acceptableto-attacha ainer-that states, “see-Directions changed; refer
to MAR and physieianPhysician or other surtheorized-healtheare-providerAuthorized Healthcare Provider
orders for current administration instructions.” Mee&eﬂﬁ-ﬁhaﬂb&eemmemea%eﬂe-ﬁpe-phm

onrecrderefthe-die Thenew diractione ok

bired-or-discountedmedica rat-rotbe-stored-with-eurrent-medications- in a separate locked box
within a refrigerator at or near the Medication storage area, either behind a locked door or the refrigerator
shall be locked. Sterase-are h g i i e el e

Iha |~ ) nd o an a O AVTLPa

56



B. Controlled substaneesSubstancesand cthyl alcohol; shall be stored in accordance with applicable state
and federal laws. A record of the stock and distribution of all eontroHed-substaneesControlled Substances
shall be maintained in such a manner that the disposition of any particular item may be readily traced.

C. Medications shall be stored:

1. Separately from poisonous Controlled substancesSubstances or body fluids;

2. In a manner which provides for separation between topical and oral medieationsMedications, and
which provides for separation of each individual elient:sPatient’s medieationMedication.

formdiadual cliantomau ba
VIOV TOO O CTIICTILY llluj L= 4

nravided-fha.
Pro

Sern—potepacificeally arac ad
SUTTHTT; TTOT VPSSO Y prosTriottr
z A%

tasafieation neacace and Tubaraiy
TOUOATIICTUTIOULT l.ll\JUvUU, Urig TrauUeT ot

T
QPN AT 3o Sy e
Oy peTiaT

adandlabaledac ctacl

ratain 1t
AVTOTITC OO T o T IoCay— ottt

o " :

1 Eachfaciliteshall hava a v o Jienancing den
1= St ve-a R onaispenstiga

1 er-adminiceration with ot
ll-)’ AV OO I LI oo ¥V ILTIOOT

[e/]
N

¢
¢
NI

vroooote-

Hisswed-bivthe SC Raoard afDharmmaacsse
oC SOt r 0

n Fay
TTiTIThYytr Oy areoTootr

,
g

ok
o
{
g
S

e

T TaoTity

D. Stock Medications

1. Unless the Facility has a permitted pharmacy, stocks of Legend Medications shall not be stored
except those specifically prescribed for individual Patients.

2. Non-legend Medications may be retained and labeled as stock in the Facility for administration as
ordered by a Physician or other Authorized Healthcare Provider.

3. Stocks of naloxone may be stored for emergency overdose crises, with or without specific
prescription for individual Patients.

4. If stock non-Patient specific Controlled Substances are to be used, a Controlled Substances
registration from the Department’s Bureau of Drug Control and a Controlled Substances registration from
the federal Drug Enforcement Administration shall be obtained. The registrations shall be displayed in a
conspicuous location within the Facility .

57



E. No medieationsMedications may be left in a elientZsPatient’s room unless the faetlityFacility provides
an individual cabinet/compartment that is kept locked in the room of each eliestPatient who has been
authorized to sel-administerSelf-Administer in writing by a physieianPhysician, or other authorized
healtheareproviderAuthorized Healthcare Provider. In lieu of a locked cabinet or compartment, a room that
can be locked and is licensed for a capacity of one (1) elentPatient is acceptable provided the
medieationsMedications are not accessible by unauthorized persons, the room is kept locked when the
ehieatPatient is not in the room, the medicationsMedications are not eontrolled-substaneesControlled
Substances, and all other requirements of this section are met.

F. The medieationsMedications prescribed for a elientPatient shall be protected from use by other
ehientsPatients, visitors and staffivelunteersStaff and Volunteers. For tho se elientsPatients who have been

authorizedby a physieianPhysician or other antherizedhealtheareprovider Authorized Healthcare Provider
to sclf-administer medicationsMedications, such medicationsMedications may be kept on the

chieat’sPatient’s person, i.e., a pocketbook, pocket, or any other method that would enable the elientPatient
to control the items.

G. During nighttime hours in semi-private rooms, only medieationsMedications that a
physieienPhysician or other autherized healtheare provider Authorized Healthcare Provider has ordered in
writing for emergency/immediate use, ¢.g., nitroglycerin-es, rescue inhalers, or EpiPens epinephrine
auto-injectors may be kept unlocked in or upon a cabinet or bedside table, and only when the elientPatient
to whom that medieatienMedication belongs is present in the elientPaticnt room.

H871207. Disposition of Medications (I).

A. The Facility shall release Medications shallbe+eleased to the elientPatient upon disehargeDischarge,
autherized -healtheare-provider

unless specifically prohibited by the ordering phystetanPhysician or i
Authorized Healthcare Provider.

B. Chent’sPatient’s edieationsMedications shall be destroyed by the faeilitgFacility
administratorAdministrator or hisf.or her designee or returned to dispensing pharmacy when:

1. Medication has deteriorated or exceeded its safe shelf-life; and;

2. Unused portions remain duc to death, disehargeDischarge, or discontinuance of the
medieationsMedications. Medications that have been discontinued by order may be stored fora period not
to exceed thirty (30) calendar days provided they are stored separately from current

medicationsMedications,

C. The destruction of medieatienMedication shall occur within five (5) days of the above-mentioned
circumstances, be witnessed by the administraterA dministrator or his/ - or her designee, and the mode of
destruction indicated.

D. The destruction of controlled substances medieatiensMedications shall be accomplished only by the
administraterAdministrator or hisfor her designee on-site and witnessed by a licensed nussel icensed Nurse
or pharmacist, or by returning them to the dispensing pharmacy and obtaining a receipt from the pharmacy.

1208. Opioid Treatment Program Take-home Medication (II).

A. Opioid Treatment Program Medication, including guest and take-home doses, shall be administered
to Patients in single doses. Take-home bottles shall be labeled in accordance with federal and state law and
regulations and shall contain necessary cautionary statements; caps shall be childproof.

58



B. Take-home Opioid Treatment Program Medication may be given to Patients who demonstrate a need
for a more flexible schedule in order to enhance and continue the rehabilitative process. However, since
Opioid Treatment Program Medication is an opioid subject to misuse if not managed properly, precautions
shall be taken to prevent its potential misuse. The Opioid Treatment Program Physician shall ensure that
take-home Medication is given to those Patients who meet the following criteria for eligibility:

1. Adherence to Opioid Treatment Program rules, regulations, and policies:

2. Length of time in the Opioid Treatment Pro gram and level of maintenance treatment:

3. Presence of Opioid Treatment Program Medication in substance use testing:

4. Potential complications from concurrent health problems;

5. Lengthy travel distance to the Facility: and

6. Progress in maintaining a stable lifestyle as evidenced by:

a. Absence of misuse of opioids and non-opioids;

b. Absence of alcohol misuse, or determination that the using alcohol and is in treatment for the
alcohol misuse problem:

¢. Regularity of attendance at the Opioid Treatment Program, to_include required counseling

sS€8s10nms,

d. Absence of serious behavior problems, including loitering at the Opioid Treatment Pro gram;

¢. Absence of known recent criminal activity;

. Employment, school attendance, or other appropriate activity; and

g Assurance that take-home Medication can be securely transported and stored by the Patient for
his or her use only.

C. The decision to provide take-home Medication to Opioid Treatment Program Patients and the amount
provided shall be based upon and determined by the reasonable clinical judgment of the Opioid Treatment
Program Physician and appropriately documented and recorded in the Patient’s file priorto the initiation of
the take-home dose. The Opioid Treatment Program Physician shall document compliance by the Patient
with all of the aforementioned requirements prior to providing the first take -home dose. (1)

D. The Patient’s take-home status shall be reviewed and documented at least on a quarterly basis by the
primary Counselor.

E. If a Patient, due to special circumstances, such as illness, personal or family crisis, travel, or other
hardship, is unable to conform to the applicable treatment schedule, he or she may be permitted to receive
up to a two (2)-week supply of Opioid Treatment Program Medication, based on the clinical judgment of
the Opioid Treatment Program Physician. The justification for permitting the adjusted schedule shall be
recorded in the Patient’s record by the Opioid Treatment Pro gram Physician.

59



F. One-time or temporary (usually not to exceed three (3) days) take-home Medication shall be approved
by the Facility for family or medical emergencies or other exceptional circumstances,

G. A Patient transferring from another Opioid Treatment Program or readmitted after having left the
Opioid Treatment Program voluntarily and who has complied with Facility rules and program policies and
procedures may be granted an initial take-home schedule that is no greater than that allowed at the time of
transfer or voluntary Discharge provided all criteria other than length of treatment are met.

H. A Patient discharged from another Opioid Treatment Program shall only be initially granted
take-home privileges from the new admitting Opioid Treatment Program provided the requirements of
Section 1209 are met.

L. Take-home Medication shall be labeled with the name of the Opioid Treatment Program, address,
telephone number, and packaged in conformance with state and federal regulations.

J. _A diversion control plan shall be established to assure quality care while preventing the diversion of
Opioid Treatment Program Medication from treatment to illicit use. The plan shall include:

1. Clinical and administrative continuous monitoring:

2. Problem identification, correction and prevention :

Accountability to the Patient and community: and

[«

[*

Opioid Treatment Program Medication usage and amount accountability.

1209. Opioid Treatment Program Guest-Do sing (I1).

A. When a Patient is separated from his or her Opioid Treatment Program foran extended period, and
the Patient is_in the vicinity of another Licensed Opioid Treatment Program, guest-dosing may occur
provided there is: (I)

1. Authorization in writing from the sending Opioid Treatment Program Physician or other
Authorized Healthcare Provider; and

2. Information from the sending Opioid Treatment Program to include at least the following: Patient
name, identifying information, means of identity verification, dates of guest-dosing, amount of each day’s
dose, number of take-home doses (if any), urinalysis history, and any otherinformation requested by the
authorizing treatment Opioid Treatment Pro gram.

B. Records of guest-dosing shall be maintained at the Opioid Treatment Program providing the
guest-dosing.

C. Guest-dose status for a Patient shall not exceed twenty-eight (28) days unless there are special
circumstances, and an extension of time is agreeduponby the two (2) Opioid Treatment Pro gramsinvolved.

- D. A Facility desiring to administer guest dosing for Patients from neighboring states in the event of a
natural disaster or emergency shall:

1. Request that the Department concur that an emergency situation exists by contacting the

Department;

60



2. Administerthe guest-dosing only upon written orders from the F acility’s Opioid Treatment Program
physician; and

3. Maintain documentation of the physician’s rationale for the dosing protocol and information utilized
to make the decision.

1210. Security of Medications (I).

A. The areas where Opioid Treatment Program stock Medications are maintained or administered shall
be secured. Access to Controlled Substances, which include Opioid Treatment Program Medications, shall
be limited to persons licensed or registered to order, administer, or dispense those Medications,

B. Immediately after administering, the remaining contents of the containers shall be purged to prevent
the accumulation of residual Opioid Treatment Program Medications. The Opioid Treatment Program shall
ensure that take-home Medications bottles are returned to the Opioid Treatment Program. All used
containers, as well as take-home bottles given to Patients. shall be made inaccessible to unauthorized
individuals. Used containers shall be disposed of by the Opioid Treatment Program.

SECTON1200

MEAL-SERVICH:
SECTION 1300 — MEAL SERVICE

42011301. General (11).

A. All faeilitiesFacilities that prepare food on-site shall be approved by the Department, and shall be
regulated, inspected, and graded pursuant to R.61-25, Retail Food Establishments. Facilities preparing food
on-site, licensed for sixteen (16) beds or more subsequent to the promulgation of thesethis regulations shall
have commercial kitchens. Existing faeilitiesFacilities with sixteen (1 6)licensed beds or more may continue
to operate with equipment currently in use; however, only commercial kitchen equipment shall be used
when replacements are necessary. Those faeilitiesFacilities with fifteen (15)beds or less shall be regulated
pursuant to R.61-25 with certain exceptions in regard to equipment (may utilize domestic kitchen
equipment).

B. When meals are catered to a faeilityFacility, such meals shall be obtained from a food service
establishment permitted by the Department, pursuant to R.61-25 and there shall be a written executed
contract with the food service establishment on file in the Facility.

C. All food to be served to Patients shall be transported, received, stored, and handled in accordance with
R.61-25. Washing and sanitation of all food contact and non-food contact surfaces, equipment, and utensils
shall meet the standards required by R.61-25. A handwash lavatory shall be provided in the food service
area equipped with liquid soap and a hand drying provision. Hand sanitizers shall not be used in lieu of

liquid soap.

€D. If food is prepared at a central kitchen and delivered to separate faetlitiesFacilities or separate
buildings and/or floors of the same faeilityFacility, provisions shall be made and approved by the
Department for proper maintenance of food temperatures and a sanitary mode of transportation.

BE. Food shall be prepared by methods that conserve the nutritive value, flavor, and appearance. The
food shall be palatable, properly prepared, and sufficient in quantity and quality to meetthe daily nutritional

61



needs of the patientsPatients in accordance with written dietary policies and procedures. Efforts shall be
made to accommodate the religious, cultural, and ethnic preferences of each individual patientPatient and
consider variations of eating habits, unless the orders ofa physietanPhysician or other authorizedhealtheare
provaderAuthorized Healthcare Provider contraindicate.

12021302. Food and Food Sterage (1I).

nesurfacac gnd

N of aivy 1 an P
Carr>ura eSS aha -

FERTECRE Py cha
RO -Shhene

q
B
dn
un
g
:
=}
@€
N
s
5
o
7 o
®

ennalbs of narichall
T

JoappTy ol ptristiae

stored-in-therefrigeratorformere-than72 hoursResidential Facilities shall maintain at least a one (1)-week
supply of staple foods and a two (2)-day supply of perishable foods on the premises. Supplies shall be
appropriate to meet the requirements of the menu and special diets.

€A. AResidential Facilities shall serve a minimum of three (3) nutritionally-adequate meals—in

aceordance-with-Section1204-Aabeve; in cach twenty-four (24)-hour period;
ehent unless otherwise directed by the elient’sPatient’s physicianPhysician or other autherized-healtheare

62



prevaderAuthorized Healthcare Provider. Not more than fourteen (14) hours shall elapse between the
serving of the evening meal and breakfast the following day. (II)

Hnto-pranaration and aeniaa. 4 133 e o rract £

Hantian challbha oo Oy “ SariIincs ftopnnintat oo ad
LU lJAUtJuAuL‘.VLL jozeywy t}LULJ.AlJI, A2 & Vllls LIV iIradaevr oo oI Tarn VUITVOTTOOO

P

XIXIQ
WO ST ot-2 v e

EB. Specific times for serving meals shall be established, documented on a posted menu, and followed.

GC. Suitable food and snacks shall be available and offered between meals at no additional cost to the
ehentsPatients. (I11)

12051304. Meal Service WeosrkersPersonnel for Residential Facilities In).

A. The health, disease control, and cleanliness of all those en gaged in food preparation and serving shall
be in accordance with R.61-25.

B. Dietary services shall be organized with established lines of accountability and clearly defined job
assignments for those engaged in food preparation and serving. There shall be trained staffivolunteersStaff
and/or Volunteers to supervise the preparation and serving of the proper diet to the clientsPatients weluding

ChentsPatients may engage in food preparation in accordance with faeilityFacility guidelines; however,

mta f

afth
;

QIO
VIS O Tt y - Strat - proviae TOUPUTVTSIOTIOT

der—TFhefacihtrchallsmravide crmarr:

= -
wthaorizad hanlihearg
v 1 4

P! ranaraboy
Tarencar o pTo T

0.
T arauort

=
g
~
o
N
q
4
I

63



12071305. Menus.

A. Menus shall be planned and written at a minimum of one (1) week in advance and dated as served.
The current week’s menu, including routine and special diets and any substitutions or changes made, shall
be readily available or posted in one (1) or more conspicuous places in a public area. All substitutions made
on the master menu shall be recorded in writing.

B. If the Facility accepts Patients in need of medically-prescribed special diets, the menus for such diets
shall be planned by a professionally qualified Dietitian, or shall be reviewed and approved by a Physician
or other Authorized Healthcare Provider. The Facility shall maintain documentation that each of these
menus has been planned by a Dietitian, a Physician, or other Authorized Healthcare Provider. At a
minimum, documentation for each Patient’s special diet menu shall include the signature of the Dietitian,
the Physician, or other Authorized Healthcare Provider, his or her title, and the date he or she signed the
menu,

BC. Records of menus as served shall be maintained for at least thirty (30) days.

ad-in-a canitaru i annae outo,
AT O uulubu;] PR FISTVIDA-I apwa vy yy

.

datiogs Tlho fhs o
I

Soynta e acn<challba ot
wUITIAIT O IO TIOIT. 1 11 L3

o
STOUPSTIaIT oty

DJece-deliveredto-client araacin hull chall ha in HORPerous—easibelasned-—coverad cantainare
L TOVauITY LTOOtoOCT1IdHIt HINUOTIT O UaTIT oI ar ot 11T IIUII‘JULUW, WETTT UL\J“IIV\A, VAV YOI InIC T
.

v v
A Ligwideorvowdarcoandicnancare amd santantowelsshallbaasmilabla at anch fand oo o anduraol
Fa J—ll\iul\l A=y }J\J YyYuvr O\JIAIJ ulut/\.«;;wxu LTI L= A3 vV Io oo oo vyoiroiioart wAVITTIOUGSCT VIO TITTN AAd
BInfacihittes oflé6-ormorelicenced hode camarata handwashsinks challbha nravided convenient 1o
rr LI TOVIITTICUY OT 1T o oT-111or ¢ ITOVITUOWCE UUUU, L)\ll.lulubv MU IICTTYY TOTT W JIITICSY It T oy tll.\l VIOV UoOTIV

e-egwppedawith-epaninedeiicac xuhickh il BParEait
et p POy Ity P ITIT E OOV IOCS v It O wWitr IS4z yrevey

C AU sxall

1
o 1 LI VWO IS I

Heeratoreand freaazare chall
HIsvITtoT o 1 Te U CTro—rictir o




Thestractare—inclindine ite connonant ot apnd-eamipment_chall ha nranarlszs maa atarnad to s ou-firgea

I ITOTOUr uu»u;v, Jllblu\ull& 1O \JULLAIJUAA\/JJL l_l LU CATICT U\iu IJLLAVL!L, OEIIUATTOW tl \JIJ\/LAJ lllulllquLAVU r IJ\&J‘.\JAIIT

Jaotse—duct and otharsralatad clicmt imie stons—shal-be—minimized whan canctiiotioe [ram o atine

AT, .L‘UAU\/’ uuut, G OUTIIVT TV TOTO O CTICTIvC pougny uuLUAJL) JIIUTITNOWV LLILLLLALLLI_AV\J YYAIWIT \JUILULL UVITOTTTTVITO Y TaoTT

If qunlinnlala o sapen an daaeg IHre-developedforealibrating paadicatine dispensine dnctmiraani

s XX uyf.ulvuuxv, 123 ylvvvumv LYY B R v g v U\.«VVAU}IVU IUT VulleulllL& A1INVITOOATIOTT unuyvuuuxs IITOITUTIICITLY
consitentaaath-maan fo e a0 om0 s otine to o n v aloie o
SUTTITITOTIU VY I TIICETT 1UCTOUOIVT J IO UIAMJJ\JLJ.WILULLU LU Au\.u\_uxs.

'~
frant e cvzata ndma il ooc o
TICTIT bLUuLLUllLs >y upvll;o, 286 Heatcat SOy

tamac Fa~tlie o0 o al] nlaeek
Wty atTHteS-Shar

-
[ s]

oo aefloarima
w SIVTITY, VOTTICLY o TOUT 111 L2
J B 5-9

dlor-alterationato-nniromitinmant e svustem—facilitrchall th araviahlir fact tha edHBent-oravzctans far
amaroTr ot Ta oy to TT v\iulylll\.«lll« U UJ ul\-«jll, xuvlllLJ DILTUTT lllvlvu&lllj (S Jvaomwy gy \/\1\41 IITWITIC T DJ I UAWTET TUr
perationbeforetraturaino it to carmica Tha aeilits chall vaaintain cordeforasch niaca of
l.}x\lt.l\.rj. VIJVLIJI'A 11IOVTUTV AVLMLLLLAL& AL OoOVT vV IC U TIIIS luvlllt.’ SITTETY Lljwlllbulll xvvuluu LI WTOCTIT tll.vv\.t A o

neac Thaooo preventhe
ces—ese-—prevenive

s-and-previde—forthe nronaer dicaoca
SoreT o de—To e —proper-aisposa

(D

te—and-hazardouc
Oxic—aha—thtZAd GO

Gttt Ny

Ran

< thao Ayt
s e FePaTtReR

a

S
+Pravanti o
-

a1 P
L3 IV VVITITOUIT O I

I nccacaiaant to

10 losxrrial adiym 1] hall ba 13a q P
t AL TR OO IS COSTTIICITIT O

L a
1\111, 1.\/., TO VW TS meeuh ThYISS SHanbe oot

L
"J

d_e_tem-n'nn the-nead faor orraineTR ceraaminc nioot farctaFf an
TR eI CCaT oA O EHREL D uv;vleLLls program—tor-statiain

challbha data edforthe-ontivafacilit: I

ok 2 Pat s £ Q) @ o
Soomyam ot Gt R edror-e-e1 TCTIoTInTy - T oortain UULLAIA&U 3 Sy IF

SCL

patiant
2

o Hon—vathin the cettina r haxs
THHCHORABHSpatien o o)

LA TS A o i vy AAJ.UJ

65



Irant Aoy
grreoroninc

10 atatiic A A
\"S e

“ITOTOS Ty StTtty

tubarocnilac
B

TITeTTer

ot ~oantont (o
Feft-contact;

T Te

adtial Pat
LN,

1

date-afbirane
UOCoOT I oo T

10%-1o

T I1OT 0

o Statrc P
JOARRTTTCYY

1

TOoOCTCUIONNT

X

A_Tubaronloo

s

mole TST
Lz a—me o p o

a1l manthe o
Vo= HReHAS-S5

1o aza

PrevIotstwer

13 tha oy,

Tt

t-a-BAMT raclt xanth

T STV e o T oT o D7 ey ooty

r]nnnmnrdad nagativa TOT

ToTHITIICTITS

hada
I

® 9
B
2§
40} H
“PQ
b
P H
"] m
[ )3
= g
[
27
3
ol
P .4
)
[+ o] m
<& 4
[
1 4
&
]
9
® M
Mm ]
[s
£ 3
L 4
-+
[ +] ks
£ 3
2 3
%3
E..Dn
o
B nm
o
T
£9
s3] Tn
L
wu 4
= ]
< H
angps
& g
£
$ 4
B g
wh
B 4
[
I«
RS
o m
<o}
P 3
J 1
29
¢ ¥
£
HE
G
¥ 3
"

T oro

T arrotrcr

T

T

1T

TV OOt

EXS R e g No2

o T o O oI T oouIr

T TIe

TR ot sTUopPeoe

oo T U TtroTthy

ath
Vit

1artno-cantact v
TOT O CoTIreatrv

thtead{3) maonthe s
TR0 oS Pr

Al cta£F (voith

T vY

inele BANT:

e IC— D7 avr

tarn TQT ~y o o
o1 oroeas

I yCUTITIC TYY Oy

1 Baceline fuua o

T

ata £F <y1
WH

T T

1o tactimno
TOStHTES

d
PeTTotIC

I3 v g

1ein atin o

poraTTp oty e it

Inctand ~f oot
H5teaa—6+

TV O—TOSUThSY

negativza racilic

woTamitintaT o EaT

dacurantad

IO NP AX71
Ty O pPTov IOty

1

latant TR
e/t

neadfortreatmant afTR 4

Hbae-evaluatad for tha

W oeToTyaroc

here s1s

£ fF 1 g
TIrootytaT T THCMMolEs

montha) Thaca o

10anca A
T OTSTTryC—oOT

U o TIT oo T O ot oo+

ooy T

66



g hreanian v TR
py-Sicih-wih 1—17

etionILTRI
+7

How-thesecormmendatiane
HTeeHo{1—1 T

VeI T o oot rio Ty H

o

ctad ta b
X

ivegcachall ha avelinda o xzasel aairirad to
TV aosCuna o e X aeaTFo W UAL\., kalujx\./u -

Q1o o
TEYPTTTCaOTo

)
?
Caontrolnraoe pnaatehact radis oennlho otragmiredunlece oxzma orcromeof TR dicasca
Ry = pp wiwsyasewyy PLVE ATTT A\\/l_l\d“b WITOWOT luulu&[ul}xld a1 x;v»xv\—lulxvu VITIVNY L‘IJ ll.J.lleULLAIJ VITITSITO O 1T o Onyttot-
<
1 Clhentsip2d-hourfacilitiacchall hava avidanca of o tvze—aten-tiharenalia ol -1 test—Ithe r\]ianf na
» S LIVTIT ITIT 240 T IO U T CITItICY SITUTIT IOV OO v TOTTITOU Ot LA IJL\.IIJ THUVTCUTITITUICTIT G I I CITOTIC I et

PEQELP-CLE 7o

Clientoin narcobetreatimentoraaram-chall hata o cinala cfasm foaf\xn anth
T ITTTOTIOTT yl pL™) un L w g

a
ey C-Ratreotictreatiient Prostarotat e v ooyt gie IO StTvY T

:-f

P EEeN svetraht 1
L §

crlocia o cairoh
TOTOSTY; € "o VO SInT YW UTETT

sweats—favar chall hoxyn o oot o
BAASCI 27 Fae o 2 =2 o SHa-Aave—a TIICoTT

mao o
Iy u.xl_u.uxxxa A=

arpe-Infection Tealatinm,
ot eHhtrectHonsetation

67



3 SQafa ctaraaa ~AF meale faa 1 dinatad ~e il o ariale nnd

=N~ i%7 B ;JL\JAM&\( Ul T T \uu T ITOatTU O OT 1Ty W L TCETAY A= o
supphesnwell dichtad clacatelea o tmancaccihla fo celhents—TJn24 hourfacilitiac only suhan all oliomie
DMIJIJL].VO AL VY W IT L.lsll A1 VAUU\/I,UII.UUAIIO, IIIUCUCOVIITOTC TO UITUTT LTV I & b ey | IO TOOUITICICY VI..I.LJ [} VV IIWwIT T CITOUTILY
have been—authaorized marmiceion. lays vhvsician—autherzed haslthenra nrotidar nr castifiod /l.nm-mml
AWV OCCIT UULITUTTIANKY 1.’\.;1111!001\!11 U] u IJLAJ DL\'lmA’ uuuxu;xuuu ll\aulbll\um\/ yl\} v L\J\d.’ VI CVITITICO TICCOTTS
comhsalorta-lhandla claasnin g nradiicic anm al ehorac nva ot £ +L tharonaiit:~
UTITISUTOUT CO ITOIICTIC UAV“ILALL& PLUUU\ILD, o eawy llUuU\/Lx\zUylll& ULJULULJ L Hull A\ &S TN \,11\uuyvullv yxuslulrg

feads w—nbl—\' Gl Avraae g ]

XL LY Loy g
CISTE O VT IO o s vap

istant- Oraanicmc ealth-Care-Settinss R AL 105 and NSLIA DRI
P vy L™ ALTT

1o an 1
TOITC YL TTIIT vx&un;lull;u 7 LL\/ulL‘l AT S IO

o tiolre At ractiiaa] ﬂnvonifnn and
e+ StHparas

a been-axaminad hi o
Sorahianave

T U TTmO Tt oy o

thyaat tn tha o b oo fot, a0 r\'rnll km’nn r\rt

Qv At e—cliepnte—shall ha narnaittad i tha focilic,
.ll\J Hl)t}ul\ulll« LIl vaTToO oaTe leullll’ [l 2 B ) LJ, I vy T 11‘5 A o LA \Jll\ullbo, o.l.l.ull LI lJU ILITVOUI IO CITY Lu\/,l,llly
nrosidedthax: are m‘#‘{-‘.mn“ﬂn {‘a,l andearedforandithatthe matc and thaie L.m,mnn/ﬁ«n,l oo ot
ylu ¥OINOWRT I.ll\./] AW T T T IOCTWTT ] V\.I, UITUO COTOUCTr LUA, HAIratITaT ore l.lv‘,u UITOTTITVIT TTOTLYIT s LU \/Ull LuLI.J.VLLJ m\.«

£33 durinetimes—when

Fa¥al
ST et oSy it o0

)
ror-storaseofothervurmeoces Eaclacina/C asarno maax: ha accomplichaedbyytilizingnatariale cuaals o
TTUTTITOUOT M&\/ T O T IJDI»A AL ) = LlAAUlULJLlls WA A > o 4 Vlllls lllu! U u\.«\wvllll.lllull\du U ML‘LLL&IAAE Axxuw\.u lulu NMUNWITCLY
oth—nlastie—or-eanvns covar in ordar to neatant 4k o cobptarrmationaotelaan linaw\/ lathin ol oot Ao gl oo

W I Lll, Pluu &1\/, VI VIV COoOY \41’ 1IIT \J.I.\«l\/L W lJ W VIV OO OO T I T I TIe et o \JL W IAINUWIT ITITCITOTCT I.Lull& J LT Ul VUWIvI




15021401 Disaster Preparedness (IT).

A. All faeilitiesResidential Facilities shall- developasuitableshall develop, by contact and consultation
with their county emergency preparedness agency, a written plan for actionsto be taken in the event of a
disaster and implement the written plan for actions at the time of need. Hiti

is-planin iatonwi o reEse 2 aness-agesiey- Prior to initial licensing of a
¢ submitted to the Department for review.

faeilityFacility by the Department, the complete plan shall b

At s
O 0

- wge Vs

& Fratsasterpis Faroe-Hpaated-appropratery =He e eposeadnew g€ ...“-
the time of each Licenserenewal, a completed formprescribed and furnished by the Department addressing
specific components of the plan shall be included with each application submitted to the Department. All
statbvolunteersStaff and Volunteers shall be made familiar with this plan and instructed as to any required
actions. A copy of the plan shall be available for Inspection by the Patient and/or responsible party and the
Department upon request. The plan shall be reviewed and updated Annually, and as appropriate. The
Facility shall conduct and document a rehearsal of the emergency and disaster evacuation plan at least

Annually and shall not require Patient participation.

B. The disaster plan for 24-heurfaeilitiesR esidential Facilities shall include, but not be limited to:

1. A sheltering plan to include:
a. The licensed bed capacity and average occupancy rate;

b. Name, address, and phone number of the sheltering facility(ies) to which the elientsPatients will
be relocated during a disaster; and

¢. A letter of agreement signed by an authorized representative of each sheltering facility whieh-that
shall include: the number of relocated elientsPatients that can be accommodated; sleeping, feeding, and
medication plans for the relocated elieatsPatients: and provisions for accommodating relocated staff. The
letter shall be updated annually with the sheltering facility and whenever significant changes occur. For
those facilities located in Beaufort, Berkeley, Charleston, Colleton, Dorchester, Horry, Jasper, and

69



Georgetown counties, at least one (1) sheltering facility must be located in a county other than these
counties,

2. A transportation plan to include agreements with entities for relocating elientsPatients whiehthat
addresses:

a. The number and type of vehicles required;

b. How and when the vehicles are to be obtained;

¢. Who (by name or organization) will provide drivers;

d. Procedures for providing appropriate medical support during relocation;

e. The estimated time to accomplish the relocation; and

f. The primary and secondary routes to be taken to the sheltering facility.
3. A staffing plan for the relocated ehentsPatients to include:

a. How care will be provided to the relocated elientsPatients including the number and type of
statfStaff:

b. Plans for relocating staffStaff or assuring transportation to the sheltering facility; and

¢. Co-signed statement by an authorized representative of the sheltering facility if staffing will be
provided by the sheltering facility.

4. A written, signed, and dated statement from the county emergency preparedness agency verifying
the Facility’s plan was developed and reviewed through contact and consultation with the county
emergency preparedness agency.

C. During any emergent event, the Facility shall provide data, Facility and evacuation status, and other
requested information as_determined by the Department, and at a frequency as determined by the

Department.

D. Evacuation is a temporary measure in order to evacuate Patients from potentially hazardous and/or
harmful circumstances and shall not exceed seven (7) calendar days. In the event evacuated Patients are
unable to return to the Facility within seven ( 7) days dueto damage to the Facility or its comp onents, the
lack of electricity and/or water, or other similar reasons, the Facility shall endeavor to assess each Patient’s
current condition and identify each Patient’s current needs and preferences. Based on the resources
available, the Facility shall implement each Patient’s Discharge plan. For Patients needing assistance or
support following Discharge, the Facility shall coordinate the transfer of the Patients to their responsible
parties or to appropriately licensed Facilities capable of meeting the Patients’ needs. Prior to the seventh
(7th) day, if the Facility determines an extension of time is needed, the Facility may request approval from
the Department.

70



1402. Licensed Capacity During an Emergency (II).

A. In the event that the Facility temporarily provides shelter for evacuees who have been displaced due
to a disaster, then for the duration of that emergency, provided the health, safety, and well-being of any
Patient is not compromised, it is permissible to temporarily exceed the licensed capacity for the Facility in
order to accommodate these individuals.

B. A Facility desiring to temporarily admit Patients in excess of its licensed bed capacity due to an
emergency shall:

1. Request that_the Department concur that an emergency situation exists by contacting the

Department;

2. Determine the maximum number of Patients to be temporarily admitted;

3. Establish an anticipated date for Discharge of the temporary Patients;

4. Outline how and where the temporary Patients will be housed: and

5. Contact the county emergency preparedness agency to advise them of additional Patients.

B. The Facility shall not require the Patients temporarily admitted during the emergency situation to
undergo tuberculin screening or submit to an admission history and physical examination.

C. The Facility shall notify the Department when the Patient census has returned to, or moves below,
normal bed capacity by Discharge or transfer to licensed beds.

D. If the event occurs after normal business hours, the Facility shall contact the Department promptly
during the next business day.

E. The Facility shall resolve in advance all other issues related to the temporary Patients (for example,
Staff, Physician orders, additional food, and handling of Medications) by memorandum of agreements,
internal policies and procedures, and emergency planning documents

$5031403. Emergency Call Numbers an.

Emergency call data shall be posted in a conspicuous place and shall include at least the telephone
numbers of fire and police departments, an ambulance service, and the poison control center. Other
emergency call information shall be available, to include the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of

the staffStaffto be notified in case of emergency, and the physieianPhysician or other anthesrizedhealtheare
prevaderAuthorized Healthcare Provider on-call.

15041404. Continuity of Essential Services .
There shall be a written plan to be implemented to assure the continuation of essential elientPatient

supportive services for such reasons as power outage, water shortage, or in the event of the absence from
work of any portion of the work force resultin g from inclement weather or other causes.

SECHON 1660
HREPREVENTION-

71



SECTION 1500 — FIRE PREVENTION

166141501. Arrangements for Fire Department Response (I).

A. Each faeility-Facility shall develop, in coordination with its supporting fire department and/or disaster
preparedness agency, suitable written plans foractions to be taken in the event of fire.

B. Facilities located outside of a service area or range of a public fire department shall arrange for the
nearest fire department to respond in case of fire by written agreement with that fire department. A copy of
the agreement shall be kept on file in the faeihityFacility and a copy shall be forwarded to the Department.
If the agreement is changed, a copy shall be forwarded to the Department,

$6021502. Fire Response Training (I).

A. Each staff-member/volunteerStaff member and Volunteer shall receive trainin g within ene-weekof
hiringrand-atafrequency determined-bytwenty-four (24) hours of his or her first day of employment in the
faeiliby Facility, butand at least ansualtyAnnually thereafter, addressing at a minimum, the followin g

1. FireThe Facility fire plan te-meludeincluding evacuation routes and procedures;and-the-training
of staff;

B2. Reporting a fire;

€3. Use of the fire alarm system, if applicable;

B4. Location and use of fire-fighting equipment;

E5. Methods of fire containment; and

E6. Specific responsibilities, tasks, or duties of each individual.

B. Documentation of the fireresponse training shall be signed anddated by both the individual providing
the training and the individual receiving the training, and maintained in the individual’s Staff record.

46831503. Fire Drills (I).

A. A plan for the evacuation of Patients, Staff members, and visitors, to include evacuation routes and
procedures, in case of fire or other emergencies, shall be established and posted in conspicuous public areas
throughout the Facility.

AB. GhientsPatients shall be made familiar with the fire plan and evacuation plan upon admission. The
Facility shall maintain documentation of the review of the fire plan and evacuation plan with the Patient in
the Patient’s record.

B— An uvpannounced fira deill chall ha
HFe—afht

Do orroirrounicoa—r T o T

arbs forall chifte Lacl ctnff
et

1a
OO TTy— TOT oI oIty Tyt

’
12
memberivoluntearachall narticinata i o Fira d rear-Recordeof drille chall ha
ImMmuITToOV YUIUIT VG T JTIXTIT yulnxv;yuuu oI 1rire o LILINVOOTOY TITTLS JTITOTT OO~
il
&

=
adrill and i
C-GTmahaene

¥ ¥
mamtamedstthae factlibtu gndicating tbha data fime
TITIUTITIN OO T UL LUVLLLLJ F} LALUlUuLLIL& \? vy vy uun,\«, LI

J

wJ
avialiiati e ~
YV OTIOOUIOTT O
din d

. g

C. All Patients capable of assisting in their own evacuation shall be trained in the proper actions to take
in the event of a fire.

72



D. For Residential Facilities only:

1. Unless otherwise mandated by statute or regulation, an unannounced fire drill shall be conducted at
least quarterly for all shifts. Each Staff member and Volunteer shall participate in a fire drill at least once
each vear. Records of drills shall be maintained at the Facility, indicating the date, time, shift, description,
and evaluation of the drill, and the names of Staff and Volunteers and number of Patients directly involved
in responding to the drill.

2. All Patients at the time of the fire drill shall participate in the drill. In instances when a Patient
refuses to participate in_a drill, efforts shall be made to encourage participation, €.g., counseling,
implementation of incentives rewarding patients for participation, specific Staff-to-Patient and
Volunteer-to-Patient assignments to promote Patient participation. Continued refusal may necessitate
implementation of the Discharge planning process to place the Patient in a setting more appropriate to their
needs and abilities,

SECTION 1600 — MAINTENANCE

1601. General (II).

A. The Facility shall keep all equipment and building components (for example, doors, windows, lighting
fixtures, plumbing fixtures) in good repair and operating condition. The Facility shall document preventive
maintenance. The Facility shall comply with the provisions of the codes officially adopted by the South
Carolina Building Codes Council and the South Carolina State Fire Marshal applicable to the Facility. (IT)

B. If applicable, a_documented and implemented procedure shall be developed for calibrating
Medication-dispensing instruments consistent with manufacturer’s recommendations to ensure accurate

dosing and tracking,

1602. Preventive Maintenance of Emergency Equipment and Supplies (11).

Each Facility shall develop and implement a written preventive maintenance program for all fire alamm,
electrical, mechanical, plumbing, fire protection systems and for all equipment and supplies in cluding, but
not limited to, all Patient monitoring equipment, isolated electrical systems, conductive flooring, Patient
grounding systems, and medical gas systems. Facilities shall check and/or test this equipment at intervals
ensuring proper operation and state of good repair. After repairs and/or alterations to any equipment or
system, the Facility shall thoroughly test the equipment or system for proper operation before returning it
to service. The Facility shall maintain records for each piece of emergency equipment to indicate its history
of testing and maintenance.

SECTION 1700 — INFECTION CONTROL AND ENVIRONMENT

1701. Staff Practices.

Staff practices shall promote conditions that prevent the spread of infectious, contagious, or communicable
diseases and provide for proper disposal of toxic and hazardous substances. These preventive measures
and/or practices shall be in compliance with applicable guidelines of Bloodborne Pathogens Standard of
the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970; the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention and
R.61-105, Infectious Waste Management: and other applicable federal, state. and local laws and regulations.

1702. Tuberculosis Risk Assessment and Screening (1).

73



A. Tuberculosis Testing. The Facility may utilize either Tuberculin skin testing or Blood Assay for
Mycobacterium tuberculosis (‘BAMT?) for detecting Myobacterium tuberculosis infection:

1. Tuberculin skin testing. A small dose (0.1 mil) of purified protein derivative (PPD) tuberculin is
injected just beneath the surface of the skin (by the intradermal Mantoux method), and the area is examined
for induration (hard, dense, raised area at the site of the TST administration) forty-eight to seventy-two (48
to 72) hours after the injection (but positive reactions can still be measurable up to a week afier
administering the TST). The size of the indurated areais measured with a millimeter ruler and the reading
is recorded in millimeters, including zero (0) millimeters to_represent no induration. Redness and/or
erythema is insignificant and is not measured or recorded. Authorized Healthcare Providers are permitted
to perform tuberculin skin testing and symptom screening.

2. Blood Assay for Mycobacterium tuberculosis (“BAMT”). A general term to refer to in vitro
diagnostic tests that assess for the presence of tuberculosis (“TB”) infection with Myobacterium
tuberculosis. Thisterm includes, but is not limited to, IFN-v releasc assays (“IGRA”).

B. The Facility shall conduct an annual tuberculosis risk assessment in accordance with the Centers for
Disease Control guidelines to guide the Facility’s infection control policies and procedures related to the
appropriateness and frequency of tuberculosis screening and other tuberculosis related measures to be
taken.

C. Baseline Status.

1. The Facility shall determine the baseline status of all staff according to current Centers for Disease
Control and Departmental Tuberculosis guidelines.

2. Tuberculosis Screening. All staff within three (3) months prior to Patient contact shall have a
baseline two-step Tuberculin Skin Test ( “TST”) or a single Blood Assay for Mycobacterium tuberculosis
(BAMT”). If a newly emplovyed staff or volunteer has had a documented negative TST or a BAMT result
within the previous twelve (12) months, a single TST (or the single BAMT) can be administered and read
to serve as the baseline priorto Patient contact.

D. Post Exposure. After known exposure to a person with potentially infectious tuberculosis disease
without usc of adequate personal protection, the tuberculosis status of all staff shall be determinedin a
manner prescribed in_the Centers for Disease Control and Department’s most current tuberculosis

guidelines.

E. Annual Tuberculosis Training. All staff shall receive annual training regarding tuberculosis to include
risk factors and signs and symptoms of tuberculosis disease. The annual tuberculosis training shall be
documented in a staff record and maintained at the Facility.

F. Serial Screening. The Facility shall follow the Centers for Disease Contro] and Department ’s most
current tuberculosis guidelines related to serial screening.

1703. Tuberculosis Screening for Patients (D).

A. At baseline, Patients in Residential Facilities shall have evidence of a two -step tuberculin skin test or
single Blood Assay for Mycobacterium tuberculosis. If the Patient in a Residential Facility has a
documented negative tuberculin skin test (at least single-step) within the previous twelve (12) months, the
Patient shall have only one (1) tuberculin skin test or sin gle Blood Assay for Mycobacterium tuberculosis
to establish a baseline status.

74



B. Patients in Residential Facilities shall have at least the first step within thirty (30) days prior to
admission and no later than forty-ight (48) hours after admission.

C. Patients in the Opioid Treatment Program shall receive the first step of the two -step tuberculin test
within seventy-two (72) hours of admission to the F acility. The second step of the two -step tuberculin skin
test must be administered within the next seven to fourteen (7 to 14) days.

D. Patients with Positive Tuberculosis Results.

1. Patients with a baseline positive or newly positive test result for Mycobacterium tuberculosis
infection (i.e., tuberculosis skin test or Blood Assay for Mycobacterium Tuberculosis) or documentation of
treatment for latent tuberculosis infection, tuberculosis disease or signs or symptoms of tuberculosis, e.g.,
cough, weight loss, night sweats, fever, shall have a chest radiograph performed immediately to exclude
tuberculosis disease (or evaluate an interpretable copy taken within the previous three (3) months). Routine
repeat chest radiographs are not required unless symptoms or signs of TB tuberculosis disease develop or
unless recommended by a Physician. These Patients will be evaluated for the need for treatment of TB
tuberculosis disease or latent tuberculosis infection and will be encouraged to follow the recommendations
made by a Physician with tuberculosis expertise (i.e., the Department’s Tuberculosis Control program).

2. Patients who are known or suspected to have tuberculosis disease shall be transferred from the
Facility if the Facility does not have an Airbome Infection Isolation room, required to undergo evaluation
by a Physician, and permitted to return to the Facility only with approval by the Department’s Tuberculosis
Control program.

1704. Housekeeping (I1).

The Facility and its grounds shall be neat, clean, free of vermin, and free of offensive odors.

A. Interior housekeeping shall at a minimum include:

1. Cleaning each specific area of the Facility:

2. Cleaningand disinfection,as needed, of equipmentused and/or maintained in each area, appropriate
to the area and the equipment’s purpose or use:

3. Chemicals indicated as harmful on the product label, cleaning materials and supplies shall be in
locked storage areas and inaccessible to Patients: and

4. During use of chemicals indicated as harmful on the product label, cleaning materials and supplies
shall be in direct possession of the Staff member and monitored at all times.

B. Exterior housekeeping shall at a minimum include:

1. Cleaning of all exterior areas, such as porches and ramps, and removal of safety impediments such
as water, snow, and ice; and

2. Keeping Facility grounds free of weeds, rubbish, overgrown landscaping, and other pote ntal
breeding sources for vermin.

1705. Infectious Waste (I).

75



Accumulated waste, including all contaminated sharps, dressings, pathological, and/or similar infectious
waste, shall be disposed of in a manner compliant with R.61-1 03, Infectious Waste Management, and the
OSHA Bloodborne Pathogens Standard.

1706. Pets (LI).

A. Healthy animals that are free of fleas, ticks, and intestinal parasites, and have been examined by a
veterinarian priorto entering the Facility, havereceived required inoculations, ifapplicable, and that present
no apparent threat to the health, safety, and well-being of the Patients, shall be permitted in the Facility,
provided they are sufficiently fed, and cared for, and that the pets and their housing and food containers are

kept clean.

B. Pets shall not be allowed near Patients who have allergic sensitivities to pets, or for other reasons,
such as Patients who do not wish to have pets near them.

C. Pets shall not be allowed in the kitchen area. Pets shall be permitted in Patient dining and activities
areas only during times when food is not being served. If the dining and activities area is adjacent to a food
preparation or storage area, those areas shall be effectively separated by walls and closed doors while pets

are present.

1707. Clean and Soiled Linen and Clothing for Residential Facilities (1I).

A. Clean Linen and Clothing.

1. A supply of clean, sanitary linen and clothing shall be available at all times;

2. In order to prevent the contamination of clean linen and clothing by dust or other airborne particles
or organisms, clean linen and clothing shall be stored and transported in a sanitary manner, forexample,
enclosed and covered; and

3. Clean linen and clothing shall be separated from storage for other purposes.

B. Soiled Linen and Clothing.

1. Soiled linen and clothing shall not be sorted, rinsed, or washed outside of the laundry service area;

2. Provisions shall be made for collecting, transporting, and storing soiled linen and clothing:

3. Soiled linen and clothing shall be kept in enclosed, covered, and leak proof containers; and

4. Laundry operations shall not be conducted in Patient rooms, dining rooms, or in locations where
food is prepared, served, or stored. Patients may sort, rinse, and handwash their own soiled, delicate,
personal items, e.g., pantyhose, underwear, socks, handkerchiefs, clothing, accessories, heirloom linens,
needlepoint, crocheted, or knitted pillows orpillowcases, or other similar items personally owned and cared
forby, in a private bathroom or sink, provided the practice does not create a safety hazard, e.g. water on
the floor.

SECHON1700
QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM-:

76



SECTION 1800 — QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM {n

1701 General(dh).

A. ThereFacilities shall bemaintain a written, implemented qualityimprovement-programQuali
Improvement Program that provides effective self-assessment and implementation of changes designed to
improve the treatment/care/services provided by the faeility Facility.

B. The quality-improvementprogramQuality Improvement Pro gram, asat a minimum, shall:

1. Establish desired outcomesand the criteria bywhichpolicyandprocedure effectiveness is re gularly,
systematically, and objectively accomplished;

2. Identify, evaluate, and determine the causes of any deviation from the desired outcomes;

3. Identify the action taken to correct deviations and prevent future deviation, and the person(s)
responsible for implementation of these actions;

4. Establish ways to measure the quality of elientPatient care and stafsStaff performance, as well as

the degree to which the policies and procedures are followed,

5. Analyze the appropriateness of IFP’sIndividual Plans of Care and the necessity of
treatment/care/services rendered;

6. Analyze the effectiveness of the fire plan;
7. Analyze all incidents and accidents to include elientPatient deaths;

8. Analyze any infection, epidemic outbreaks, or other unusual occurrences which threaten the health,
safety, or well-being of the elientsPatients; and

9. Establish a systematic method of obtaining feedback from elientsPatients and other interested

persons, e.g., family members and peer organizations, as expressed by the level of satisfaction with
treatment/care/services received.

SECTION1806

SECTION 1900 — DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

18011901. Codes and Standards.

e-destap-and-constrnetioncnacificatinng o farx Eacilitiactha rrduals forPovehancotiva q""‘ﬁmﬁe@
LTI UUUA&IL GITUCUTIOT OCTTIOUNT Uy\yvl‘l\lubl\.}xlu AVI T OVTITOOC Y Or I UULY TUT 1 D] wIITUTTCOTITY VT oOoaoD
Bted-standarde forfacilito dacion

nee-shallcopforntothoemant crirrantiaationalla BV
IOV IIIONIT COTI IOTTIT 0 LITNWITT DUV UTIVIITUITOTIOTIOTY UG vau DlUaIrguUTas I©oT lu\/.lLLI.J \.L\tulsl.
: Qi ats o a

(]

PO\ Timtazen ats

aa
CO T irveTratr

joo]
©®

MY Natiognal Fira Protoctiom A A INEDRA
1Y)

aq I Fa V.S T.0 22N
MY IS T U T O o CHOTASSO-S18aHOH (YT

d
- ~ 3
1 nanster—Eoarm—NEPR A 2 Standard—-on—Carbon Diaxide Exvtinaiichine Sxzcteime NEPA
T A patsio—Tod v EA—1-2 e o e T O O G e S SR Sy Sstem s AEPA-
12 A Standard-onHalan 12301 Fire Eviiaorrichine Syictamae NEPA 12 Standard-forthe Inctallation of
ottt dra-otaioh— Tt St S HR S Y SRS N A3 otanraaraHo-mehStaHaten
R

o
SorinllotrSvctarme NEPA 12R

Hatton-ef-Sprinkler-Suctama in L

asidential
OO OO PHHOe Y StemsSih €

PO O Yy ot T T T Ao




A ganba

T X EUTTLY;

o\ atis

O YV CTeE

andard for Wat Ol oo ] Bvtineaiching Svatarmac N A1Q Qi do.-1
crtaieT oy oo e r S g SIS Oy StOHRhy TN TO—otadiraa s

Pawes
s

=4 A=g2 ey

Budding-Code HEBOAII Facilities shall be planned, designed, and equipped to provide and promote th
health, safety, and well-being of each Patient. Facility design shall be such that all Patients have access to
required services.

18021902. Local and State Codes and Standards (I1).

A. BetldingsFacilities shall comply with pertinentprovisions localandstate-laws—codes-ordinances-and
i } ton-of the codes officially adopted by the South Carolina
Building Codes Council and the South Carolina State Fire Marshal applicable to the type of Facility. No

faeilityFacility shall be licensed unless the Department has assurance that responsible local zoning and
building officials (zening-and building) have approved the faedlityFacility for code compliance.

B.. All Facilities shall meet the construction codes and regulations for the building and its essential
equipment and systems in effect at the time the License was issued unless specifically required otherwise
in writing by the Department.

C. Facilities shall ensure all additions, alterations, or renovations meet the codes, regulations, and
requirements in effect at the time of the plan’s approval.

E. Any Facility that closes or has its License revoked and for which application forlicensure is made at
the same site shall be considered a new building and shall meet the current codes, regulations, and
requirements for the building and its essential equipment and systems in effect at the time of application

for licensing.




18041903. Submission of Plans and Specifications (ID.

A. Prior to construction for new buildings, additions, major alterations or replacement to existing
buildings, when a building is licensed for the first time, when a building changes keenseLicense type, or a
feetlityFacility increases occupant load/licensed capacity, plans and specifications shall be submitted to the
Department forreview, unless otherwise agreed to with the Department. Final plans and specifications shall
be prepared by an architect and/or engineer registered in South Carolina and shall bear their seals and
signatures. Architectural plans shall also bear the seal of a South Carolina registered architectural
corporation. These submissions shall be made in at least three (3) stages: schematic, design development,
and final. All plans shall be drawn to scale with the title, stage of submission, and date shown thereon. Any
construction changes from the approved documents shall be approved by the Department. Construction
work shallnot commence until a construction plan approval hasbeenreceived fromthe Department. During
construction the owner and/or Licensee shall employ a registered architect and/or engineer for supervision

and nspeetionsInspections.

Q

at1o

Lo Q
~ B

Department-The Facility shall sub

for projects that have an effect on:

mit plans and specifications to the Department for review and approval

1. The function of a space;

2. The accessibility to or of an area;

3. The structural integrity of the Facility:

4. The active and/or passive fire safety systems:

5. Doors:

79



6. Walls;

7. Ceiling system assemblies:

8. Exit corridors:

9. Life safety systems: or

10. That increase the occupant load or capacity ot the Facility.

C. Cosmetic changes utilizing paint, wall covering, floor covering, etc., that are required to have a
flame-spread rating or other safety criteria shall be documented with copies of the documentation and
certifications, kept on file at the faeilityF acility, and made available to the Department.

D. All subsequent addenda, change orders, field orders, and documents altering the Department review
must be submitted. Any substantial deviation from the accepted documents shall require written
notification, review, and re-approval from the Department.

18051904. Construction Inspections.

Construction work that violates applicable codes or standards shall be brought into compliance. All

projects shall obtain all required permits from the locality having jurisdiction. The-Department will-not
emmence-ispectionunless-the-constructionhas-pronerperitin e-Construction without a proper permit

shall not be inspected by the Department.

o
fyarianerantoriola A
—vaHousiRatears-af
=z
y =)

izad tacting o aan

g 5 h-theg q i
ascamblies notanac "‘”"""'S%ed—i-ﬂ—t-he-eedes
ST TION oS- ROt Speacany-+

¥
derntitermm Labomtarics  Parildiac
MVTVWWITIUTY O UTaOUCOTICAY ubuu.m]s

clan
[BEVOTIC O S s CTCIC-5a6

SECTION 2000 — FIRE PROTECTION, PREVENTION, AND LIFE SAF ETY ()

2001 Eire Alarms-(1)

A. Eaeh-feeilityFacilities with six (6) or more licensed Residential beds shall have a partial, manual,
automatic, supervised fire alarm system. Thesystemshallbe-arangedThe Facility shall arrange the system
to transmit an alarm automatically to a third party. The alarm system shall notify by audible and visual

80



alarm all areas and floors of the building. The alarm system shall shut down central recirculation systems
and outside air units that serve the area(s) of alarm origination as a minimum.

B, efre-iny B4 '-:"“;- St 61 4 & sy - H v - ‘:: . .&
Residential Facilities only, all fire, smoke, heat, sprinkler flow, and manual fire alarming devices shall be
connected to and activate the main fire alarm system when activated,

2 : ale : and-triscerthe-system-w are-aetivated—The fire-resistive ratings for
the various structural components shall comply with the applicable code(s) in Section 1900. Fire -resistive
ratings of various materials and assemblies not specifically listed in the codes can be found in publications
of recognized testing_agencies such as Underwriters Laboratories - Building Materials List and
Underwriters Laboratories - Fire Resistance Directory.

D. The Facilty shall not have single and multi-station smoke alarms.

SECTION 2100 — [RESERVED]

SECTION 2200 — [RESERVED)]

SECTION 2300 — [RESERVED]

SECHON2100

ELECTRICAL:
SECTION 2400 — ELECTRICAL

2401. Receptacles (11).

A. Patient Room. Each Patient room shall have duplex grounding type receptacles located to include one
(1) atthe head of each bed.

B. Corridors. Duplex receptacles for general use shall be installed approximately fifty (50) feet apart in
all corridors and within twenty-five (25) feet of the ends of corridors.

2402. Ground Fault Protection (I).

A. Ground fault circuit-interrupter protection shall be provided for all outside receptacles and bathrooms.

B. The Facility shall provide ground fault circuit-interrupter protection for any receptacles within six (6)
feet of a sink or any other wet location. If the sink is an integral part of the metal splashboard grounded by
the sink, the entire metal area is considered part of the wet location.

2403. Exit Signs ().

A. In Facilities licensed for six (6) or more beds, required exits and ways to access thereto shall be
identified by electrically-illuminated exit signs.

B. Changes in egress direction shall be marked with exit signs with directional arrows.

C. Exit signs in corridors shall be provided to indicate two (2) directions of exit.

81



21642404. Emergency Electric Service (I).
Emergency electric services shall be provided as follows:
A. Exit lights, if required;
B. Exit access corridor lighting;
C. lllumination of means of egress; and
D. Fire detection and alarm system, if required.

21022405. Emergency Generator Service.

A. Residential FreatmentPregram-Facilities and-Nareotic TreatmentPrograntshall have an emergency

generator and shall provide certification that construction and installation of emergency generator service
complies with requirements of all adopted Sstate, Efederal, or local codes, ordinances, and regulations.

B. Residential FreatmentProgram-Facilities andNarcotic Freatment Program-shall have an emergency

generator that providesemergency electrical service during interruptionof the normal electrical service and
shall be provided to the distribution system as follows:

1. Exit lights and exit directional signs;

2. Exitaccess corridor lighting;

W

- Lighting of means of egress and sta££Staff work areas;
4. Fire detection and alarm systems;

5. In patientPatient care areas;

6. Signal system;

7. Equipment necessary for maintaining telephone service;

8. Elevator service that will reach every patieatPatient floor when rooms are located on other than the
ground floor;

9. Fire pump (if applicable);

10. Equipment for heating and cooling patientPatient rooms;

11. Public restrooms;

12. Essential mechanical equipment rooms;

13. Battery-operated lighting and a receptacle in the vicinity of the emergency generator;

14. Alarm systems, water flow alarm devices, and alarms required for medical gas systems; and

82



15. Patient records when solely electronically based.

SECTION 2500 — [RESERVED]

SECTION2200

PHYSICAL PEANT.
SECTION 2600 — PHYSICAL PLANT

22042601 Facility Accommodations/ and Floor Area (D).

A. 24-heurResidential Facilities-there shall be-provide sufficient living arrangements for everyeneall

residing-thereinproviding for elient’s-quict reading, study, relaxation, entertainment, or
srerce-pedreons-bathrooms living-dinine andrecreational areas-available—fs

Patients, including
recreation. This-sh

k3

B. MinmremResidential Facilities shall meet minimum square footage requirements shallbe-as follows:

(D

1. Twenty (20) square feet per licensed bed of living and recreational areas combined, excluding
bedrooms, halls, kitchens, dining rooms, bathrooms, and rooms not available to the elientsPatients. In
faeilitiesFacilities for methessparents with children, there shall be at least twenty (20) square feet per
licensed bed and ten (10) square feet per child of livin g and recreational areas together.

2. Fifteen (15) square feet of floor space in the dining area per licensed bed. In faeilitiesFacilities for
mothersparents with children, dining space shall accommodate fifteen (15)square feet per licensed bed and
seven and a half (7.5) square feet per child.

o¥a

an &l - = [y NTO

C. e 24 areAeadnen e ce - SHea-d e = o€ rovigeainamanhe w1iHEH <
not-require-chientsResidential Facilities shall not require Patients to ambulate from one site to another
outside the building;er which impedes-clients and shall not impede Patients from ambulating from one
site to another due to the presence of physical barriers.

D. ThereResidential Facilities shall_make be—accommodations available to meet group needs of
ehentsPatients and their visitors.

E. Metheds—forResidential Facilities shall-ensusing ensure visual and auditory privacy between

ehientPatients and staff/ Staff and volunteers-shall beprovidedasnecessaryVolunteers.

22022602. Design (1).

A-faeilityFacilities shall be planned, designed, and equipped to provide and promote the health, safety, and
well-being of each elientPatient. Facility design shall be such that all elientsPatientshave access to required
services. There shall be two hundred (200) gross square feet per licensed bed in faeiliiesResidential
Facilities ten (10) beds or less, and an additional one hundred (100) gross square feet per licensed bed for
each licensed bed over ten (10).

22032603. Furnishings/ and Equipment (I).

83



A. TFherFacilities shall ensure the physical plant shall-be—maintainedis free of fire hazards erand
impediments to fire prevention.

B. NeFacilities shall not have any portable electric or unvented fuel heaters-shallbepermitted.

C. FireplacesFacilities shall ensure that fireplaces and fossil-fuel stoves;-e-gwvood-burningshall have

partitions, ef-screens, or other means to prevent burns. Eireplaces-shall beFacilities shall ensure that
fireplaces are ventedto the outside and shall prohibit “unvented”~Usnvented? type gas logs-arenotallowed.
GasFacilities shall ensure that gas fireplaces shalbhave a remote gas shutoff within the room and-but not
inside the fireplace.

22042604, Number-and Loeations(D-Exits (I).

A. If exit doors and cross-corridor doors are locked, the requirements under Special Locking
Arrangements shall be met as applicable to the code listed in Section 1804+1900.

B. HellsFacilities shall maintain halls, corridors, and all other means of egress from the building-shall-be
maintained free of obstructions.

C. ose-clients-thatmayrequire physical-orverbal-assistance to-exi he-buildingshallnotbeloeated
above-orbelow-the-floorefexit-discharseFacilities shall not assign Patients needing physical or verbal

assistance to exit the building to rooms located above or below the floor of exit discharge.

D. Each-ehentFacilities shall ensure that cach Patient room shallepenopens directly to an approved exit
access corridor without passage through another occupied space or shallhavehas an approved exit directly
to the outside at grade level and accessible to a public space free of encumbrances. When two 2)
elientPatient rooms share a common “sitting” area, the “sitting” area shall that-opens onto the exit access
corridor.

22052605. Water Supply/and Hygiene (IT).

ClientFacilities shall ensure that Patient and staffStaff hand-washin g lavatories, and elientPatient showers!
and tubs shatlbeare supplied with hot and cold water at all times.

22662606. Temperature Control (I).

A. Facilities shall ensure that plumbing fixtures accessible to Patients and requiring hot water to have a
water supply that is thermostatically controlled to a temperature of at least one hundred (100) degrees
E-Fahrenheit and not to exceed one hundred and twenty (120) degrees E-Fahrenheit at the fixture.

B. The-waterheaterorcombination-of heaters-shallbe-sized-toResidential Facilities shall ensure that

water heaters provide at least six (6) gallons of water per hour per bed at the above temperature range. (II)

C. Hot water supplied to the kitchen equipment/utensil washing sink shall be supplied at one hundred
and twenty (120) degrees E-Fahrenheit provided all kitchen equipment/utensils are chemically sanitized.
Forthose faeilitiesFacilities sanitizing with hot water, the sanitizing compartment of the kitchen equipment
and utensil washing sink shall be capable of maintaining the water at a temperature of at least +86one
hundred and seventy one (171) degrees EFahrenheit.

D. Hot water provided for washing linenfand clothing shall not be less than one hundred and sixty (160)
degrees EFahrenheit. Should chlorine additives or other chemicals which contribute to the margin of safety

84



in disinfecting linen/clothing be a part of the washing cycle, the minimum hot water temperature shall not
be less than one hundred and ten (110) degrees E-Fahrenheit, provided hot air drying is used. (II)

2607. Cross-connections (I).

Facilities shall ensure that there are no cross-connections in plumbing between safe and potentially unsafe
water supplies. Facilities shall ensure water is delivered at least two (2) delivery pipe diameters above the
rim or points of overflow to each fixture, equipment, and service unless protected against back-siphonage
by approved vacuumbreakers or other approved back-flow preventers. Facilities shall ensure thatall faucets
and fixtures which may be attached to a hose have an appro ved vacuum breaker or other approved
back-flow preventer.

22072608. Design-and-Construction-of Wastewater Systems (I).

A. FheResidential Facilitics shall ensure the wastewater system for commercial kitchens-shallbe isin
accordance with R.61-25, Retail Food Establishments.

B. Ligui i Facilities shall dispose of liquid waste in a wastewater system
approved by the local authority;-e-g i,

2208: 2609. Flectric Wiring (I).

Facilities shall ensure that a licensed electrician, registered
engineer, or certified building inspector inspects the electric wiring at least annually.

2209- 2610. Panelboards (II).

Fhe-directory-shall-bedabeledFacilities shall label the panclboard directory to conform to the actual room
numbers or designations and shall maintain clear access to the panelboard. Clearaecess-ofstored matesials

22102611. Lighting.

A. SpaeesFacilities shall maintain lighting in spaces occupied by persons, machinery, and equipment
within buildings, approaches to buildings, and parking lots-shall-betighted. (1)

B. AdeguateFacilitiesshall provide artificial light shallbeprovidedto-ineludewith sufficient illumination

for reading, observation, and activities.

C. Clies ms-shallhavesen shtingin-alls o com;andshallhaveR esidential Facilities
shall maintain general lighting in all parts of Patients’ rooms, and shall provide at least one (1) light fixture
fornightlightingin each Patientroom. Areadinglichtshallbe providedforeachelientResidential Facilities

shall provide a reading light to each Patient.

D. Halways;Facilities shall maintain lighted hallways, stairs, and all other means of egress shall-be

lighted-at all times.

85



a
S

Bart o axaatal ol
I.lul\ o IV TITOTOT JPL“

oy il wetlacationIftha cinl- i

s leor & Ar1ira 13 Qo1 wvato oo
TS OT uLLJ Vv w o Iova U It S IITIVTTY T ‘.Lll\d&lu

pa

L 2]

2243-2612. Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning HVAC)-(1I).

A. Fhe-HVACFacilities shall ensure that a certified or licensed technician inspects the heating,

ventilation, and air conditioning_system shall-be—inspected-at least annuallyence—a—year—by—a
Fiedll Ltochnician.

B. The-faeilityFacilities shall maintain a temperature efbetween seventy-two (72)- and seventy-eight
(78) -degrees E-Fahrenheit in elientPatient areas.

C. No-HVACsupplyorreturngrill shall beinstalledwithinFacilities shall ensurethatheating, ventilation,
and air conditioning supplies and return erills are installed at least three (3) feet efaway from a smoke
detector. (I)

D. Facilities shall ensure that heating, ventilation, and air conditioning grills are not installed in the floors.

DE. latakeFacilities shall ensure that intake air ducts shall-beare filtered and maintained to prevent the
entrance of dust, dirt, and other contaminating materials. i i
iy i Facilities shall ensure discharge from the heating,
ventilation, and air conditioning system does not irritate Patients, Staff, and Volunteers.

EF. Eaeh-bath/ Facilities shall have operable windows or approved mechanical ventilation in every
bathroom and restroom-shal-h eithe indow have-s i entilati

G. Facilities shall ensure all kitchen areas are ventilated to prevent excessive heat, steam, condensation,
vapors, smoke, and fumes.

2344-2613. ClientPatient Rooms,

A. E

ach elion hall be 5 W86 3y : tertResidential
Facilities shall provide the following equipment in each Patient room for each Patient:

1. A comfortable single bed having a mattress with moisture -proof cover, sheets, blankets, pillow and

pillowcases;, rell-awayRoll-away type beds, cots, bunkbeds, and folding beds shallnotbe-usedare not
permitted. Itis-permissibleFacilities are permitted to remove a elientPatient bed and place the mattress on

a platform or pallet, or utilize a recliner, prowidedupon approval by the physietanPhysician or other

86



atthorized-healtheare—provider—has—approved;Authorized Healthcare Provider and Hre—desisisn—is

deecumenteddocumentation is provided in the Il2FIndividual Plan of Care. (1D

2. A closet or wardrobe, a bureau consisting of at least three (3) drawers, and a compartmentalized
bedside table/ or nightstand to adequately accommodate each elient’sPatient’s personal clothing,

belongings, andtoiletarticles. Built-instorageis permittedFacilities are permitted to utilize built-in storage.

3. A comfortable chair for each elientPatient occupying the room. In—existingfaeiliies—fIf the
available square footage of the elientPatient room will not accommodate a chair for cach elientPatient or if

the provision of multiple chairs impedes elient-Patient ability to freely and safely move about within their

room, Facilities shall provide at least one (1) chair shall-be-provided-and provisions-made-to-haveand make

additional chairs available for temporary use in the elient:sPatient’s room byfor visitors.

B. Hhespitel-typebedsare-usedsthere shallbeFacilities thatuse hospital-type beds shall maintain at least

two (2) lockable casters on each bed, located either diagonally or on the same side of the bed.

C. Bedsshallnet-beplacedFacilities shall not place beds in corridors, solaria, or other locations not
designated as elientPatient room areas. (I)

D. Ne-elientroomshallcontainmore-thanFacilities shall ensure Patient rooms have a maximum of three

(3) beds. Ia-faeilities Facilities with mothers with children; shall ensure Patient rooms have a maximum of

one (1) licensed bed and two (2) cribs or bedsne-clientreomshall contain-morethan-one{1) Heensed-bed
and-two-eribstbeds. (II)
E. Neo-clientreom-shall-bedocatedFacilities shall not have any Patient rooms in a basement.

F. AecessFacilities shallnot provideaccess to a elientPatient room shallretbeby-wayefthrough another

elientPatient room, toilet, bathroom or kitchen.

G. Facilities shall provide bed pans, urinals, hot water bottles, and any other equipmentnecessary to meet
Patient needsSuch-equipn as-bed-pansurinals-and hetwaterbe : 3746 tentneed
shettbe-provided. Portable-commeodesshall bepermittedFacilities are permitted to have portable toilets in
ehientPatient rooms only atnight or in case of temporary illness, and shall keep them stored at all other
times. At-all-othertimes;they-shall be-suitably-stored-Facilities are permitted to permanently position a
portable toiletata Patient’s bedsideif the toilet is sanitary and the Patientroom is private and ofa sufficient

sizePermanentpe of oomisprivate-the

H. Siderails-may-be-utilizedFacilities are permitted to utilize side rails when required for safety and when

ordered by a pPhysician or other aAuthorized kHealthcare pProvider. (IT)

1. Insemi-privaterooms;Facilities sh
a semi-private roomsasras g h

curtains-whenneededorrequested by-a-client.

all ensure privacy when personal care is being given to a Patient in

87



J. Considerationshallbe-givento-elientFacilities shall consider Patient compatibility in the assignment

of rooms for which there is multiple occupancy.

K. AtFacilities shall have at least one (1) private room shallbe-available in the faeilityFacility in order
to provide assistance in addressing elientPatient compatibility issues, elientPatient preferences, and
accommodations for elientsPatients with communicable disease.

2215-2614. ClientPatient Room Floor Area.

A. Exceptfor faeilitiesResidential Facilities of five (5) beds orless, eachehentPatient roomis considered
a tenant space and shall be enclosed by one (1)-hour fire-resistive construction with a twenty (20)-minute
fire-rated door, opening onto an exit access corridor. ( I

B. Each elientPatient room shall be an outside room with an outside window or door for exit in case of
emergency. This window or door may not open onto a common screened porch. (T)

C. The ehentPatient room floor area is a usable or net area and does not include wardrobes (built-in or
freestanding), closets, or the entry alcove to the room. The following allowance of floor space shall be as a
minimum: (II)

1. Rooms for only one (1) elientPatient: one hundred (100) square feet;

2. Rooms for more than one (1) elientPatient: eighty ( 80) square feet per elientPatient.

3. In faeihitiesFacilities for mothers with children, rooms for elieatPatient and child: eighty (80) square
feetper licensed bed and forty (40) square feet per child with a maximum of two (2) children per elient
Patient. When a bed is required in lieu of a crib for a child, the square footage shall be fifty (50) square feet
per child.

D. Fhrere-shallbeFacilities shall maintain at least three (3) feet between beds. {m

22162615. Bathrooms/ and Restrooms (IT).

A. Privacy shall be provided at toilets, urinals, bathtubs, and showers.

B. An adequate supply oftoilet tissue shall be maintained in each bathroom.

BC. There shall be at least one (1) handwash lavatory inesadjacent to each bathroom/restroomtoilet.
Liquid soap shall be provided in public restrooms and bathrooms used by more than one (1) Patient.
Communal use of bar soap is prohibited. and-aA sanitary individualized method of drying hands shall be
available at each lavatory.

ED. Easily cleanable receptacles shall be provided for waste materials. Such receptacles in toilet rooms
for women shall be covered. The Facility shall ensure receptacles are non-combustible or fire resistant as
required by building codes reference in Section 1900.

88



GE. All bathroom floors shall be entirely covered with an approved nonabsorbent covering. Walls shall
be nonabsorbent, washable surfacesto the highest level of splash.

HF. There shall be a mirror above each bathroom lavatory for elients?Patients’ grooming.
1G. In 24-HeusResidential Facilities:

1. Foi } i Facilities shall provide an ample number of toilets to
serve the needs of the elientsPatients andstaffivolunteersStaff members, Volunteers, and the public. The

minimu-rumbershall be Facilities shall provide Patients with a minimum of one (1) toilet for each six (6)
licensed beds or fraction thereof.

2. All bathtubs, toilets, and showers used by elientsPatients shall have approved grab bars securely
fastened in a usable fashion.

3. There shall be one (1) bathtub or shower for each eight (8) ieensed-beds or fraction thereof.

H-ermere-beds- Separate bathrooms shall be provided for Staff members, Volunteers, and the public.

6. BathSoap, bath towels, and washcloths shall be provided to the-clientseach Patient as needed. Bath
linens assigned to specific elientsPatients maynotbe storedin centrally-located bathrooms. Provisions shall
be made for each elientPatient to properly keep their bath linens in his/hertheir room, +e-such as, on a towel
hook#bar or bar designated for each elientPatient occupying that room, or bath linens to meet elientPatient
needs shall be distributed as needed, and collected after use and stored properly, per Section +4681707.

H. Facilities shall have bathrooms and restrooms equipped for handicapped persons as required by
building codes referenced in Section 1900.

P sapac-a-sinala acettmaney fona o
GLLIr VISV VAT O DLAI&LU UUUUPHLL\(J \\.Ill\./ ~

Q
g

tr
BIAXIBALY faiy nliamic A
a3

1 PECRN rnmath o Py 1
I OTOoT A CTIoTIt Y ¢ TINTITOCOT UITTr I

PEWato L0 Fa
SIS STA TS,

tans rarticlecin-ga caclucianrannithat e o
t oracrer-a-SeertiSiohirooi-thata<

toniahtioa ta daadi g fateaa/ oo
CIHTEH e seto-jure-Hiy-of

89



2218:2617. €lientPatient Care Unit and Station (Applieable-to for medieal-detoxifieationfacilitics
entyyMedical Withdrawal Management Programs (11).

A. Each elient-Patient care unit shall have a elient-Patient care station.

B. A elientPatient care unit shall contain not more than 60forty-four (44) licensed beds; and the elient
Patient care station shall not be more than one hundred fifty (150) feet from a elient-Patient room, and shall
be located and arranged to permit visual observation of the unit corridor(s).

C. Each elientPatient care station shall contain separatespaces for the storage of wheelchairsand general
supplies/equipment for that station.

D. There shall be at, or near each elient-Patient care station, a separate medicine preparation room with
a cabinet with one or more locked sections for rarestiesControlled Substances, work space for preparation
of medicine, and a sink. As an alternative, a medicine preparation area with counter, cabinet space, and a
sink shall be required on those units where there is:

1. A unit dose system in which final medieationMedication preparation is not performed on the elient
Patient care station; or

2. A twenty-four (24) -hour pharmacy on the premises; or
3. Procedures that preclude medieatioeaMedication preparation at the elient-Patient care station.
22192618. Doors (I1).

A. All ekientPatient rooms and batibathrooms and /restrooms shall have opaque doors for the purpose
of privacy.

B. All glass doors, including sliding or patio type doors shall have a contrasting or other indicator that

causes the glass to be observablese-g—a-decallocated-ateyelevel.

panev—chall nat owaac 1
pahcy o HOHSWAREY
o
\=4

B
s

+uadthtaldoce than an
1 WIdlIT ToO Iw oyt JIT

¢

seilitiessith fivaorle
Chit

o o fttinaal atos Joa 3
Ot HHE W HR- Y E-0F1e 55 it

O3 Fat
CIrotrTa ooy ta oot

BC. Bathroom/ and restroom door widths shall be not less than 32 thirty-six (36) inches.
ED. Doors to elient-Patient occupied rooms shall be at least 32 thirty-six (36) inches wide.
EE. Doors that have locks shall be unlockable and openable with one action.

GF. If ekientPatient room doors are lockable, there shall be provisions for emergency entry. There shall
notbe locks that cannot be unlocked and operated from inside the room.

HG. All elient-Patient room doors shall be solid-core.

90



certified-elevatorinspeetorFacilities shall ensure that a certified elevator inspector inspects and tests
elevators upon installation prior to first use and annually thereafter,

2223 Corridorsdl)

Q 0 o A

2225:2620. Screens (IT).

91



WindewsFacilities shall equip windows, doors, and openings intended for ventilation-shall-be-previded
with insect screens.

2226 Windews

ordancasnith

A The wandow dirsencone and maviszime o tha
X s oradhce-Wwitn—+tnae-

£x
IV IO O vy OO OOy o oo TICTE LY

+
.
o
o
@
2]
(1]

2227:2621. Janitor’s Closet (II).

Fhere shall-be-a-Residential Facilities shall maintain a lockable Janitor’s in24-heurfacilities-with-16-of

more-beds—Eachcloset equipped with a mop sink or receptor and space for the storage of supplies and
equipment.

2228.2622. Storage Areas.

A. Adeguate-Facilities shall provide adequate general storage areas shallbe-provided-for elientPatient
and staff/velunteersStaff and Volunteer belongings, equipment, and supplies.

B. AreasFacilities shall ensure that areas used for storage of combustible materials and storage areas

exceeding one hundred (100) square feet in area shelt-be-providedare equipped with ana National Fire

Protection Association-approved automatic sprinkler system. (I)

C. In storage areas provided with a sprinkler system, a minimum vertical distance of eighteen (18) inches
shall be maintained between the top of stored items and the sprinkler heads. The tops of storage cabinets
and shelves attached to or built into the perimeter walls may be closer than eighteen (18) inches below the
sprinkler heads. In non-sprinklered storage areas, there shall be at least twenty-four (24) inches of space
from the ceiling. (I)

D. All ceilings, floor assemblies, and walls enclosing storage areas of one hundred (100) square feet or
greater shall be of not less than one (1) -hour fire-resistive construction with three-fourths (3/4) “hour
fire-rated door(s) and closer(s). ()

E. SterageFacilities shall ensure that storage buildings on the premises shalkmeet the applicable code

listed in seetionSection 8001900 regarding distance from the licensed buildin g
i t ible- An appropriate controlled environment shall be

provided if necessary for storage of items requiring such an environment.

F. l-mechantcal roomsused-for storagethe stored-itemsshallbe Facilities shall ensure that items stored

in mechanical rooms are located away from mechanical equipment and shall-netbeare not a type of storage
that might create a fire or other hazard. (1)

G. Suppliesiequipmentshallnotbe-steredFacilities shall not store supplies and equipment directly on the

floor. SuppliesFacilities shall not store supplies and equipment susceptible to water damage/ and
contamination shallnetbestered-under sinks or other areas with a propensity for water leakage.

92



H. In-faeilities licensed-for 16-beds-er-more—thereFacilities licensed for more than fifteen (15) beds shall

bemaintain a soiled linen storage room which-shatlbe-designed, enclosed, and used solely forthat purpose;
and-provided-with and equipped with mechanical exhaust directly to the outside.

2229-2623. Telephone Service.

Facilities shall provide at least one (1) telephone on each floor of the Facility with at least o
main or fixed-line telephone service available.

ne (1) active

B. AtFacilities shall provide at least one (1) telephone shallbe-available-on each floor

ity for

= Q1 T oV FF a a Q- 1y ay b o
o v - ) Vol Cl - ¥ ” - warsnwaw - =

Staff members and Volunteers to conduct routine business of the Facility and to summon assistance in the
event of an emergency. Felephone e o hi :

distaneeserviees—The Facility shall ensure Patients have privacy when using the telephone.
sy ctafinzg e o S a0 o e aad
X l\JLéULL J’ IJ(—IJ LU TIUTT PIIULI\IU ALl TITOT uU\JVIJLHUlV TUT UILY
1 i N
2230-2624. Location.

times.

A. Fransportation—Thefacility-shall be-served-by-roads thats assable-atall timesand-are-ades
the-velumeofexpested tratficFacilities shall ensure that roads serving the Facility are passable at al

B. Pasldine—The £a

o
TR e T € TaCIT

volunteers—and—visitorsFacilities shall provide parking space to meet the needs of Patients, Staff,
Volunteers, and visitors.

C. Aceesstofirefishtingequipment Facilities shall maintain adequateaccess to and around the buildings

¢sy for firefighting equipment. (I)

bt shall- have-narlkinsenace to_rancamallss catiofss the neadsof clianta ctaff/
T AV TP TS e S p o e OO TeasoRa bl y-Ssats e -Heeds-of CHOHS 5t

D. NFPfaedlitiesFacilities providing an Opioid Treatment Program shall not operate within five hundred
(500) feet of:

1. The property line of a church;

2. The property line of a public or private elementary or secondary school;
3. A boundary of any Residential district;

4. A public park adjacent to any Residential district; or

5. The property line of a lot devoted to Residential use.

2234:2625. Outdoor Area.

A. OutdeerFacilities shall ensure outdoor areasdeemed where unsafe duetotheexistenceof, unprotected
physical hazards i its—hish voltasee ment—hich speedc




exist shall-beare enclosed by a fence or a natural barrier of a tsize, shape, and density that effectively

impedes travel to the hazardous area)to-protectelients. (D

€B. MechaniealosFacilities shall protect mechanical and equipment rooms that open to the outside of

the faedlityFacility shall bekeptprotected-from unauthorized individuals.

SEVERABHITY--
SECTION 2700 — SEVERABILITY

2301-General

In the event that any portion of these+egulationsthis regulation is construed by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid, or otherwise unenforceable, such determination shall in no manner affect the

remaining portions of theseregulationsthis regulation, and they shall remain in effect, as if such invalid
portions were not originally a part of theseregulationsthis regulation.

SECTHON-2400

SRR
SECTION 2800 - GENERAL

2401-General

Conditions that have not been addressed in these+egulationsthis re gulation shall be managed in accordance
with the best practices as interpreted by the Department.

PARTIE
O PAHENT FACILITIES

SECTHON2500

94



95



osand-their—farmiliacto—imelnde indis

Nt cagnringo £ Q 4 1
L OUTLY I OO TT LIV Iy o IIroTogaC T IIIcrTv

tragtin-a
Tt STV ICces—1 0

QLo aofitzidiac oo ot e
gavTIITaciry i o ar o——datt Ite s

11 \Wael ootivie, PO DY PR S Pry l-\‘y eliante e d
T YV O aCthvity yu;»;v;yuu\ux Oy e pProvia

Living : :
2602-Staffing
A A ot ff o qaalana /17r\]11ﬂfnr\v/r]n 1 atadeliant chall bha nracant aad i ~hoeca at all adiirin e dasdinaa
ER TS W aney oy lll\llLLU\ILl TN CTT \J\/Ol&llutvu WwIIWITUJIJITAIT OC tl T OIS 11T \/llule\l “ar ull L.ll.J.L\IJ umlll& \)wj WL TN
YES-WE h clhiante aranracant 1 tha £farils Astaffmemberfiroluntest/dacicnatad ~licmt i charaa chall

an =z 13
viniirrovmnare oot et oo Cr AL T T T T TIT o U v oo tOe7-acHt Sratoor CHeRt mroral s T-otanr

tor dn—uriting fa marfa the_dutiecreairived
t e-attiesSre A>3

O ITvy Tt TO oo
3 2

96



97



R_{ Aatimirneobaatationof anch ~L ahf’n conditiontarecocniza and avaliiata cagnafiont 1o e an

B \_/\Jlll-lllullls CoOoCv T oo oottty CORaitoh 6 TUCOZ O ev-adate ulslllle“th STEITS aid
8L ofmedical-distraseand tale amnranciate antiom Each-eliant’ s sanaral conditian chall ha.
Y Axxyu.uxu.v o eateaaistress—and

R AP PTrop T ootrioTr— o G 6185 ST ooragTraUt— st o

tha foeilitr As—an—al ativve—freastandinecmadical

a
3
ac—drin a tapna +
b F A2 o8~ 1“\1111[] jo 2y ullblllutlv\t, nx\uvuu.uu.,uxxs ITINGICAaTr

98



99



100



101



102



103



104



S _TIF 1 s
— G

catad

an al

act
T

roo

axds
&

a

act v rax; Pao

tact
tCy

YL, §/oeN
ahror

LASE=22 3~ 2y

T T

ToTar

T

oo ol
Fat—cie
o ’

DAEANEL-S S -

N cihaanye
PomcuTts

Ty



106



107



108



a and nn]ﬂnf‘]\]a to~relude-chancec b varhal ar sxrittanm ordertotha nharma
U aRTIIGT oo tour W TITOCTUOO Vl‘.ulls\.u) Ld YwIUAr O vwWwIittOIT VIOV TO T tlllulll‘u\vl
Hoewevertheveibalordarchall ba docimmaaniad oloma dand At 1-."4, TR hacicina sxrithhiie 79 |h ;craec
BEr Awa v g \41, HIVTVOCTO O OTOCI™ oy ITdIT UN \IU\ILLILAULJI,UU’ \)1611\4\4’ IV UOaieT UJ ESL NP O § P LJ GINVIUTT VV lelljj_.l [E=EEBAWL" X e gy

suppress-thaabotinanca cumintamae o fiar ee-hours-ofobsarvation follasnnatha initial doca
Jul.ltJL\/uJ HIVTTOROTIITVITOC UJLLLPLULIM (5295278 llllvv IV U UT OO T VI tIonT AVITOTVY JJ.J.& IV TITITITAOT OOy

zatzar rfailiien i malizwxath th o NTDR

Pay ra FAPAN
TS AS AR SRS ¥y lUl T HTTCOT O PTY vy It e O

uliatin Th
T

pdi gy Frosa e odl o NITD £anilites challbhava an Sdealaxarnatnation nnd lhava ;574&%
croTnt T TN ot y-Ssndanavea Py oo Oarmrratr o aHav-e 1

1
T

ancta
O o eI s T o

E- ‘Xllm:-u f‘11a NP shyusician nreceribos cnntallod
1 oG

tancac athor thas A
TPy Sictairpresernes—contre ™

D snadicatio m-nh
HCes—Othe—tthah T OO CatoRS—SHeR

o

T

A _Talka harme NTD 4n

lhentsavho-demonctrato a naad fae a
LINVITOY YVj.l\J \.l\/lll\lll.ublub\/ arravea oo™

a
I~ okt 1mormr e 11

nicwhamaeattha fallasrbang
ALV oI O OUT oI e T VVI&‘IE

dee-homemoedicatinnic oivan
Hice-nome-medicalornds arvent

@

109



o

ot
oT

trazzal
A2 24 Ul,

v ericra

T Ty —CTryts;

ar—Ffain

Barcnnal
pPrTachrar

Hoacc

1
SOUTTII Ty T CryiSy

queh ac

neas
TICT S

enmaata

le
T CITCOTILS T

LU NP2 EENR PP SO
MULTTO: ul.l\l\/l

gy o

1@t

oot

D1, -1

=7

110



TloaiiVad

SOt oTIZANT

tha aith oo

3L

1on-traagiiactad h
AVLY l\/\iMUdlUu UJ

14 Fongeman s

10

OOTCT T oI

aothar

b 4

and oy
Ty aird—Tiry

otoy

1

Liciq
UTTIAT y oy st

rina

EETTAN
2y 5

{(1£
1T

daocac

haomea

U UTIToITICCrooChly

tala

111



Fiscal Impact Statement:

Implementation of these amendments will not require additional resources. There is no anticipated
additional cost by the Department or state government due to any inherent requirements of these
amendments.

Statement of Need and Reasonableness:

The following presents an analysis of the factors listed in 1976 Code Sections 1 -23-115(CY1)3) and
(9)-(11):

DESCRIPTION OF REGULATION: 61-93, Standards for Licensing Facilities that Treat Individuals for
Psychoactive Substance Abuse or Dependence

Purpose: The Department amends R.61-93 to update provisions in accordance with current practices and
standards. The Department also changes the name ofthe regulation and facility typeto parallel the statutory
term for this facility type. Additional revisions include those for clarity and readability, grammar,
references, codification, and overall improvement to the text of the re gulation.

Legal Authority: 1976 Code Sections 44-7-260 et seq.

Plan for Implementation: The DHEC Regulation Development Update (accessible at
http:/"www.scdhec. gov/Agency/RegulationsAndUpdates/RegulationDevelopmentUpdate/) will provide a
summary of and link to a copy of the amendment. Additionally, printed copies are available for a fee from
the Department’s Freedom of Information Office. Upon taking legal effect, Department personnel will take
appropriate steps to inform the regulated community of the amended regulation and any associated
information.

DETERMINATION OF NEED AND REASONABLENESS OF THE REGULATION BASED ON ALL
FACTORS HEREIN AND EXPECTED BENEFITS:

112



These amendments are necessary to change the name of the regulation and the definition of the facility
within the regulation to parallel the statutory term for this facility type, which is “Facility for Chemically
Dependent or Addicted Persons.” The facility type may also be referred to as “Substance Use Disorder
Facilities” based on current terminology within the provider community, thereby reducing provider
confusion. The new amendments herein include the Bureau of Health Facilities Licensing’s effort to
incorporate provisions relating to statutory mandates, update terminology used in the regulation to conform
to the terminology widely used and understood within the provider community, incident reporting, staffing
and training requirements, medication management, patient care and services, infection control, meal
service, emergency procedures, design and construction, fire and life safety, and other miscellancous
requirements for licensure. In addition, correctionshave been made fororganization, clarity andreadability,
grammar, references, codification, and overall improvement to the text of the regulation.

DETERMINATION OF COSTS AND BENEFITS:

Implementation of these amendments will not require additional resources. There is no anticipated
additional cost to the Department or state government due to any inherent requirements of these
amendments. There are no anticipated additional costs to the regulated community.

UNCERTAINTIES OF ESTIMATES:
None.
EFFECT ON THE ENVIRONMENT AND PUBLIC HEALTH:

The amendments to R.61-93 seek to support the Department’s goals relating to the protection of public
health through the anticipated benefits of facilities adhering to the updated language and provisions
highlighted above. The are no anticipated effects on the environment.

DETRIMENTAL EFFECT ON THE ENVIRONMENT AND PUBLIC HEALTH IF THE REGULATION
IS NOT IMPLEMENTED:

There is no anticipated detrimental effect on the environment. If the revision is not implemented, the
regulation will be maintained in its current form without realizing the benefits of the amendments herein.

Statement of Rationale:
Here below is the Statement of Rationale pursuant to S.C. Code Section 1-23-1 10(h):

The Department amends R.61-93 to update provisions in accordance with current practices and standards.
Amendments include updated language for facilities applying for licensure and incorporate provisions
delineating new requirements in training staff members, as well as new nursing and medical staff
requirements. The amendments incorporate and revise provisions relating to statutory mandates, update
terminology to conform to the terminology widely used and understood within the provider community,
and revise requirements for incident reporting, statfing andtraining requirements, medication management,
patient care and services, infection control, meal service, emergency procedures, design and construction,
fire and life safety, and other miscellaneous requirements for licensure. The Department also changes the
name of the regulation and facility type to parallel the statutory term for this facility type. Additional
revisions include those for clarity and readability, grammar, references, codification, and ovenll
improvement to the text of the regulation.

113



Date: January 6, 2020
To:  S.C. Board of Health and Environmental Contro}
From: Bureau of Health Facilities Licensing

Re:  Public Hearing for Notice of Final Regulation Amending R.61-97, Standards Jor Licensing
Renal Dialysis Facilities, Document No. 4953

1. Introduction

The Bureau of Health Facilities Licensing proposes the attached Notice of Final Regulation for amending
R.61-97, Standards for Licensing Renal Dialysis Facilities. Legal authority resides in §.C. Code Sections
44-7-260 et seq., which requires the Department of Health and Environment Control (“Department™) to
establish and enforce basic standards for the licensure, maintenance, and operation of health facilities and
services in order 1o ensure the safe and adequate treatment of persons served in this state. The
Administrative Procedures Act, S.C. Code Section 1-23-120(A), requires General Assembly review of these
proposed amendments.

IL. Faets

1. The Bureau proposes amending R.61-97 to update provisions in accordance with current practices and
standards. The proposed amendments incorporate and revise provisions relating to statutory mandates,
update terminology to conform to the terminology widely used and understood within the provider
community, and revise requirements for incident reporting, staffing and training requirements, medication
management, patient care and services, infection control, meal service, emergency procedures, design and
construction, fire and life safety, and other miscellaneous requirements for licensure. The Bureau further
proposes revisions for clarity and readability, grammar, references, codification, and overall improvement
to the text of the regulation. R.61-97 was last amended in 2010.

2. The Department had a Notice of Drafting published in the March 22, 2019, State Register.

3. Appropriate Department staff conducted an internal review of the proposed amendment on August 8,
2019.

4. A Renal Advisory Council Meeting was held on October 30, 2019, The Advisory Council was educated
on both the process for submitting public comments during the public comments period and information
regarding appearing in person during the public hearing at the January 6, 2020 Board Meeting.

5. The Bureau held stakeholder meetings on April 1, 2019, and August 13, 2019. The Bureau considered
stakeholder feedback in formulating the proposed amendments herein.

6. The Department had a Notice of Proposed Regulation published in the November 22, 2019, State
Register. The Department received twenty-eight (28) public comments by December 23, 2019, which was
the closing date of the public comment period. Attachment B presents a sumnmary of these public comments
received and Department responses.

7. There was no stakeholder meeting after the publication of the Notice of Proposed Regulation.



8. After consideration of all timely received comments, staff has made substantive changes to the regulatory
text of the Notice of Proposed Regulation approved by the Board in the November 7, 2019 Board meeting
and published in the November 22, 2019 State Register. Descriptions of the changes appear in Attachment
B, Summary of Public Comments and Department Responses.

III. Request for Approval

The Bureau of Health Facilities Licensing respectfully requests the Board to find need and reasonableness
of the attached proposed amendment of R. 61-97, Standards for Licensing Renal Dialysis Facilities, for
submission to the General Assembly.

&/fm W %ﬂzlbm W/;UMM-—/ éskjwb %W‘—'

Angie Sgith LaTony% Williams

Interim Chief of Health Facilitics Licensing Director of Quality Management Division
Health Facilities Licensing
On behalf of Gwen C. Thompson,
Interim Director of Health Regulation

Attachments:
A. Notice of Final Regulation
B. Summary of Public Comments and Department Responses



Date: January 6, 2020
To:  S.C. Board of Health and Environmental Control
From: Bureau of Health Facilities Licensing

Re:  Public Hearing for Notice of Final Regulation Amending R.61-97, Standards for Licensing
Renal Dialysis Facilities, Document No. 4953

1. Introduction

The Bureau of Health Facilities Licensing proposes the attached Notice of Final Regulation for amending
R.61-97, Standards for Licensing Renal Dialysis Facilities. Legal authority resides in S.C. Code Sections
44-7-260 et seq., which requires the Department of Health and Environment Control (“Department”) to
establish and enforce basic standards for the licensure, maintenance, and operation of health facilities and
services in order to ensure the safe and adequate treatment of persons served in this state. The
Administrative Procedures Act, S.C. Code Section 1-23-120(A), requires General Assembly review of these
proposed amendments.

II. Facts

1. The Bureau proposes amending R.61-97 to update provisions in accordance with current practices and
standards. The proposed amendments incorporate and revise provisions relating to statutory mandates,
update terminology to conform to the terminology widely used and understood within the provider
community, and revise requirements for incident reporting, staffing and training requirements, medication
management, patient care and services, infection control, meal service, emergency procedures, design and
construction, fire and life safety, and other miscellancous requirements for licensure. The Bureau further
proposes revisions for clarity and readability, grammar, references, codification, and overall improvement
to the text of the regulation. R.61-97 was last amended in 2010.

2. The Department had a Notice of Drafting published in the March 22, 2019, State Register.

3. Appropriate Department staff conducted an internal review of the proposed amendments on August 8,
2019.

4. A Renal Advisory Council Meeting was held on October 30, 2019. The advisory council was educated
on both the process for submitting public comments during the public comments period and information
regarding appearing in person during the public hearing at the January 6, 2020 Board Meeting.

5. The Bureau held stakeholder meetings on April 1, 2019, and August 13, 2019. The Bureau considered
stakeholder feedback in formulating the proposed amendments herein.

6. The Department had a Notice of Proposed Regulation published in the November 22, 2019, State
Register. The Department received twenty-eight (28) public comments by December 23, 2019, which was
the closing date of the public comment period. Attachment B presents a summary of these public comments
received and Department responses.

7. There was no stakeholder meeting after the publication of the Notice of Proposed Regulation.



8. After consideration of all timely received comments, staff has made substantive changes to the regulatory
text of the Notice of Proposed Regulation approved by the Board in the November 7, 2019 Board meeting
and published in the November 22, 2019, State Register. Descriptions of the changes appear in Attachment
B, Summary of Public Comments and Department Responses.

III. Request for Approval
The Bureau of Health Facilities Licensing respectfully requests the Board to find need and reasonableness

of the attached proposed amendment of R. 61-97, Standards for Licensing Renal Dialysis Facilities, for
submission to the General Assembly.

Angie Smith LaTonya Williams

Interim Chief of Health Facilities Licensing Director of Quality Management Division
Health Facilities Licensing
On behalf of Gwen C. Thompson,
Interim Director of Health Regulation

Attachments:
A. Notice of Final Regulation
B. Summary of Public Comments and Department Responses



ATTACHMENT A

STATE REGISTER NOTICE OF FINAL REGULATION
FOR R. 61.97, Standards for Licensing Renal Dialysis Facilities

January 6, 2020

Document No. 4953
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL
CHAPTER 61
Statutory Authority: 1976 Code Sections 44-7-260 et seq.

61--97. Standards for Licensing Renal Dialysis Facilities.
Synopsis:

The Department of Health and Environmental Control (“Department”) amends R.61-97 to update
provisions in accordance with current practices and standards. Amendments incorporate and revise
provisions relating to statutory mandates, update terminology to conform to the terminology widely used
and understood within the provider community, and revise requirements for incident reporting, staffing and
training requirements, medication management, patient care and services, infection control, meal service,
emergency procedures, design and construction, fire and life safety, and other miscellaneous requirements
for licensure. The Department further revises for clarity and readability, grammar, references, codification,
and overall improvement to the text of the regulation. R.61-97 was last amended in 2010.

A Notice of Drafting was published in the March 22, 2019, South Carolina State Register.

Instructions: Replace R.61-97, Standards for Licensing Renal Dialysis Facilities, in its entirety with this
amendment.

Text:

Indi M Siricl
Indicates New Matter

61-97. Standards for Licensing Renal Dialysis Facilities.
Statutory Authority: 1976 Code Sections 44-39-2044-7-260 et seq.

Table of Contents






Chapter 24— Ceaeral

Seetion2401. General
LA ReguisitesforTnitialLi Renal Dialvsis Facilitv.

SECTION 100 — DEFINITIONS AND LICENSURE
101. Definitions.,

102. Licensure.

103. Requirements for Issuance of License.

SECTION 200 — ENFORCEMENT OF REGULATION
201. General.

202. Inspections and Investigations.

203. Consultations.

SECTION 300 — ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS
301. General.
302. Violation Classifications.

SECTION 400 — POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

SECTION 500 — STAFF AND TRAINING
501. General.

502. Administrator.

503. Director of Nursing.

504. Staffing.

505. Medical Staff.

506. Job Descriptions.

507. Orientation.

508. Training.
509. Health Assessment.

SECTION 600 — REPORTING

601. Incidents.

602. Reportable Diseases and Infections.
603. Closure and Zero Census.

SECTION 700 — PATIENT RECORDS
701. Content.
702. Authentication.




703. Individual Plan of Care.
704. Record Maintenance.
705. Record Retention.

SECTION 800 — [RESERVED]

SECTION 900 — PATIENT CARE AND SERVICES
901. Dietary Services.

902. Laboratory Services.

903. Social Services.

904. Home Dialysis.

905. Transfer Agreement.

SECTION 1000 — PATIENT’S RIGHTS AND ASSURANCES

SECTION 1100 — PATIENT PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS

SECTION 1200 - MEDICATION MANAGEMENT
1201. General.

1202. Medication Orders.

1203. Medicine Storage.

SECTION 1300 — [RESERVED]

SECTION 1400 — EMERGENCY PROCEDURES AND DISASTER PREPAREDNESS
1401. Disaster Preparedness.
1402, Continuity of Essential Services.

SECTION 1500 — FIRE PREVENTION

1501. Arrangements for Fire Department Response and Protection.
1502. Tests and Inspections.

1503. Fire Response Training,

1504. Fire Dirills.

1505. Fire Extinguishers, Standpipes, and Automatic Sprinklers.

SECTION 1600 — MAINTENANCE
1601. General.
1602. Equipment Maintenance.

SECTION 1700 — INFECTION CONTROL
1701. Staff Practices.
1702. Committee.

1703. Tuberculosis Risk Assessment and Screening.

1704. Staff Hepatitis Screening.
1705. Patient Hepatitis Screening.

1706. Isolation Facilities.

1707. Housekeeping,

1708. Linen.

1709. Refuse and Waste Disposal.
1710. Outside Areas.

1711. Toxic and Hazardous Substances.




SECTION 1800 — [RESERVED]

SECTION 1900 — DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION
1901. General.

1902, Codes and Standards.

1903. Submission of Plans and Specifications.

1904, Compliance and Inspections.

SECTION 2000 — FIRE PROTECTION, PREVENTION, AND LIFE SAFETY

SECTION 2100 — GENERAL CONSTRUCTION

SECTION 2200 — [RESERVED]

SECTION 2300 - WATER SUPPLY

SECTION 2400 — ELECTRICAL
2401. General.
2402, Lighting and Electrical Services.

SECTION 2500 — HEATING, VENTILATION, AND AIR CONDITIONING (HVAC)

SECTION 2600 — PHYSICAL PLANT
2601. General.
2602. Ground Fault Protection.

SECTION 2700 — SEVERABILITY

BART
\dmini .

CHAPTER 1
SECTION 100 - DEFINITIONS AND LICENSURE
SECTION-101. Definitions.
For the purpose of these standards, the following definitions shall apply:

A. Abuse. Physical abuse or psychological abuse.

1. Physical Abuse. The act of intentionally inflicting or allowing infliction of physical injury on a
patient by an act or failure to act. Physical abuse includes, but is not limited to, slapping, hitting, kicking,
biting, choking, pinching, burning, actual or attempted sexual battery, use of medication outside the
standards of reasonable medical practice for the purpose of controlling behavior, and unreasonable

confinement. Physical abuse also includes the use of a restrictive or physically intrusive procedure to

control behavior for the purpose of punishment except that of a therapeutic procedure prescribed by a

licensed physician or other legally authorized healthcare professional. Physical abuse does not include

altercations or acts of assault between patients.




2. Psychological Abuse. The deliberate use of any oral, written, or gestured language or depiction that

includes disparaging or derogatory terms to a patient or within the patient’s hearing distance, regardless of

the patient’s age, ability to comprehend, or disability, including threats or harassment or other forms of
intimidating behavior causing fear, humiliation, degradation, agitation, confusion, or other forms of serious
emotional distress.

B. Administering Medication. The acts of preparing and giving a single dose of a medication to the body
of a Patient by injection, ingestion, or any other means in accordance with the orders of a physician or other
Authorized Healthcare Provider.

C. Administrator. The staff member designated by the Licensee to have the authority and responsibility

to manage the Facility and oversees all functions and activities of the Facility.

D. Annual. A time period that requires an activity to be performed at least every twelve (12) months.

E. Assessment. A procedure for determining the nature and extent of the problems and needs of a Patient,
or potential Patient, to ascertain if the Facility can adequately address those problems and needs, and to
secure information for use in the development of the Individual Plan of Care.

E. Authorized Healthcare Provider. An individual authorized by law and currently licensed in South
Carolina as a physician, advanced practice registered nurse, or physician assistant to provide specific
treatments, care, or services to Patients.

G. Consultation. A meeting with a licensed Facility and individuals authorized by the Department to
provide information to Facilitics to enable/encourage Facilities to better comply with the regulations.

A<H. Continuous Ambulatory Peritoneal Dialysis:. A continuous manual exchange of dialysate into and
from the peritoneal cavity (usually every four to six hours).

B-1. Continuous Cycling Peritoneal Dialysis:. The use of a machine to warm and cycle the dialysate in
and out of the peritoneal cavity (usually every four hours).

J. Controlled Substance. A medication or other substance included in Schedule I, IL, IIL, IV, and V of the
Federal Controlled Substances Act or the South Carolina Controlled Substances Act.

K. Department. The South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control.

L. Designee. A staff member designated by the Administrator to act on his or her behalf.

&M. Dialysis:. A process by which dissolved substances are removed from a patient’sPatient’s body by
diffusion from one fluid compartment to another across a semipermeable membrane.

B:N. Dietitian:. An persenindividual whe-is—registered-by-the-Commission-onDietetic Registration-

currently licensed as a Dietitian by the South Carolina Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation.

O. Direct Care Staff. Those individuals who are employees (full- and part-time) of the Facility providing
direct treatment, care, and services to Patients, and those individuals contracted to provide treatment, care,
and services to Patients.

P. Discharge. The point at which treatment, care, and services in a Facility are terminated and the Facility
no longer maintains active responsibility for the treatment, care, and services of the Patient.

6



E-Q. End-Stage Renal Disease (ESRB):. That stage of renal impairment that appears irreversible and
permanent and requires a regular course of dialysis or kidney transplantation to maintain life.

ER. ESRD End-Stage Renal Disease Service:. The type of care or services furnished to an
ESRDEnd-Stage Renal Disease patientPatient. Such types of care are: transplantation service;

eialysisDialysis service and self-dialysis-and home-dialysisHome Dialysis training.

S. Exploitation. 1) Causing or requiring a Patient to engage in an activity or labor that is improper,
unlawful, or against the reasonable and rational wishes of a patient. Exploitation does not include requiring
a patient to participate in an activity or labor that is a part of a written Individual Plan of Care or prescribed
or authorized by the patient’s attending physician; 2) an improper, unlawful, or unauthorized use of the
funds, assets, property, power of attorney, guardianship, or conservatorship of a patient by an individual
for the profit or advantage of that individual or another individual; or 3) causing a patient to purchase goods
or services for the profit or advantage of the seller or another individual through undue influence,
harassment, duress, force, coercion, or swindling by overreaching, cheating, or defrauding the patient
through cunning arts or devices that delude the patient and cause him or her to lose money or other property.

T. Health Assessment. An evaluation of the health status of a staff member or volunteer by a Physician,
other Authorized Healthcare Provider, or a registered nurse, A registered nurse may complete the Health
Assessment pursuant to standing orders approved by a Physician as evidenced by the Physician’s signature,
The standing orders shall be reviewed annually by the physician, with a copy of the review maintained at

the Facility.

G-U. Home Dialysis:. Dialysis performed by a patientPatient and/or individuals who assist Patients at
home. The Patient and individuals who assist patients are trained and supervised by licensed nurses to do
dialysis treatments on their own.

V. Home Dialysis Training. A program that trains and provides support services to End-Stage Renal

Disease Patients and individuals who assist them in performing Home Dialysis with little or no professional
assistance.

W. Individual Plan of Care. A documented regimen of appropriate care and services or written action
plan prepared by the Facility for each Patient, based on the Patient’s needs and preferences, and which is
to be implemented for the benefit of the Patient.

X. Interdisciplinary Team. A group designated by the Facility to provide or supervise care and services

provided by the facility. The group may include the following persons: physician or other Authorized
Healthcare Provider, licensed nurse, dietary, social services, and direct care staff members.

Y. Inspection. A visit by Department representatives for the purpose of determining compliance with
current statutes and regulations.

Z. Investigation. A visit by Department representatives to a licensed Facility or unlicensed entity for the
purpose of determining the validity of allegations received by the Department relating to statutory and
regulatory compliance.

AA. Legend Drug.




1. A drug when, under federal law, is required, prior to being dispensed or delivered, to be labeled
with any of the following statements:

a. “Caution: Federal law prohibits dispensing without prescription”:

b. “Rx only” or;

2. A drug which is required by any applicable federal or state law to be dispensed pursuant only to a
prescription drug order or is restricted to use by practitioners only;

3. Any drug products considered to be a public health threat, after notice and public hearing as
designated by the S.C. Board of Pharmacy; or

4. Any prescribed compounded prescription drug within the meaning of the S.C. Pharmacy Practice
Act.

BB. License. The authorization to operate a Facility as defined in this regulation and as evidenced by a
current certificate issued by the Department to a Facility.

LCC. Licensed Capacity:. The number of dialysis stations that the eenter-erfaeilityFacility is authorized
to operate to include chronic hemodialysis and home hemodialysis training stations.

FDD. Licensed Practieal Nurse:. z
licensed-practicalnurse-A person to whom the South Carohna Board of Nursmg has 1ssued a hcense asa
registered nurse or licensed practical nurse, or a person granted multi-state licensing privileges by the South
Carolina Board of Nursing and who may practice nursing in any Facility or activity licensed by the
Department subject to the provisions and conditions as indicated in the Nurse Licensure Compact Act.

K-EE. Licensee:. The individual, ageney,—group-or-corporation, organization, or public entity that has
received a license to provide care and services at the Facility and with whom restsin—which the ultimate

respon51b111ty for compliance with the current regulation-and-eutherity for the-conduct-of the renal dialysis

FF. Medical Director. A physician currently licensed in South Carolina who is responsible for the medical
direction of the End-Stage Renal Disease Services.

GG. Medication. A substance that has therapeutic effects including, but not limited to, Legend,

Non-Legend, herbal products, over-the counter, nonprescription, vitamins, and nutritional supplements.

HH. Neglect. The failure or omission of a direct care staff member to provide the care, goods, or services
necessary to maintain the health or safety of a Patient including, but not limited to, food, clothing, medicine,
shelter, supervision, and medical services. Failure to provide adequate supervision resulting in harm to
patients, including altercations or acts of assault between patients, may constitute neglect. Neglect may be

repeated conduct or a single incident that has produced or could result in physical or psychological harm or

substantial risk of death. Noncompliance with regulatory standards alone does not constitute neglect.

II. Non-L.egend Drug. A drug that may be sold without a prescription and that is labeled for use by the
consumer in accordance with state and federal law.




N:JJ. Patient:. A person admitted—to-andreceivingcare—in—=a faeilitywho receives care, treatment, or

services from a Facility licensed by the Department.

KK. Physical Examination. An examination of a Patient that meets the requirements set forth in Section

1100 of this regulation by an Authorized Healthcare Provider.

LL. Quality Improvement Program. The process used by a Facility to examine its methods and practices
of providing care and services, identify the ways to improve its performance, and take actions that result in

higher quality of care and services for the Facility’s Patients.

MM. Quarterly. A time period that requires an activity to be performed every three (3) months.

NN. Registered Health Information Administrator. An individual who holds a professional certification

as a Registered Health Information Administrator from the American Health Information Management

Association.

00. Registered Health Information Technician. An individual who holds a professional certification as
a_Registered Health Information Technician from the American Health Information Management
Association in the United States.

PP. Renal Dialysis Equipment Technician. An individual who cleans, sterilizes, sets up, monitors,
adjusts, and tests dialysis machines and accessory equipment used in the treatment of Patients with
End- Stage Renal Disease.

Q-QQ. Renal Dialysis Facility (Facility):. An outpatient Facility which offers staff-assisted Dialysis or

seli-dialysis-and Home Dialysis Training and support services to end-stage-renal-diseaseEnd-Stage Renal
Disease patientsPatients. A faeilityFacility may be composed of one or more fixed buildings, mobile units,

or a combination.

RR. Revocation of License. An action by the Department to cancel or annul a Facility License by
recalling, withdrawing, or rescinding the Facility’s authorization to operate.

F-SS. Social Worker:. A person licensed as a social worker by the South Carolina Board of Social Work
Examiners.




TT. Station. An individual Patient treatment area that provides sufficient space to accommodate the
dialysis equipment and supplies needed for Dialysis. Includes Stations specifically for chronic
Hemodialysis, Home Hemodialysis Training, and Peritoneal Dialysis.

UU. Suspension of License. An action by the Department requiring a Facility to cease operations for a
period of time or to require a Facility to cease admitting Patients, until such time as the Department rescinds
that restriction.

VV. Tuberculosis Risk Assessment. An initial and ongoing evaluation of the risk for transmission of
Mycobacterium tuberculosis in a particular healthcare setting.

SECTION-102. InterpretationsLicensure. (II)

A. Execeptas-outlinedinB;below; noNo person, partnership, corporation, private or public organization,
political subdivision or other governmental agency shall establish, eendueteroperate, maintain, or represent

itself (advertise or market) as a renal-dialysisfaecilityRenal Dialysis Facility in South Carolina without first
obtaining a lieenseLicense from the Department. The Facility shall not admit Patients prior to the effective
date of the License. When it has been determined by the Department that treatment, care, or services are
being provided at a location, and the owner has not been issued a license from the Department to provide
such treatment, care and services the owner shall cease operation immediately and ensure the safety, health,
and well-being of the Patients. Current or previous violations of South Carolina Code or Department
regulations may jeopardize the issuance of a License for the Facility or the licensing of any other Facility,
or addition to an existing Facility that is owned and/or operated by the Licensee. The Facility shall provide
only the treatment, care, and services it is licensed to provide pursuant to the definition in Section 101.QQ.

@

B. A renal-dialysis-faeility JieenseRenal Dialysis Facility License shall not be required for, nor shall such
a lieenseLicense be issued to:

1. Facilities operated by the federal government.

2. Renal dialysis services provided in licensed hospitals (such services remain within the purview of
R.61-16, Minimum Standards for Licensing Hospitals and Institutional General Infirmaries).

10



C. Compliance. An initial License shall not be issued to a proposed Facility until the Licensee applicant

has demonstrated to the Department that the proposed Facility is in substantial compliance with this
regulation. In the event a Licensee who already has a Facility or activity licensed by the Department makes
application for another Facility or an increase in Licensed Capacity, the currently licensed Facility or
activity shall be in substantial compliance with the applicable standards prior to the Department issuing a
License to the proposed Facility or an amended License to the existing Facility. A copy of licensing

standards shall be maintained at the Facility and accessible to all staff members and volunteers. Facilities

shall comply with applicable local, state, and federal laws, codes, and regulations.

D. Licensed Dialysis Stations. No Facility that has been authorized to provide a set number of licensed
stations, as identified on the face of the License, shall exceed the Licensed Capacity. No Facility shall

establish new care or services or occupy additional Stations or renovated space without first obtaining

authorization from the Department.

E. Issuance and Terms of License.

11



1. The License issued by the Department shall be posted in a conspicuous place in a public area within
the facility.

2. The issuance of a license does not guarantee adequacy of individual care, services, personal safety,
fire safety, or the well-being of any patient or occupant of a facility.

3. A license is not assignable or transferable and is subject to revocation at any time by the Department
for the licensee’s failure to comply with the laws and regulations of this state.

4. A license shall be effective for a specified facility, at a specific location, for a specified period
following the date of issue as determined by the Department. A license shall remain in effect until the
Department notifies the licensee of a change in that status.

5. Facilities owned by the same entity but which are not located on the same adjoining or contiguous
property shall be separately licensed. Roads or local streets, except limited access, shall not be considered

as dividing otherwise adjoining or contiguous property. For facilities owned by the same entity, separate
licenses are not required for separate buildings on the same or adjoining grounds where a single level or

type of care is provided.

6. Multiple types of facilities on the same premises shall be licensed separately even though owned by
the same entity.

F. Facility Name. No proposed Facility shall be named nor shall any existing facility have its name

changed to the same or similar name as any other facility licensed in South Carolina.

G. Application. Applicants for a License shall submit to the Department a complete and accurate
application on a form prescribed and furnished by the Department prior to initial licensing and periodically
thereafter at intervals determined by the Department. The application shall be signed by the owner(s) if an
individual or partnership; by two (2) officers if a corporation; or by the head of the governmental department
having jurisdiction if a governmental unit. Corporations or limited partnerships, limited liability companies
or any other organized business entity shall be registered with the S.C. Secretary of State’s Office if required
to do so by state law. (II)

H. The application for initial licensure shall include:

1. The application shall set forth the full name and address of the Facility for which the License is
sought and of the owner in the event his or her address is different from that of the Facility, and the names
of the persons in control of the Facility. The Department may require additional information, including
affirmative evidence of the applicant’s ability to comply with this regulation:

2. The applicant’s oaths assuring that the contents of the application are accurate and true, and that the
applicant will comply with this regulation;

3. Proof of ownership of real property in which the Facility is located, or lease agreement allowing the
Licensee to occupy the real property in which the Facility is located:

4. Verification of Administrator’s qualifications:

5. Name of director of nursing services; and

12



6. Number of renal dialysis Stations.

I. Licensing Fees. Each applicant shall pay an Annual License fee prior to issuance of a License. The
Annual fee shall be two hundred dollars ($200.00) for the first ten (10) Stations and twenty dollars ($20.00)
for each additional Station. Annual licensing fees shall also include any outstanding inspection fees. All
fees are non-refundable, shall be made payable by check or credit card to the Department or online, and
shall be submitted with the application. (II)

J. Licensing Late Fee. Failure to submit a renewal application and fee to the Department by the license
expiration date shall result in a late fee of seventy-five dollars ($75.00) or twenty-five percent (25%) of the
licensing fee amount, whichever is greater, in addition to the licensing fee. Failure to submit the licensing
fee and licensing late fee to the Department within thirty (30) days of the license expiration date shall render
the Facility unlicensed. (1I)

K. License Renewal. For a License to be renewed, applicants shall submit a complete and accurate
application on a form prescribed and furnished by the Department, shall pay the License fee, and shall not
have pending enforcement actions by the Department. If the License renewal is delayed due to enforcement
actions, the renewal License shall be issued only when the matter has been resolved by the Department, or
when the adjudicatory process is completed, whichever is applicable.

L. Amended License. A Facility shall request issuance of an amended license by application to the
Department prior to any of the following circumstances:

1. Addition of Renal Dialysis Station or any part thereof: including:

a. Chronic Hemodialysis Stations;

b. Home Hemodialysis Training Stations; or

¢. Peritoneal Stations;

2. Change of Facility location from one geographic site to another:

3. Change in Facility name or address (if notified by post office the address has changed)

M. Change of Licensee. A Facility shall request issuance of a new License by application to the
Department prior to a change of the legal entity, for example, sole proprietorship to or from a corporation,

or partnership to or from a corporation, even if the controlling interest does not change.

N. The licensee shall notify the Department, in a means as determined by the Department, of a change in

controlling interest even if, in the case of a corporation or partnership, the legal entity retains its identity
and name.

O. Variance. A variance is an alternative method that ensures the equivalent level of compliance with the
standards in this regulation. The Facility may request a variance to this regulation in a format as determined
by the Department. Variances shall be considered on a case by case basis by the Department. The
Department may revoke issued variances as determined to be appropriate by the Department.

SO Penalties

13



14



SECTION 200 - ENFORCEMENT OF REGULATIONS

15



201. General.

The Department shall utilize Inspections, Investigations, Consultations, and other pertinent documentation
regarding a proposed or licensed Facility in order to enforce this regulation.

202. Inspections and Investigations.

A. A Facility shall undergo Inspection by the Department prior to initial licensing and is subject to
subsequent Inspections as deemed appropriate by the Department. (1)

B. The Facility shall allow all individuals authorized by South Carolina law to enter the Facility for the
purpose of Inspection and/or Investigation and granted access to all properties and areas, objects. requested
records, and documentation at the time of the Inspection or Investigation. The Department shall have the
authority to require the Facility to make photocopies of those documents required in the course of
Inspections or Investigations. Photocopies shall be used only for purposes of enforcement of regulations
and confidentiality shall be maintained except to verify the identity of individuals in enforcement action
proceedings. The physical areas of Inspections and Investigations shall be determined by the Department
based on the potential impact or effect upon Patients. (1)

C. When there is noncompliance with the licensing standards, the Facility shall submit an acceptable plan
of correction in a format determined by the Department. The plan of correction shall be signed by the

Administrator and returned by the date specified on the report of Inspection or Investigation. The plan of

correction shall describe: (II)

1. The actions taken to correct each cited deficiency;

2. The actions taken to prevent recurrences (actual and similar); and

3. The actual or expected completion dates of those actions.

D. The Facility shall make available to the public copies of reports of Inspections or Investigations
conducted by the Department, including the Facility response, upon written request with redactions of
names of individuals in the report as provided by S.C. Code Sections 44-7-310 and 44-7-315.

E. The Facility shall pay a fee of three hundred fifty dollars ($350.00) plus twelve dollars ($12.00) per
licensed Station for initial and routine Inspections. The fee for Station increase Inspections and follow-up
inspections is two hundred dollars ($200.00) plus twelve dollars ($12.00) per licensed Station.

E. The Licensee shall pay the following inspection fees during the construction phase of the project. The
plan inspection fee is based on the total estimated cost of the project whether new construction, an addition,
or a renovation. The fees are detailed in the table below.

Construction Inspection Fees
Plan Inspection

Total Project Cost Fee

< $10,001 $750
$10,001 - $100,000 $1,500
$100,001 - $500.000 $2.000




$2.500 plus  $100 for each
> $500.000 additional $100.000 in project cost

Site Inspection

50% Inspection $500
80% Inspection 500
100% Inspection $500

203. Consultations.

Consultations may be provided by the Department as requested by the Facility or as deemed appropriate by

the Department.

17



13










21



SECTION 300 — ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS

22



301. General.

When the Department determines that a Facility is in violation of any statutory provision, rule, or regulation
relating to the operation or maintenance of such Facility, the Department, upon proper notice to the
Licensee, may deny, suspend, or revoke Licenses, or assess a monetary penalty, or both.

302. Violation Classifications.

Violation of standards in this regulation are classified as follows:

A. Class I violations are those that present an imminent danger to the health, safety, or well-being of the
persons in the Facility or a substantial probability that death or serious physical harm could result therefrom.
A physical condition or one or more practices, means, methods or operations in use in a Facility may
constitute such a violation. The condition or practice constituting a Class I violation shall be abated or
eliminated immediately unless a fixed period of time, as stipulated by the Department, is required for
correction. Each day such violation exists after expiration of the time established by the Department shall
be considered a subsequent violation.

B. Class II violations are those, other than Class I violations that have a negative impact on the health,
safety or well-being of persons in the Facility. The citation of a Class Il violation shall specify the time
within which the violation is required to be corrected. Each day such violation exists after expiration of this
time shall be considered a subsequent violation.

C. Class III violations are those that are not classified as Class I or II in this regulation or those that are
against the best practices. The citation of a Class III violation shall specify the time within which the
violation is required to be corrected. Each day such violation exists after expiration of this time shall be
considered a subsequent violation.

D. The notations “(I)” or “(1l),” placed within sections of this regulation, indicate those standards are
considered Class I or II violations if they are not met, respectively. Failure to meet standards not so
annotated are considered Class III violations.

E. In determining an enforcement action the Department shall consider the following factors:

1. Specific conditions and their impacts or potential impacts on health, safety, or well-being of the
Patients including, but not limited to: deficiencies in medication management; critical waste water
problems; housekeeping, maintenance, or fire and life safety-related problems that pose a health threat to
the Patients; power, water, gas, or other utility and/or service outages: Patients exposed to air temperature
extremes that jeopardize their health; unsafe condition of the building or structure:; indictment of an
administrator for malfeasance or a felony, which by its nature indicates a threat to the Patients; direct
evidence of abuse, neglect, or exploitation; no staff available at the Facility with Patients present; unsafe
procedures and/or treatment being practiced by staff; (1)

2. Repeated failure of the Licensee or Facility to pay assessed charges for utilities and/or services
resulting in repeated or ongoing threats to terminate the contracted utilities and/or services; (II)

3. Efforts by the Facility to correct cited violations;

4. Overall conditions of the Facility;

23



5. History of compliance: and

6. Any other pertinent conditions that may be applicable to current statutes and regulations.

F. When imposing a monetary penalty, the Department may invoke S.C. Code Section 44-7-320( C) to

determine the dollar amount or may utilize the following schedule:

FREQUENCY OF CLASS1 CLASS I CLASS III
VIOLATION

1 $500-1,500 $300-800 $100-300
2nd 1,000-3.000 500-1,500 300-800

3d 2.000-5.000 1,000-3.000 500-1,500
4" 5.000 2,000-5,000 1,000-3,000
5t 5.000 5,000 2,000-5,000
6" 3.000 5.000 2.000

24




25



26



27



28



29






SECTION 400 — POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

A. The Facility shall maintain and adhere to written policies and procedures addressing the manner in
which the requirements of this regulation shall be met. The Facility shall be in full compliance with the
policies and procedures. (11)

B. The written policies and procedures shall include the following: (I)

1. Staffing and training

2. Reporting incidents, accidents, reportable diseases, closure and zero census

3. Patient records

4. Patient care and services

5. Patient rights and assurances

6. Medication management

31



7. Admissions and discharge

8. Fire prevention

9. Maintenance including doors, windows, HVAC, fire alarm, electrical, mechanical, plumbing, and
for all equipment

10. Infection control and housekeeping

11. Water supply

12. Quality Improvement Program

C. The Facility shall establish a time period for review, not to exceed two (2) vears, of all policies and
procedures, and such reviews shall be documented and signed by the Administrator. All policies and
procedures shall be accessible to Facility staff, printed or electronically, at all times.

SECTION 500 — STAFF AND TRAINING

501. General.

A. The Facility shall maintain accurate and current information regarding all staff members of the
Facility, to include at least address, phone number, date of hire, date of initial Patient contact, and personal,

work, and training background.

B. The Facility shall assign all staff members duties and responsibilities in writing and in accordance

with the individual’s capability. The Facility shall maintain a personnel file for each staff member. The file

shall contain a health assessment, laboratory test results, resumés of training and experience, and current

job description that reflects the staff member’s responsibilities and work assignments, orientation, and
periodic evaluations. (II)

SECTION 502. Administrator. (II)

A. The Facility shall employ a full-time Administrator who shall be responsible for the management and
administration of the Facility. The Administrator shall hold at least a bachelor’s degree or have a minimum

of an associate degree in a health-related field with at least two (2) years of experience in End-Stage Renal
Disease within the past five (5) yvears. The Director of Nursing may serve as the Administrator.

B. Designee. A staff member shall be designated in writing to act in the absence of the Administrator.

C. The Facility shall notify the Department in writing within seventy-two (72) hours of any change in
Administrator status and shall provide the Department the name of the newly-appointed Administrator and

the effective date of the appointment.

503. Director of Nursing.

The Facility shall have a licensed registered nurse to act as Director of Nursing. The Director of Nursing
shall have the following:

32



A. At least twelve (12) months of experience in clinical nursing, and an additional six (6) months of

experience in nursing care for patients with permanent kidney failure or undergoing kidney transplantation,

including training in and experience with the Dialysis process: or

B. Eighteen (18) months of experience in nursing care of a patient on dialysis, or in nursing care of a

patient with a kidney transplant, including training in and experience with the dialysis process.
C. If responsible for Home Dialysis Training, at least three (3) months of the total required End-Stage

Renal Disease experience shall be in training patients in Home Dialvsis.

504. Staffing. (I)

A. Each Facility shall have the following minimum staffing to provide services:
1. A registered nurse who shall serve as charge nurse (the Director of Nursing may act in this role);

2. At least one (1) registered nurse shall be on duty during hours of operation for every ten (10) Patients
or fraction thereof. The charge nurse may serve in this capacity: and

3. If the Facility provides Home Dialysis training, such training shall be provided by a registered nurse
who has had at least twelve (12) months experience in dialysis. At least three (3) months of the total required

End-Stage Renal Disease experience shall be in training patients in Home Dialysis.
B. In addition to nursing staff, Direct Care Staff shall be in the building and immediately available to

ensure a ratio of one (1) Direct Care Staff to each four (4) Patients or fraction thereof. (I)

C. The Facility shall maintain documentation to ensure the Facility meets Sections 504.A and 504.B

505. Medical Staff.

A. If more than one (1) physician practices in a Facility, they shall be oreanized as a medical staff with

appropriate bylaws approved by the governing body. The medical staff shall meet at least Quarterly and the

Facility shall maintain minutes of such meetings.

B. The Facility shall have a licensed physician to serve as Medical Director of the End-Stage Renal
Diseases services.

C. The Medical Director shall be responsible for the execution of Patient care policies and medical staff
bylaws and rules and regulations. (I)

D. A licensed physician or nephrologist with demonstrated experience in the care of Patients with
End-Stage Renal Disease shall be on-call to respond to Dialysis-related Patient issues during all times of
clinical operations.

E. The Facility shall maintain a contact list for all on-call personnel, to include name, telephone number,

and dates on-call. The Facility shall update the contact list as changes in personal occur, but not less that
annually.

506. Job Descriptions.

33



A. The Facility shall maintain written job descriptions that describe the duties of every position. Each

job description shall include position, title, authority, specific responsibilities, and minimum qualifications.

B. Job descriptions shall be signed by each staff member when assigned to the position and when revised.

507. Orientation. (I)

A. The Facility shall develop and execute a written orientation program to familiarize all new staff
members with the Facility, its policies, and the staff members’ job responsibilities. Documentation of
orientation shall include training source, duration, and shall be signed and dated by the trainer and trainee.
All required orientation shall be completed prior to Patient contact.

B. For Direct Care Staff, the orientation program shall contain at least the following subject content:

1. Fluid and electrolyte balance;

2. Kidney disease and treatment;

3. Dietary management;

4. Principles of Dialysis;

5. Dialysis technology;

6. Venipuncture technique;

7. Care of Dialysis Patients; and

8. Prevention of Hepatitis and other infectious diseases.

508. Training. (I)

A. Documentation of all in-service training shall be signed and dated by both the individual providing
the training and the individual receiving the training. The following training shall be provided to all Direct
Care Staff prior to Patient contact and at a frequency determined by the Facility, but at least annually unless
otherwise specified by certificate, €.g., cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR):

1. Basic first aid:

2. Confidentiality of Patient information;

3. Patient’s rights and assurances;

4. End-Stage Renal Disease care;

5. Cardiopulmonary resuscitation for designated staff members to ensure that there is a certified staff
member present whenever residents are in the Facility.

B. Each equipment technician shall have completed a training course. Documentation of the training

course shall be maintained in the staff file. The training shall include the following:

34



1. Prevention of Hepatitis via Dialysis equipment:

2. The safety requirements of dialysate delivery systems;

3. Bacteriologic control;

4. Water quality standards; and

5. Repair and maintenance of Dialysis and other equipment.

C. Facilities may allow Licensed Practical Nurses to perform intravenous (IV) push medication therapy.
Prior to any Licensed Practical Nurse performing IV push medication therapy the Facility shall secure and
maintain in the individual staff file the following:

1. Documentation of completion of an intravenous (IV) therapy course to include didactic and skill
competency verification as required by current state and federal regulations;

2. Documentation of competency of performing IV push medication therapy, and annually thereafter.,
to include:

a. Administration of set prescribed dose routine and chronic medications;

b. Lab value parameters;

c. Technical administration process monitoring;

d. Emergency plan according to Facility policy and procedures; and

e. All Medications to be administered. to include appropriate dosage, actions, side effects, and

contraindications.

509. Health Assessment.

A. All Direct Care Staff shall have a documented Health Assessment within twelve (12) months prior to
initial Patient contact. The Health Assessment shall include tuberculin skin testing as described in Section
1704.

B. For staff members working at multiple Facilities operated by the same Licensee, copies of the
documented Health Assessment shall be accessible at each Facility.

SECTION 600 — REPORTING

601. Incidents.

A. The Facility shall document every incident, and include an incident review, investigation, and
evaluation as well as corrective action taken, if any. The Facility shall retain all documented incidents
reported pursuant to this section for six (6) vears after the Patient involved is last discharged. For the first
year following discharge, these records shall be kept on site and readily available at that Facility.

B. The Facility shall report following types of incidents to the responsible party or emergency contact
for each affected individual at the earliest practicable hour, not exceeding twenty-four (24) hours of the

35



incident. The Facility shall notify the Department immediately, not to exceed twenty-four (24) hours, via
the Department’s electronic reporting system or as otherwise determined by the Department. Incidents
requiring reporting include:

1. Confirmed or suspected crimes against Patients:

2. Confirmed or suspected Abuse, Neglect, or Exploitation;

3. Use of wrong dialyzer on Patient:

4. Blood spills of more than one hundred (100) milliliters;

5. Adverse reactions to Hemolvtic transfusion;

6. Adverse reactions to dialyzers;

7. Medication errors with the potential for adverse impact;

8. Hospitalization or death resulting from the incident;

9. Severe hematoma or laceration requiring medical attention or hospitalization;

10. Bone or joint fracture;

11. Severe injury;

12. Fire;

13. Natural disaster

C. The Facility shall submit a separate written investigation report within five (5) days of every incident
required to be reported to the Department pursuant to Section 601.B via the Department’s electronic
reporting system or as otherwise determined by the Department. Reports submitted to the Department shall
contain only: Facility name, License number, type of accident and/or incident, the date of accident and/or
incident occurred, number of Patients directly injured or affected, Patient medical record identification
number, Patient age and sex, number of Staff directly injured or affected, number of visitors directly injured

or affected, witness(es) name(s), identified cause of accident/incident, internal investigation results if cause

unknown, a brief description of the accident/incident including location where occurred, and treatment of
injuries

D. The Facility shall notify the Patient’s Physician and responsible party or emergency contact within
twenty-four (24) hours of significant changes in a Patient’s condition and shall document the significant

changes and notification in the Patient’s record. (I)

602. Reportable Diseases and Infections. (IT)

A. Reportable Diseases. The Facility shall report cases of reportable diseases in accordance with
Regulation 61-20, Communicable Diseases, and any occurrences such as epidemic outbreaks or poisonings
or other unusual occurrence, which threatens the welfare, safety or health of Patients or personnel, shall be
reported immediately to the local health director and to the Bureau of Health Facilities Licensing.

36



B. Reports of infections such as abscesses, septicemia, hepatitis, or other communicable diseases

observed during admission or follow-up (or return) visit of the Patient shall be made and kept as a part of

the Patient’s medical records. Efforts shall be made to determine the origin of any such infection and if the
dialysis procedure was found to be related to acquiring the infection, remedial action shall be taken to
prevent recurrence.

603. Closure and Zero Census.

A. The Facility shall notify the Department and Patients, or Patients’ representatives when appropriate,
in writing prior to permanent closure of the Facility and shall provide the effective closure date. The Facility
shall return its License to the Department on the date of closure.

B. The Facility shall notify the Department in writing within fifteen (15) days prior to a temporary
closure. or within forty-eight (48) hours if the temporary closure is due to an emergency. The notification
shall include the reason for the temporary closure, records maintenance plan, anticipated reopening date,
and documentation of Patient notification. Facilities that are temporarily closed longer than one (1) year
shall reapply for licensure with the Department and be subject to all applicable licensing and construction
requirements for new Facilities.

C. The Facility shall notify the Department in writing if there have been no Patients in the Facility for
any reason for ninety (90) days or more no later than one hundred (100) days after the last Patient is
discharged. Facilities that are zero census longer than one (1) vear shall reapply for licensure with the
Department and be subject to all applicable licensing and construction requirements for new Facilities.

D. Prior to the closing of a Facility for any reason, the Licensee shall arrange for preservation of records
to ensure compliance with this regulation. The Facility shall notify the Department in writing within ten
(10) days of closure of the provisions for records maintenance describing the arrangements and the location
of the records.

SECTION 700 — PATIENT RECORDS

701. Content.

A. The Facility shall maintain an organized medical record for each Patient. All entries shall be
permanently written, typed, or electronic media, authenticated by the author, and dated.

B. The medical record shall be current and contain: (II)

1. Face sheet;

a. identification data (name, date of birth, gender);

b. diagnosis;
¢. primary care physician’s name and phone number;

d. Responsible person or other individual to be contacted in case of emergency and phone number;

e. Patient’s address and phone number; and

f. date of admission;

37



2. Orders from Physicians and other Authorized Healthcare Providers for at least one (1) year. Standing
orders shall be updated on an Annual basis;

3. Documentation of Physician or other Authorized Healthcare Provider visits for at least one (1) year.
Physician or other Authorized Healthcare Provider visits shall be made at least monthly, as evidenced by a
monthly progress note placed in the medical record, and periodically while the patient is receiving in-
facility dialysis. The Facility shall document each visit missed by the Patient;

4. Physician progress notes for Home Dialysis Patients shall be documented monthly;

5. Lab and x-ray reports;

6. Annual history and physical;

7. Social worker initial assessments, updates, and quarterly progress notes;

8. Dietary initial assessments, updates, and monthly progress notes;

9. Miscellaneous consultations, hospitalizations;

10. Current Individual Plan of Care;

11. Nurses’ progress notes each time of dialysis for one (1) month;

12. Nurse’s initial admission assessment;

13. Signed consent forms.

702. Authentication. (IT)

Facilities employing electronic signatures or computer-generated signature codes shall ensure
authentication and confidentiality. If the Facility permits any portion of a Patient’s record to be generated
by electronic means, there shall be policies and procedures to prohibit the use or authentication by
unauthorized users.

703. Individual Plan of Care.

A. The Interdisciplinary Team shall develop an Individual Plan of Care for each Patient to ensure
appropriate modality of care. The Interdisciplinary Team shall develop the Individual Plan of Care either

within the first thirty (30) calendar days of care or within the first thirteen (13) treatments. Individual Plans
of Care shall be based on Patient’s needs.

B. The Interdisciplinary Team shall review the Individual Plan of Care at least monthly for unstable

Patients, and Annually for stable Patients and as changes in Patient needs occur. The Facility shall document
participation of the Interdisciplinary Team, Patient and/or Patient’s responsible party as appropriate, as

evidenced by their signatures and date. The Individual Plan of Care shall include the following care areas:

1. Medical;

2. Psychological;

38



3, Social;

4. Dietary needs;

5. Stability of Patients;

6. Diagnosis;

7. Type of dialysis treatment;

8. Determination of stability of Patient (stable or unstable);

9. Indication whether candidate for transplantation or home dialysis;

10. Psychological needs, goals, and interventions; and

11. Dietary needs and interventions.

12. The course of action to be taken, the response and reaction to the care, and results of the treatment,
and/or services provided.

704. Record Maintenance.

A, The Licensee shall provide accommodations, space, supplies, and equipment for the protection,
storage, and maintenance of Patient records. Patient records shall be stored in an organized manner.

B. The Patient record is confidential and shall be made available only to individuals authorized by the
Facility and/or the South Carolina Code of Laws. (II)

C. Copies of records generated by organizations or individuals contracted by the Facility for care or
services shall be maintained by the Facility.

D. Upon Discharge of a Patient, the record shall be closed within thirty (30) calendar days and filed in
an inactive or closed file maintained by the Licensee.

E. The Facility shall designate a staff member to serve as supervisor of Patient records. The
Facility- designated staff member shall be a Registered Health Information Administrator or a Registered
Health Information Technician. If the designated staff member is not a Registered Health Information
Administrator or a Registered Health Information Technician the staff member shall receive consultation
from a Registered Health Information Administrator or a Registered Health Information Technician. (II)

F. The Facility shall safeguard information in the medical record against loss, tampering, or use b
unauthorized persons.

G. Records of current Patients shall be the property of the Facility. The records of current Patients shall
be maintained at the Facility and shall not be removed without court order.

705. Record Retention.

39



A. When a Patient is transferred to an emergency Facility, a transfer summary to include, at a minimum
the diagnosis shall accompany the Patient to the receiving Facility at the time of transfer or forwarded

immediately after the transfer. Documentation of the information forwarded shall be maintained in the
Facility’s Patient record. (I)

B. Records generated by organizations or individuals contracted by the Facility for care, treatment,

procedures, surgery, and/or services shall be maintained by the Facility that has admitted the Patient.

Appropriate information shall be provided to assure continuity of care.

C. The Facility shall determine the medium in which information is stored. The information shall be
readily retrievable and accessible by Facility staff, as needed, and for regulatory compliance Inspections.

D. Records of Patients shall be maintained for at least six (6) years following the discharge of the Patient.
For the first year following discharge, these records must be kept on site and readily available at that
Facility. Other documents required by the regulation, e.g.. fire drills, shall be retained at least twelve (12)
months or until the next Department Inspection, whichever is longer.

SECTION 800 — [RESERVED]

SECTION 900 — PATIENT CARE AND SERVICES

901. Dietary Services.

Each Facility shall employ or contract with a Dietitian(s) to provide for the dietary needs of each Patient.
The Dietitian, in consultation with the physician or other Authorized Healthcare Provide, shall be
responsible for assessing the nutritional and dietetic needs of each Patient, recommending therapeutic diets,
counseling Patients and their families on prescribed diets, and monitoring adherence and response to diets.
Each Patient shall be evaluated as to his or her nutritional needs by the attending physician or other
Authorized Healthcare Provider and a Dietitian.

902. Laboratory Services. (II)

A. Laboratory services shall be provided under contract to meet the needs of the Patient. Hematocrits,
clotting times, and blood glucoses may be done by the Facility’s staff. Such staff shall be gualified by
education and experience to perform such duties under the direction of a physician.

B. Controls. There shall be a Quarterly constant packing time performed on all centrifuges used for

hematocrits. Records of performed constant packing time shall be maintained.

C. Administration of Blood. A Facility administering blood to Patients shall comply with the following:

1. Blood must be transported from the laboratory processing the blood to the Facility in a container
that will ensure maintenance of a temperature of one to ten (1 to 10) degrees centigrade. Temperature must
be recorded upon arrival.

2. If blood is not administered immediately upon arrival, it must be stored in a refrigerator at one to

six (1 to 6) degrees centigrade. The temperature of the refrigerator must be monitored and recorded.

E. All expired laboratory supplies shall be disposed of in accordance with Facility policy and procedures.

903. Social Services.

40



Each Facility shall employ or contract with a social worker to meet the social needs of Patients. The Social
Worker shall document and conduct psycho-social evaluations, participate in team review of Patient
progress, and document recommended changes in treatment based on the Patient’s current psycho-social

needs. (II)
904. Home Dialysis.

Home Dialysis Services shall include the following: (II)

A. Hemodialysis:

1. Surveillance of the Patient’s home adaptation, including provisions for visits to the home or the
Facility;

2. Consultation for the Patient with a Social Worker and Dietitian:

3. A record keeping system which ensures continuity of care:

4. Installation and maintenance of equipment;

5. Testing and appropriate treatment of the water; and

6. Ordering of supplies on an ongoing basis.

B. Continuous Ambulatory Peritoneal Dialysis:

1. Consultation for the Patient with a licensed Social Worker and a licensed Dietitian:

2. A record keeping system which ensures continuity of care; and

3. Ordering of supplies on an ongoing basis.

C. Continuous Cyeling Peritoneal Dialysis:

1. Surveillance of the Patient’s home adaptation, including provisions for visits to the home or the
Facility:;

2. Consultation for the Patient with a licensed Social Worker and a licensed Dietitian:

3. A record keeping system which ensures continuity of care;

4. Installation and maintenance of equipment; and

5. Ordering of supplies on an ongoing basis.

905. Transfer Agreement.

A. The Facility shall have in effect a written transfer agreement, signed by the Administrator, with one

or more hospitals, for the provision of inpatient care and other hospital services.

41



B. The Dialysis Facility shall transfer a Patient to a hospital whenever a transfer or referral is determined
as medically necessary by the attending physician.

C. There shall be an exchange of information, within one (1) business day, of medical and other
information necessary or useful in the care and treatment of Patients transferred to a hospital or any other
inpatient medical facility, or to another End-Stage Renal Disease Facility.

SECTION 1000 — PATIENT’S RIGHTS AND ASSURANCES

A. The following rights shall be guaranteed to the Patient, and, at a minimum, the Facility shall provide

the Patient and any guardians, next of kin, or sponsoring agencies a written and oral explanation of these
rights:

1. Fully informed of these rights and responsibilities, and of all rules and regulations governing Patient

conduct and responsibilities;

2. Fully informed of services available in the Facility and provided an explanation any out of pocket
expenses to the patient within fifteen (15) calendar days of admission and any time there are changes to
their insurance coverage:

3. Informed by a Physician of their medical condition as documented in the Patient’s medical record
unless the medical record documents a contraindication;

4. Afforded the opportunity to participate in the planning of their medical treatment and to refuse to

participate in experimental research:

5. Be transferred or discharged only for medical reasons, at the Patient’s request. or for the welfare of
the Patient, other Patients, or Facility Staff, or for nonpayment of fees and given notice to ensure orderly
transfer or discharge; and

6. Treated with consideration, respect and full recognition of their individuality and personal needs,
including the need for privacy in treatment.

B. The Facility shall maintain written documentation evidencing the Patient has had his or her rights
explained.

SECTION 1100 — PATIENT PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS

A. A Physical Examination shall be completed for Patients within thirty (30) calendar days prior to
admission and at least Annually thereafter. A Physical Examination included in a discharge summary from
a healthcare facility licensed by the Department, completed within thirty (30) calendar days, is acceptable

as the admission Physical Examination. The Facility’s physician shall atiest to the Physical Examination’s

accuracy by countersigning it.

B. Physical examinations by physicians licensed in states other than South Carolina are permitted for

new admissions under the condition that residents obtain an attending physician licensed in South Carolina
and undergo a second (2nd) physical examination by that physician within thirty (30) calendar days of

admission to the facility.

SECTION 1200 - MEDICATION MANAGEMENT

42



1201. General.

A. Medications, including Controlled Substances, medical supplies, and those items necessary for the
rendering of first aid, shall be properly managed in accordance with federal, state, and local laws and
regulations. Such management shall address the securing, storing, and administering of Medications,
medical supplies, first aid supplies. and biologicals, their disposal when discounted or expired, and their
disposition at discharge, death, or transfer of a Patient.

B. Applicable reference materials published within the previous three (3) vears shall be available at the
Facility in order to provide staff members or volunteers with adequate information concerning Medications.

an

1202. Medication Orders.

A. Medications, to include oxygen, shall be administered in the Facility to Patients only upon orders of

a physician or other Authorized Healthcare Provider.

B. All other orders shall be received only by Licensed Nurses or Authorized Healthcare Providers and
shall be authenticated and dated by a physician or other Authorized Healthcare Provider pursuant to the
Facility’s policies and procedures, but no later than fourteen (14) calendar days after the order is given.
Verbal orders received shall include the time of receipt of the order, description of the order, and
identification of the physician or other Authorized Healthcare Provider and the individual receiving the
order.

C. Medications and medical supplies ordered for a specific Patient shall not be provided to or
administered to any other Patient.

1203. Medicine Storage.

A. Medication and drugs maintained in the Facility for dailv administration shall be properly stored and
safeguarded in enclosures of sufficient size and that are not accessible to unauthorized persons.
Refrigerators used for storage of Medications shall maintain an appropriate temperature as determined by
the requirements established on the label of Medications. A thermometer accurate to plus or minus three
(3) degrees shall be maintained in these refrigerators. Only authorized personnel shall have access to storage
enclosures. Controlled Substances and ethyl alcohol, if stocked, shall be stored under double locks and in
accordance with applicable state and federal laws. Expired or discounted Medications shall not be stored
with current Medications. (I)

B. Medicine Preparation Area. Medicines and drugs shall be prepared for administration in an area that
contains a counter and a sink. This area shall be located in such a manner to prevent contaminations of
medicines being prepared for administration. (II

C. Stock Medications.

1. Unless the Facility has a permitted pharmacy, stocks of Legend Medications shall not be stored except
those specifically prescribed for individual Patients.

2. Non-legend Medications may be retained and Jabeled as stock in the Facility for administration as

ordered by a Physician or other Authorized Healthcare Provider.

43



3. Stocks of naloxone may be stored for emergency overdose crises, with or without specific prescription
for individual Patients.

4. If stock non-Patient specific Controlled Substances are to be used, a Controlled Substances registration
from the Department’s Bureau of Drug Control and a Controlled Substances registration from the federal
Drug Enforcement Administration shall be obtained. The registrations shall be displayed in a conspicuous
location within the Facility. Records shall be kept of all stock supplies of Controlled Substances giving an

accounting of all items received and/or administered. (I)

D. Poisonous Substances. All poisonous substances shall be plainly labeled and kept in a cabinet or closet
separate from medicines and drugs to be prepared for administration. (I)

E. Review of Medications. A Physician, pharmacist, or Licensed Nurse shall document review at least
monthly all Medications prescribed by the Facility’s physician for each Patient, for potential adverse
reactions, allergies, interactions, etc. (II)

SECTION 1300 — [RESERVED]

SECTION 1400—EMERGENCY PROCEDURES AND DISASTER PREPAREDNESS

1401. Disaster Preparedness. (II)

A. The Facility shall develop and maintain a written plan for actions to be taken in the event of a disaster
or an emergency evacuation. The plan shall be implemented as necessary and at the time of need. The plan
shall be evaluated, updated at least Annually, and available upon request by Patients, Patients’ families, and

the Department.

B. During any emergent event the Facility shall provide data, Facility and evacuation status, and other
requested information as determined by the Department, and at a frequency as determined by the

Department.

1402. Continuity of Essential Services. (II)

There shall be a plan to be implemented to ensure the continuation of essential Patient services for such
reasons as power outage, water shortage, or in the event of the absence from work of any portion of the
work force resulting from inclement weather or other causes.

SECTION 1500 — FIRE PREVENTION

1501. Arrangements for Fire Department Response and Protection. (I)

A. Each Facility shall develop, in coordination with its supporting fire department and/or disaster
preparedness agency, suitable written plans for actions to be taken in the event of fire, such as fire plan and
evacuation plan.

B. Facilities located outside of a service area or range of a public fire department shall arrange for the
nearest fire department to respond in case of fire by written agreement with that fire department. A copy of
the agreement shall be kept on file in the Facility and a copy shall be forwarded to the Department. If the
agreement is changed, a copy shall be forwarded to the Department.

1502. Tests and Inspections. (1)

44



Fire protection and suppression systems shall be maintained and tested in accordance with the provisions
of the codes officially adopted by the South Carolina Building Codes Council and the South Carolina State
Fire Marshal applicable to the Facility.

1503. Fire Response Training. (I)

All Facility staff shall complete Annual fire response training in accordance with specific duties and

responsibilities outlined in their job description. Training shall be documented in a staff record and
maintained in the Facility.

A. Fire response training shall address, at a minimum, the following:

1. Reporting a fire;

2. Use of the fire alarm system, if applicable:

3. Location and use of fire-fighting equipment;

4. Methods of fire containment: and

5. Specific responsibilities, tasks, or duties of each individual.

B. A plan for the evacuation of Patients, staff members, and visitors, to include evacuation routes and
procedures, in case of fire or other emergencies, shall be established and posted in a conspicuous public
area.

C. All Patients capable of self-evacuation shall be trained in the proper actions to take in the event of a

fire, for example, actions to take if the primary escape route is blocked.
D. Patients shall be made familiar with the fire plan and evacuation plan upon admission and this plan

will be reinforced during subsequent Fire Drills.

1504. Fire Drills.

A. An unannounced fire drill shall be conducted at least Quarterly for all shifts. Each staff member shall

participate in a fire drill at least once each year. Records of drills shall be maintained at the Facility,
indicating the date, time, shift, description, and evaluation of the drill, and the names of staff members,
volunteers, and Patients directly involved in responding to the drill. If fire drill requirements are mandated
by statute or regulation, then the mandated statute or regulation requirements supersede the requirements
of this regulation, and the Facility shall comply with the provisions of the statute or regulation.

B. Drills shall be designed and conducted in consideration of and reflecting the content of the fire
response training described in Section 1503 above.

C. All Patients shall participate in fire drills. In instances when a Patient refuses to participate in a drill,

efforts shall be made to encourage participation, for example, counseling, implementation incentives
rewarding Patients for participation, specific staff-to-Patient assignments to promote Patient participation.
Continued refusal may necessitate implementation of the discharge planning process to place the Patient in

a setting more appropriate to his or her needs and abilities.

45



1505. Fire Extinguishers, Standpipes, and Automatic Sprinklers.

The Facility shall provide fire-fighting equipment such as fire extinguishers, standpipes, and automatic
sprinklers as required by the provisions of the codes officially adopted by the South Carolina Building
Codes Council and the South Carolina State Fire Marshal applicable to the Facility. The Facility shall ensure
extinguishers are sized, located, installed, and maintained in accordance with National Fire Protection
Association No. 10. The Facility shall install suitable fire extinguishers in all hazardous areas. The Facility
shall comply with all state and local fire and safety provisions. (I)

SECTION 1600 - MAINTENANCE

1601. General Maintenance.

The Facility shall keep all equipment and building components including, but not limited to, doors,
windows, lighting fixtures, and plumbing fixtures in good repair and operating condition. The Facility shall
document preventive maintenance. The Facility shall comply with the provisions of the codes officially
adopted by the South Carolina Building Codes Council and the South Carolina State Fire Marshal
applicable to the Facility. (II)

1602. Equipment Maintenance.

A written preventive maintenance program for all fire alarm, electrical, mechanical, plumbing, fire
protection systems, and for all equipment used in dialysis and related procedures including, but not limited
to. all Patient monitoring_equipment, isolated electrical systems, conductive flooring, Patient ground
systems, and medical gas systems shall be developed and implemented. This equipment shall be checked
and/or tested at such intervals to ensure proper operation and a state of good repair. After repairs and/or
alterations are made to any equipment or system, the equipment or system shall be thoroughly tested for

proper operation before returning it to service. Records shall be maintained on each piece of equipment to

indicate its history of testing and maintenance. (II)

SECTION 1700 — INFECTION CONTROL

1701. Staff Practices.

Staff practices shall promote conditions that prevent the spread of infectious, contagious, or communicable
discases and provide for proper disposal of toxic and hazardous substances. These preventive measures
and/or practices shall be in compliance with applicable guidelines of the Blood bormne Pathogens Standard
of the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970; the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention;
R.61-105, Infectious Waste Management; and other applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations.

1702. Committee.

A. The Facility shall have an infection control committee composed of at least the Administrator, a

Physician, and a registered nurse that shall be responsible for writing and enforcing policies and procedures
for preventing and controlling hepatitis and other infections.

B. The policies and procedures for preventing and controlling hepatitis and other infections shall include,
but not be limited to: (II)

46



1. appropriate procedures for prevention of hepatitis and other infectious diseases, to include the
utilization of universal precautions for prevention of transmission of bloodborne pathogens currently
recommended by the Centers for Disease Control;

2. appropriate procedures for surveillance and reporting of infections to include infection rates;

3. housekeeping;

4. handling and disposal of waste and contaminants;

5. sterilization and disinfection of equipment;

6. prevention of contamination by blood and other body fluids of units outside of the dialysis and

Dialyzer reprocessing areas including toilet facilities, staff lounge, etc.:

7. protection of Patient clothing during the time when blood lines are opened or needles inserted or
withdrawn; and

8. investigation of infections.

1703. Tuberculosis Risk Assessment and Screening. (I)

A. Tuberculosis Testing. The Facility may utilize either Tuberculin skin testing or Blood Assay for
Mycobacterium tuberculosis (“BAMT™) for detecting Mycobacterium tuberculosis infection:

1. Tuberculin skin testing (“TST”). A small dose (0.1 mil) of purified protein derivative (“PPD”)
tuberculin is injected just beneath the surface of the skin (by the intradermal Mantoux method), and the area

is examined for induration (hard, dense, raised area at the site of the TST administration) forty-eight to

seventy-two (48 to 72) hours after the injection (but positive reactions can still be measurable up to a week

after administering the TST). The size of the indurated area is measured with a millimeter ruler and the
reading is recorded in millimeters, including zero (0) mm to represent no induration. Redness and/or

erythema is insignificant and is not measured or recorded. Authorized Healthcare Providers are permitted
to perform tuberculin skin testing and symptom screening.

2. Blood Assay for Mycobacterium tuberculosis (“BAMT”). A general term to refer to in vitro
diagnostic tests that assess for the presence of tuberculosis (“TB”) infection with Mycobacterium
tuberculosis. This term includes, but is not limited to, IFN-y release assays (“IGRA™).

B. The Facility shall conduct an Annual tuberculosis risk assessment in accordance with the Centers for
Disease Control guidelines to guide the Facility’s infection control policies and procedures related to the

appropriateness and frequency of tuberculosis screening and other tuberculosis related measures to be

taken.

C. Baseline Status.

1. The Facility shall determine the baseline status of all staff according to the Centers for Disease
Control and the Department’s most current tuberculosis guidelines.

2. Tuberculosis Screening. All staff within three (3) months prior to Patient contact shall have a

baseline two-step Tuberculin Skin Test (“TST”) or a single Blood Assay for Mvcobacterium tuberculosis
(“BAMT?). If a newly emploved staff or volunteer has had a documented negative TST or a BAMT result

47



within the previous twelve (12) months, a single TST (or the single BAMT) can be administered and read
to serve as the baseline prior to Patient contact.

D. Post Exposure. After known exposure to a person with potentially infectious tuberculosis disease
without use of adequate personal protection, the tuberculosis status of all staff shall be determined in a
manner prescribed in the Centers for Disease Control and Department’s most current tuberculosis

guidelines.

E. Annual Tuberculosis Training. All Direct Care staff shall receive Annual training regarding
tuberculosis to include risk factors and signs and symptoms of tuberculosis disease. The Annual

tuberculosis training shall be documented in a staff record and maintained at the Facility.

F. Serial Screening. The Facility shall follow the Ceniers for Disease Control and Department’s most
current tuberculosis guidelines related to serial screening.

1704, Staff Hepatitis Screening.

A. All Direct Care Staff shall have been vaccinated or have evidence of immunity for Hepatitis B prior

to Patient contact, unless contraindicated or offered and declined. The Facility shall maintain records of all
Direct Care Staff hepatitis B vaccinations in each individual staff file. The HBSAG status of all Direct Care
Staff shall be known to identify those individuals who are (1) HBsAg-positive and therefore potential
sources of infection to others; (2) anti-HBs-positive and therefore, immune: and (3) HBV-seronegative and
therefore susceptible to Hepatitis B virus.

B. The Facility shall offer Hepatitis B vaccinations to unvaccinated or partially vaccinated new direct
care staff members (who do not already exhibit immunity) prior to patient contact. The decision to receive
or decline a vaccination shall be documented in the individual staff file.

1. Each Direct Care Staff member who elects vaccination shall start the initial dose of the Hepatitis B
series within ten (10) days of Patient contact and complete the series within six (6) months. The Facility
shall conduct and document routine post-vaccination testing according to the Centers for Disease Control
guidelines for response to the vaccination.

2. The Facility shall consider the individuals declining vaccinations as Hepatitis B virus susceptible,
and follow the Centers for Disease Control guidelines in the event of a reported blood or bodily fluid

CXposure.

C. For staff members whose status has been determined to be HBsAg-positive, the Facility shall refer to
current Centers for Disease Control guidelines and Facility policies and procedures.

1703. Patient Hepatitis Screening.

A. All Patients shall be screened within thirty (30) calendar days prior to admission to the Facility to
determine the Hepatitis B virus serological status (HBsAg, anti-HBc, and anti-HBs). The HBsAg status of
all Patients shall be known to identify those individuals who are (1) HBsAg-positive and therefore potential
sources of infection to others; (2) anti-HBs-positive and therefore immune; and (3) HBV-seronegative and
therefore susceptible to Hepatitis B virus. A status result from Hepatitis B testing shall be maintained in the
Patient’s record.

48



B. The Facility shall make available to Patients literature describing the risks and benefits of the Hepatitis
B vaccination. The Facility shall offer Hepatitis B vaccinations to unvaccinated and/or susceptible Patients.
The Facility shall maintain all Patient vaccination records in each Patient record.

1. Each Patient who elects vaccination shall start the initial dose of the Hepatitis B vaccine series
within ten (10) days of admission and complete the series within six (6) months according to Centers for
Disease Control guidelines for pre-exposure vaccination. The Facility shall conduct and document routine
post-vaccination testing according to the Centers for Disease Control guidelines for response to the
vaccination.

2. The Facility shall consider the individuals declining vaccinations as Hepatitis B virus seronegative,

and follow the Centers for Disease Control guidelines for routine testing.

C. For Patients whose status has been determined to be HBsAg positive, the Facility shall refer to current
Center for Disease Control guidelines and Facility policies and procedures.

D. The Facility shall conduct routine Hepatitis B testing per current Centers for Disease Control
guidelines.

1706. Isolation Room.

All Facilities accepting Hepatitis B surface antigen positive Patients shall provide a separate isolation
Dialysis room. (IT)

1707. Housekeeping. (II)

A. The Facility and its grounds shall be clean, and free of vermin and offensive odors.

B. Interior housekeeping shall, at a minimum, include:

1. Cleaning each specific area of the Facility;

2. Cleaning and disinfection, as needed, of equipment used and/or maintained in each area appropriate
to the area and the equipment’s purpose or use;

3. For chemicals indicated as harmful on the product label, cleaning materials and supplies shall be in

locked storage areas and inaccessible to Patients: and

4. During use of chemicals indicated as harmful on the product label, cleaning materials and supplies
shall be in direct possession of the staff member and monitored at all times.

C. Exterior housekeeping shall, at a minimum, include:

1. Cleaning of all exterior areas, such as, porches and ramps, and removal of safety impediments such
as snow and ice;

2. Keeping the Facility grounds free of weeds, rubbish, overgrown landscaping, and other potential
breeding sources for vermin; and

3. Safe storage of chemicals indicated as harmful on the product label, equipment, and supplies
inaccessible to Patients.

49



D. Paper towels or air hand dryers and soap dispensers with soap must be provided at all lavatories in the

Facility. (IT)

1708. Linen.

A. All reusable linens, including those used as sterilizing wrappers, must be laundered before re-use.

B. Clean linens shall be handled, stored, processed, and transported in such a manner as to prevent the
spread of infection.

C. The Facility shall have available at all times a quantity of linen essential for proper care and comfort
of Patients.

D. Used linens shall be kept in closed and covered containers while being stored or transported.,

1709. Refuse and Waste Disposal. (II)

A. All garbage and waste shall be collected, stored, and disposed of in a manner to prevent the
transmission of disease. Containers shall be washed and sanitized before being returned to work areas.
Disposable-type containers shall not be reused.

B. Containers for garbage and refuse shall be covered and stored outside in durable, rust-resistant,
non-absorbent, watertight, rodent-proof, easily cleanable containers placed on an approved platform to
prevent overturning by animals, the entrance of flies or the creation of a nuisance. All solid waste shall be

disposed of at frequencies in a manner so as not to create a rodent, insect, or other vermin problem.

C. Containers for garbage shall be cleaned and free of debris.

D. All sewage and liquid waste shall be disposed of in a manner not to create a public health hazard and

by a sanitary method approved by the Department.

E. A Sharps disposal system shall be utilized and appropriately covered. (II)
1710. Outside Areas.

All outside areas, grounds and/or adjacent buildings shall be kept free of rubbish, grass, and weeds that may
serve as a fire hazard or as a haven for vermin. Qutside stairs, walkways, ramps, and porches shall be
maintained free from accumulations of water, ice, snow, and other impediments.

1711. Toxic and Hazardous Substances.

The Facility shall have policies and procedures for dealing with toxic and hazardous substances. Such
policies and procedures shall conform to current Occupational Safety and Health Administration standards
regarding formaldehyde, renalin, or any other sterilizing agents. (I)

A, The Facility shall develop procedures to cover at a minimum:

1. Formaldehyde vapor concentration;

2. Fire prevention;

50



3. Solution exposure;

4, Leaks from machines;

5. Large and small spills; and

6. Solution contact with eyes, skin and/or clothing (appropriate eyewash stations shall be provided in
all Facilities).

B. The Facility shall conduct and document routine monitoring of vapor concentration in accordance
with current Occupational Safety and Health Administration guidelines.

SECTION 1800 - QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

A. There shall be a written, implemented quality improvement program that provides effective

self-assessment and implementation of changes designed to improve the care and services provided by the
Facility.

B. The quality improvement program, at a minimum, shall:

1. Establish desired outcomes and the criteria by which policy and procedure effectiveness is regularly,
systematically, and objectively accomplished;

2. Identify, evaluate, and determine the causes of any deviation from the desired outcomes;

3. Identify the action taken to correct deviations and prevent future deviation, and the person(s)
responsible for implementation of these actions;

4. Analyze the appropriateness of Individual Plans of Care and the necessity of care and services
rendered;

5. Analyze all incidents and accidents, to include all medication errors and Patient deaths;

6. Analyze any infection, epidemic outbreaks, or other unusual occurrences which threaten the health,
safety, or well-being of the Patients; and

7. Establish a systematic method of obtaining feedback from Patients and other interested persons, as
expressed by the level of satisfaction with care and services received.

SECTION 1900 — DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

1901. General.

A Facility shall be planned, designed, and equipped to provide and promote the health, safety, and
well-being of each Patient. Facility design shall be such that all Patients have access to required services.

1902, Codes and Standards.

A. Facility design and construction shall comply with provisions of the codes officially adopted by the
South Carolina Building Codes Council and the South Carolina State Fire Marshal applicable to the Facility.

51



B. Unless specifically required otherwise by the Department, all Facilities shall comply with the adopted
construction codes and construction provisions of this regulation applicable at the time its initial License
was issued.,

1903. Submission of Plans and Specifications.

A. Plans and specifications shall be submitted to the Department for review and approval for new
construction, additions or alterations to existing buildings, replacement of major equipment, buildings being
licensed for the first time, buildings changing license type, and for Facilities increasing occupant load or
Licensed Capacity. Final plans and specifications shall be prepared by an architect and/or engineer
registered in South Carolina and shall bear their seals and signatures. Architectural plans shall also bear the
seal of a South Carolina registered architectural corporation. Unless directed otherwise by the Department,
plans shall be submitted at the schematic, design development, and final stages. All plans shall be drawn to
scale with the title, stage of submission, and date shown thereon. Any construction changes from the
approved documents shall be approved by the Department. Construction work shall not commence until a
plan approval has been received from the Department. During construction, the owner shall employ a
registered architect and/or engineer for observation and inspections. Periodic inspections shall be conducted
by the Department throughout each phase of a project.

B. Plans and specifications shall be submitted to the Department for review and approval for projects
involving Dialysis systems that are periodically replaced, reverse osmosis systems, or that have an effect
on.

1. The function of a space;

2. The accessibility to or of an area;

3. The structural integrity of the Facility;

4. The active and/or passive fire safety systems;

5. Doors;

6. Walls:;

7. Ceiling system assemblies;

8. Exit corridors;

9. Life safety systems; or

10. That increase the occupant load or Licensed Capacity of the Facility.

C. The Facility shall submit all subsequent addenda, change orders, field orders, and documents altering
the Department’s review. Any substantial deviation from the accepted documents shall require written
notification, review and re-approval from the Department.

D. Cosmetic changes utilizing paint, wall covering, floor covering, etc. that are required to have a

flame-spread rating or to satisfy other safety criteria shall be documented with copies kept on file at the
Facility and made available to the Department.

52



1904. Code and Standards Compliance and Inspections.

Construction work which violates codes or standards will be required to be brought into compliance. All
projects shall obtain all required permits from the locality having jurisdiction. Construction performed

without proper permitting shall not be inspected by the Department.

PARTH
Physical Plant

53



54






56



SECTION 2000 — FIRE PROTECTION, PREVENTION, AND LIFE SAFETY

A. Facilities shall have a partial, manual, automatic, supervised fire alarm system. The Facility shall

arrange the system 1o transmit an alarm automatically to a third party. The alarm system shall notify by
audible and visual alarm all areas and floors of the building. The alarm system shall shut down central

recirculation systems and outside air units that serve the area(s) of alarm origination as a mininum.

B. All fire, smoke, heat, sprinkler flow, and manual fire alarming devices shall be connected to and
activate the main fire alarm system when activated. (I)

C. Facilities shall not have single and multi-station smoke alarms.

57



SECTION 2100 —- GENERAL CONSTRUCTION

A. Gases, flammable and nonflammable, shall be handled and stored in compliance with provisions of
the codes officially adopted by the South Carolina Building Codes Council and the South Carolina State

Fire Marshal.

B. Safety precautions shall be taken against fire and other hazards when oxygen is dispensed,

administered. or stored. “No Smoking” signs shall be posted conspicuously, and cylinders shall be properly
secured in place. In “Smoke-Free” Facilities, “No Smoking” signs shall not be required provided all four

(4) of the following conditions are met:

1. Smoking is prohibited;

2. The Facility nonsmoking policy is strictly enforced:

3. “Smoke-Free” signs are strategically placed at all major entrances: and

4. A facility shall have “No Smoking” signs where oxvgen is stored. (1)

SECTION 2200 — [RESERVED]

CHAPTER 23
p e Mai e Eaui

58



SECTION 2300 - WATER SUPPLY

A. Water Supply. Water shall be obtained from a community water system and shall be distributed to
conveniently located taps and fixtures throughout the Facility and shall be adequate in volume and pressure
for all purposes. (I)

B. The Facility shall enter into an agreement with the water district or similar authority whereby the

Facility is regularly notified of situations occurring outside the Facility that may adversely impact water
quality including, but not limited to: (I)

1. changes in treatment methods and source;

2. municipal water treatment equipment failure:

3. damage to the distribution system: and

4. chemical spills.

C. Water used for dialysis purposes shall be analyzed for bacteriological quality at least monthly and

chemical quality at least Quarterly and treated as necessary to maintain a continuous water supply that is

biologically and chemically compatible with acceptable dialysis techniques. Water used to prepare a
dialysate shall not contain concentrations of elements or organisms in excess of those specified below: (D

ELEMENTS LIMIT IN
MILLIGRAMS PER LITER

Aluminum 01
Arsenic .005
Barium .100
Cadmium .001
Calcium 2.0
Chloramines 001
Chlorine 500
Chromium .014
Copper .100
Fluorides 200
Lead 005
Magnesium 4.0
Mercury .0002
Nitrates (Nitrogen) 2.0

59



Potassium 8.0

Selenium .090

Silver .005

Sodium 70.0

Sulfates 100.0

Zinc 100

Bacteria 200 colonies per milliliter

SECTION 2400 — ELECTRICAL

2401. General.

A. Emergency electric services shall be provided as follows:

1. Exit lights, if required;

2. Exit access corridor lighting:

3. lllumination of means of egress; and

4, Fire detection and alarm systems, if required.

B. The Facility shall be equipped with either; (1)

1. An installed electric generator that feeds all building and power requirements: or

2. A standard transfer switch for connection to a portable electric generator that is under permanent
contract for delivery and connection as soon as possible during government-declared weather related

emergencies. The Facility shall ensure the generator feeds all building and power requirements.

2402. Lichting and Electrical Services.

A. All electrical and other equipment used in the Facility shall be maintained free of defects that could
be a potential hazard to Patients or personnel. The Facility shall provide safe lighting for individual
activities as required by applicable codes.

B. The Facility shall maintain all electrical installations and equipment in a safe, operable condition in

accordance with the applicable codes.

C. The Facility shall maintain documentation of Annual electrical system inspection by a certified or
licensed technician.

60



SECTION 2500 — HEATING, VENTILATION, AND AIR CONDITIONING (HVAC)

A. The Facility shall maintain documentation of annual Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning

system inspection by a certified or licensed technician. (IT)

B. The Facility shall maintain a temperature of between seventy-two (72) and seventy-eight (78) degrees
Fahrenheit in Patient areas. (II)

C. No Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning supply or return grille shall be installed within three
(3) feet of a smoke detector. (I)

D. Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning grilles shall not be installed in floors. (II)

E. Intake air ducts shall be filtered and maintained to prevent the entrance of dust, dirt, and other
contaminating materials. The system shall not discharge in such a manner that would be an irritant to the
Patients, staff, or volunteers. (II)

F. Each bathroom and/or restroom shall have either operable windows or have approved mechanical

ventilation. (II)

SECTION 2600 — PHYSICAL PLANT

2601. General.

A. The dialysis unit(s) shall be separate from other activities and shall be located in an area free of traffic
by non-unit staff or Patients. (II)

B. The nursing station shall be located in an area that provides adequate visual surveillance of Patients
on dialysis machines. (I)

C. Treatment areas shall be designed and equipped to provide proper and safe treatment as well as privacy
and comfort for Patients. Sufficient space shall be provided to accommodate emergency equipment and
staff to move freely to reach Patients in emergencies. (I)

D. At least two (2) acceptable exits shall be provided for each Facility. (II)

E. If the Facility is located on the ground floor there must be one (1) exit to the outside for ambulance
and/or handicapped use. (II)

F. If the dialysis units are located above the ground floor, the Facility must have an elevator sized to
accommodate a stretcher. (II)

G. Dialysis units shall be at least three (3) feet apart with cubicle curtains or other means to provide
complete privacy for each Patient as needed. (II)

H. All rooms shall open onto a corridor leading to an exit and all corridors used by Patients shall be at
least four (4) feet wide. (I1)

L A waiting room shall be provided with sufficient seating for Patients and visitors.

61



J. Storage rooms shall be provided for supplies and equipment. Storage room floor space shall total at
least ten (10) square feet per station.

K. A clean work area that contains a work counter, handwashing sink, and storage facilities for the storage
of clean and sterile supplies shall be provided. (IT)

L. A soiled work area that contains a work counter, handwashing sink, storage cabinets, and waste

receptacle shall be provided. (II)

M. Patient toilet facilities shall be provided.

N, A separate staff toilet and personal storage space shall be provided within the unit.

O. Separate storage space shall be provided for oxygen cylinders if a piped system is not provided. (II)

P. A janitor’s closet shall be provided adjacent to and for the exclusive use of the dialysis Facility.

2602. Ground Fault Protection.

All electrical and other equipment used in the Facility shall be maintained free of defects that could be a
potential hazard to Patients or personnel, There shall be sufficient safe lighting for individual activities,
including suitable lighting for corridors and baths. Lighting in work areas shall never be less than fifty (50)
foot-candles. (II)

SECTION 2700 - SEVERABILITY

In the event that any portion of this regulation is construed by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid,

or otherwise unenforceable, such determination shall in no manner affect the remaining portions of this

regulation, and they shall remain in effect as if such invalid portions were not originally a part of this

regulation.

62



Fiscal Impact Statement:

63



Implementation of this regulation will not require additional resources. There is no anticipated additional
cost by the Department or state government due to any requirements of this regulation.

Statement of Need and Reasonableness:

The following presents an analysis of the factors listed in 1976 Code Sections 1-23-115(C)(1)-(3) and
9)-(11):

DESCRIPTION OF REGULATION: 61-97, Standards for Licensing Renal Dialysis Facilities.

Purpose: The Department amends R.61-97 to update provisions in accordance with current practices and
standards. The Department further revises for clarity and readability, grammar, references, codification,
and overall improvement to the text of the regulation.

Legal Authority: 1976 Code Sections 44-7-260 et seq.

Plan for Implementation: The DHEC Regulation Development Update (accessible at
http://www.scdhec.gov/Agency/RegulationsAndUpdates/RegulationDevelopmentUpdate/) will provide a
summary of and link to a copy of the amendment. Additionally, printed copies are available for a fee from
the Department’s Freedom of Information Office. Upon taking legal effect, Department personnel will take
appropriate steps to inform the regulated community of the amended regulation and any associated
information.

DETERMINATION OF NEED AND REASONABLENESS OF THE REGULATION BASED ON ALL
FACTORS HEREIN AND EXPECTED BENEFITS:

The amendments are necessary to update provisions in accordance with current practices and standards.
The amendments include updated language for facilities applying for licensure and incorporate provisions
delineating new requirements in training staff members, as well as new nursing and medical staff
requirements. The amendments revise and incorporate requirements regarding maintenance of policies and
procedures, Department inspections and investigations, maintenance of accurate and current contact and
training information for staff members, and other miscellaneous requirements for licensure.

DETERMINATION OF COSTS AND BENEFITS:

Implementation of these amendments will not require additional resources. There is no anticipated
additional cost to the Department or state government due to any inherent requirements of these
amendments. There are no anticipated additional costs to the regulated community.

UNCERTAINTIES OF ESTIMATES:

None.

EFFECT ON THE ENVIRONMENT AND PUBLIC HEALTH:

The amendments to R.61-97 seek to support the Department’s goals relating to the protection of public

health through implementing updated requirements for renal dialysis facilities. There are no anticipated
effects on the environment.

64



DETRIMENTAL EFFECT ON THE ENVIRONMENT AND PUBLIC HEALTH IF THE REGULATION
IS NOT IMPLEMENTED:

There is no anticipated detrimental effect on the environment. If the revision is not implemented, the
regulation will be maintained in its current form without realizing the benefits of the amendments herein.

Statement of Rationale:
Here below is the Statement of Rationale pursuant to S.C. Code Section 1-23-110(h):

The Department of Health and Environmental Control amends R.61-97 to update provisions in accordance
with current practices and standards. The amendments include updated language for facilities applying for
licensure and incorporate provisions delineating new requirements in training staff members, as well as
new nursing and medical staff requirements. The amendments revise and incorporate requirements
regarding maintenance of policies and procedures, Department inspections and investigations, maintenance
of accurate and current contact and training information for staff members, and other miscellancous
requirements for licensure.

65



ATTACHMENT B

SUMMARY OF PUBLIC COMMENTS AND DEPARTMENT RESPONSES

Document No. 4953

R.61-97, Standards for Licensing Renal Dialysis Facilities

As of the December 23, 2019, close of the Notice of Proposed Regulation comment period:

SECTION DEPARTMENT
NAME CITATION PUBLIC COMMENT RESPONSE
1. Jennifer 102.M.1 This section previously called for an amended license, Adopted.
McMullen rather than a new one, and it is unclear why a new
on behalf license would be required. The Department would be
of DaVita justified in requiring notification, or even submission of
Inc. a change of information requiring approval in the case
where there are new persons or entities in control of a
corporation or partnership. However, requiring a new
license for a change in controlling interest is
unnecessarily burdensome, and, in our opinion, not
rationally supported. While other provisions of the
proposed regulatory change are consistent with CMS
requirements, the requirement that a provider must
apply for a new license upon change of controlling
interest exceeds federal requirements, as well as the
requirements of other state departments of health.
2. Jennifer 400.B.9 CMS requires maintenance policies but includes Not adopted.
McMullen broader wording which does not minimize the facility’s This
on behalf obligation to comply with requirements for a safe, | recommendation
of DaVita functional, and comfortable treating environment. is already
Inc. South Carolina should adopt broader wording which addressed in
makes clear the facility’s obligation to ensure integrity | Section 1602.
of all physical plant maintenance, while also providing
the facility flexibility in achieving that objective.
3. Jennifer 502.C We would recommend that, if the Department is going Not adopted.
McMullen to add this level of specificity, it more clearly defines This
on behalf what is meant by “change” and also give some | recommendation
of DaVita flexibility for extenuating circumstances. For example, | is inconsistent
Inc. does this include a temporary change or only a with other
permanent change? If there is an unexpected departure, | regulations. The
does South Carolina need to be notified of the Department

temporary coverage and then again of the permanent
appointment? CMS allows 90 days to make such a

needs to be able
to contact the

notification so, if South Carolina needs notification | Administrator
within 72 hours, we would ask that it be narrowly | responsible for a
tailored and take into consideration the types of Facility.

66




emergent situations that could arise and necessitate
directing the focus of the facility to patient
care/replacement before administrative tasks.

4. Jennifer 503-504 While both the current regulation and the proposed | Adopted in both
McMullen revisions specify the same overall staffing ratio, the sections.
on behalf proposed language has more specific requirements
of DaVita related to a Director of Nursing and Charge Nurse. It is
Inc. unclear whether the same person can fulfill both roles.
If so, the language should be clarified because it does
specify that the charge nurse can serve as the RN on
duty. Additionally, is it requiring that if the Director of
Nursing is in charge of home training that such person
shall have at least 3 months of ESRD experience in
training home patients or that any nurse responsible for
home training needs such experience? We would
request the Department add clarity on this.
5. Dr. Greg 505 The proposed regulation requires that a Medical Adopted.
Smith on Director has “served for at least twelve (12) months as
behalf of director of a Dialysis or Transplantation program”. We
the Renal assume this is a mistake- no one would become the
Advisory director of a Dialysis or Transplant Program without
Council years of experience, usually as a Medical Director for a
dialysis facility. Current CMS Regulations require that
the Medical Director “has at least 12-months of
experience providing care to patients receiving
dialysis.” This is a reasonable requirement.
Recommendation- change regulation to read “has at
least 12-months of experience providing care to patients
receiving dialysis.” to match CMS guidelines.
6. Jennifer 505.B.2 This is an onerous obligation and one with which it will Adopted.
McMullen be difficult for facilities to comply in rural areas or
on behalf others with shortages of experienced physicians. CMS
of DaVita requires a Medical Director under the conditions for
Inc. coverage but does not require such experience if a

facility cannot find an experienced medical director.
South Carolina’s proposal under section 505 would
cause a facility to close its doors or risk non-compliance
with this new requirement, potentially disrupting patient
care and access. The Department should consider (1)
making this a recommendation but not a requirement,
(2) revising to require nephrology experience (but not
medical director), or (3) including exceptions for rural
or other physician shortage areas.

67




7. Dr. Greg 507.A The proposed regulations states, “All required Not adopted.
Smith on orientation shall be completed prior to Patient contact.” | Orientation refers
behalf of The currently accepted and most effective training | to the overview
the Renal algorithms employ an integrated approach which | of the specific
Advisory includes carefully supervised hands on training with | topic and is not a
Council patients. Some of this training will continue during the | practical training.

orientation of new employees. Patient contact is
ultimately necessary both to further the staff members’
skill sets as well as to assess the skills of those same
members before they are performing their tasks
unsupervised.

Recommendation- remove “All required orientation
shall be completed prior to Patient contact.”

8. Jennifer 508.A.1 CPR training is already required for all direct patient | Not adopted. It is

McMullen care staff and the facility must always have a Registered |  imperative for
on behalf Nurse on duty when patients are receiving treatment per | Direct Care Staff
of DaVita CMS and South Carolina regulations. Therefore, the | to have basic first

Inc. need to ensure availability of a competent clinician to |  aid training to
handle an acute first aid emergency is already being | address the basic
met. We respectfully submit that requiring all patient needs of a
care staff be trained on basic first aid is redundant to | Patient. This is
meet the needs of patients, unnecessarily adds expense not formal
and takes away from patient care. We would request that | certification and
the Department reconsider this proposal. the facility’s
nurse(s) could
provide this basic
training,.

9. Dr. Greg 601.B.4 No other states nor CMS regulations require reporting Adopted.
Smith on of blood spills. Current policy at many dialysis facilities
behalf of is to complete an internal Adverse Event report if a
the Renal blood spill is 100ml or greater. Also, for the purpose of
Advisory this regulation we are interpreting “spill” to mean blood
Council unintentionally lost outside the dialysis circuit. This

would not include blood remaining in a “clotted
dialyzer” that could not be returned to the patient or
blood intentionally discarded as a therapeutic
phlebotomy.

Recommendation- change the volume referenced in
601.A.4 to “100mL.”

68




10. 601.B.7 Without more clearly defining Medication Errors, the Adopted.
Jennifer Department may be creating a reporting obligation that 601.B.14 has
McMullen results in high volume or reports without actual impact | been removed
on behalf on patient safety. For example, would the Department | and “medication
of DaVita consider a missed dose by a patient a medication error? | errors with the
Inc. Would notification to next ofkin of a missed dose which potential for
could be given at next treatment with no adverse effect | adverse impact”
to the patient be considered a medication error? We | has been added in
suggest incidents requiring reporting be more well 601.B.7.
defined, and in the case of medication errors in
particular, be narrowed to include only an error with an
adverse patient event.
11. 601.D The proposed regulation would change reporting from | Partially adopted.
Jennifer within 10 days of incident to 24 hours. This is a
McMullen significant change and it is unclear how the facility
on behalf should accomplish this or why it is necessary. The new
of DaVita requirement also is not well defined, which potentially
Inc. could lead to misinterpretation. In the case of such

incidents, it is reasonable for the facility to focus on
investigating and remediating such incidents as well as
reporting to the state once it has the information needed
to accurately report. However, requiring notification
within 24 hours of all incidents, rather than narrowing
to medical emergency or material patient impact,
creates unnecessary burden.

Adding next of kin notification to this requirement
creates still more unnecessary burden without
justification. Often the facility has wrong or incomplete
information on a patient’s next of kin or will get a
voicemail when it attempts to reach someone. If such
prompt notification is required, would the Department
suggest the type of information known within 24 hours
be left on someone’s voicemail? This would likely
cause panic and unnecessary overreaction, in addition to
creating onerous and unclear requirements on facility
staff who would otherwise be focused on patient care
and facility operations.

The Department should reconsider significantly
narrowing this requirement with an eye toward giving
facilities the ability to direct resources toward getting
the report right and addressing any patient care issues
first, then reporting to the state and, finally, within a
reasonable time, notifying next of kin when that is
necessary and appropriate or meets the patient’s
preference.

69




12. Dr.
Greg
Smith on
behalf of
the Renal
Advisory
Council

602.B

The proposed regulation begins by stating that “The
Facility shall report (the) following types of incidents to
the next of kin, or responsible party, for each affected
individual at the earliest practicable hour, not exceeding
twenty-four (24) hours of the incident.” We feel this is
an essential practice to protect patients and to provide
for their ongoing care. However, the regulation as
written goes on to say that “The Facility shall notify the
Department (DHEC) immediately, not to exceed
twenty-four (24) hours, via the Department’s electronic
reporting system or as otherwise determined by the
Department.” In contrast to the first statement, this
second sentence has no basis in patient care or safety.
As the Regulations go on to indicate that a “full” report
must be filed within five (5) days of an incident, the
additional “24-hour notification” is a meaningless and
arbitrary distraction to patient care. Notwithstanding
that any of these incidents so reported on a Friday would
be undiscovered by Department personnel until the
following week, on many occasions (i.. holidays and
weekends) the Facility staff trained in the filing of
incident reports are not available within the twenty-four
(24) hour time frame.

Recommendation- remove the line in 601.B that states
“The Facility shall notify the Department (DHEC)
immediately, not to exceed twenty-four (24) hours, via
the Department’s electronic reporting system or as
otherwise determined by the Department.” Leave in the
preceding line referring to next of kin and responsible
party, as well as the subsequent Sections 601.C and 601.

Not adopted. The
Department
considers these
mcidents to be
potentially high
priority issues
requiring an
expedient
response.
Furthermore, this
requirement is in
multiple other
regulations.

13.
Jennifer
McMullen
on behalf
of DaVita
Inc.

603.B

While we support the heightened specificity in this
revised requirement, we would ask that the Department
add some flexibility where there is a crisis situation. For
example, the Department could allow 48-72 hours for
written notification and require 24-hour notification of
the closure and reason but give additional time to report
out on other aspects that may not be known
immediately, such as records maintenance and
documentation of patient notification. This will

protect against the need for multiple communications as
more information is known, and potentially alleviate
confusion and emotional reactions.

Adopted.

14. Dr.
Greg
Smith on

701.B.3

In enumerating the contents of the medical record, the
proposed regulation includes, “Physician or other
Authorized Healthcare Provider visits shall be made at

Adopted.

70




behalf of

the Renal

Advisory
Council

least four (4) times a month, and no more than twelve
(12) calendar days between consecutive visits.” The
requirement that Provider visits be performed four (4)
times a month is arbitrary, unreasoned, and inconsistent
with the CMS guidelines which follow- 42 CFR 494.9
(b)(4) The dialysis facility must ensure that all dialysis
patients are seen by a physician, nurse practitioner,
clinical nurse specialist, or physician's assistant
providing ESRD care at least monthly, as evidenced by
a monthly progress note placed in the medical record,
and periodically while the hemodialysis patient is
receiving in-facility dialysis. Additionally, published
data from large prospective studies shows no correlation
between number of physician visits and negative patient
outcomes. One such representative study (of many)
analyzed the hospitalization and death rates of 735
dialysis patients over 75 different clinics, separated by
per treatment, weekly, and monthly or less physician
visits. This study found no association between visit
frequency and patient hospitalization or death.

Frequency of Patient—Physician Contact and Patient
Outcomes in Hemodialysis Care

Laura C. Plantinga, Nancy E. Fink, John H. Sadler,
Andrew S. Levey, Nathan W. Levin, Haya R. Rubin,
Josef Coresh, Michael J. Klag and Neil R. Powe. JASN
January 2004, 15 €8 210-218; DOL
https://doi.org/10.1097/01. ASN.0000106101.48237.9D

Recommendation- to reflect existing empirical
evidence, as well as to better align SC Regulations with
Federal guidelines, we propose changing 700.B.3 to
read “Documentation of Physician or other Authorized
Healthcare Provider visits for at least one (1) year.
Physician or other Authorized Healthcare Provider
visits shall be made at least monthly, as evidenced by a
monthly progress note placed in the medical record, and
periodically while the patient is receiving in-facility
dialysis. The Facility shall document each visit missed
by the patient.”

15. Dr.
Greg
Smith on
behalf of
the Renal
Advisory
Council

704-705

All of these regulations concern the length of time a
Facility must retain a patient’s records following that
patient’s discharge from same Facility, but as written
these times are inconsistent and contradictory.
Additionally, while paper records exist the option of
off-site storage should be acknowledged and regulated.

Recommendation (for all applicable sections)- A
patient’s records, to include medical records, orders,

Partially adopted.
Language added
and 704.H
removed to
clarify the off-
site requirement.

71




and incident reports, shall be maintained for ten (10)
years following that patient’s discharge from a facility.
For the first year following discharge, these records
must be kept on site and readily available at that facility.

16. 704-705 There is the potential for confusion between the record | Already adopted
Jennifer retention time period in Section 704(H) and 705(D). We as per Dr.
MecMullen would request the Department clarify what “Record of Smith’s
on behalf Patients” means and distinguish it from medical comment.
of DaVita records.
Inc.
17. Dr. 1000.A.2 | The proposed regulation states patients are to be “Fully | Partially adopted.
Greg informed of services available in the Facility and of Requirement
Smith on related charges”. Most facilities do not have information changed to
behalf of readily available regarding charges for services. These | fifteen (15) days.
the Renal charges vary widely depending upon insurance
Advisory coverage and even from year to year as insurance
Council coverage changes; they are often unknown at the time
of admission.
Recommendation- change the above line (1000.A.2) to
read, “Any out of pocket expenses will be explained to
the patient within 30 days of admission and any time
there are changes to their insurance coverage.”
18. Dr. 1000.A.5 | The proposed regulation states, “Be transferred or | Partially adopted.
Greg discharged only for medical reasons or for the welfare Language
Smith on of the Patient, other Patients, or Facility Staff, or for | updated to allow
behalf of nonpayment of fees and given notice to ensure orderly | for a Patient’s
the Renal transfer or discharge; and...”. Patients who have been choice.
Advisory discharged from the care of their nephrologist and no
Council longer have an attending physician with privileges to

see patients in their Facility are not specifically
addressed in this Regulation. However, such a patient
would have no Physician ordering/monitoring their
dialysis or visiting them on rounds. This is certainly a
“medical reason” but is not readily apparent in the
current wording of the Regulation.

Recommendation- Change the above line (1000.A.5) to
read, “Be transferred or discharged only for medical
reasons (including lack of a Provider affiliated with the
Facility), or for the welfare of the Patient, other Patients,
or Facility Staff, or for nonpayment of fees. They shall
be given notice to ensure orderly transfer or discharge;
and...”

72




19.
Jennifer
McMullen
on behalf
of DaVita
Inc.

1501.B

To our knowledge, all fire departments have designated
assigned areas of coverage. The Department should
clarify whether this is intended for rural areas or
facilities that explicitly are not covered by any public
fire department as a matter of course. In the case that a
facility has no fire department coverage, the Department
should clarify whether this means facilities have the
ability to pick and choose contract services. Without
clarity, this proposal could cause significant and
unnecessary confusion and burden on facilities.

Not adopted.
This section of
the proposed
amendments
clearly states that
the nearest fire
department
should be chosen
and refers to,
“Facilities
located outside of
a service area or
range of a public
fire department.”

20. Dr.
Greg
Smith on
behalf of
the Renal
Advisory
Council

1504.D

The proposed regulation states, “In conducting fire
drills, all Patients shall evacuate to the outside of the
building to a selected assembly point. Drills shall be
designed to ensure that Patients attain the experience of
exiting through all exits.” As written, this Regulation
requires that all patients be TAKEN OFF dialysis and
marched outside the building four (4) times each year.
This is not reasonable or safe, as it requires unnecessary
de-accessing and subsequent re-accessing of a patient’s
shunt or catheter, as well as outdoor exposure of the
same. This requirement is in direct opposition to
everything R.61-97 purports to be doing. In a true
emergency (i.e. an actual fire), the risk of blood loss,
infection, and injury can be justified. Risking the same
to prepare for a potential emergency cannot,

Recommendation- Remove 1504.D entirely. Proper
handling of Fire Drills and training is already addressed
by 1503.C and 1503.D. However, we would modify
1503.D to read, “Patients shall be made familiar with
the fire plan and evacuation plan upon admission and
this plan will be reinforced during subsequent Fire
Drills.”

Adopted.

21.
Jennifer
McMullen
on behalf
of DaVita
Inc.

1504.D

This not a common practice for outpatient ESRD
facilities, creates unnecessary safety risk for patients on
dialysis treatment, and imposes significant burden on
facility and team. Each patient would need to be
disconnected and reconnected from the machine, which
would interrupt treatment and unnecessarily introducing
risk of infection and adverse events. Additionally, many
patients are not casily ambulatory making movement
for a drill an unnecessary and potentially dangerous

Already adopted
as per Dr.
Smith’s
comment.

73




exercise. So, while the facility should be well versed in
the process and patients be educated on emergency take-
off procedures and evacuation procedures, putting
patients through it for purposes of a drill is unnecessary.
Instead of requiring patients to endure this, we would
strongly recommend the Department consider replacing
this requirement with one that more closely aligns with
CMS requirements, or at most requires facilities to
conduct a “mock evacuation.”

22, 1602 While a program could be developed, this seems | Not adopted. The
Jennifer burdensome and unnecessary. We ask that the equipment
McMullen Department achieve the same purpose by mandating maintenance
on behalf that facilities must follow preventive maintenance as | program is more
of DaVita specified by each piece of equipment used in dialysis | complicated than
Inc. and keep records documenting the timely completion of | simply following
such maintenance. manufacturer’s
statements, and
major equipment
involving life
safety
maintenance is
derived from
building codes.
23. Dr. 1704.B Though 1704 and 1705 were modified to account for Adopted.
Greg staff/patients with proven immunity by not offering the
Smith on vaccine to individuals already antibody positive (who
behalf of were therefore not declining the vaccine), 1704.B still
the Renal reads, “The Facility shall offer Hepatitis B vaccinations
Advisory to unvaccinated or partially vaccinated new direct care
Council staff members prior to patient contact.”
Recommendation- change 1704.B to read, “The Facility
shall offer Hepatitis B vaccinations to unvaccinated or
partially vaccinated new direct care staff members (who
do not already exhibit immunity) prior to patient
contact.”
24. Dr. 1705.A The proposed regulation states, “All patients shall be Adopted.
Greg screened thirty (30) calendar days prior to or upon
Smith on admission...”, implying they can be screened at the time
behalf of of their first treatment. This seems inappropriate- if their
the Renal Hepatitis B status is not known a Facility will
Advisory potentially be exposing that patient, or the other clinic
Council patients, to Hepatitis B. Though this is consistent with

the original wording in R.61-97, we feel Hepatitis B

74




status should be known before a patient can receive
dialysis in an outpatient Facility.

42 CFR 494.30 Condition: Infection control references
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Morbidity
and Mortality Weekly Report, volume 50, number
RROS, April 27, 2001, pages 18 to 28, which states,
“The HBV serologic status (i.e., HBsAg, total anti-HBc,
and anti-HBs) of all patients should be known before
admission to the hemodialysis unit. For patients
transferred from another unit, test results should be
obtained before the patients' transfer.”

Recommendation- change 1705.A to read “All new
patients shall be screened within the thirty (30) prior to
being admitted to a new Facility...”

25. 1705.A We would request that the Department consider scaling Not adopted.
Jennifer back this requirement as it is inconsistent with CDC Proposed
McMullen requirements and not necessary to protect patients. | amendments are
on behalf Requiring confirmation of antigen (with no other labs) | consistent with
of DaVita is the most important lab to know if the patient needs to | CDC guidelines.
Inc. be in an isolation room. The other labs can be conducted
after admission to determine whether a patient requires
vaccination or other course of treatment. Requiring the
full panel prior to admission could unnecessarily delay
admission of a patient who needs treatment, thus
causing them to either remain in the hospital longer than
they should or to delay starting treatment.
26. 2401.B As worded, the proposed requirement states that a | Not adopted. The
Jennifer generator is required or, in the case of government- | purpose of the
McMullen declared weather-related emergencies, a transfer switch generator is to
on behalf with portable generators be available for delivery and address all
of DaVita connection as soon as possible. While a laudable goal, electrical
Inc. there is concern that there may not be adequate supply | outages, not just
within the State. It would be a significant financial regarding
burden for facilities that do not have a permanent government-
stationary generator in place to maintain a portable declared,
generator for each facility. Currently, portable | weather-related
generators are strategically distributed and deployed emergencies.
based on event. We ask that the Department provide
further clarity to this proposal and consider whether
there are less burdensome ways to ensure facilities are
adequately prepared for weather emergencies.
27. 2402.C This requirement is not necessary given that 2402(B) Not adopted.
Jennifer requires the facility to maintain all electrical Third party

75




McMullen installations and equipment in a safe, operable condition annual
on behalf in accordance with the applicable codes. Because this | inspections are
of DaVita requirement is onerous, expensive, and duplicative, we necessary as
Inc. would recommend the Department reconsider | most fires are
implementing it. electrical in
nature.
28. 2500.B This requirement is unnecessarily restrictive, and | Not adopted. The
Jennifer depending on the equipment, could be difficult for a regulation
McMullen facility to implement in this tight of a range. | requirement for a
on behalf Additionally, requiring a facility to keep the temperature
of DaVita temperature in a predetermined range would limit the | range between
Inc. care staff from complying with requests to make it | 72-78 degrees is

warmer in some instances and colder in others, resulting
in unhappy and uncomfortable patients and/or staff. We
would request the Department reconsider this
regulation, especially because the previous requirement
to ensure HVAC systems are capable of maintaining
comfortable temperatures was more than sufficient. If
the Department believes more prescription is required,
we suggest designating this responsibility to the
facility’s governing body.

an industry
standard
requirement.

76




	BRD-Agenda 20200106
	Item 2 - HR Summary
	Item 3 - FINAL BAI January 2020
	January 2020 Summary Sheet
	January 2020 BAI Board Copy
	51) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 19-067-W
	51) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 19-067-W
	52)  Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-068-W
	52)  Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-068-W
	53) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 19-069-W
	53) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 19-069-W
	54) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-070-W
	54) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 19-070-W
	55) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 19-071-W
	55) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 19-071-W
	56) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 19-072-W
	56) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 19-072-W
	Dams Enforcement
	Dams Enforcement
	57) Order Type and Number: Administrative Order 19-065-W
	57) Order Type and Number: Administrative Order 19-065-W
	BUREAU OF AIR QUALITY
	BUREAU OF AIR QUALITY


	Item 4 - NFR R.61-93
	Item 5 - NFR R.61-97

